
AGENDA 

INVESTMENT OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE AND AUDIT OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE MEETING, FEBRUARY 5, 2026 
PAGE 1 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE INVESTMENT OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE (IOC) 
AND 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE AUDIT OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE (AOC) 

Thursday, February 5,  2026 at 10:30 A.M.  

County Conference Center 
425 West Santa Ana Boulevard, Santa Ana, CA 92701 

Committee Members 

Second District Representative, Chair Tim Johnson, CPA 

Third District Representative, Vice Chair Mark Wille, CPA 

First District Representative Drew Atwater 

Fourth District Representative Larry Himmel 

Fifth District Representative Yvonne Rowden 
Board of Supervisors Representative 
(BOS Chair) Supervisor Doug Chaffee 

Board of Supervisors Representative 
(BOS Vice Chair) Supervisor Katrina Foley 

County Executive Officer Michelle Aguirre 

County Superintendent of Schools Representative 
(IOC Member Only) Dr. Stefan Bean 

Non-Voting Members 

Auditor-Controller Andrew Hamilton, CPA 
Treasurer-Tax Collector Shari Freidenrich, CPA 
Internal Audit Director Aggie Alonso, CPA 

Staff 
County Counsel Ronnie Magsaysay 

Clerk Valerie Sanchez 

This agenda contains a brief general description of each item to be considered. Except as otherwise 
provided by law, no action shall be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda. If you would like 
to speak during public comments, raise your hand when indicated by the Chair. When addressing 
the Committees, please state your name (or pseudonym) for the record. Public Comments may also 
be submitted electronically to response@ocgov.com.  

All supporting documentation is available for public review 72 hours before the meeting. Documents 
are available online at https://iad.oc.gov/oversight-committees/agendas-and-minutes  

mailto:response@ocgov.com
https://iad.oc.gov/oversight-committees/agendas-and-minutes


AGENDA 

INVESTMENT OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE AND AUDIT OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE MEETING, FEBRUARY 5, 2026 
PAGE 2 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and County Language Access Policy, 
those requiring ADA accommodation and/or interpreter services for this meeting should notify the 
Clerk of the Board 72 hours prior to the meeting at (714) 834-2206. Requests received less than 72 
hours will still receive every effort to reasonably fulfill in the time provided. 
 
 
Call to Order 
 
Roll Call 
 
Public Comments 
At this time, members of the public may address the Committees on any matter appearing on the 
agenda or not on the agenda but within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Committees. 
 
Committee Member Comments 
At this time, Committee members may make comments, request information or suggest future 
agenda items, and ask questions of, or give direction to staff, provided that no action may be taken 
on off-agenda items unless authorized by law. 
 

General Committee Matters Speaker 

1. Approve minutes of November 13, 2025, Regular Meeting Tim Johnson 
Chair 

2. Annual Form 700 filings due April 1, 2026 Valerie Sanchez 
Clerk 

Investment Oversight Committee Matters Speaker 

3. Receive and File Quarterly Report on the County Treasury and 
Investments for Quarter Ended December 31, 2025 

Dana Schultz 
Chief Investment Officer 

4. Receive and File Compliance Monitoring of Investment 
Portfolio for Quarters Ended September 30, 2024 and 
December 31, 2024 

Dana Schultz 
Chief Investment Officer 

Audit Oversight Committee Matters Speaker 

5. Receive and File Report on Required Communication from 
External Auditors 

David Showalter, CPA 
Partner 
Eide Bailly LLP 

6. Approve Internal Audit Department Quarterly Status Report 
(including Performance Audits) and Approve Executive 
Summary of Internal Audit Reports for Quarter Ended December 
31, 2025 

Jose Olivo, CIA CISA 
Deputy Director 
Internal Audit Department 



AGENDA 

INVESTMENT OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE AND AUDIT OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE MEETING, FEBRUARY 5, 2026 
PAGE 3 

7. Approve External Audit Activity Quarterly Status Report for 
Quarter Ended December 31, 2025, and Receive and File 
Report on Status of External Audit Recommendations 
Implementation 

Aggie Alonso, CPA 
Director 
Internal Audit Department 

8. Approve Independent Risk Assessment and Recommendations 
for FY 2025-26 and FY 2026-27 Audit Plans 

Aggie Alonso, CPA 
Director 
Internal Audit Department 
 
Kyle O’Rourke 
Consulting Partner 
Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP 

9. Receive Update on Internal Audit Staffing and Resources 
Aggie Alonso, CPA 
Director 
Internal Audit Department 

10. Receive and File Internal Audit Department’s Internal Quality 
Assessment for FY 2024-25 

Michael Steinhaus, CIA 
IT Audit Manager 
Internal Audit Department 

11. Receive and File Internal Audit Department Charter 
Aggie Alonso, CPA 
Director 
Internal Audit Department 

12. Receive and File Quarterly Status Report of Auditor-Controller 
Mandated Audits for Quarter Ended December 31, 2025  

Rodrigo Martinez, CIA, CISA 
Audit Manager 
Auditor-Controller 

13. Receive update on ERP Implementation  Andrew Hamilton, CPA 
Auditor-Controller 

14. Receive and File County IT Projects Quarterly Progress Report KC Roestenberg 
Chief Information Officer 

ADJOURNMENT:  

NEXT MEETING:  
Regular Meeting, Thursday, May 14, 2026, 10:30 A.M.  



Agenda Item 1  



SUMMARY ACTION MINUTES 
 

MINUTES – ORANGE COUNTY INVESTMENT OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE AND AUDIT OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE 
THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 13, 2025 - PAGE 1 

REGULAR MEETING 
INVESTMENT OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE (IOC) 

AND  
AUDIT OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE (AOC) 

 
Thursday, November 13, 2025, 10:30 A.M. 

 
County Administration South 
County Conference Center 

601 N. Ross St., Room 104/106 
 

 
Committee Members 

 
Fifth District Representative, Chair Yvonne Rowden 

Second District Representative, Vice Chair Tim Johnson, CPA 

First District Representative Drew Atwater 

Third District Representative Mark Wille, CPA 

Fourth District Representative Larry Himmel 

Board of Supervisors Chair Supervisor Doug Chaffee 

Board of Supervisors Vice Chair Supervisor Katrina Foley 

County Executive Officer Michelle Aguirre 
County Superintendent of Schools 
Representative (IOC Member Only) Dr. Stefan Bean 

 
Non-Voting Members 

 
Auditor-Controller 
 

Andrew Hamilton, CPA 

Treasurer-Tax Collector 
 

Shari Freidenrich, CPA 

Internal Audit Director 
 

Aggie Alonso, CPA 

 
Staff 

 
County Counsel 
 

Ronnie Magsaysay 

Clerk 
 

Valerie Sanchez 

 
ATTENDANCE: Rowden, Johnson, Gaona Perez (Proxy for Chaffee), Engelby (Proxy for 

Aguirre), Atwater, Wille, Himmel and West (Proxy for Bean)  
 
ABSENT:     Foley 
 
 



SUMMARY ACTION MINUTES 
 

MINUTES – ORANGE COUNTY INVESTMENT OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE AND AUDIT OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE 
THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 13, 2025 - PAGE 2 

CALL TO ORDER 
 The Chair called the meeting to order at 10:30 a.m. 
 

ROLL CALL 
The Clerk called the roll and confirmed quorum 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
None 
 
COMMITTEE MEMBERS COMMENTS 
None 
 
GENERAL COMMITTEE MATTERS  
 

1. Approve Minutes of the August 21, 2025, Regular Meeting 
 
On the motion of Mark Wille, seconded by Tim Johnson, the Committees approved the minutes 
as recommended 
 

2. Approve 2026 IOC/AOC Meeting Schedule Calendar 
 
On the motion of Tim Johnson, seconded by Mark Wille, the Committees approved as 
recommended 

  
INVESTMENT OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE MATTERS 
 

3. Receive and File Quarterly Report on the County Treasury and Investments for Quarter 
Ended September 30, 2025 
 
Received and Filed 
 

4. Receive and File Compliance Monitoring of Investment Portfolio for the Quarter Ended 
March 31, 2025 
 
Received and filed 
 

5. Receive and File Engagement Letter on Review of Treasurer’s Schedule of Assets as of 
June 30, 2025 
 
Received and filed 
 

6. Review Orange County California Investment Policy 
 
Reviewed  
 

AUDIT OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE MATTERS 
 

7. Approve Minutes of the September 30, 2025, Special Meeting of the AOC 
 
On the motion of Mark Wille, seconded by Jesus Gaona Perez, the Committee approved the 
minutes as recommended 
 



SUMMARY ACTION MINUTES 
 

MINUTES – ORANGE COUNTY INVESTMENT OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE AND AUDIT OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE 
THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 13, 2025 - PAGE 3 

 
8. 2026 Election of Officers 

 
On the motion of Yvonne Rowden, seconded by Mark Wille, the Committee nominated and 
approved the appointment of Tim Johnson as Chair for 2026 
 
On the motion of Tim Johnson, seconded by Larry Himmel, the Committee nominated and 
approved the appointment of Mark Wille as Vice Chair for 2026 

 
9. Receive and File Presentation by Orange County Employees Retirement System (OCERS) 

regarding current and future funding 
 
Received and filed 
 

10. Receive and File Report on Required Communication from External Auditors 
 
Received and filed 
 

11. Approve Internal Audit Department Quarterly Status Report and Approve Executive 
Summary of Internal Audit Reports for Quarter Ended September 30, 2025 
 
On the motion of Mark Wille, seconded by Drew Atwater, the Committee approved as 
recommended 
 

12. Approve External Audit Activity Quarterly Status Report for the Quarter Ended September 
30, 2025, and Receive and File Report on Status of External Audit Recommendations 
Implementation 
 
On the motion of Mark Wille, seconded by Tim Johnson, the Committee approved as 
recommended 
 

13. Receive Update on Forensic Audit 
 
Received update 
 

14. Receive and File Internal Audit Department’s Restricted Report Policy 
 

Received and filed 
 

15. Receive and File Quarterly Status Report of Auditor-Controller Mandated Audits for 
Quarter Ended September 30, 2025 
 
Received and filed 
 

16. Receive Update on ERP Implementation 
 
Received update 
 
 
 
 
 



SUMMARY ACTION MINUTES 
 

MINUTES – ORANGE COUNTY INVESTMENT OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE AND AUDIT OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE 
THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 13, 2025 - PAGE 4 

 
 

17. Receive and File 2024 Orange County Fraud Hotline Annual Report and Overview of Fraud 
Investigation Process 
 
Received and Filed 
 

18. Receive and File County IT Projects Quarterly Progress Report 
 
Received and filed 

 
ADJOURNMENT  12:47 P.M. 
 
NEXT REGULAR MEETING: Thursday, February 5, 2025, at 10:30 A.M. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Agenda Item 2



Memorandum 

February 5, 2026 

IOC/AOC Agenda Item No. 2 

TO: Investment Oversight and Audit Oversight Committee Members 

Recommended Action:  
Receive and File Information on Annual Conflict of Interest Form 700 Filing Due on April 1, 2026 

Committee Bylaws, Article 8, Section 8.6, requires members to file Statements of Economic Interest (Form 
700) upon assuming office, annually while in office and upon leaving office.

Annual Form 700's are due no later than April 1, 2026 and similar to tax filings, the annual Form 700 
covers your sources of income during the previous calendar year.

You can file online and submit electronically via eDisclosure (https://www.southtechhosting.com/
OrangeCounty/eDisclosure/default.aspx) or you can use Attachment A to fill out and submit a hard copy 
to:

Clerk of the Board
AOC/IOC Clerk
County Administration North
400 W. Civic Center Drive, Sixth Floor
Santa Ana, CA 92701

Attachments: 

Attachment A - FPPC Form 700

https://www.southtechhosting.com/OrangeCounty/eDisclosure/default2.aspx


December 2025

2025-2026
Statement of
Economic Interests 

Form 700

California Fair Political Practices Commission
1102 Q Street, Suite 3050 • Sacramento, CA 95811
Email Advice: advice@fppc.ca.gov
Toll-free advice line: 1 (866) ASK-FPPC • 1 (866) 275-3772
Telephone: (916) 322-5660 • Website: www.fppc.ca.gov

A Public Document
Table of Contents
Quick Start Guide .................................................... p.2
What to Know ........................................................... p.3
Types of Statements ................................................. p.5
Cover Page and Schedules

Cover Page ........................................................ p.6
Schedule A-1 (Investments) ............................... p.8
Schedule A-2 (Business Entities/Trusts) ............ p.10
Schedule B (Real Property) ...............................p.12
Schedule C (Income) .........................................p.14
Schedule D (Gifts) ..............................................p.16
Schedule E (Travel Payments) ...........................p.18

Restrictions and Prohibitions ....................................p.20
Q & A ........................................................................p.21

Helpful Resources
• Video Tutorials
• Reference Pamphlet
• Excel Version
• FAQs
• Gift and Travel Fact 

Sheet for State and 



Quick Start Guide
Detailed instructions begin on page 3.

WHEN IS THE ANNUAL STATEMENT DUE?
• March 2

 Section 87200

• April 1

WHERE DO I FILE?

asked you to complete it.

ITEMS TO NOTE!
• The Form 700 is a public document.

• You must also report interests held by your spouse or registered domestic partner.

NOTHING TO REPORT?

Please review each schedule carefully!

Schedule
Common

Reportable Interests
Common

Non-Reportable Interests

A-1: 
or 401K. Each stock must be listed.

funds.
A-2:
Business 
Entities/Trusts

and annuities.

B: 
Real Property within two miles of the boundaries of 

A residence used exclusively as a personal 

C: Non-governmental salaries.  Note that 

D:
Gifts

Gifts from family members.

E:
Travel 
Payments

Travel paid by your government agency.

Note:

 
QUESTIONS? 
• advice@fppc.ca.gov 

E-FILING ISSUES?

FPPC Form 700  (2025/2026) 
advice@fppc.ca.gov • 866-275-3772 • www. .ca.gov

Page - 2



87200.5 Filers — Groundwater Sustainability Agency: 

0, FPPC 
Filers:

• 

• Members and candidates for the Legislature and State Board 

• 
the FPPC by the house of the Legislature by which they are 
employed

• 

California Coastal Commission 
• 

commission 
• Members of the Fair Political Practices Commission
• 

similar multimember body of the state if the FPPC has been 

• 

pursuant to Section 87350 
• 

• 

supervisors
• 

• 

• County or city planning commissioner
• Head of a local government agency or member of a local 

• 

as follows: 
• 

• 

your City Clerk.
• 

FPPC Form 700  (2025/2026) 
advice@fppc.ca.gov • 866-275-3772 • www.fppc.ca.gov

Page - 3

What’s New
Gift Limit Increase
The gift limit increased to $630 for calendar years 2025 and 2026.  

Required Electronic Filing for FPPC (Section 87500) Filers

contact the FPPC at form700@fppc.ca.gov to obtain their login and 
password information. 
Reporting Prospective Employment

arrangement for prospective employment on attachment Form 700-P. 

Who 
• 

Government Code Section 87200
• 

 Obtain your 
disclosure categories, which describe the interests you 
must report, from your agency; they are not part of the 
Form 700

• C

Exception:  
• 

• Employees in newly created positions of existing agencies
www.

fppc.ca.gov. 

Where
Code:  

will retain the statements.
Members of Newly Created Boards and Commissions:  File 

pursuant to Regulation 18754.
Employees in Newly Created Positions of Existing Agencies:  

Multi-County Agencies, Boards, Commissions:  File with 

or commission will retain the statements. 

statements. 

What to Know



Exception:
2025 and 

 2025

1 2027 2027

2026 7

Candidate Statements
Fil
candidacy or nomination documents.  A candidate statement is 

of candidacy or other nomination documents.

Section 87500 should contact the FPPC at form700@fppc.ca.gov 
to obtain their login and password information.

Late Statements

20 for 

Amendments
Statements may be amended at any time.  You are only 

amendment schedules at www.fppc.ca.gov. 

Note:

FPPC Form 700  (2025/2026) 
advice@fppc.ca.gov • 866-275-3772 • www.fppc.ca.gov

Page - 4

How 
The Form 700 is available at www.fppc.ca.gov.  Additional PDF 

Form 700 schedules are also available in Excel format.  Filers 

Wet Signature Each Statement must have a handwritten 

hand delivery or mail.
Digital Signature Each statement must be signed with a 

if 
permitte  y t e ling o cer.  The statement must be sent by 

a Digital Signature Fact Sheet
Electronic Signature Each statement must be signed 
with a secure electronic signature submitted using an approved 

87500.2. 

When 
Annual Statements

 March 2, 2026
 -
 -

d Court Commissioners
 - State Board and State Commission Members listed in 

Government Code Section 87200
 April 1, 2026

 -

on time.
Statements of 30 pages or less may be emailed or faxed by the 
deadline as long as the originally signed paper version is sent by 

What to Know
Continued



  
through the date you stopped performing the duties of 

between 2024 or 

calendar years.
• Report:

the statement.  Do not change the preprinted dates on 

did not occur in 2025.

Candidate Statement: 

prior to the date 

Candidates running for local elective county 

position.  The code may be obtained from the agency of 
the elected position.

Amendments: 

to amend the schedule that needs to be revised; it is not 

schedules from the FPPC website at www.fppc.ca.gov.

Note: 
it.  All changes must be noted on amendment schedules.

Expanded Statement:

and distinct statement for each position. The expanded 
statement must cover all reportable interests for all 

in Regulation 18723.1.

Types of Statements

• 
business positions held on the date you assumed the 

during the 12 months prior to the date you assumed the 

the position.

• Example:

received during the 12 months prior to that date.

• Report:

code or amendment.

Annual Statement: 

r you are combining 

• 

by the statement must be reported.  Do not change the 

an interest that did not occur in 2025.
• 

disclose under the new disclosure category through the 
end of the reporting period.

FPPC Form 700  (2025/2026) 
advice@fppc.ca.gov • 866-275-3772 • www.fppc.ca.gov

Page - 5 



 Date Left / /
(Check one circle below.)

 The period covered is January 1, 2025, through the date of 
eaving of ce

 The period covered is / / , through 
the date of eaving of ce

     Income, Loans, & Business Positions – schedule attached
     Income – Gifts – schedule attached
     Income – Gifts – Travel Payments – schedule attached

 The period covered is January 1, 2025, through 
December 31, 2025

The period covered is / / , through 
December 31, 2025

 
 

A PUBLIC DOCUMENT

 have used all reasonable diligence in preparing this statement    have revie ed this statement and to the best of my no ledge the information contained 
herein and in any attached schedules is true and complete    ac no ledge this is a public document

(month, day, year)

(Check at least one box)

 State  Judge (Supreme, Appellate, Superior Court), Retired Judge,  
Pro Tem Judge, or Court Commissioner (State ide Jurisdiction)

 Multi-County   County of 

 City of  Other 

(Check at least one box)

 Date of Election  and of ce sought, if different than Part 1  

 Date assumed / /

Filing cial se nly

Please type or print in ink.

700
FAIR POLITICAL PRACTICES COMMISSION

CALIFORNIA FORM

Agency Name  (Do not use acronyms) 

Division, Board, Department, District, if applicable Your Position

MAILING ADDRESS STREET CITY STATE ZIP CODE

DAYTIME TELEPHONE NUMBER EMAIL ADDRESS

(Business or Agency Address Recommended - Public Document)

( ile the originally signed a er statement with your ling of cial.)

 If ling for multiple positions, list belo  or on an attachment   (Do not use acronyms)

Agency   Position  

None  No reportable interests on any schedule

Schedules attached
          Investments – schedule attached
          Investments – schedule attached
          Real Property – schedule attached

Total number of pages including this cover page:

FPPC Form 700  - Cover Page  (2025/2026) 
advice@fppc.ca.gov • 866-275-3772 • www.fppc.ca.gov

Page - 6

          Prospective Employment (87200 Filers Only) – schedule attached



• 

Example: 

in portions of Yuba and Sutter Counties.

Part 3.  Type of Statement
Check at least one box. The period covered by a statement 

are completing a 20 do not change the 

used for reporting the previous year’s economic interests.  

.  See 

Combining Statements: Certain types of statements for the 

Part 4.  Schedule Summary
• Complete the Schedule Summary after you have reviewed 

each schedule to determine if you have reportable 
interests.

• Enter the total number of completed pages including the 
cover page and either check the box for each schedule you 
use to disclose interests; or  if you have nothing to disclose 

 
Please do not attach any blank schedules.

entering the date signed.  Each statement must have an 

4

When you sign your statement, you are stating, under 
penalty of perjury, that it is true and correct.
has authority to sign the statement.  An unsigned statement 

penalties.  

Instructions
Cover Page

number in the spaces provided.  Because the Form 700 is a 
public document, 
instead of your home address.

• 
court.  Consultants must enter the public agency name rather 

• 

Do not use acronyms.
• 

• 

with each agency.
• 

expanded statement are set forth in Regulation 18723.1. 

enter the name of each agency with which you are 

in the space provided.  Do not use acronyms.  Attach an 
additional sheet if necessary.  Complete one statement 

council member who assumes a position with a county special 

positions.
Example:
Brian Bourne is a city council member for the City of Lincoln 

– a multi-county agency that covers the Counties of Placer and 
Yuba.  The City is located within Placer County.  Brian may 
complete one expanded statement to disclose all reportable 

e City 

• 

14
• 

 State  Judge or Court Commissioner (State ide Jurisdiction)

 Multi-County   County of 

 City of   Other 

(Check at least one box)

Agency Name  (Do not use acronyms) 

Division, Board, Department, District, if applicable Your Position

 If ling for multiple positions, list belo  or on an attachment   (Do not use acronyms)

Agency   Position  

Yuba & Sutter Counties

Board MemberN/A

N/A

Feather River Irrigation District

FPPC Form 700  (2025/2026) 
advice@fppc.ca.gov • 866-275-3772 • www.fppc.ca.gov

Page - 7 



SCHEDULE A-1
Investments

Investments must be itemized.
o not attac  brokerage or nancial statements.

/ /  / /

/ /  / / / /  / /

/ /  / /

/ /  / // /  / /

25 25 25 25

2525

252525

Name

Comments: 

700
FAIR POLITICAL PRACTICES COMMISSION

CALIFORNIA FORM

  
  Over

  
  Over

  
  Over

  
  Over

  
  Over

  
  Over

25

 Stock   Other 
     

 Partnership  
    (Report on Schedule C)

 Stock   Other 
     

 Partnership  
    (Report on Schedule C)

 Stock   Other 
     

 Partnership  
    (Report on Schedule C)

 Stock   Other 
     

 Partnership  
    (Report on Schedule C)

 Stock   Other 
     

 Partnership  
    (Report on Schedule C)

 Stock   Other 
     

 Partnership  
    (Report on Schedule C)

2525

FPPC Form 700  - Schedule A-1  (2025/2026) 
advice@fppc.ca.gov • 866-275-3772 • www.fppc.ca.gov

Page - 8 



Instructions – Schedules A-1 and A-2
Investments

14

Reportable investments include:
• 

held in margin or brokerage accounts and managed 
14

• Sole proprietorships
• 

page 
• 

investments even if they are legally separate property
• 
• 

16
• 

greater ownership interest in a business entity or trust 

17

• Business trusts

You are not required to disclose:
• G

• 

• Cryptocurrency
• 
• Annuities
• Commodities
• Shares in a credit union
• 

• Retirement accounts invested in non-reportable interests 

• 

• 
17

Use Schedule A-1

Use Schedule A-2

To Complete Schedule A-1:

• Disclose the name of the business entity. Do not use 

is one that is commonly understood by the public.
• Provide a general description of the business activity 

• Check the box indicating the highest fair market value 

21 for 

• 

• 

interest during the reporting period.  The date of a stock 

Examples:

in any company that is located in or does business in 

or registered domestic partner and dependent children.

the city.  Alice must disclose the partnership on Schedule 
A-1 and income of $500 or more received from the 
partnership on Schedule C.

Reminders

Did you hold investments at any time during the period 

FPPC Form 700  (2025/2026) 
advice@fppc.ca.gov • 866-275-3772 • www.fppc.ca.gov

Page - 9 



SCHEDULE A-2
Investments, Income, and Assets

of Business Entities/Trusts

 Property Ownership/Deed of Trust  Stock  Partnership

 Leasehold  Other 

 Check box if additional schedules reporting investments or real property
are attached

Yrs. remaining

Other
 Partnership  Sole Proprietorship 

/ / / // / / /

/ / / // / / /

25 25

25 2525 25

Comments:

Name

Address (Business Address Acceptable)

Name

Address (Business Address Acceptable)

 
 
 
 
 Over

 
 
 
 
 Over

  REAL PROPERTY

or 

Description of Business Activity or
City or Other Precise Location of Real Property

  REAL PROPERTY

or 

Description of Business Activity or
City or Other Precise Location of Real Property

4. INVESTMENTS AND INTERESTS IN REAL PROPERTY HELD OR
LEASED BY THE BUSINESS ENTITY OR TRUST

4. INVESTMENTS AND INTERESTS IN REAL PROPERTY HELD OR
LEASED BY THE BUSINESS ENTITY OR TRUST

Check one
go to 2 complete the box, then go to 2

Check one
go to 2 complete the box, then go to 2

2.  IDENTIFY THE GROSS INCOME RECEIVED (INCLUDE YOUR PRO RATA 
SHARE OF THE GROSS INCOME TO THE ENTITY/TRUST)

2.  IDENTIFY THE GROSS INCOME RECEIVED (INCLUDE YOUR PRO RATA 
SHARE OF THE GROSS INCOME TO THE ENTITY/TRUST)

Name

700

Check one box: Check one box:

 
 
 
 Over

 
 
 
 Over

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

FAIR POLITICAL PRACTICES COMMISSION

CALIFORNIA FORM

1.  BUSINESS ENTITY OR TRUST 1.  BUSINESS ENTITY OR TRUST

 Property Ownership/Deed of Trust  Stock  Partnership

 Leasehold  Other 

 Check box if additional schedules reporting investments or real property
are attached

Yrs. remaining

25 25

Other
 Partnership  Sole Proprietorship 

or

3. LIST THE NAME OF EACH REPORTABLE SINGLE SOURCE OF
INCOME OF $10,000 OR MORE (Attach a separate sheet if necessary.)

3. LIST THE NAME OF EACH REPORTABLE SINGLE SOURCE OF
INCOME OF $10,000 OR MORE (Attach a separate sheet if necessary.)

FPPC Form 700  - Schedule A-2  (2025/2026) 
advice@fppc.ca.gov • 866-275-3772 • www.fppc.ca.gov

Page - 10

 None  Names listed below None or  Names listed below



Instructions – Schedule A-2
Investments, Income, and Assets of Business Entities/Trusts

Use Schedule A-2 to report investments in a business 

has done business during the previous two years in your 

14
reportable if it holds assets that are located in or doing 

containing only your personal residence not used in whole 

Also report on Schedule A-2 investments and real property 
held by that entity or trust if your pro rata share of the 

during the reporting period.

To Complete Schedule A-2:
Part 1.  Disclose the name and address of the business 

follows:

• Provide a general description of the business activity of 
the entity.

• Check the box indicating the highest fair market value of 
your investment during the reporting period.

• 

• 
• 

is not reportable.

Part 2.  Check the box indicating your pro rata share 
of the gross income received by the business entity or 
trust.  This amount includes your pro rata share of the 
gross income from

 income is the 

or taxes.

Part 3.  Disclose the name of each source of income that 

or that has done business during the previous two years in 

• Disclose each source of income and outstanding loan 
to the business entity or trust
your pro rata share of the gross

page 12
sources may be reportable if not considered salary. 
See Regulation 18232.  Loans from commercial lending 

business on terms available to members of the public 

• Disclose each individual or entity that was a source 

sources of income to disclose.  Phrases such as 
“various clients” or “not disclosing sources pursuant to 
attorney-client privilege”   

 15  information on 
 an exemption from disclosing 

Part 4.  Report any investments or interests in real 
property held or leased by the entity or trust

or more during the reporting period.  Attach additional 

needed.

• Check the applicable box identifying the interest held as 
real property or an investment.

• 
business entity.

• 

• Check the box indicating the highest fair market value 
of your interest in the real property or investment during 

portion of your residence claimed as a tax deduction if 

• 
• 

property or investment during the reporting period.

FPPC Form 700  (2025/2026) 
advice@fppc.ca.gov • 866-275-3772 • www.fppc.ca.gov

Page - 11



NAME OF LENDER*

ADDRESS (Business Address Acceptable)

/ / / / / / / /25 2525 25

SCHEDULE B
Interests in Real Property

STREET ADDRESS STREET ADDRESS

  None 

  

 Ownership/Deed of Trust  Easement

Leasehold 
Yrs. remaining  Other

 Ownership/Deed of Trust  Easement

Leasehold 
Yrs. remaining  Other

Comments: 

 
 
 
 Over

 
 
 
 Over

 

   

  

   

 

 

 

  

 

700
FAIR POLITICAL PRACTICES COMMISSION

CALIFORNIA FORM

NAME OF LENDER*

ADDRESS (Business Address Acceptable)

  None 

 

 

  

 

*

 None  None

FPPC Form 700  - Schedule B  (2025/2026) 
advice@fppc.ca.gov • 866-275-3772 • www.fppc.ca.gov

Page - 12

Name



• 
gross amount you received.

• 

your pro rata share of the gross income from any single 
 

• Loans from a private lender that total $500 or more and 
are secured by real property may be reportable.  Loans 
from commercial lending institutions made in the 
lender’s regular course of business on terms available 

status are not reportable.

When reporting a loan:
 - Provide the name and address of the lender.
 -
 - Disclose the interest rate and term of the loan.  For 

rate paid during the reporting period.  The term of 
a loan is the total number of months or years given 
for repayment of the loan at the time the loan was 
established.

 - Check the box indicating the highest balance of the 
loan during the reporting period.

 -

reportable loan on a single 

Schedule C. 

Example: 
Allison Gande is a city 
planning commissioner.  

Allison received rental income 

tenant who rented property 

more.  A married couple is 
considered a single tenant.

Instructions – Schedule B
Interests in Real Property

Reminders

 

the reporting period.  Real property is also considered to be 

property or any part of it is located within two miles outside 

land owned or used by the local government agency.
14

Interests in real property include:
• 

• 
• 15
• A mining lease
• An interest in real property held in a retirement account 

16
• An interest in real property held by a business entity or 

• 
real property that are legally held separately by him or her

You are not required to report:
• 

in which you rent out a room or for which you claim a 

report the fair market value of the portion claimed as a tax 

• Some interests in real property held through a blind trust 
17

• Please note:  A non-reportable property can still 

To Complete Schedule B:
• 

• Check the box indicating the fair market value of your 

• 

property during the reporting period.
• 

disclose the number of years remaining on the lease.

FPPC Form 700  (2025/2026) 
advice@fppc.ca.gov • 866-275-3772 • www.fppc.ca.gov

Page - 13 

/ / / /
 ACQUIRED DISPOSED

 ASSESSOR S PARCEL NUMBER OR STREET ADDRESS

CITY

SOURCES OF RENTAL INCOME:  If you own a 10% or greater 
interest, list the name of each tenant that is a single source of 
income of $10,000 or more.

NATURE OF INTEREST

 Ownership/Deed of Trust  Easement

Leasehold 
Yrs. remaining  Other

FAIR MARKET VALUE
 $2,000 - $10,000
 $10,001 - $100,000
 $100,001 - $1,000,000
 Over $1,000,000

IF RENTAL PROPERTY, GROSS INCOME RECEIVED

 OVER $100,000

 $500 - $1,000 $0 - $499  $1,001 - $10,000

 $10,001 - $100,000

 None

IF APPLICABLE, LIST DATE:

4600 24th Street

Sacramento

Henry Wells

INTEREST RATE TERM (Months/Years)

%  None 

Comments: 

HIGHEST BALANCE DURING REPORTING PERIOD

 Guarantor, if applicable

 OVER $100,000

 $500 - $1,000  $1,001 - $10,000

 $10,001 - $100,000

NAME OF LENDER*

ADDRESS (Business Address Acceptable)

BUSINESS ACTIVITY, IF ANY, OF LENDER

Sophia Petroillo

2121 Blue Sky Sacramento

Restaurant Owner

8 15 Years



(Real property, car, boat, etc.) (Real property, car, boat, etc.)

SCHEDULE C
Income, Loans, & Business 

Positions

No ncome - Business Position Only No ncome - Business Position Only

Name

  
    
  

700
FAIR POLITICAL PRACTICES COMMISSION

CALIFORNIA FORM

1. INCOME RECEIVED
 

 
 ADDRESS (Business Address Acceptable)

 

 

 

1. INCOME RECEIVED
 

 
 ADDRESS (Business Address Acceptable)

 

 

 

 NAME OF LENDER*

 
 ADDRESS (Business Address Acceptable)

 

 

  None 

 

 

 

 

Comments:  

2. LOANS RECEIVED OR OUTSTANDING DURING THE REPORTING PERIOD

* 

regular course of business must be disclosed as follows:

 None  Personal residence

 Real Property  

  

 Guarantor 

 Other  

Street address

City

(Describe)

 Salary   

 

 Sale of  
 

   

 

 Other 

 Salary   

 

 Sale of  
 

   

 

 Other 

(Describe) (Describe)

(Describe) (Describe)

list each source of $10,000 or more list each source of $10,000 or moreCommission or Commission or

Loan repayment Loan repayment

FPPC Form 700  - Schedule C  (2025/2026) 
advice@fppc.ca.gov • 866-275-3772 • www.fppc.ca.gov

Page - 14 



Instructions – Schedule C
Income, Loans, & Business Positions

(Income Other Than Gifts and Travel Payments)

Reporting Income:
Report the source and amount of gross income of $500 or 
more you received during the reporting period.  Gross income 

page 12
spouse or registered domestic partner if your community 
property share was $500 or more during the reporting period.

The source and income must be reported only if the source 

or has done business during the previous two years in your 
14

Reportable sources of income may be further limited by 

interest code.

Reporting Business Positions:

entity even if you received no income during the reporting 
period.  Use the comments section to indicate that no income 
was received.

Commonly reportable income and loans include:
• 

including travel payments provided by your employer
• 

report the 
employer’s name and all other required information

• 
reported on Schedule A-1

• 

• 

• 
• 
• Payments received on loans you made to others 
• 

11
• 

13

You are not required to report:
• 

received by you or your spouse or registered domestic 
.

• Stock dividends and income from the sale of stock unless 

• 

13

To Complete Schedule C:
Part 1.  Income Received/Business Position Disclosure
• Disclose the name and address of each source of income 

or each business entity with which you held a business 
position.

• Provide a general description of the business activity if the 
source is a business entity.

• Check the box indicating the amount of gross income 
received.

• 
received.

• 
indicating the gross income received and list the name of 

Note:  If you receive 
commission income on a regular basis or have an 
ownership interest of 10% or more, you must disclose 
the business entity and the income on Schedule A-2.

• 

income during the reporting period.

Part 2.  Loans Received or Outstanding During the 
Reporting Period
• Provide the name and address of the lender.
• Provide a general description of the business activity if the 

lender is a business entity.
• Check the box indicating the highest balance of the loan 

during the reporting period.
• Disclose the interest rate and the term of the loan.

 -

paid during the reporting period.
 - The term of the loan is the total number of months or 

years given for repayment of the loan at the time the 
loan was entered into.

• 

Reminders
• 

disclosure of all sources of income.
• 

portal. Do not use Schedule C to report prospective 
employment.

• 

• 
positions already reported on Schedules A-2 or B.

FPPC Form 700  (2025/2026) 
advice@fppc.ca.gov • 866-275-3772 • www.fppc.ca.gov

Page - 15 



SCHEDULE D
Income – Gifts

Comments: 

Name

700
FAIR POLITICAL PRACTICES COMMISSION

CALIFORNIA FORM

NAME OF SOURCE (Not an Acronym)

 
 ADDRESS (Business Address Acceptable)

 

 
 DATE 

 / /  $  

 / /  $  

 / /  $  

NAME OF SOURCE (Not an Acronym)

 
 ADDRESS (Business Address Acceptable)

 

 
 DATE 

 / /  $  

 / /  $  

 / /  $  

NAME OF SOURCE (Not an Acronym)

 
 ADDRESS (Business Address Acceptable)

 

 
 DATE 

 / /  $  

 / /  $  

 / /  $  

NAME OF SOURCE (Not an Acronym)

 
 ADDRESS (Business Address Acceptable)

 

 
 DATE 

 / /  $  

 / /  $  

 / /  $  

NAME OF SOURCE (Not an Acronym)

 
 ADDRESS (Business Address Acceptable)

 

 
 DATE 

 / /  $  

 / /  $  

 / /  $  

NAME OF SOURCE (Not an Acronym)

 
 ADDRESS (Business Address Acceptable)

 

 
 DATE 

 / /  $  

 / /  $  

 / /  $  

FPPC Form 700  - Schedule D  (2025/2026) 
advice@fppc.ca.gov • 866-275-3772 • www.fppc.ca.gov

Page - 16 



Instructions – Schedule D
Income – Gifts

Reminders
Gifts from a single so  limit for 
calendar years 2025 and 2026. The gift limit in calendar 

 you only need to report gifts from reportable 
sources.

A gift is anything of value for which you have not provided 

multiple gifts totaling $50 or more received during the 
reporting period from a single source must be reported. 

gave it away to another person.

the value of a gift as “over $50” or “value unknown” is not 

business activity of both the donor and the intermediary.  You 

after the name or in the “comments” section at the bottom 
of Schedule D.

Commonly reportable gifts include:
• Tickets/passes to sporting or entertainment events
• Tickets/passes to amusement parks
• 
• 

provided in direct connection with your attendance at a 

gathering
• Rebates/discounts not made in the regular course of 

status
• 17
• 

Reference 11
• 
• Forgiveness of a loan received by you

You are not required to disclose:
• 

being claimed by you as a charitable contribution for tax 
purposes

• 

was acting as an agent or intermediary for a reportable 
source who was the true donor.

• Gifts of similar value exchanged between you and an 

• Gifts of informational material provided to assist you in the 

• 
investments or real property may be reportable on other 

• 
less than $250

• Campaign contributions
• 

fundraiser.
• Gifts given to members of your immediate family if the 

source has an established relationship with the family 
member and there is no evidence to suggest the donor had 

• 

event.
• 

made by an individual who is not a lobbyist registered to 

gift was made because of an existing personal or business 

is no evidence whatsoever at the time the gift is made to 

To Complete Schedule D:
• 

• 
disclose the fair market value and description of the gift.

FPPC Form 700  (2025/2026) 
advice@fppc.ca.gov • 866-275-3772 • www.fppc.ca.gov

Page - 17 



SCHEDULE E
Income – Gifts

Travel Payments, Advances,
and Reimbursements

Name

Comments: 

700
FAIR POLITICAL PRACTICES COMMISSION

CALIFORNIA FORM

Mark either the gift or income box.
•

or the “Speech” box if you made a speech or participated in a panel.  Per Government Code
Section 89506, these payments may not be subject to the gift limit.  However, they may result

• For gifts of travel, provide the travel destination.

/ / - / / AMT: $
(If gift)

/ / - / / AMT: $
(If gift)

NAME OF SOURCE (Not an Acronym)

 ADDRESS (Business Address Acceptable)

NAME OF SOURCE (Not an Acronym)

 ADDRESS (Business Address Acceptable)

NAME OF SOURCE (Not an Acronym)

 ADDRESS (Business Address Acceptable)

NAME OF SOURCE (Not an Acronym)

 ADDRESS (Business Address Acceptable)

MUST CHECK ONE:

Made a Speech/Participated in a Panel

Other - Provide Description 

Gift   -or- 

MUST CHECK ONE:

Made a Speech/Participated in a Panel

Other - Provide Description 

Gift   -or- MUST CHECK ONE:

Made a Speech/Participated in a Panel

Other - Provide Description 

Gift   -or- 

MUST CHECK ONE:

Made a Speech/Participated in a Panel

Other - Provide Description 

Gift   -or- 

/ / - / / AMT: $
(If gift)

/ / - / / AMT: $
(If gift)

FPPC Form 700 - Schedule E  (2025/2026) 
advice@fppc.ca.gov • 866-275-3772 • www.fppc.ca.gov

Page - 18 



Travel payments reportable on Schedule E include advances 

including lodging and meals.

the perception that you have received a gift in excess of the 

and Loans” to read about travel payments under section 

You are not required to disclose:
• 

reimbursement for travel on agency business from your 
government agency employer.

• 
government agency and related per diem expenses when 

programs or purposes.
• Travel payments received from your employer in the 

normal course of your employment that are included in the 
income reported on Schedule C.

• 

board member.
Note:  Certain travel payments may not be reportable 
if reported via email on Form 801 by your agency.

To Complete Schedule E:
• 

source of the travel payment.
• 

entity.
• 

• Travel payments are gifts if you did not provide 

payments received. You must disclose gifts totaling $50 
or more from a single source during the period covered 
by the statement.  
 

provide a description of the gift the date(s) received
and the travel destination.

• Travel payments are income if you provided services 

payments received. You must disclose income totaling 
$500 or more from a single source during the period 
covered by the statement. You have the burden of 
proving the payments are income rather than gifts. 

describe the services you provided in exchange for the 

for travel payments that are income.
Example:
City council member MaryClaire Chandler is the chair of 

for MaryClaire's travel to attend its meetings. Because 
MaryClaire is deemed 

greater consideration for 
the travel payment by 
virtue of serving on the 

be reported as income. 
Payments for MaryClaire 
to attend other events 
for which they are not 
providing services are 
likely considered gifts. 

reportable.

Example:

Government pays for 

meals and lodging during 

creation and economic 
activity in China and in 

is reasonably related to 
a governmental purpose. 

government and because the travel is reasonably related 

Government for 12 months. Also note that if China Silicon 

www.fppc.ca.gov.

Instructions – Schedule E
Travel Payments, Advances, 

and Reimbursements

FPPC Form 700  (2025/2026) 
advice@fppc.ca.gov • 866-275-3772 • www.fppc.ca.gov

Page - 19

NAME OF SOURCE 

ADDRESS 

C AND S A E

DESCR E US NESS AC  F AN  OF SOURCE

DATE(S): - AMT: $ 

MUST C EC ONE: Gift me

Ma e a S ee a ti i ate i a a e

Other - Provide Description 

f Gift, Provide Travel Destination 

Health Services Trade Association

1230 K Suite 610

CA

Association of Healthcare Workers

550.00

Travel reimbursement for
board meeting.

NAME OF SOURCE 

ADDRESS 

C T AND STATE

(c)( ) or DESCR E US NESS ACT T , F AN , OF SOURCE

DATE(S): - AMT: $ 

MUST C EC ONE: Gift ncome

Made a Speech Participated in a Panel

Other - Provide Description 

f Gift, Provide Travel Destination 

Chengdu Municipal People's Government

2 Caoshi Qingyang Chengdu

Sichuan 610000

XXXX 0804

Travel reimbursement for
trip to China.

Sichuan China



Restrictions and Prohibitions

and employees to publicly disclose their economic 
interests including personal assets and income.  The 

is reasonably foreseeable that the decision will have 

is the state agency responsible for issuing the attached 

Gift Prohibition

a limit. 
gift limit increased to $630 from a single source during 
a calendar year. The gift limit in calendar year 2024 was 

 
 

page 11.

their agency to determine if other restrictions apply.

a discussion or vote takes place at a public meeting.  For 

www.fppc.ca.gov.

Honorarium Ban

are prohibited from accepting an honorarium for any 

11

Loan Restrictions

15

Post-Governmental Employment
There are restrictions on representing clients or employers 
before former agencies.  The provisions apply to elected 

managers or chief administrators of local special districts 

the provisions.

Late Filing

circumstances.

be imposed.

For assistance
restrictions under the Act:

• 
• 

Form 700 is a Public Document
Public Access Must Be Provided

member of the public to inspect and receive a copy 
of any statement.

• Statements must be available as soon as possible 

in any event not later than the second business 
day after the statement is received.  Access to the 

procedures.
• No conditions may be placed on persons seeking 

access to the forms.
• 

from persons seeking access.
• Reproduction fees of no more than 10 cents per 

page may be charged.

FPPC Form 700  (2025/2026) 
advice@fppc.ca.gov • 866-275-3772 • www.fppc.ca.gov

Page - 20



Questions and Answers

General
Q. What is the reporting period for disclosing interests 

business positions held on the date you assumed 

candidacy.

complete an expanded statement listing the county and 
the two boards on the Cover Page or an attachment as 

on the expanded statement. File the expanded 
statement for your primary position providing an original 

signature. 4  File copies of the 
expanded statement with the other two agencies as 

complete separate statements for positions that you 
leave or assume during the year. 

they are or may be performing the duties of the 
position.

economic interests until such time as dissolution of 

property agreement has been reached prior to that 

be reported.  Contact the FPPC for more information.

statement for the new agency.

Investment Disclosure

14

its income on Schedule A-2.  Your primary residence 

with the SEC are not reportable. 

that contains stocks through an account managed by 

A. Yes. Disclose on Schedule A-1 or A-2 any stock worth 

FPPC Form 700  (2025/2026) 
advice@fppc.ca.gov • 866-275-3772 • www.fppc.ca.gov

Page - 21 



Questions and Answers
Continued

Q. The value of my stock changed during the reporting 

stock reached during the reporting period.  You may 
use your monthly statements to determine the highest 

determine the highest value.  You are encouraged to 
keep a record of where you found the reported value.  

report the value of the stock on the date you assumed 

cannot be said to have any “fair market value” because 

an agreement with a large insurance company.  My 
contract does not have resale value because of its 

the fair market value for my business on Schedule A-2 

A. Yes.  Even if there are no tangible

services corporations” have a fair market value.  A 
professional “book of business” and the associated 
goodwill that generates income are not without a 

precise fair market value; it is only necessary to check 
a box indicating the broad range within which the value 
falls.  

or more or when you dispose of the entire investment.  

investment. 

entire reporting period.  

the stock and note in the “comments” section that the 

then nothing is reported.

Income Disclosure

all clients from whom my pro rata share of income is 

clients from whom my pro rata share of income is 

disclosed if disclosure of the name would violate a 

law.  This regulation may be obtained from our website 
at www.fppc.ca.gov.  (
15

FPPC Form 700  (2025/2026) 
advice@fppc.ca.gov • 866-275-3772 • www.fppc.ca.gov

Page - 22 



Questions and Answers
Continued

reportable based on my limited disclosure category.  

reportable sources of income to the law practice of 

would be disclosed on Schedule C with a note in the 
“comments” section indicating that the business entity 
is not a reportable investment.  The note would be for 

A. Sources of income to a business in which you have an 

all of their business is based on their own billings and 

community property interest in this business and the 

A. Report the name of the employer as a source of income 
on Schedule C.

patients or their insurance carriers considered sources 

15

A. No.  Loans received from family members are not 
reportable.

A. No.  Payments received on a loan made to a family 
member are not reportable.

Real Property Disclosure
Q. During this reporting period we switched our principal 

you may want to note in the “comments” section that 
the property was not previously reported because it was 
used exclusively as your residence.  This would be for 

it is located within 2 miles of the boundaries of the city 
you manage.

personal residence for a family member unless you 

A. No. Simply being a co-signer on a loan for property 
does not create a reportable interest in that real 
property.

FPPC Form 700  (2025/2026) 
advice@fppc.ca.gov • 866-275-3772 • www.fppc.ca.gov

Page - 23



Gift Disclosure

Q. 

A. Yes.  Since you accepted the gift and exercised 

disclose the gift on Schedule D.

spouse considered a separate source for purposes of 

A. 
limit 2025 

the supervisor artwork valued at no more than .  

the sources of the gift. 

basket valued at $120.  The gift basket was donated by 

A. Because the gift basket was donated by an outside 

is Doug Brewer and the agency is disclosed as the 

Q. My agency is responsible for disbursing grants.  An 

the applicant provided food and beverages.  Would 
the food and beverages be considered gifts to the 

reportable source of income under the code.

same source during the reporting period total $50 or 

limit. 

Questions and Answers
Continued

FPPC Form 700  (2025/2026) 
advice@fppc.ca.gov • 866-275-3772 • www.fppc.ca.gov

Page - 24 



Agenda Item 3



Orange County 
Investment Fund 
Quarterly Report | Oct-Dec 2025 

1 

Page 1 of 61



County Executive Office 
Memorandum 

January 28, 2026 

To: Chairman Doug Chaffee, Supervisor, Fourth District 
Members, Board of Supervisors 

From: Michelle Aguirre, County Executive Officer 

Subject: Orange County Investment Fund Report for the Quarter ended December 31, 2025 

The attached investment report contains information for the Orange County Treasury Pool (Pool) for 
the quarter ended December 31, 2025. The body of the report contains charts and tables that provide a 
high-level overview of the Pool (which consists of County and school funds), including market value, 
performance, investment types, their maturities and compliance with the County’s Investment Policy 
(IP) approved by the Board on February 11, 2025. The detailed investment inventory and transaction 
information are contained in the appendix section for reference. The monthly report provides highly 
summarized information through charts, tables, and highlights, while the quarterly report includes 
additional analysis of economic factors, performance, and trends.  

The primary objectives of a public fund fiduciary shall be to safeguard the principal, meet liquidity 
needs and to achieve a return on the funds under its control. Below are some highlights from the 
monthly report demonstrating commitment to meeting these objectives: 

• The market value of the Pool on December 31, 2025, was $17.6 billion, which is $3.0 billion higher
than the prior quarter due to property tax collection.

• Over 88.1% of investments are in US Treasury or US Government Agency securities.
• The Pool earned a net yield of 3.98% in December 2025, which is above the 90-day Treasury Bill

of 3.67% at the end of the month.  Total interest earned in the quarter was $159.7 million and
$312.3 million fiscal year-to-date.

• The Fitch credit rating for the Pool is AAAf and S1, which is the highest rating possible,
indicating a very low sensitivity to market risk.

• The weighted average maturity as of December 31, 2025, is 448 days, and the pool maintains
adequate liquidity to meet the next six months of projected cash flow requirements.

• All investments are marked to market daily to determine their fair value.

Page 2 of 61



ECONOMIC UPDATE 

The U.S. economy experienced lower employment gains and inflation decreased during the fourth 
quarter of 2025. 

• Employment declined by an average of 22,000 per month, lower than the previous quarter’s
51,000 (revised) per month average.

• Headline inflation was at 2.7% year over year, down from 3.0% in the previous quarter.
• The Federal Open Market Committee cut interest rates by 50 basis points to a range of 3.50% -

3.75% during the quarter. The financial market expects further cuts in 2026.
• The unemployment rate was at 4.4% (survey: 4.5%) at the end of the fourth quarter, unchanged

from the previous quarter.
• The Empire State Manufacturing Index improved to -3.7 (survey: 10.0) from -7.0 in the previous

quarter, while the Philadelphia Fed Index worsened to -8.8 (survey: 2.3) from 19.5 at the end of
the previous quarter. The Federal Reserve uses these indexes as regional economic gauges with
a positive reading signaling economic expansion.

• The Treasury yield curve remained inverted during the fourth quarter for tenors between one
month and one year. However, for tenors beyond one year, the curve has normalized.

• The 90-day Treasury Bill yield decreased to 3.67% from 4.02%. The two year Treasury Note yield
decreased to 3.47% from 3.60% while the ten year Treasury Bond yield decreased to 4.18% from
4.16%.

INVESTMENT INTEREST YIELDS AND FORECAST 
The forecast for the net yield and gross yield for Fiscal Year 2025-26 is 3.47% and 3.50% respectively, 
with the investment administrative fee at 3.5 basis points. 

COMPLIANCE SUMMARY 
The OCTP and the CCCD Bond Proceeds Account were free of investment noncompliance incidents 
during the quarter ended December 31, 2025. The Quarterly Compliance Monitoring reports for March 
31, 2025 and June 30, 2025 were completed on November 5, 2025 and December 5, 2025 respectively, 
and identified no issues. The reports are available at https://ceo.oc.gov/finance-office/county-
investment-fund. 

On December 16, 2025, the Board of Supervisors (BOS) approved a revised IP, effective January 1, 2026. 
The main changes to the IP were to increase the maximum duration of the Orange County Treasury 
Pool from 1.5 years to 3.0 years, extend the maximum maturity limit on Medium-Term Notes from 2 
years to 5 years, and to reflect changes in government code language allowing local agencies to invest 
in Commercial Paper up to 397 days. 

Enclosure 

Page 3 of 61

https://ceo.oc.gov/finance-office/county-investment-fund
https://ceo.oc.gov/finance-office/county-investment-fund


SUMMARY OF INVESTMENTS IN TREASURY POOL 

Clockwise from top left:  
1. The market value of assets broken down by investment type.
2. Historical interest rate yield for the Pool compared to the

90-day Treasury Bill and the 2-year US Treasury Note.
3. Pool maturity distribution broken down by timeframe. 

Investment Type Amount (000) % Amount (000) %
E  US Government Agencies 9,749,975$           67.09% 11,441,915$          65.18%
URUS Treasuries 3,750,125             25.80% 4,016,809               22.88%

Money Market Mutual Funds 1,031,236             7.10% 2,093,577               11.93%
Local Agency Investment Fund 1,456 0.01% 1,472 0.01%

Total 14,532,792$         100.00% 17,553,773$          100.00%

As of December 31, 2025As of September 30, 2025

Treasury Pool Maturities 
As of December 31, 2025 

Page 4 of 61



ORANGE COUNTY INVESTMENTS 

Top Ten Orange County Pool Participants
Cash Balance (in thousands)

Fund Name September 30, 2025 December 31, 2025
County General 816,696$  939,213$  
Educational Revenue Aug 24,949 703,431 
OC Flood 392,201 478,587 
Secured Unapp. Tax 9,575 370,929 
County Cap. Proj's. Non Gen. 397,349 360,919 
John Wayne Airport Op. 327,625 344,148 
Mental Health Services Act 246,653 293,570 
OC Waste & Recycling Ent. 254,199 263,803 
Workers Compensation 254,524 239,793 
OCWR Landfill Post-Close 219,814 220,857 
Other Funds 3,738,877 4,053,117 

Total 6,682,462$                  8,268,367$                  

The activity of the County’s portion of the Pool is 
illustrated in the adjacent graph.   

Deposits primarily consist of property tax collections 
received predominately in December and April. 
Disbursements are primarily County payroll, retirement 
contributions and tax apportionments to other taxing 
entities. 

Page 5 of 61



 SCHOOL FUND INVESTMENTS 

The activity of the School’s portion of the Pool is 
illustrated in the adjacent graph.   

Deposits primarily consist of property tax collections 
received predominately in December and April. 
Disbursements are primarily school district payroll and 
retirement contributions. 

Top Ten School Pool Participants
Cash Balance (in thousands)

District Name September 30, 2025 December 31, 2025
Rancho Santiago CCD 731,103$  854,707$  
Garden Grove USD 763,843 835,931 
Irvine USD 590,765 739,191 
County School Services 635,202 697,888 
Anaheim UHSD 535,728 598,468 

South Orange County CCD 522,914 586,587 
Tustin USD 487,424 567,954 
Santa Ana USD 382,684 454,694 
Orange USD 313,856 396,623 
North Orange County CCD 364,187 347,772 
Other Education Funds 2,372,680 3,024,967 

Total 7,700,386$                  9,104,782$                  

Page 6 of 61



Footnotes: 
(1) Market values are provided by Northern Trust and exclude accrued interest.
(2) The market value of CCCD is below book value but there is sufficient liquidity to meet projected cash flow needs.
(3) Treasury Pool Cash refers to the carrying amount of cash held at the depository bank (Wells Fargo), which includes

reconciling items such as deposits in transit and outstanding checks known at the time of reporting.
(4) School Fund Investments (formerly Educational Funds) refers to the Orange County Department of Education’s portion 

of the Orange County Treasury Pool (OCTP) earnings. For investment accounting purposes, the OCTP is divided into the 
Orange County Investments and the School Fund Investments.

ORANGE COUNTY INVESTMENT FUND (OCIF)
ORANGE COUNTY TREASURY POOL AND BOND PROCEEDS 

FOR THE QUARTER ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2025

TREASURY POOL INVESTMENT STATISTICS(1)

DESCRIPTION BALANCES OCTOBER NOVEMBER DECEMBER QUARTERLY 
AVERAGES

Market Value(1) $15,076,717,228 $15,308,856,879 $17,553,773,064 $15,979,782,390 
Cost (Capital) $14,882,446,113 $15,113,961,648 $17,354,520,345 $15,783,642,702 

Average Balance $14,511,675,530 $14,952,752,447 $16,812,152,686 $15,425,526,888 
Book Value $15,036,279,151 $15,266,610,279 $17,508,768,246 $15,937,219,225 

STATISTICS
Duration 0.59 0.64 0.83 0.69 

Gross Yield 4.06% 4.10% 4.02% 4.06%
Net Asset Value (NAV) 1.0027 1.0028 1.0026 1.0027 

BOND PROCEEDS ACCOUNT STATISTICS(1)

DESCRIPTION BALANCES OCTOBER NOVEMBER DECEMBER QUARTERLY 
AVERAGES

Market Value(2) $24,295,042 $24,501,336 $24,420,442 $24,405,607 
Cost (Capital) $26,150,328 $26,245,981 $26,271,468 $26,222,592 

Monthly Avg Balance $26,150,522 $26,216,543 $26,259,808 $26,208,958 
Book Value $25,018,900 $25,105,488 $25,122,010 $25,082,133 

STATISTICS
Gross Yield 3.09% 3.15% 3.07% 3.10%

Net Asset Value (NAV) 0.9711 0.9759 0.9721 0.9730
ORANGE COUNTY INVESTMENT FUND TOTALS(1)

OCTOBER NOVEMBER DECEMBER QUARTERLY 
AVERAGES

COUNTY TREASURY ASSETS (Valued at Cost)
$14,882,446,113 $15,113,961,648 $17,354,520,345 $15,783,642,702 

$26,150,328 $26,245,981 $26,271,468 $26,222,592 
$51,052,984 $35,021,103 $18,627,542 $34,900,543 

Total Assets in the County Treasury $14,959,649,425 $15,175,228,732 $17,399,419,355 $15,844,765,837 
INVESTMENT EARNINGS YTD EARNINGS

YTD Earnings from Prior Period $152,833,107 
Treasury Pool Investments

County of Orange Investments $24,610,013 $25,732,994 $29,374,333 $79,717,340 
School Fund Investments(4) $26,349,050 $25,547,035 $28,071,369 $79,967,454 

$68,556 $67,780 $68,531 $204,867 
Total Investment Earnings $51,027,619 $51,347,809 $57,514,233 $312,722,768 

INTEREST RATE YIELD
Treasury Pool - YTD Net Yield 4.02% 4.03% 4.02% 4.02%
90-Day T-Bill Yield - YTD Average 4.18% 4.15% 3.92% 4.08%

WEIGHTED AVERAGE MATURITY (WAM)
241 326 448 338

Local Government Investment Pools (LGIP - S&P) 40 40 41 40

Orange County 
Treasury Pool (OCTP)

CCCD Series 2017E 
Bonds (CCCD)

Treasury Pool

Treasury Pool Investments
Bond Proceeds Account
Treasury Pool Cash(3)

Bond Proceeds

Page 7 of 61



SUMMARY OF INVESTMENT DATA - ORANGE COUNTY TREASURY POOL 
INVESTMENT TRENDS 

The table below provides a summary of the investment data for the quarter ended December 31, 2025, as well as a year-over-year comparison to the same 
data as of December 31, 2024.   

Sep-25 Oct-25 Nov-25 Dec-25 

QUARTER-
OVER-

QUARTER 
INCREASE/ 

(DECREASE) 

NET 
CHANGE 

(%) 

YEAR-OVER-
YEAR 

December 2024 

YEAR-OVER 
-YEAR

INCREASE/ 
(DECREASE) 

NET 
CHANGE 

(%) 

Market Value $14,532,792,350 $15,076,717,228 $15,308,856,879 $17,553,773,064 $3,020,980,714 20.787% $16,607,935,486 $945,837,578 5.695% 
Book Value $14,487,289,482 $15,036,279,151 $15,266,610,279 $17,508,768,246 $3,021,478,764 20.856% $16,608,675,519 $900,092,727 5.419% 

Monthly Average Balance $14,356,330,847 $14,511,675,530 $14,952,752,447 $16,812,152,686 $2,455,821,839 17.106% $16,035,687,695 $776,464,991 4.842% 
YTD Average Balance $14,713,236,926 $14,662,846,577 $14,720,827,751 $15,069,381,907 $356,144,981 2.421% $14,410,450,480 $658,931,427 4.573% 
Investment Earnings $48,930,928 $50,959,063 $51,280,029 $57,445,702 $8,514,774 17.402% $58,641,770 ($1,196,068) -2.040%

Monthly Net Yield 4.047% 4.022% 4.063% 3.984% -0.063% -1.557% 4.242% -0.258% -6.082%
YTD Net Yield 4.015% 4.017% 4.026% 4.018% 0.003% 0.075% 4.312% -0.294% -6.818%

Estimated Annual Gross Yield 3.500% 3.500% 3.500% 3.500% 0.000% 0.000% 4.360% -0.860% -19.725%
Weighted Average Maturity 279 241 326 448 169 60.674% 286 162 56.741%

• Fiscal year-to-date earnings are $312.3 million.
• Market value represents the current fair market value of the Pool (investments in the Pool are marked to market daily).
• Book value represents the Pool value on an amortized cost basis.
• The quarter-over-quarter and year-over-year comparisons show normal variations in the market values, book values and average balances, which

this quarter are primarily due to property tax collection and the timing of disbursements.
• Quarter-over-quarter earnings are higher due to a higher average balance.
• Year-over-year earnings and yields and the quarter-over-quarter YTD net yield are lower due to the overall decline in interest rates.
• The slight increase in the YTD net yield quarter-over-quarter was largely the result of a decrease in the investment admin fee.
• The weighted average maturity is higher quarter-over-quarter and year-over-year due to investment in securities with longer maturities.

Page 8 of 61



INVESTMENT POLICY (IP) COMPLIANCE SUMMARY 
December 31, 2025 

The table below provides a summary of the Pool’s compliance with the Investment Policy adopted by the Board of Supervisors on February 11, 2025. For 
the quarter ended December 31, 2025, the Pool was in compliance with all requirements, investment, issuer, maturity and ratings limits. Any investment 
that does not comply would be shown in red highlight. 

Limit Actual Compliant Limit Actual1 Compliant Limit Actual Compliant Min Credit 
Rating Limit

Actual Min 
Credit Rating

Min Number 
of Raters

Actual Number 
of Raters

Compliant

US Treasury Securities
100% 22.88% Yes None 22.88% Yes 5 Years 2.88 Yes Not Required n/a Not Required Not Required Not Required

US Government Agency Securities 
(GSEs) 100% 65.18% Yes None 65.18% Yes 5 Years 4.87 Yes Not Required n/a Not Required Not Required Not Required

Municipal Securities
20% 0.0% No Holdings 5%2 0.0% No Holdings 3 Years No Holdings No Holdings AA/Aa2/AA No Holdings 2 No Holdings No Holdings

Corporate Medium Term Notes
20% 0.0% No Holdings 5% 0.0% No Holdings 2 Years No Holdings No Holdings AA/Aa2/AA No Holdings 2 No Holdings No Holdings

Bankers Acceptances
40% 0.0% No Holdings 5% 0.0% No Holdings 180 Days No Holdings No Holdings A-1/P-1/F-1 No Holdings 2 No Holdings No Holdings

Commercial Paper
40% 0.0% No Holdings 5% 0.0% No Holdings 270 Days No Holdings No Holdings A-1/P-1/F-1 No Holdings 2 No Holdings No Holdings

Negotiable Certificates of Deposits 
(NCDs) 20% 0.0% No Holdings 5% 0.0% No Holdings 18 Months No Holdings No Holdings AA/Aa2/AA No Holdings 2 No Holdings No Holdings

State of California Local 
Government Investment Pool (LAIF) $75.0 Million $1.5 Million Yes n/a n/a Yes n/a - Yes Not Required n/a Not Required Not Required Not Required

Repurchase Agreements
20% 0.0% No Holdings 10% 0.0% No Holdings 180 Days No Holdings No Holdings AA/Aa2/AA No Holdings 2 No Holdings No Holdings

Money Market Mutual Funds (MMF)
20% 11.93% Yes 10% 8.78% Yes n/a - Yes Aaam AAA 1 2-3 Yes

Joint Power Authority Investment 
Pools (JPA) 20% 0.0% No Holdings 10% 0.0% No Holdings n/a No Holdings No Holdings Aaaf No Holdings 2 No Holdings No Holdings

Supranationals
30% 0.0% No Holdings 5% 0.0% No Holdings 5 Years No Holdings No Holdings AA/Aa2/AA No Holdings 2 No Holdings No Holdings

Source: Orange County Daily Compliance Report as of December 31, 2025.
(1) Represents the percentage of the largest investment in an issuer for each investment category.
(2) Except OC at 10%.

Sector Investment Limit Issuer Limit Maximum Maturity Credit Ratings

Page 9 of 61



INVESTMENT POLICY (IP) AND INVESTMENT OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE (IOC) COMPLIANCE SUMMARY 
December 31, 2025 

On March 11, 2025, the Board of Supervisors (BOS) adopted a resolution establishing the Investment Oversight Committee (IOC) to ensure proper oversight is 
exercised over County investment activities.  This action dissolved the previous Treasury Oversight Committee (TOC) as it was limited in its statutory duties to 
overseeing the Treasurer’s compliance with the Treasurer’s Investment Policy Statement, which is no longer applicable under the OC Investment Policy approved 
by the Board on February 11, 2025. 

The following table provides a current listing of open compliance items. 

COMPLIANCE CATEGORY RESPONSIBLE 
PARTY REGULATORY/POLICY GUIDELINES CURRENT STATUS 

Quarterly Compliance Monitoring of County 
Treasury (Through December 2024) 

TTC 
Directive to continue compliance monitoring, a prior 
directive from the TOC, was approved by the IOC at 
the May 15, 2025 meeting 

September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2024 completed on January 
13, 2026. 

Quarterly Compliance Monitoring of County 
Treasury (Beginning January 2025) 

CEO 
Directive to continue compliance monitoring, a prior 
directive from the TOC, was approved by the IOC at 
the May 15, 2025 meeting 

March 31, 2025 and June 30, 2025 completed on November 5, 2025 
and December 5, 2025 respectively.  

Annual Compliance Audit of County 
Treasurer's Compliance with CGC Article 6 

TTC Cal Govt. Code 27134 June 30, 2024 in progress. 

Annual Compliance Audit of County 
Treasurer's Compliance with CGC Article 6 

CEO Cal Govt. Code 27134 CEO is responsible for annual compliance beginning June 30, 2025. 

Quarterly Schedule of Assets Review of County 
Treasury 

AC Cal Govt. Code 26920(a) 
September 30, 2024, December 31, 2024 completed on November 14, 
2025. March 31, 2025 in progress. 

Annual Schedule of Assets Audit of County 
Treasury 

AC Cal Govt. Code 26920(b) June 30, 2025 in progress. 

Annual Broker/Dealer/Financial Institutions 
Review 

CEO Authorized Financial Dealers and Qualified Institutions Calendar year 2025 review in progress. 

Annual Review of IP by IOC CEO AOC & IOC Bylaws section 7.2.1 and IP section XVIII 
IOC reviewed a revised IP on November 13, 2025 and the BOS 
approved on December 16, 2025, effective January 1, 2026.  

Annual Broker/Dealer IP Acknowledgement of 
Receipt 

CEO 
Authorized Financial Dealers and Qualified 
Institutions, IP section XI 

Completed April 2025. CEO will be responsible for review going 
forward.  

LEGEND 
Auditor-Controller AC 
Board of Supervisors BOS 
County Executive Office CEO 
Office of Treasurer-Tax Collector TTC 

Page 10 of 61



APPENDIX 

Page 11 of 61



APPROVED ISSUER LIST - COUNTY TREASURY 

December 31, 2025 

DEBT SECURITIES 

ISSUER (Rating Action Date) 
S/T 

Ratings 
L/T 

Ratings 
S&P Moody's Fitch S&P Moody's Fitch 

U.S. TREASURY SECURITIES 

U.S. GOVERNMENT A-1+ NR F1+ AA+ Aa1 AA+ 
U.S. GOVERNMENT AGENCY SECURITIES 

FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOCIATION A-1+ P-1 F1+ AA+ Aa1 AA+ 

FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORPORATION A-1+ P-1 F1+ AA+ Aa1 AA+ 

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANKS A-1+ P-1 NR AA+ Aa1 NR 

FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANKS A-1+ P-1 F1+ AA+ Aa1 AA+ 
MEDIUM-TERM NOTES 

APPLE INC A-1+ P-1 NR AA+ Aaa NR 

MICROSOFT CORPORATION A-1+ P-1 WD AAA Aaa WD 

WALMART INC A-1+ P-1 F1+ AA Aa2 AA 

JOHNSON & JOHNSON A-1+ P-1 WD AAA Aaa WD 

STATE POOL 
NAME OF FUND S&P Moody's Fitch 

LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND NR NR NR 

MONEY MARKET MUTUAL FUNDS 

NAME OF FUND Ticker S&P Moody's Fitch 

ALLSPRING GOVERNMENT MONEY MARKET FUND WFFXX AAAm Aaa-mf NR 

INVESCO GOVERNMENT & AGENCY SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS TRUST AGPXX AAAm Aaa-mf AAAmmf 

GOLDMAN SACHS FINANCIAL SQUARE GOVT FUND FGTXX AAAm Aaa-mf NR 

MORGAN STANLEY INSTITUTIONAL LIQUIDITY FUNDS - GOVT MVRXX AAAm Aaa-mf AAAmmf 

NORTHERN INSTITUTIONAL TREASURY PORTFOLIO NTPXX AAAm NR AAAmmf 

Legend: 
NR = Not Rated 

WD = Withdrawn 

Page 12 of 61



Page 13 of 61



Page 14 of 61



 

 

 

 

INTEREST ACCRUED 
DESCRIPTION CUSIP # RATE BOOK VALUE MARKET VALUE INTEREST

MONEY MARKET FUNDS
    FIRST AMERICAN GOVT OBLIGATION FUND CL Z 31846V567 3.63% 94,741,476.17$      94,741,476.17$     279,525.63$         
    FED GOVT OBLI FD-IS 60934N104 3.63% 1,246.86                1,246.86               3.89                    
SUB-TOTAL MONEY MARKET FUNDS 94,742,723.03        94,742,723.03       279,529.52           

TOTAL OF INVESTMENTS WITH TRUSTEES 94,742,723.03$      94,742,723.03$     279,529.52$         

COUNTY OF ORANGE
CEO FINANCE UNIT

SUMMARY BY INVESTMENT TYPE
December 31, 2025

 
INTEREST ACCRUED

BOND DESCRIPTION  TRUSTEE CUSIP # MOODY'S S & P FITCH RATE BOOK VALUE MARKET VALUE INTEREST
FIRST AMERICAN GOVT OBLIGATION FUND CL Z (MONEY MARKET) Aaa-mf AAAm AAAmmf 3.63%

2014 SOCPFA SERIES B U.S. BANK 31846V567 370,823.23$                370,823.23$                1,158.38$            
2016-1 VILLAGE OF ESENCIA U.S. BANK 31846V567 12,954,501.45              12,954,501.45             36,268.64            
2017-1 NEWPORT COAST U.S. BANK 31846V567 946,652.64                  946,652.64                 2,957.17              
2017-1 VILLAGE OF ESENCIA IA1 U.S. BANK 31846V567 10,772,277.19              10,772,277.19             30,110.13            
2017-1 VILLAGE OF ESENCIA IA2 U.S. BANK 31846V567 2,351,991.96               2,351,991.96               6,532.05              
2018 SOCPFA SERIES A U.S. BANK 31846V567 29,701.97                    29,701.97                   92.78                  
NEWPORT COAST - Group 4 U.S. BANK 31846V567 452,273.95                  452,273.95                 1,412.83              
OBLIGATION NOTES U.S. BANK 31846V567 232,342.21                  232,342.21                 419.28                
2022 SOCPFA Sheriff's Building U.S. BANK 31846V567 4,326.53                      4,326.53                     13.51                  
CFD 2021-1 Rienda U.S. BANK 31846V567 21,668,623.98              21,668,623.98             62,647.70            
2023 SOCPFA SERIES A U.S. BANK 31846V567 2,618,260.41               2,618,260.41               8,178.97              
CFD 2023-1 Rienda U.S. BANK 31846V567 42,311,654.11              42,311,654.11             129,646.58          
2014 & 2023 SOCPFA SERIES A & B U.S. BANK 31846V567 28,046.54                    28,046.54                   87.61                  

FED GOVT OBLI FD-IS (MONEY MARKET) Aaa-mf AAAm AAAmmf 3.63%
2016 CUF LEASE REVENUE BONDS ZIONS BANK 60934N104 1,246.86                      1,246.86                     3.89                    

TOTAL OF INVESTMENTS WITH TRUSTEES 94,742,723.03$            94,742,723.03$           279,529.52$        

  
* Ratings are based on availability of the report

INVENTORY OF INVESTMENTS WITH TRUSTEES

*

Page 15 of 61



 !"#$%"& &'( )*  *+ (,-./%(0$12*

3425* 678%9

 !"#$%"& &',5:%1(0$12* ,$92(;(8<(& 

 !"#$%"& &'
"/&01 23,456,7879

=4($1(>$12*

:;<5/=>5;=&:;<5;=0?@&AB=C&DE?F5=&GEHI5&J@&%;=B=@&K&:;/=?I>5;=&

?(-$5@21(A$B/24(C58A:>2>(DE(7851F25%(G5/41($%>(2HIB/>2($II5/2>(:%125241 !"!#$

'0IL0;
MI?6CE/5&

*B5HN

DE=I?B=@

&4E=5

+5==H5

4E=5 '(+:M
DE?F5=

GEHI5&O

(;?5EHBP5N&

$EB;QR.0//S

'ELB=EH&

"66?IEH
'ELB=EH

:;=5?5/=&

"66?IEH T00F&GEHI5

UE65&

GEHI5

://I5?&Q&T?0F5?

45EH&

#0V
UB=6CD00N@/+KM

(#:)%4&+)")%+&4 .."!

 ?E;W5&'0I;=@&)?5E/I?@&M00H

U(#4+

# !)X%!#&)!(+)& ')M&+Y%%M

( J  ( ( J  ( ( J  (( J  ( ;K ;K& &' ( J  (7.

.":U&,&%-)%#4%4&U(#4

(;L)!&L&&&J))( (;L)!&L&&&J))( ( J  ((;L)!&L&&&J))( )J &+  ;K ;K& &' (;L)!&L&&&J))(7.

$+&,& '&)?5E/I?@&M00H

(M+LN!NL+O)J+;( (M+LN!NL+O)J+;( ( J  ((M+LN!NL+O)J+;( OJ'M+N ;K ;K& &' (M+LN!NL+O)J+;(7.

 '&)?5E/I?5?&-&U(#4&DDU

()''L'!OL';NJM!( ()''L'!OL';NJM!( ( J  (()''L'!OL';NJM!( OJ! !O ;K ;K& &' ()''L'!OL';NJM!(7.

 '&)?5E/I?5?&%Z=5;N5N&UI;N

(;L+) LN&)L&+OJ)M( (;L+) LN&)L&+OJ)M( ( J  ((;L+) LN&)L&+OJ)M( OJ!;;M ;K ;K& &' (;L+) LN&)L&+OJ)M(7.

+IJ=0=EH&10?&U(#4+[&&&&& 2V\8]] &7^8]9^8_]^`28V28& &7^8]9^8_]^`28V28& &8V88&&7^8]9^8_]^`28V28& &7^8]9^8_]^`28V28&

$ G%!#D%#)&"$%#'*

"$%#'*&4:+' (#)&# )%+

(M&!LO';J;;( ( J  (MK'K&+;OO;+;; O;OOM+.7M

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&(T+

()NLN' LM'MJ '( ()NLN';L   J  ( (;O;JN)((+ L   L   J  ( )J N'  ;K MK& &' ()NL;OOL+ 'JN+(7.=";P ,";

(M&!LO';J;;( ( J  (MK'K&+;OO;+;& O;OOM+.7M

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&(T+

()NLN' LM'MJ '( ()NLN';L   J  ( (;O;JN)((+ L   L   J  ( )J N'  ;K MK& &' ()NL;OOL+ 'JN+(7.=";P ,";

(''&L+  J  ( ( J  (NKOK&+;OO+&!) O;OON!.7O

U!%44:%&4:+' (#)&Q&U)#&U:#"#':".

()NLN';LO+)J;!( ()NLN';L   J  ( QO+)J;!R(+ L   L   J  ( )J O;+ ;K MK& &' ()NL&NMLM+)J;!(S";P=";P ,";

(;L);!L ;OJN&( ( J  ()K;;K&+;O;+'MM O;OOM+.,O

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&T"#a& U&"D%!:'"

()NLN+!L&&&J&&( ()NLN+'L;&+J  ( Q;L N!J&&R(+ L   L   J  ( OJN'+M ;K NK& &' ()ML+) L& MJO (7.=";P ,";

(;L);!L ;OJMN( ( J  ()K;;K&+;O;+'MN O;OOM+.,O

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&':):$! (M&$. T".&D"!a%)+

()NLN+!L&&&J&&( ()NLN+'L;&+J  ( Q;L N!J&&R(+ L   L   J  ( OJN'+M ;K NK& &' ()ML+) L& MJOO(7.=";P ,";

(;L)!'L+++J++( ( J  ()K&K&+;O;)&)! O;OOM+60N

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&T"!'."*+&'"M:)".

()NLMM;L)))J))( ()NLMM!LM!+J  ( ('L)O J+'((+ L   L   J  ( )J  !N ;K&OK& &' ()ML) )LMMMJMN(7.=";P ,";

(;LO!!L&&&J&&( ( J  ()KMK&+;O;)M)N O;OOM+6T;

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&(T+&U:#"#':".&+%!G:'%+

()NLM+ LN!&J&&( ()NLM+OL!+ J  ( (&L!!!J!M((+ L   L   J  ( OJM;'+ ;KO K& &' ()ML)!OL!+ J  (7.=";P ,";

(;L) NL;''J''( ( J  ()KNK&+;O;+&&O O;OOM+6T;

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&bM&D !$"#&'X"+%&K&' 

()NLM)'LN))J))( ()NLM+OL!+ J  ( ('LM +J+'((+ L   L   J  ( OJN&&' ;KO K& &' ()ML)O!L!!!J!M(7.=";P ,";

(;LO+NL+++J+'( ( J  ()K; K&+;O;+)! O;OOM+6T;

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&4%()+'X%

()NLM+;L!!!J!M( ()NLM+OL!+ J  ( (;LN!&J&&((+ L   L   J  ( OJ!N)) ;KO K& &' ()ML)N&L&&&J&&(7.=";P ,";

(;L) 'L+  J  ( ( J  ()K;+K&+;O;' ) O;OOM+6T;

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&bM&D !$"#&'X"+%&K&' 

()NLM)OL!&&J&&( ()NLM+OL!+ J  ( (; L &!J!M((+ L   L   J  ( )J  +& ;KO K& &' ()ML)O!L&&&J&&(7.=";P ,";

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&4":Y"&'"M:)".&D"!a%)+

Page 16 of 61



 !"#$%"& &'( )*  *+ (,-./%(0$12*

3425* 678%9

 !"#$%"& &',5:%1(0$12* ,$92(&(8<(& 

 !"#$%"& &'
"/&01 23,456,7879

=4($1(>$12*

:;<5/=>5;=&:;<5;=0?@&AB=C&DE?F5=&GEHI5&J@&%;=B=@&K&:;/=?I>5;=&

?(-$5@21(A$B/24(C58A:>2>(DE(7851F25%(G5/41($%>(2HIB/>2($II5/2>(:%125241 !"!#$

'0IL0;
MI?6CE/5&

*B5HN

DE=I?B=@

&4E=5

+5==H5

4E=5 '(+:M
DE?F5=

GEHI5&O

(;?5EHBP5N&

$EB;QR.0//S

'ELB=EH&

"66?IEH
'ELB=EH

:;=5?5/=&

"66?IEH T00F&GEHI5

UE65&

GEHI5

://I5?&Q&T?0F5?

45EH&

#0V
UB=6CD00N@/+KM

(#:)%4&+)")%+&4 .."!

 ?E;W5&'0I;=@&)?5E/I?@&M00H

$ G%!#D%#)&"$%#'*

"$%#'*&4:+' (#)&# )%+

(;LOM;LOOOJOO( ( J  ()K;!K&+;O;'ON! O;OOM+6T; ()NLM)+LOOOJOO( ()NLM+OL!+ J  ( (ML);'J'!((+ L   L   J  ( OJN';! ;KO K& &' ()ML)')L   J  (7.=";P ,";

(;L&+'LMMMJMN( ( J  (+K&&K&+;O&;O)N O;OOM+6,&

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&T"!'."*+&'"M:)".

()NLM& L)))J)+( ()NLMOML)O!J+ ( (;!LNNOJ +((+ L   L   J  ( )J;+N+ &K &K& &' ()ML+'OL+++J+'(7.=";P ,";

(;L+O!L'N)J))( ( J  (OK&'K&+;O;O;!) O;OO;O6G'

U%4&U"!D&'!&Ta&Q&DBPIC0&+56I?B=B5/&(+"&:;6

()NLM OL   J  ( ()NLM;MLM+)J  ( (;+LM+)J  ((+ L   L   J  ( )J M;' &K 'K& &' ()ML&'+LO +J+'(S;P=";P ,";

(&&;L MOJOO( ( J  (;;K& K&+;O)+M&M O;OO;O6G'

U%4&U"!D&'!&Ta&Q&4":Y"&'"M:)".&D"!a%)+

()NLM; L+  J  ( ()NLM;MLM+)J  ( (MLO+)J  ((+ L   L   J  ( OJM&;) &K 'K& &' ()NL+MNL);'J'!(S;P=";P ,";

(&&;L MOJOO( ( J  (;;K& K&+;O)+M&N O;OO;O6G'

U%4&U"!D&'!&Ta&Q&4":Y"&'"M:)".&D"!a%)+

()NLM; L+  J  ( ()NLM;MLM+)J  ( (MLO+)J  ((+ L   L   J  ( OJM&;) &K 'K& &' ()NL+MNL);'J'!(S;P=";P ,";

(&&;L MOJOO( ( J  (;;K& K&+;O)+MO O;OO;O6G'

U%4&U"!D&'!&Ta&Q&4":Y"&'"M:)".&D"!a%)+

()NLM; L+  J  ( ()NLM;MLM+)J  ( (MLO+)J  ((+ L   L   J  ( OJM&;) &K 'K& &' ()NL+MNL);'J'!(S;P=";P ,";

(&&;L MOJOO( ( J  (;;K& K&+;O)+MO& O;OO;O6G'

U%4&U"!D&'!&Ta&Q&4":Y"&'"M:)".&D"!a%)+

()NLM; L+  J  ( ()NLM;MLM+)J  ( (MLO+)J  ((+ L   L   J  ( OJM&;) &K 'K& &' ()NL+MNL);'J'!(S;P=";P ,";

(;LO!OL+  J  ( ( J  ()KMK&+;O;)M+O O;OOM+6U+

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&4":Y"&'"M:)".&D"!a%)+

()NL!N+L   J  ( ()NL!NNL&!;J  ( ()L&!;J  ((+ L   L   J  ( OJM; O &K; K& &' ()ML)&;L+  J  (7.=";P ,";

(;L) +L)+MJOO( ( J  ()KNK&+;O;+&&+ O;OOM+6U+

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&T"!'."*+&'"M:)".

()NL!MNL)))J))( ()NL!NNL&!;J  ( (NLM&'J+'((+ L   L   J  ( OJN;'' &K; K& &' ()MLOMOLNM'J;;(7.=";P ,";

(;LO!OL+  J  ( ( J  ()KMK&+;O;)M++ O;OOM+G=)

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&DBPIC0&+56I?B=B5/&(+"&:;6

()NL!!NL'&+J  ( ()NL!M)L+MOJ+ ( ()LN+MJ+ ((+ L   L   J  ( OJM;;+ &K;OK& &' ()ML) 'L;&+J  (7.=";P ,";

(;L) +L)+MJO)( ( J  ()KNK&+;O;+&&' O;OOM+G=)

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&T#*&D5HH0;&'ELB=EH&DE?F5=

()NL!!OL'+&J!M( ()NL!M)L+MOJ+ ( (; LNO J!&((+ L   L   J  ( OJN;!N &K;OK& &' ()MLO'ML;N)J))(7.=";P ,";

(;LO+NL+++J++( ( J  ()K; K&+;O;+)!; O;OOM+G=)

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&)4&+%'(!:):%+

()NL!M L&&&J&&( ()NL!M)L+MOJ+ ( ()LO';J&M((+ L   L   J  ( OJM    &K;OK& &' ()ML)& L'''J'!(7.=";P ,";

(;LOM&L!!!J!M( ( J  ()K;)K&+;O;+M)N O;OO;OG='

U%4&U"!D&'!&Ta&Q&DBPIC0&+56I?B=B5/&(+"&:;6

()NL!!OL ++J+'( ()NL!M)L+MOJ+ ( (;;L+&!JN)((+ L   L   J  ( OJN&') &K;OK& &' ()MLON L&!!J!M(S;P=";P ,";

(;L)'!LO!+J  ( ( J  ()KOK&+;O;))O) O;OOM+GVN

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&U)#&U:#"#':".

()NL'NOL'&+J  ( ()NL!;'L );J+ ( (&&L);'J+ ((+ L   L   J  ( )J ;&O &K&!K& &' ()ML&&'L&+ J  (7.=";P ,";

(;L)'!LO!+J  ( ( J  ()KOK&+;O;))O+ O;OOM+GVN

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&U)#&U:#"#':".

()NL'NOL'&+J  ( ()NL!;'L );J+ ( (&&L);'J+ ((+ L   L   J  ( )J ;&O &K&!K& &' ()ML&&'L&+ J  (7.=";P ,";

(;L&)!L+++J+'( ( J  (+K&&K&+;O&;O)M O;OOM+GVN

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&)4&+%'(!:):%+

()NL'M&L+);J'!( ()NL!;'L );J+ ( (OOL)NNJMO((+ L   L   J  ( )J;ON' &K&!K& &' ()ML)O)LNM'J;;(7.=";P ,";

(;L;!+L;+&J!M( ( J  ('K)K&+;O&&N+) O;OOM+GVN

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&(T+&U:#"#':".&+%!G:'%+

()NL'M&L+);J'!( ()NL!;'L );J+ ( (OOL)NNJMO((+ L   L   J  ( )J;OO) &K&!K& &' ()ML+ !LOMMJMN(7.=";P ,";

Page 17 of 61



 !"#$%"& &'( )*  *+ (,-./%(0$12*

3425* 678%9

 !"#$%"& &',5:%1(0$12* ,$92(O(8<(& 

 !"#$%"& &'
"/&01 23,456,7879

=4($1(>$12*

:;<5/=>5;=&:;<5;=0?@&AB=C&DE?F5=&GEHI5&J@&%;=B=@&K&:;/=?I>5;=&

?(-$5@21(A$B/24(C58A:>2>(DE(7851F25%(G5/41($%>(2HIB/>2($II5/2>(:%125241 !"!#$

'0IL0;
MI?6CE/5&

*B5HN

DE=I?B=@

&4E=5

+5==H5

4E=5 '(+:M
DE?F5=

GEHI5&O

(;?5EHBP5N&

$EB;QR.0//S

'ELB=EH&

"66?IEH
'ELB=EH

:;=5?5/=&

"66?IEH T00F&GEHI5

UE65&

GEHI5

://I5?&Q&T?0F5?

45EH&

#0V
UB=6CD00N@/+KM

(#:)%4&+)")%+&4 .."!

 ?E;W5&'0I;=@&)?5E/I?@&M00H

$ G%!#D%#)&"$%#'*

"$%#'*&4:+' (#)&# )%+

(;L;!+L;+&J!M( ( J  ('K)K&+;O&&N++ O;OO;OGG+

U%4&U"!D&'!&Ta&Q&(T+&U:#"#':".&+%!G:'%+

()NL''+LMOOJOO( ()NL! ;L!!MJ  ( (O+LN))J'!((+ L   L   J  ( )J;O)M OK &K& &' ()ML)N L'M J++(S;P=";P ,";

(;L+O L&!!J!!( ( J  (OK&!K&+;O;O);! O;OOM+GU)

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&)4&+%'(!:):%+

()NL'+ L&&&J&&( ()NL'M&L&&&J  ( (O;LNNNJ!M((+ L   L   J  ( )J MM! OK 'K& &' ()ML;;NLN))J)+(7.=";P ,";

(;LO!+L+  J  ( ( J  ()K;)K&+;O;+M)! O;OOM+3W 

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&4%()+'X%

()NL')OL   J  ( ()NL''&L'''J+ ( (;NL'''J+ ((+ L   L   J  ( OJN;+! OK; K& &' ()ML&'!L+  J  (7.=";P ,";

(;L; &L!+ J  ( ( J  ('K;!K&+;O&)!M+ O;OOM+3W 

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&T"!'."*+&'"M:)".

()NL'&;L&!!J!M( ()NL''&L'''J+ ( ();LOMMJ!&((+ L   L   J  ( )J;O&) OK; K& &' ()ML+;ML+&!J!M(7.=";P ,";

(!O'LM!+J  ( ( J  (MK;NK&+;OOO&OM O;OOM+30'

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&M#'&'"M:)".&D"!a%)+

()NL';!LN;'J'!( ()NL'+&LMMNJ  ( (O)LN!&JOO((+ L   L   J  ( )J &   OK;&K& &' ()MLMM;L );J'!(7.=";P ,";

(!O'LM!+J  ( ( J  (MK;NK&+;OOO&)+ O;OOM+30'

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&X:$$:#+&'"M:)".&D"#"$%D%#)

()NL';!LN;'J'!( ()NL'+&LMMNJ  ( (O)LN!&JOO((+ L   L   J  ( )J &   OK;&K& &' ()MLMM;L );J'!(7.=";P ,";

(;L)'OL+MOJOO( ( J  ()KOK&+;O;))O& O;OOM+3X)

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&'"+).%& "a&+%'(!:):%+

()NL';NLO';J;;( ()NL')ML   J  ( (&ML'OMJMN((+ L   L   J  ( )J  !M OK;OK& &' ()ML;++L!!!J!M(7.=";P ,";

(;L)'OL+MOJOO( ( J  ()KOK&+;O;))OO O;OOM+3X)

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&'"+).%& "a&+%'(!:):%+

()NL';NLO';J;;( ()NL')ML   J  ( (&ML'OMJMN((+ L   L   J  ( )J  !M OK;OK& &' ()ML;++L!!!J!M(7.=";P ,";

(;L NNLNNNJNN( ( J  ('K;!K&+;O&)!M' O;OOM+3Y!

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&b%UU%!:%+&K&' DM"#*

()NL+MMLMMMJMN( ()NL'OOLOOOJ+ ( ())L)))J';((+ L   L   J  ( )J;&)! OK;'K& &' ()ML)MMLMMMJN (7.=";P ,";

(;L N!L&+ J  ( ( J  ('K;!K&+;O&)!M! O;OOM+3V!

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&':):$! (M&$. T".&D"!a%)+

()NL++;L;&+J  ( ()NL+NNL;;;J  ( ()!LNM'J  ((+ L   L   J  ( )J;;!O OK&OK& &' ()ML)+OLM!+J  (7.=";P ,";

(;LO);L MOJOO( ( J  ()K; K&+;O;+)!O O;OOM+33M

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&DBPIC0&+56I?B=B5/&(+"&:;6

()NL+!;L)+MJOO( ()NL+!NL+++J+ ( (ML N!J;!((+ L   L   J  ( OJ!'O& OK&!K& &' ()ML&O LO!+J  (7.=";P ,";

(;LO')L+MOJO&( ( J  ()K;)K&+;O;+M)M O;OO;O33 

U%4&U"!D&'!&Ta&Q&b%UU%!:%+&K&' DM"#*

()NL++!L&N;J'!( ()NL+!NL+++J+ ( (&&L&'OJMO((+ L   L   J  ( OJMN ' OK&!K& &' ()ML;N&L! MJO+(S;P=";P ,";

(MN'L+  J  ( ( J  (!K&&K&+;O&NO+M O;OOM+Z3!

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&!"*D #4&b"D%+

()NL)  L+  J  ( ()NL)+NL;''J+ ( (+ML'''J+ ((+ L   L   J  ( )J M&; )K& K& &' ()ML+ )L   J  (7.=";P ,";

('OMLOOOJOO( ( J  (NKOK&+;OO+&!+ O;OO;OZUO

U%4&U"!D&'!&Ta&Q&!T'

()NL) )L&&&J&&( ()NL)))L);'J+ ( () L;N)J&M((+ L   L   J  ( OJN&'N )K&OK& &' ()ML!'+LMMMJMN(S;P=";P ,";

(++ L+  J  ( ( J  (NK;+K&+;OO'M); O;OOM+ZU;

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&M#'&'"M:)".&D"!a%)+

()NL)&NL;;;J;;( ()NL)))L);'J+ ( (;+LO +JON((+ L   L   J  ( OJ!+)& )K&OK& &' ()MLM!ML';;J;;(7.=";P ,";

(++ L+  J  ( ( J  (NK;+K&+;OO'M)& O;OOM+ZU;

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&"'"4%D*&+%'(!:):%+

()NL)&NL;;;J;;( ()NL)))L);'J+ ( (;+LO +JON((+ L   L   J  ( OJ!+)& )K&OK& &' ()MLM!ML';;J;;(7.=";P ,";

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&"'"4%D*&+%'(!:):%+

Page 18 of 61



 !"#$%"& &'( )*  *+ (,-./%(0$12*

3425* 678%9

 !"#$%"& &',5:%1(0$12* ,$92()(8<(& 

 !"#$%"& &'
"/&01 23,456,7879

=4($1(>$12*

:;<5/=>5;=&:;<5;=0?@&AB=C&DE?F5=&GEHI5&J@&%;=B=@&K&:;/=?I>5;=&

?(-$5@21(A$B/24(C58A:>2>(DE(7851F25%(G5/41($%>(2HIB/>2($II5/2>(:%125241 !"!#$

'0IL0;
MI?6CE/5&

*B5HN

DE=I?B=@

&4E=5

+5==H5

4E=5 '(+:M
DE?F5=

GEHI5&O

(;?5EHBP5N&

$EB;QR.0//S

'ELB=EH&

"66?IEH
'ELB=EH

:;=5?5/=&

"66?IEH T00F&GEHI5

UE65&

GEHI5

://I5?&Q&T?0F5?

45EH&

#0V
UB=6CD00N@/+KM

(#:)%4&+)")%+&4 .."!

 ?E;W5&'0I;=@&)?5E/I?@&M00H

$ G%!#D%#)&"$%#'*

"$%#'*&4:+' (#)&# )%+

(++ L+  J  ( ( J  (NK;+K&+;OO'M)O O;OOM+ZU; ()NL)&NL;;;J;;( ()NL)))L);'J+ ( (;+LO +JON((+ L   L   J  ( OJ!+)& )K&OK& &' ()MLM!ML';;J;;(7.=";P ,";

(+O+L& MJOO( ( J  (NK;MK&+;OO!)&' O;OOM+ZU;

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&"'"4%D*&+%'(!:):%+

()NL)&NL;;;J;;( ()NL)))L);'J+ ( (;+LO +JON((+ L   L   J  ( OJ!+O  )K&OK& &' ()MLMNOLN &J!M(7.=";P ,";

(+O+L& MJOO( ( J  (NK;MK&+;OO!)&! O;OOM+ZU;

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&"'"4%D*&+%'(!:):%+

()NL)&NL;;;J;;( ()NL)))L);'J+ ( (;+LO +JON((+ L   L   J  ( OJ!+O  )K&OK& &' ()MLMNOLN &J!M(7.=";P ,";

(+O L;;;J;;( ( J  (NK;NK&+;OO!)MO O;OO;OZUO

U%4&U"!D&'!&Ta&Q&U)#&U:#"#':".

()NL)&NL;;;J;;( ()NL)))L);'J+ ( (;+LO +JON((+ L   L   J  ( OJ!+&' )K&OK& &' ()MLMNNL   J  (S;P=";P ,";

(+O L;;;J;;( ( J  (NK;NK&+;OO!)M) O;OO;OZUO

U%4&U"!D&'!&Ta&Q&U)#&U:#"#':".

()NL)&NL;;;J;;( ()NL)))L);'J+ ( (;+LO +JON((+ L   L   J  ( OJ!+&' )K&OK& &' ()MLMNNL   J  (S;P=";P ,";

(+O L;;;J;;( ( J  (NK;NK&+;OO!)M+ O;OO;OZUO

U%4&U"!D&'!&Ta&Q&U)#&U:#"#':".

()NL)&NL;;;J;;( ()NL)))L);'J+ ( (;+LO +JON((+ L   L   J  ( OJ!+&' )K&OK& &' ()MLMNNL   J  (S;P=";P ,";

(+O L;;;J;;( ( J  (NK;NK&+;OO!)M' O;OO;OZUO

U%4&U"!D&'!&Ta&Q&U)#&U:#"#':".

()NL)&NL;;;J;;( ()NL)))L);'J+ ( (;+LO +JON((+ L   L   J  ( OJ!+&' )K&OK& &' ()MLMNNL   J  (S;P=";P ,";

(+;)LM;NJ))( ( J  (NK&&K&+;OO!M&M O;OOM+ZU;

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&4":Y"&'"M:)".&D"!a%)+

()NL)&NL;;;J;;( ()NL)))L);'J+ ( (;+LO +JON((+ L   L   J  ( OJ!+;+ )K&OK& &' ()MLN;)L&N;J'!(7.=";P ,";

(+;)LM;NJ))( ( J  (NK&&K&+;OO!MO& O;OOM+ZU;

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&4":Y"&'"M:)".&D"!a%)+

()NL)&NL;;;J;;( ()NL)))L);'J+ ( (;+LO +JON((+ L   L   J  ( OJ!+;+ )K&OK& &' ()MLN;)L&N;J'!(7.=";P ,";

(MN;L   J  ( ( J  (!K&OK&+;O&N' ; O;OO;OZ[;

U%4&U"!D&'!&Ta&Q&+:%T%!)&Y:..:"D+&+X"#a&K&' V

()NLO!ML+  J  ( ()NL)ONL+  J  ( (';L   J  ((+ L   L   J  ( )J MO+ )K&)K& &' ()ML)M!L+  J  (S;P=";P ,";

(O&)L N!J&&( ( J  (; K&MK&+;O)&'N) O;OOM+\7&

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&)4&+%'(!:):%+

()NLO''L!'OJMN( ()NLO!!L!!MJ  ( (;;L ;)J;;((+ L   L   J  ( OJ'' ; +K MK& &' ()NL )&L'''J'!(7.=";P ,";

(O;'LMMMJMN( ( J  (; KO;K&+;O)OO+ O;OOM+\7&

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&$!%")&M"':U:'&+%'(!:):%+

()NLO+ LMMMJMN( ()NLO!!L!!MJ  ( (&'LMMNJ;;((+ L   L   J  ( OJ!+&+ +K MK& &' ()NL O)L   J  (7.=";P ,";

(O;'LMMMJMN( ( J  (; KO;K&+;O)OO+; O;OOM+\7&

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&$!%")&M"':U:'&+%'(!:):%+

()NLO+ LMMMJMN( ()NLO!!L!!MJ  ( (&'LMMNJ;;((+ L   L   J  ( OJ!+&+ +K MK& &' ()NL O)L   J  (7.=";P ,";

(';&LN))J))( ( J  (NK+K&+;OO++;N O;OOM+\3'

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&b%UU%!:%+&K&' DM"#*

()NLO NL;OMJMN( ()NLO)ML';;J  ( (ONL)!&J;;((+ L   L   J  ( OJM) ; +K;)K& &' ()ML'N'L;N)J)+(7.=";P ,";

(+!)L);'J'!( ( J  (NK; K&+;OO'&N; O;OOM+\3'

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&!"*D #4&b"D%+

()NLO&OLN;'J'!( ()NLO)ML';;J  ( (&)L'N)JOO((+ L   L   J  ( OJ!+ON +K;)K& &' ()ML!)NL+  J  (7.=";P ,";

(+''L&&&J&&( ( J  (NK;;K&+;OO')+N O;OOM+\3'

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&D !$"#&+)"#.%*

()NLO&!L';;J;;( ()NLO)ML';;J  ( (& LNNNJMN((+ L   L   J  ( OJ!O&+ +K;)K& &' ()ML!';LOMMJMN(7.=";P ,";

(O&&L&N;J'!( ( J  (; K&MK&+;O)&'NO O;OOM+U]+

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&+:%T%!)&Y:..:"D+&+X"#a&K&' V

()NLO  LM!+J  ( ()NLO NL!&&J  ( (MLM)!J  ((+ L   L   J  ( OJ'))+ +K&&K& &' ()MLN!ML+MOJOO(7.=";P ,";

Page 19 of 61



 !"#$%"& &'( )*  *+ (,-./%(0$12*

3425* 678%9

 !"#$%"& &',5:%1(0$12* ,$92(+(8<(& 

 !"#$%"& &'
"/&01 23,456,7879

=4($1(>$12*

:;<5/=>5;=&:;<5;=0?@&AB=C&DE?F5=&GEHI5&J@&%;=B=@&K&:;/=?I>5;=&

?(-$5@21(A$B/24(C58A:>2>(DE(7851F25%(G5/41($%>(2HIB/>2($II5/2>(:%125241 !"!#$

'0IL0;
MI?6CE/5&

*B5HN

DE=I?B=@

&4E=5

+5==H5

4E=5 '(+:M
DE?F5=

GEHI5&O

(;?5EHBP5N&

$EB;QR.0//S

'ELB=EH&

"66?IEH
'ELB=EH

:;=5?5/=&

"66?IEH T00F&GEHI5

UE65&

GEHI5

://I5?&Q&T?0F5?

45EH&

#0V
UB=6CD00N@/+KM

(#:)%4&+)")%+&4 .."!

 ?E;W5&'0I;=@&)?5E/I?@&M00H

$ G%!#D%#)&"$%#'*

"$%#'*&4:+' (#)&# )%+

(O;!L!!!J!M( ( J  (; K&NK&+;O)&NO; O;OOM+U# 

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&T"!'."*+&'"M:)".

()NL&! L; )J;!( ()NL&M L+++J+ ( (; L)+;JOO((+ L   L   J  ( OJ'+;+ +K&MK& &' ()MLN+&LO&'JON(7.=";P ,";

(O;&LM;&J+ ( ( J  (; KO K&+;O)O;&' O;OOM+U# 

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&':):$! (M&$. T".&D"!a%)+

()NL&! L; )J;!( ()NL&M L+++J+ ( (; L)+;JOO((+ L   L   J  ( OJ'+;; +K&MK& &' ()MLN+!L&N;J'!(7.=";P ,";

(+O)L);'J'!( ( J  (NK;!K&+;OO!; M O;OOM+U^!

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&(T+&U:#"#':".&+%!G:'%+

()NL&+OLMOOJOO( ()NL&!+L'N)J+ ( (&;LM';J;!((+ L   L   J  ( OJ!&+) +K&NK& &' ()ML!;NL);'J''(7.=";P ,";

(+O)L);'J'!( ( J  (NK;!K&+;OO!; N O;OOM+U^!

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&(T+&U:#"#':".&+%!G:'%+

()NL&+OLMOOJOO( ()NL&!+L'N)J+ ( (&;LM';J;!((+ L   L   J  ( OJ!&+) +K&NK& &' ()ML!;NL);'J''(7.=";P ,";

(+&)LOOOJOO( ( J  (NK;NK&+;OO!)M& O;OOM+U^!

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&4":Y"&'"M:)".&D"!a%)+

()NL&+OLMOOJOO( ()NL&!+L'N)J+ ( (&;LM';J;!((+ L   L   J  ( OJ!&)' +K&NK& &' ()ML!&NL+  J  (7.=";P ,";

(+&)LOOOJOO( ( J  (NK;NK&+;OO!)M; O;OOM+U6 

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&)4&+%'(!:):%+

()NL&;ML+);J''( ()NL&+ LOOOJ+ ( (O;L!N;JM)((+ L   L   J  ( OJ!&!O 'K +K& &' ()ML'N)L& MJOO(7.=";P ,";

(O& LNO!J+ ( ( J  (; K&MK&+;O)&'N& O;OOM+U6 

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&':):$! (M&$. T".&D"!a%)+

()NL&O)L'M!J+ ( ()NL&+ LOOOJ+ ( (;+L')'J  ((+ L   L   J  ( OJ'OON 'K +K& &' ()MLN;OL!+ J  (7.=";P ,";

(O;!LOOOJOO( ( J  (; K&NK&+;O)&N&N O;OOM+U6 

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&'"+).%& "a&+%'(!:):%+

()NL&O;L)+MJOO( ()NL&+ LOOOJ+ ( (;MLM!+J;!((+ L   L   J  ( OJ')NO 'K +K& &' ()MLN;)L;&+J  (7.=";P ,";

(O;;L+  J  ( ( J  (; KO K&+;O)O;&+ O;OOM+U\;

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&!"*D #4&b"D%+

()NL&;OLMOOJOO( ()NL&O;L;;;J  ( (;!L&!!J'!((+ L   L   J  ( OJ'ONN 'K NK& &' ()MLN &LOOOJOO(7.=";P ,";

(O;;L+  J  ( ( J  (; KO K&+;O)O;&O O;OO;OUU;

U%4&U"!D&'!&Ta&Q&D !$"#&+)"#.%*

()NL& MLMMMJMN( ()NL&&'LO +J+ ( (;!L);'J';((+ L   L   J  ( OJ') O 'K; K& &' ()MLMN!LOMMJMN(S;P=";P ,";

(O;NL+MOJOO( ( J  (; K&MK&+;O)&'MN O;OOM+[S!

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&# D(!"&+%'(!:):%+&:#).V

()NL;!)L   J  ( ()NL;M!LM';J  ( (;OLM';J  ((+ L   L   J  ( OJ'&O  'K;MK& &' ()MLM+)L);'J'!(7.=";P ,";

(O;NL+MOJOO( ( J  (; K&MK&+;O)&'N O;OOM+[S!

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&X:$$:#+&'"M:)".&D"#"$%D%#)

()NL;!)L   J  ( ()NL;M!LM';J  ( (;OLM';J  ((+ L   L   J  ( OJ'&O  'K;MK& &' ()MLM+)L);'J'!(7.=";P ,";

(O;NL+MOJOO( ( J  (; K&MK&+;O)&'N; O;OOM+[S!

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&bM&D !$"#&'X"+%&K&' 

()NL;!)L   J  ( ()NL;M!LM';J  ( (;OLM';J  ((+ L   L   J  ( OJ'&O  'K;MK& &' ()MLM+)L);'J'!(7.=";P ,";

(O NL!+ J  ( ( J  (; KO K&+;O)O;&) O;OOM+[,+

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&!T'

()NL;O)L'''J'!( ()NL;)NL);'J+ ( (;)L!)NJMO((+ L   L   J  ( OJ'&+& 'K&'K& &' ()MLM&)LN;'J'!(7.=";P ,";

(O;&LMMMJMN( ( J  (; K&NK&+;O)&NO& O;OOM+_W+

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&M#'&'"M:)".&D"!a%)+

()NL M LMMMJMN( ()NL NMLO;&J+ ( (;!L)&OJ';((+ L   L   J  ( OJ' MN !K MK& &' ()ML!'ML   J  (7.=";P ,";

(O;&LMMMJMN( ( J  (; K&NK&+;O)&NOO O;OOM+_W+

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&M#'&'"M:)".&D"!a%)+

()NL M LMMMJMN( ()NL NMLO;&J+ ( (;!L)&OJ';((+ L   L   J  ( OJ' MN !K MK& &' ()ML!'ML   J  (7.=";P ,";

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&"'"4%D*&+%'(!:):%+

Page 20 of 61



 !"#$%"& &'( )*  *+ (,-./%(0$12*

3425* 678%9

 !"#$%"& &',5:%1(0$12* ,$92('(8<(& 

 !"#$%"& &'
"/&01 23,456,7879

=4($1(>$12*

:;<5/=>5;=&:;<5;=0?@&AB=C&DE?F5=&GEHI5&J@&%;=B=@&K&:;/=?I>5;=&

?(-$5@21(A$B/24(C58A:>2>(DE(7851F25%(G5/41($%>(2HIB/>2($II5/2>(:%125241 !"!#$

'0IL0;
MI?6CE/5&

*B5HN

DE=I?B=@

&4E=5

+5==H5

4E=5 '(+:M
DE?F5=

GEHI5&O

(;?5EHBP5N&

$EB;QR.0//S

'ELB=EH&

"66?IEH
'ELB=EH

:;=5?5/=&

"66?IEH T00F&GEHI5

UE65&

GEHI5

://I5?&Q&T?0F5?

45EH&

#0V
UB=6CD00N@/+KM

(#:)%4&+)")%+&4 .."!

 ?E;W5&'0I;=@&)?5E/I?@&M00H

$ G%!#D%#)&"$%#'*

"$%#'*&4:+' (#)&# )%+

(O ML   J  ( ( J  (; KO K&+;O)O;O; O;OOM+_0; ()NL !;L;;;J;;( ()NL MML!!;J  ( (;!L'+NJMN((+ L   L   J  ( OJ' NO !K; K& &' ()ML!'OL;;;J;;(7.=";P ,";

(O ML   J  ( ( J  (; KO K&+;O)O;O& O;OOM+_0;

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&DBPIC0&+56I?B=B5/&(+"&:;6

()NL !;L;;;J;;( ()NL MML!!;J  ( (;!L'+NJMN((+ L   L   J  ( OJ' NO !K; K& &' ()ML!'OL;;;J;;(7.=";P ,";

(+;NL;''J'!( ( J  (NK;MK&+;OO!)&+ O;OO;O_T+

U%4&U"!D&'!&Ta&Q&+:%T%!)&Y:..:"D+&+X"#a&K&' V

()NL &+LN))J)+( ()NL ++LO!+J  ( (&NL)O J++((+ L   L   J  ( OJ''N' !K;!K& &' ()ML+ 'L!!!J!M(S;P=";P ,";

(+;+L'''J'!( ( J  (NK;NK&+;OO!)M O;OOM+_TO

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&M#'&'"M:)".&D"!a%)+

()NL &OL& MJO)( ()NL ++LO!+J  ( (O&L;''J''((+ L   L   J  ( OJ'!NM !K;!K& &' ()ML+ !L+);J'!(7.=";P ,";

(O NLOOOJOO( ( J  (; K&NK&+;O)&NO O;OOM+=N!

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&T#*&D5HH0;&'ELB=EH&DE?F5=

()MLN)'LOOOJOO( ()MLN'!LO+)J  ( (&;L & J'!((+ L   L   J  ( OJ+!!+ MK !K& &' ()ML'O!L   J  (7.=";P ,";

(O ML&!!J!M( ( J  (; KO;K&+;O)OO)! O;OOM+=N!

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&U)#&U:#"#':".

()MLN;'L ++J+'( ()MLN'!LO+)J  ( (+;L&NMJ))((+ L   L   J  ( OJ'M&+ MK !K& &' ()ML' !L!!!J!M(7.=";P ,";

(O ML&!!J!M( ( J  (; KO;K&+;O)OO)M O;OOM+W)!

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&U)#&U:#"#':".

()MLN ;L;OMJMN( ()MLN+OL& MJ+ ( (+&L 'NJ';((+ L   L   J  ( OJ'MO! MK; K& &' ()ML+N&LM';J;;(7.=";P ,";

(O ML&!!J!M( ( J  (; KO;K&+;O)OO)N O;OOM+W)!

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&U)#&U:#"#':".

()MLN ;L;OMJMN( ()MLN+OL& MJ+ ( (+&L 'NJ';((+ L   L   J  ( OJ'MO! MK; K& &' ()ML+N&LM';J;;(7.=";P ,";

(&MMLOMMJMN( ( J  (;;K)K&+;O)O'N' O;OOM+WMM

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&D !$"#&+)"#.%*

()MLMM;L&+ J  ( ()MLNO)LO)!J  ( (+OL N!J  ((+ L   L   J  ( OJ'MO! MK;)K& &' ()ML+N&LM';J;;(7.=";P ,";

(&MMLOMMJMN( ( J  (;;K)K&+;O)O'N! O;OOM+WMM

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&DBPIC0&+56I?B=B5/&(+"&:;6

()MLMM;L&+ J  ( ()MLNO)LO)!J  ( (+OL N!J  ((+ L   L   J  ( OJ'MO! MK;)K& &' ()ML+N&LM';J;;(7.=";P ,";

(&MMLOMMJMN( ( J  (;;K)K&+;O)O'NM O;OOM+WMM

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&bM&D !$"#&'X"+%&K&' 

()MLMM;L&+ J  ( ()MLNO)LO)!J  ( (+OL N!J  ((+ L   L   J  ( OJ'MO! MK;)K& &' ()ML+N&LM';J;;(7.=";P ,";

(&M;L );J'!( ( J  (;;K+K&+;O)ON + O;OOM+0' 

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&!"*D #4&b"D%+

()MLM&;L+N!J&O( ()MLM'MLOOOJ+ ( ()'L!O'J&!((+ L   L   J  ( OJ'+'! MK&MK& &' ()ML+) L+++J+'(7.=";P ,";

(&M;L );J'!( ( J  (;;K+K&+;O)ON ' O;OOM+0' 

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&T#*&D5HH0;&'ELB=EH&DE?F5=

()MLM&;L+N!J&O( ()MLM'MLOOOJ+ ( ()'L!O'J&!((+ L   L   J  ( OJ'+'! MK&MK& &' ()ML+) L+++J+'(7.=";P ,";

(&M L&+ J  ( ( J  (;;K+K&+;O)ON ) O;OOM+X+;

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&)4&+%'(!:):%+

()ML!N L+  J  ( ()MLM)+L';MJ  ( (++L;;MJ  ((+ L   L   J  ( OJ')M! NK )K& &' ()ML+; L&+ J  (7.=";P ,";

(&!'L;;;J;;( ( J  (;;K'K&+;O)) ') O;OOM+SO+

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&+:%T%!)&Y:..:"D+&+X"#a&K&' V

()ML!+!L+  J  ( ()MLM;!L+!'J+ ( (' L !'J+ ((+ L   L   J  ( OJ'';& NK; K& &' ()ML)M;LOMMJMN(7.=";P ,";

(;)+LMOOJOO( ( J  (;&K&K&+;O)!&+M O;OOM+`N;

UX.T&4:+'&' !M&Q&T"!'."*+&'"M:)".

()ML! 'LN))J))( ()ML!+&L;)'J  ( ()+L& ;J+'((+ L   L   J  ( OJ' O! NK&)K& &' ()ML+';L;;;J;;(7.=";P ,";

&_^`88^888^888V88& &_^9_]^_]]^9_`V88&&`\^`29^2ccVc_& &8V88& &_^9_\^_8]^3c8V9\& &7^8]8^2`9V_2&8V8888 2Vc3]3+IJ=0=EH&10?&"$%#'*&4:+' (#)&# )%+[&&&&&&& &_^_\]^\\2^\]3V\2&

$ G)&"$%#'*,U:-,28Q2`8

Page 21 of 61



 !"#$%"& &'( )*  *+ (,-./%(0$12*

3425* 678%9

 !"#$%"& &',5:%1(0$12* ,$92(!(8<(& 

 !"#$%"& &'
"/&01 23,456,7879

=4($1(>$12*

:;<5/=>5;=&:;<5;=0?@&AB=C&DE?F5=&GEHI5&J@&%;=B=@&K&:;/=?I>5;=&

?(-$5@21(A$B/24(C58A:>2>(DE(7851F25%(G5/41($%>(2HIB/>2($II5/2>(:%125241 !"!#$

'0IL0;
MI?6CE/5&

*B5HN

DE=I?B=@

&4E=5

+5==H5

4E=5 '(+:M
DE?F5=

GEHI5&O

(;?5EHBP5N&

$EB;QR.0//S

'ELB=EH&

"66?IEH
'ELB=EH

:;=5?5/=&

"66?IEH T00F&GEHI5

UE65&

GEHI5

://I5?&Q&T?0F5?

45EH&

#0V
UB=6CD00N@/+KM

(#:)%4&+)")%+&4 .."!

 ?E;W5&'0I;=@&)?5E/I?@&M00H

$ G%!#D%#)&"$%#'*

$ G)&"$%#'*,U:-,28Q2`8

( J  ( (;L +;L'&+J  (;&K;NK&);O  &&N )J&O  O;OOX.7M 

U%4&U"!D&'!&Ta&Q&'"+).%& "a&+%'(!:):%+

(+ L   L   J  ( (+ L   L   J  ( ( J  ((+ L   L   J  ( )J&O;+ ;K &K& &' (+ L   L   J  (==P==P =$;

( J  ( (;L +;L'&+J  (;&K;NK&);O  &O )J&O  O;OOX.7M 

U%4&U"!D&'!&Ta&Q&'"+).%& "a&+%'(!:):%+

(+ L   L   J  ( (+ L   L   J  ( ( J  ((+ L   L   J  ( )J&O;+ ;K &K& &' (+ L   L   J  (==P==P =$;

( J  ( (';'L'''J''(NK; K&+;OO'&MN )J    O;O W!.++

U%4&XD&.#&Ta&T4&Q&'"+).%& "a&+%'(!:):%+

(+ L   L   J  ( (+ L   L   J  ( ( J  ((+ L   L   J  ( OJN&NM ;K &K& &' (+ L   L   J  (7.=";P ,";

( J  ( (';'L'''J''(NK; K&+;OO'&N )J    O;O W!.++

U%4&XD&.#&Ta&T4&Q&'"+).%& "a&+%'(!:):%+

(+ L   L   J  ( (+ L   L   J  ( ( J  ((+ L   L   J  ( OJN&NM ;K &K& &' (+ L   L   J  (7.=";P ,";

( J  ( (;L ;'LO!+J  (;&K;NK&);O  &O; )J&O  O;OOX.7NM

U%4&U"!D&'!&Ta&Q&!T'

(+ L   L   J  ( (+ L  )L'&OJ  ( ()L'&OJ  ((+ L   L   J  ( )J&O&  ;K MK& &' (+ L   L   J  (==P==P =$;

( J  ( (;L ;'LO!+J  (;&K;NK&);O  &O& )J&O  O;OOX.7NM

U%4&U"!D&'!&Ta&Q&!T'

(+ L   L   J  ( (+ L  )L'&OJ  ( ()L'&OJ  ((+ L   L   J  ( )J&O&  ;K MK& &' (+ L   L   J  (==P==P =$;

( J  ( (MN&L;+&J!M(&KNK&);&+!'M' )J)O  O;O =[\GN

U%4&XD&.#&Ta&T4&Q&$!%")&M"':U:'&+%'(!:):%+

(+ L   L   J  ( (+ L &!LNNMJ  ( (&!LNNMJ  ((+ L   L   J  ( )J)O & &K 'K& &' (+ L   L   J  (7.==P =$;

( J  ( (!)!L)))J))(;K&&K&);&+)M ! )JO)  O;O =[-G 

U%4&XD&.#&Ta&T4&Q&$!%")&M"':U:'&+%'(!:):%+

(+ L   L   J  ( (+ L );LMN+J  ( ();LMN+J  ((+ L   L   J  ( )JO);M &K&!K& &' (+ L   L   J  (7.==P =$;

( J  ( (!)!L+  J  (&K&!K&);&+N'); )J'M  O;O W W='

U%4&XD&.#&Ta&T4&Q&$!%")&M"':U:'&+%'(!:):%+

(+ L   L   J  ( (+ L N+L+OOJ+ ( (N+L+OOJ+ ((+ L   L   J  ( )J'!NO OK 'K& &' (+ L   L   J  (7.==P =$;

(;L+M)J  ( ('!+L   J  (OK;OK&);&';N&& )J+   O;OOX,+^!

U%4&U"!D&'!&Ta&Q&4":Y"&'"M:)".&D"!a%)+

()NLNNNLM&)J  ( (+ L MML&O!J  ( (MML);OJ  ((+ L   L   J  ( )J+ ;N OK;OK& &' ()NLNNML&) J  (==P==P =$;

( J  ( (O)+L!+ J  (OK&!K&);&'O+MO )J';  O;O W 7VM

U%4&XD&.#&Ta&T4&Q&!T'

(+ L   L   J  ( (+ L;+OL)&+J  ( (;+OL)&+J  ((+ L   L   J  ( )J';&O +K !K& &' (+ L   L   J  (7.==P =$;

( J  ( (+N LNO!J+ (OK&MK&);&'OMM! )J+!+ O;O W ,M'

U%4&XD&.#&Ta&T4&Q&$!%")&M"':U:'&+%'(!:):%+

(+ L   L   J  ( (+ L;+ L;);J+ ( (;+ L;);J+ ((+ L   L   J  ( )J+!!  +K MK& &' (+ L   L   J  (7.==P =$;

( J  ( (&&&L MOJOO(OK&!K&+;O;O);O )J;   O;OOXGW#+

U%4&U"!D&'!&Ta&Q&U)#&U:#"#':".

(+ L   L   J  ( (+ L !+L&+ J  ( (!+L&+ J  ((+ L   L   J  ( )J; ON +K&&K& &' (+ L   L   J  (==P==P =$;

( J  ( (;L MNL'+NJ!&(OK&MK&);&'OMMN )J+O+ O;O W 7_M

U%4&XD&.#&Ta&T4&Q&U)#&U:#"#':".

(+ L   L   J  ( (+ L&+ LM+OJ+ ( (&+ LM+OJ+ ((+ L   L   J  ( )J+O!N !K MK& &' (+ L   L   J  (7.==P =$;

( J  ( (&MNL) +J+'(OK;NK&);&'&''+ )J';  O;OOX,'0&

U%4&U"!D&'!&Ta&Q&T"!'."*+&'"M:)".

(& L   L   J  ( (& L;&ML+M;J& ( (;&ML+M;J& ((& L   L   J  ( )J'; ' NK MK& &' (& L   L   J  (==P==P =$;

( J  ( (!&OL+;OJMN(OK;NK&);&'&''' )J';  O;OOX,'0&

U%4&U"!D&'!&Ta&Q&T"!'."*+&'"M:)".

(+ L   L   J  ( (+ LO&;L)+OJ  ( (O&;L)+OJ  ((+ L   L   J  ( )J'; ' NK MK& &' (+ L   L   J  (==P==P =$;

U%4&U"!D&'!&Ta&Q&)4&+%'(!:):%+

Page 22 of 61



 !"#$%"& &'( )*  *+ (,-./%(0$12*

3425* 678%9

 !"#$%"& &',5:%1(0$12* ,$92(M(8<(& 

 !"#$%"& &'
"/&01 23,456,7879

=4($1(>$12*

:;<5/=>5;=&:;<5;=0?@&AB=C&DE?F5=&GEHI5&J@&%;=B=@&K&:;/=?I>5;=&

?(-$5@21(A$B/24(C58A:>2>(DE(7851F25%(G5/41($%>(2HIB/>2($II5/2>(:%125241 !"!#$

'0IL0;
MI?6CE/5&

*B5HN

DE=I?B=@

&4E=5

+5==H5

4E=5 '(+:M
DE?F5=

GEHI5&O

(;?5EHBP5N&

$EB;QR.0//S

'ELB=EH&

"66?IEH
'ELB=EH

:;=5?5/=&

"66?IEH T00F&GEHI5

UE65&

GEHI5

://I5?&Q&T?0F5?

45EH&

#0V
UB=6CD00N@/+KM

(#:)%4&+)")%+&4 .."!

 ?E;W5&'0I;=@&)?5E/I?@&M00H

$ G%!#D%#)&"$%#'*

$ G)&"$%#'*,U:-,28Q2`8

( J  ( ('M&LN;'J'!(OK&MK&);&'OMMM )J)!  O;OOX,!^+ (+ L   L   J  ( (+ L&!NL;&MJ+ ( (&!NL;&MJ+ ((+ L   L   J  ( )J)! N NK;;K& &' (+ L   L   J  (==P==P =$;

( J  ( (+& LOOOJOO(OK;)K&);&'& M' )J)'  O;OOX,+ZO

U%4&U"!D&'!&Ta&Q&':):$! (M&$. T".&D"!a%)+

(+ L   L   J  ( (+ LO;)LN!&J  ( (O;)LN!&J  ((+ L   L   J  ( )J)';;; K !K& &' (+ L   L   J  (==P==P =$;

( J  ( (+ !LN))J))(OK;)K&);&'& M+ )J)'  O;OOX,+\;

U%4&U"!D&'!&Ta&Q&':):$! (M&$. T".&D"!a%)+

(+ L   L   J  ( (+ LO;ML;)+J  ( (O;ML;)+J  ((+ L   L   J  ( )J)';&; K NK& &' (+ L   L   J  (==P==P =$;

( J  ( ()M+L+++J+'(OK;NK&);&'&''! )J'   O;OOX,'#N

U%4&U"!D&'!&Ta&Q&DBPIC0&+56I?B=B5/&(+"&:;6

(+ L   L   J  ( (+ LO''L;;!J  ( (O''L;;!J  ((+ L   L   J  ( )J' ;O; K;+K& &' (+ L   L   J  (==P==P =$;

( J  ( (OO L);'J'!()K;!K&+;O;') O OJN   O;OOXGX0+

U%4&U"!D&'!&Ta&Q&(T+&U:#"#':".&+%!G:'%+

(+ L   L   J  ( (+ L;; L;&NJ  ( (;; L;&NJ  ((+ L   L   J  ( OJN  N; KO K& &' (+ L   L   J  (==P==P =$;

( J  ( ()+&L&+ J  ()K&)K&);&'!'+! )JM'  O;O W;)6O

U%4&XD&.#&Ta&T4&Q&$!%")&M"':U:'&+%'(!:):%+

(+ L   L   J  ( (+ L+ ML&!!J  ( (+ ML&!!J  ((+ L   L   J  ( )JM' !;;K 'K& &' (+ L   L   J  (7.==P =$;

( J  ( (O!&L!!!J!M()K&+K&);&'!M;; )JMM  O;OOX.0]&

U%4&U"!D&'!&Ta&Q&4%()+'X%

(+ L   L   J  ( (+ L+;)LOM+J+ ( (+;)LOM+J+ ((+ L   L   J  ( )JMM !;;K 'K& &' (+ L   L   J  (==P==P =$;

( J  ( (O)!L MOJOO()K&&K&);&'!&)N )JN   O;OOX.]. 

U%4&U"!D&'!&Ta&Q&bM&D !$"#&'X"+%&K&' 

(+ L   L   J  ( (+ L+O;L+ NJ+ ( (+O;L+ NJ+ ((+ L   L   J  ( )JN ;;;;K; K& &' (+ L   L   J  (==P==P =$;

( J  ( (O&'L   J  ()K;NK&);&'! N) )JMN  O;OOX.]#M

U%4&U"!D&'!&Ta&Q&)4&+%'(!:):%+

(+ L   L   J  ( (+ L+O)L  ;J+ ( (+O)L  ;J+ ((+ L   L   J  ( )JMN;);;K;OK& &' (+ L   L   J  (==P==P =$;

( J  ( (&NNL)))J))()K&OK&);&'!)'O )JN   O;OOX.]Z;

U%4&U"!D&'!&Ta&Q&b%UU%!:%+&K&' DM"#*

(+ L   L   J  ( (+ L+)!L;NOJ  ( (+)!L;NOJ  ((+ L   L   J  ( )JN ;);;K;!K& &' (+ L   L   J  (==P==P =$;

( J  ( (&';LO!+J  ()K&K&);&'))NN )J+N  O;OOX,!TO

U%4&U"!D&'!&Ta&Q&'"+).%& "a&+%'(!:):%+

(+ L   L   J  ( (+ L)& L+ONJ+ ( ()& L+ONJ+ ((+ L   L   J  ( )J+N&;;;K& K& &' (+ L   L   J  (==P==P =$;

( J  ( (;MOL   J  ()K;NK&);&'! NO )JMM  O;OOX.]^+

U%4&U"!D&'!&Ta&Q&T"!'."*&'"M:)".

(+ L   L   J  ( (+ L+!'L'O&J  ( (+!'L'O&J  ((+ L   L   J  ( )JMM&&;&K )K& &' (+ L   L   J  (==P==P =$;

( J  ( (;L;OOL&N;J'!()K; K&);&'++NM )J';  O;OOX.W0&

U%4&U"!D&'!&Ta&Q&D !$"#&+)"#.%*

(+ L   L   J  ( (+ L+ +L&N;J  ( (+ +L&N;J  ((+ L   L   J  ( )J';&+ ;K )K& &! (+ L   L   J  (==P==P =$;

( J  ( (;L ' LM&'JON(&K&&K&);&+N; M )J);+ O;O W '#O

U%4&XD&.#&Ta&T4&Q&DBPIC0&+56I?B=B5/&(+"&:;6

(+ L   L   J  ( (+ L);!L''MJ+ ( ();!L''MJ+ ((+ L   L   J  ( )J);'' ;K MK& &! (+ L   L   J  (7.==P =$;

( J  ( (;L !MLM)!J&&(&K&'K&);&+N)N! )J)N  O;OOX,)`!

U%4&U"!D&'!&Ta&Q&'"+).%& "a&+%'(!:):%+

(+ L   L   J  ( (+ L))+LO! J  ( ())+LO! J  ((+ L   L   J  ( )J)N;M ;K MK& &! (+ L   L   J  (==P==P =$;

( J  ( (;L NNL&! JMO()KMK&);&'+&&N )J+!+ O;O W GOO

U%4&XD&.#&Ta&T4&Q&T"!'."*&'"M:)".

(+ L   L   J  ( (+ L)N'LM;&J  ( ()N'LM;&J  ((+ L   L   J  ( )J+!!+ ;K MK& &! (+ L   L   J  (7.==P =$;

( J  ( (+))L 'NJ))()K+K&);&'+;M! )J+++ O;O W 6])

U%4&XD&.#&Ta&T4&Q&$!%")&M"':U:'&+%'(!:):%+

(+ L   L   J  ( (+ L)N;L;&+J+ ( ()N;L;&+J+ ((+ L   L   J  ( )J++!& ;K;;K& &! (+ L   L   J  (7.==P =$;

Page 23 of 61



 !"#$%"& &'( )*  *+ (,-./%(0$12*

3425* 678%9

 !"#$%"& &',5:%1(0$12* ,$92(N(8<(& 

 !"#$%"& &'
"/&01 23,456,7879

=4($1(>$12*

:;<5/=>5;=&:;<5;=0?@&AB=C&DE?F5=&GEHI5&J@&%;=B=@&K&:;/=?I>5;=&

?(-$5@21(A$B/24(C58A:>2>(DE(7851F25%(G5/41($%>(2HIB/>2($II5/2>(:%125241 !"!#$

'0IL0;
MI?6CE/5&

*B5HN

DE=I?B=@

&4E=5

+5==H5

4E=5 '(+:M
DE?F5=

GEHI5&O

(;?5EHBP5N&

$EB;QR.0//S

'ELB=EH&

"66?IEH
'ELB=EH

:;=5?5/=&

"66?IEH T00F&GEHI5

UE65&

GEHI5

://I5?&Q&T?0F5?

45EH&

#0V
UB=6CD00N@/+KM

(#:)%4&+)")%+&4 .."!

 ?E;W5&'0I;=@&)?5E/I?@&M00H

$ G%!#D%#)&"$%#'*

$ G)&"$%#'*,U:-,28Q2`8

(O'L+;+J ;( ()!+L+& JMO(;K&NK&);&++!!+ )J;&+ O;O =[,7 

U%4&XD&.#&Ta&T4&Q&'"+).%& "a&+%'(!:):%+

(&)LNM L&'+J ;( (&+L;' L'!OJ!+( (;M L) MJ!)((&+L   L   J  ( )J& !& ;K;+K& &! (&)LN)OL!+ J  (7.==P =$;

() LMN'JM;( (+O&L+MOJOO(;K&NK&);&++!!! )J;&+ O;O =[,7 

U%4&XD&.#&Ta&T4&Q&$!%")&M"':U:'&+%'(!:):%+

(&!LN!!LMN'JM;( (&ML;!NLN+)J' ( (& &L +!J!N((&ML   L   J  ( )J& !& ;K;+K& &! (&!LNO!L   J  (7.==P =$;

( J  ( (;L;& L+  J  ()K;!K&);&''!)! )JM'  O;OOX.WZ&

U%4&U"!D&'!&Ta&Q&T"#a& U&"D%!:'"

(+ L   L   J  ( (+ L')!L;M)J+ ( (')!L;M)J+ ((+ L   L   J  ( )JM'&M ;K;+K& &! (+ L   L   J  (==P==P =$;

( J  ( (;L NOL+  J  ()K;!K&);&''!)M )JM'  O;OOX.W3)

U%4&U"!D&'!&Ta&Q&bM&D !$"#&'X"+%&K&' 

(+ L   L   J  ( (+ L'+)LO& J+ ( ('+)LO& J+ ((+ L   L   J  ( )JM'&M ;K;NK& &! (+ L   L   J  (==P==P =$;

( J  ( (;L )'L+  J  ()K;;K&);&'+M O )JMO  O;OOX.WT)

U%4&U"!D&'!&Ta&Q&)4&+%'(!:):%+

(+ L   L   J  ( (+ L')NL+);J  ( (')NL+);J  ((+ L   L   J  ( )JMO&! ;K&+K& &! (+ L   L   J  (==P==P =$;

( J  ( (N)+L!!!J!M(&K&'K&);&+N)N' )J)M  O;OOX,)X&

U%4&U"!D&'!&Ta&Q&T#*&D5HH0;&'ELB=EH&DE?F5=

(+ L   L   J  ( (+ L)!OL!+!J+ ( ()!OL!+!J+ ((+ L   L   J  ( )J)M;; ;K&NK& &! (+ L   L   J  (==P==P =$;

( J  ( (N+'L&+ J  ()K; K&);&'++N )J+N  O;OOX.WX 

U%4&U"!D&'!&Ta&Q&(T+&U:#"#':".&+%!G:'%+

(+ L   L   J  ( (+ L+&NLO;+J+ ( (+&NLO;+J+ ((+ L   L   J  ( )J+N&O &K ;K& &! (+ L   L   J  (==P==P =$;

( J  ( (N+'L&+ J  ()K; K&);&'++N! )J+N  O;OOX.WX 

U%4&U"!D&'!&Ta&Q&(T+&U:#"#':".&+%!G:'%+

(+ L   L   J  ( (+ L+&NLO;+J+ ( (+&NLO;+J+ ((+ L   L   J  ( )J+N&O &K ;K& &! (+ L   L   J  (==P==P =$;

( J  ( (N ML)))J))(&K&'K&);&+N)NO )J)M  O;OOX,)]'

U%4&U"!D&'!&Ta&Q&U)#&U:#"#':".

(+ L   L   J  ( (+ L)!'L!!'J  ( ()!'L!!'J  ((+ L   L   J  ( )J)M N &K +K& &! (+ L   L   J  (==P==P =$;

( J  ( (N& L';;J;;()KMK&);&'+&&' )J+)  O;OOX.=-O

U%4&U"!D&'!&Ta&Q&)4&+%'(!:):%+

(+ L   L   J  ( (+ L+ ML+M&J+ ( (+ ML+M&J+ ((+ L   L   J  ( )J+)&& &K +K& &! (+ L   L   J  (==P==P =$;

( J  ( (N 'L&O'J;;()K; K&);&'++NN )J+N+ O;OOX.WS!

U%4&U"!D&'!&Ta&Q&'"+).%& "a&+%'(!:):%+

(+ L   L   J  ( (+ L+)OL++ J  ( (+)OL++ J  ((+ L   L   J  ( )J+N!& &K NK& &! (+ L   L   J  (==P==P =$;

( J  ( (MN&L & JMO()KMK&);&'+&&! )J+++ O;O W 6\ 

U%4&XD&.#&Ta&T4&Q&T#*&D5HH0;&'ELB=EH&DE?F5=

(+ L   L   J  ( (+ L+&'L+;'J+ ( (+&'L+;'J+ ((+ L   L   J  ( )J++!; &K; K& &! (+ L   L   J  (7.==P =$;

( J  ( (M!;L;;;J;;(&K&'K&);&+N)N) )J)M  O;OOX,)0)

U%4&U"!D&'!&Ta&Q&4":Y"&'"M:)".&D"!a%)+

(+ L   L   J  ( (+ L)N;L');J+ ( ()N;L');J+ ((+ L   L   J  ( )J)M ! &K;;K& &! (+ L   L   J  (==P==P =$;

( J  ( (M!;L;;;J;;(&K&'K&);&+N)N+ )J)M  O;OOX,)0)

U%4&U"!D&'!&Ta&Q&4":Y"&'"M:)".&D"!a%)+

(+ L   L   J  ( (+ L)N;L');J+ ( ()N;L');J+ ((+ L   L   J  ( )J)M ! &K;;K& &! (+ L   L   J  (==P==P =$;

( J  ( (M!NLO'MJ '()KMK&);&'+&&M )J+++ O;O W 6Z&

U%4&XD&.#&Ta&T4&Q&T#*&D5HH0;&'ELB=EH&DE?F5=

(+ L   L   J  ( (+ L+&NLO;'J+ ( (+&NLO;'J+ ((+ L   L   J  ( )J++!; &K;&K& &! (+ L   L   J  (7.==P =$;

( J  ( (M'ML;&+J  ()KNK&);&'+) ' )J'O  O;OOX.=ZO

U%4&U"!D&'!&Ta&Q&4":Y"&'"M:)".&D"!a%)+

(+ L   L   J  ( (+ L+!&LM;)J+ ( (+!&LM;)J+ ((+ L   L   J  ( )J'O&; &K;'K& &! (+ L   L   J  (==P==P =$;

U%4&U"!D&'!&Ta&Q&4":Y"&'"M:)".&D"!a%)+

Page 24 of 61



 !"#$%"& &'( )*  *+ (,-./%(0$12*

3425* 678%9

 !"#$%"& &',5:%1(0$12* ,$92(; (8<(& 

 !"#$%"& &'
"/&01 23,456,7879

=4($1(>$12*

:;<5/=>5;=&:;<5;=0?@&AB=C&DE?F5=&GEHI5&J@&%;=B=@&K&:;/=?I>5;=&

?(-$5@21(A$B/24(C58A:>2>(DE(7851F25%(G5/41($%>(2HIB/>2($II5/2>(:%125241 !"!#$

'0IL0;
MI?6CE/5&

*B5HN

DE=I?B=@

&4E=5

+5==H5

4E=5 '(+:M
DE?F5=

GEHI5&O

(;?5EHBP5N&

$EB;QR.0//S

'ELB=EH&

"66?IEH
'ELB=EH

:;=5?5/=&

"66?IEH T00F&GEHI5

UE65&

GEHI5

://I5?&Q&T?0F5?

45EH&

#0V
UB=6CD00N@/+KM

(#:)%4&+)")%+&4 .."!

 ?E;W5&'0I;=@&)?5E/I?@&M00H

$ G%!#D%#)&"$%#'*

$ G)&"$%#'*,U:-,28Q2`8

( J  ( (M&NL+);J'!()KNK&);&'+) ! )J'O  O;OOX.=\; (+ L   L   J  ( (+ L+M!L&M)J+ ( (+M!L&M)J+ ((+ L   L   J  ( )J'O;N &K&&K& &! (+ L   L   J  (==P==P =$;

( J  ( (!M'L)+MJOO()KMK&);&'+&&+ )J+O  O;OOX.=T+

U%4&U"!D&'!&Ta&Q&4%()+'X%

(+ L   L   J  ( (+ L+O&L;)&J  ( (+O&L;)&J  ((+ L   L   J  ( )J+O;! &K&'K& &! (+ L   L   J  (==P==P =$;

( J  ( (!'OL+MOJOO()KNK&);&'+);; )J'&  O;OOX.=.&

U%4&U"!D&'!&Ta&Q&':):$! (M&$. T".&D"!a%)+

(+ L   L   J  ( (+ L' MLO)NJ  ( (' MLO)NJ  ((+ L   L   J  ( )J'&;' OK &K& &! (+ L   L   J  (==P==P =$;

( J  ( (!&ML&&&J&&()K&K&);&')+N+ )J+&  O;O W VNO

U%4&XD&.#&Ta&T4&Q&T#*&D5HH0;&'ELB=EH&DE?F5=

(+ L   L   J  ( (+ L+'OL!! J  ( (+'OL!! J  ((+ L   L   J  ( )J+&;& OK +K& &! (+ L   L   J  (7.==P =$;

( J  ( (!&ML&&&J&&()K&K&);&')+N' )J+&  O;O W VNO

U%4&XD&.#&Ta&T4&Q&T#*&D5HH0;&'ELB=EH&DE?F5=

(+ L   L   J  ( (+ L+'OL!! J  ( (+'OL!! J  ((+ L   L   J  ( )J+&;& OK +K& &! (+ L   L   J  (7.==P =$;

( J  ( (!&+L MOJOO()KNK&);&'+); )J'&  O;OOX.=6 

U%4&U"!D&'!&Ta&Q&':):$! (M&$. T".&D"!a%)+

(+ L   L   J  ( (+ L';'L+M!J+ ( (';'L+M!J+ ((+ L   L   J  ( )J'&;) OK MK& &! (+ L   L   J  (==P==P =$;

( J  ( ('NNLN;'J'!()KOK&);&')M; )J+)  O;OOX.==N

U%4&U"!D&'!&Ta&Q&DBPIC0&+56I?B=B5/&(+"&:;6

(+ L   L   J  ( (+ L+''L++ J  ( (+''L++ J  ((+ L   L   J  ( )J+);  OK; K& &! (+ L   L   J  (==P==P =$;

( J  ( ('NNLN;'J'!()KOK&);&')M;; )J+)  O;OOX.==N

U%4&U"!D&'!&Ta&Q&DBPIC0&+56I?B=B5/&(+"&:;6

(+ L   L   J  ( (+ L+''L++ J  ( (+''L++ J  ((+ L   L   J  ( )J+);  OK; K& &! (+ L   L   J  (==P==P =$;

( J  ( ('M)L&!!J!M()K&K&);&')+N) )J+&  O;O W V&M

U%4&XD&.#&Ta&T4&Q&U)#&U:#"#':".

(+ L   L   J  ( (+ L+' L'&!J  ( (+' L'&!J  ((+ L   L   J  ( )J+& N OK;&K& &! (+ L   L   J  (7.==P =$;

( J  ( (''+L)))J))()K+K&);&'+;M+ )J+&  O;O W 6N;

U%4&XD&.#&Ta&T4&Q&b%UU%!:%+&K&' DM"#*

(+ L   L   J  ( (+ L+')L!')J  ( (+')L!')J  ((+ L   L   J  ( )J+& N OK;+K& &! (+ L   L   J  (7.==P =$;

( J  ( ('!ML'N)J))()KNK&);&'+) N )J';  O;OOX.=GM

U%4&U"!D&'!&Ta&Q&!T'

(+ L   L   J  ( (+ L';)L) ;J+ ( (';)L) ;J+ ((+ L   L   J  ( )J';;; OK;+K& &! (+ L   L   J  (==P==P =$;

( J  ( ('OOLM!+J  ()KNK&);&'+) M )J';  O;OOX.=3+

U%4&U"!D&'!&Ta&Q&!T'

(+ L   L   J  ( (+ L');L&O;J  ( (');L&O;J  ((+ L   L   J  ( )J'; M OK&&K& &! (+ L   L   J  (==P==P =$;

( J  ( ('  L'''J'!()K+K&);&'+;M) )J+ + O;O W 6MO

U%4&XD&.#&Ta&T4&Q&4%()+'X%

(+ L   L   J  ( (+ L+'NL+NOJ  ( (+'NL+NOJ  ((+ L   L   J  ( )J+ ++ OK&+K& &! (+ L   L   J  (7.==P =$;

( J  ( (+! L')+JMO()K+K&);&'+;M' )J+;+ O;O W 6W'

U%4&XD&.#&Ta&T4&Q&b%UU%!:%+&K&' DM"#*

(+ L   L   J  ( (+ L+M&L)'NJ  ( (+M&L)'NJ  ((+ L   L   J  ( )J+;+& OKO K& &! (+ L   L   J  (7.==P =$;

( J  ( (+'OL+  J  ()K;!K&);&''!)) )JMO  O;OOX.W_O

U%4&U"!D&'!&Ta&Q&U)#&U:#"#':".

(+ L   L   J  ( (+ L!N+LM)MJ  ( (!N+LM)MJ  ((+ L   L   J  ( )JMO + )K !K& &! (+ L   L   J  (==P==P =$;

( J  ( (+'&LOOOJOO()K;!K&);&''!)' )JM&  O;OOX.WG!

U%4&U"!D&'!&Ta&Q&U)#&U:#"#':".

(+ L   L   J  ( (+ L!MNL!&)J  ( (!MNL!&)J  ((+ L   L   J  ( )JM& + )K !K& &! (+ L   L   J  (==P==P =$;

( J  ( (++ L MOJOO()K;!K&);&''!)+ )JMO  O;OOX.]=!

U%4&U"!D&'!&Ta&Q&T"#a& U&"D%!:'"

(+ L   L   J  ( (+ L!NNL& ;J  ( (!NNL& ;J  ((+ L   L   J  ( )JMO ) )K NK& &! (+ L   L   J  (==P==P =$;

Page 25 of 61



 !"#$%"& &'( )*  *+ (,-./%(0$12*

3425* 678%9

 !"#$%"& &',5:%1(0$12* ,$92(;;(8<(& 

 !"#$%"& &'
"/&01 23,456,7879

=4($1(>$12*

:;<5/=>5;=&:;<5;=0?@&AB=C&DE?F5=&GEHI5&J@&%;=B=@&K&:;/=?I>5;=&

?(-$5@21(A$B/24(C58A:>2>(DE(7851F25%(G5/41($%>(2HIB/>2($II5/2>(:%125241 !"!#$

'0IL0;
MI?6CE/5&

*B5HN

DE=I?B=@

&4E=5

+5==H5

4E=5 '(+:M
DE?F5=

GEHI5&O

(;?5EHBP5N&

$EB;QR.0//S

'ELB=EH&

"66?IEH
'ELB=EH

:;=5?5/=&

"66?IEH T00F&GEHI5

UE65&

GEHI5

://I5?&Q&T?0F5?

45EH&

#0V
UB=6CD00N@/+KM

(#:)%4&+)")%+&4 .."!

 ?E;W5&'0I;=@&)?5E/I?@&M00H

$ G%!#D%#)&"$%#'*

$ G)&"$%#'*,U:-,28Q2`8

( J  ( (+ NLMOOJOO()K;NK&);&'! N+ )JMO  O;OOX.]TO

U%4&U"!D&'!&Ta&Q&bM&D !$"#&'X"+%&K&' 

(+ L   L   J  ( (+ LM NL&'+J+ ( (M NL&'+J+ ((+ L   L   J  ( )JMO & )K;+K& &! (+ L   L   J  (==P==P =$;

&2^7\2^888^888V88& &2^283^83`^]2]V89&&\c^]]9Vc7& &_\^`87^2]3V`3& &2^7\7^]9\^]c9Vc7& &7c^89c^]92V72&_V9_`3 _V9_`\+IJ=0=EH&10?&$ G)&"$%#'*,U:-,28Q2`8[&&&&&&& &2^7\7^c\c^]]8V88&

$ Gd)&"$*&,&'".."T.%

(;)L!OOJ) ( ('!ML;&+J  (MK&+K&+;OOONM) OJM!+ O;O'`=V0)

U"##:%&D"%&Q&$!%")&M"':U:'&+%'(!:):%+

()NLMMNL!OOJ) ( (+ L N)L+ &J+ ( (& )L!'NJ; ((+ L   L   J  ( OJN'++ MK;)K& &M ()NLM!+L   J  (==P==P =$;

(;)L!OOJ) ( ('!ML;&+J  (MK&+K&+;OOONM+ OJM!+ O;O'`=V0)

U"##:%&D"%&Q&$!%")&M"':U:'&+%'(!:):%+

()NLMMNL!OOJ) ( (+ L N)L+ &J+ ( (& )L!'NJ; ((+ L   L   J  ( OJN'++ MK;)K& &M ()NLM!+L   J  (==P==P =$;

(O'L ''J)M( ('O)LO!+J  (MK&+K&+;OOON!M OJ'&+ O;O'`=V+;

U"##:%&D"%&Q&'"+).%& "a&+%'(!:):%+

()NL!&'L ''J)M( (+ L;ONL+O;J+ ( ();OL)'+J &((+ L   L   J  ( OJM)+; MK&MK& &M ()NL'N L   J  (==P==P =$;

(O'L ''J)M( ('O)LO!+J  (MK&+K&+;OOON!N OJ'&+ O;O'`=V+;

U"##:%&D"%&Q&'"+).%& "a&+%'(!:):%+

()NL!&'L ''J)M( (+ L;ONL+O;J+ ( ();OL)'+J &((+ L   L   J  ( OJM)+; MK&MK& &M ()NL'N L   J  (==P==P =$;

(OL'NNJ!O( (&MOL) &J!M(NK&NK&+;OOM! N OJM+  O;O)YWG!'

U!%44:%&D"'&Q&$!%")&M"':U:'&+%'(!:):%+

()NLN+ML'NNJ!O( (+ L )+L& )J  ( (M'L+ )J&!((+ L   L   J  ( OJMM&;;;K MK& &M ()NLN++L   J  (==P==P =$;

(OL'NNJ!O( (&MOL) &J!M(NK&NK&+;OOM!;& OJM+  O;O)YWG!'

U!%44:%&D"'&Q&$!%")&M"':U:'&+%'(!:):%+

()NLN+ML'NNJ!O( (+ L )+L& )J  ( (M'L+ )J&!((+ L   L   J  ( OJMM&;;;K MK& &M ()NLN++L   J  (==P==P =$;

(OL'NNJ!O( (&MOL) &J!M(NK&NK&+;OOM!;O OJM+  O;O)YWG!'

U!%44:%&D"'&Q&$!%")&M"':U:'&+%'(!:):%+

()NLN+ML'NNJ!O( (+ L )+L& )J  ( (M'L+ )J&!((+ L   L   J  ( OJMM&;;;K MK& &M ()NLN++L   J  (==P==P =$;

()L)M!JM+( (&M'L)+MJOO(;;K'K&+;O)) ' OJ!+  O;O'`])= 

U"##:%&D"%&Q&$!%")&M"':U:'&+%'(!:):%+

()NLMM'LNM!JM+( ()NL!''LM!)J  ( Q;& L;;OJM+R(+ L   L   J  ( OJM;ON;;K 'K& &N ()NLMM&L+  J  (==P==P =$;

()L)M!JM+( (&M'L)+MJOO(;;K'K&+;O)) '; OJ!+  O;O'`])= 

U"##:%&D"%&Q&$!%")&M"':U:'&+%'(!:):%+

()NLMM'LNM!JM+( ()NL!''LM!)J  ( Q;& L;;OJM+R(+ L   L   J  ( OJM;ON;;K 'K& &N ()NLMM&L+  J  (==P==P =$;

()L)M!JM+( (&M'L)+MJOO(;;K'K&+;O)) '& OJ!+  O;O'`])= 

U"##:%&D"%&Q&$!%")&M"':U:'&+%'(!:):%+

()NLMM'LNM!JM+( ()NL!''LM!)J  ( Q;& L;;OJM+R(+ L   L   J  ( OJM;ON;;K 'K& &N ()NLMM&L+  J  (==P==P =$;

()L)M!JM+( (&M'L)+MJOO(;;K'K&+;O)) 'O OJ!+  O;O'`])= 

U"##:%&D"%&Q&$!%")&M"':U:'&+%'(!:):%+

()NLMM'LNM!JM+( ()NL!''LM!)J  ( Q;& L;;OJM+R(+ L   L   J  ( OJM;ON;;K 'K& &N ()NLMM&L+  J  (==P==P =$;

(OLM)OJ!+( (&;OL+);J'!(;;K& K&+;O)+M&) OJ!+  O;O)Y]W#!

U!%44:%&D"'&Q&$!%")&M"':U:'&+%'(!:):%+

()NLM'MLM)OJ!+( ()NLNM;L))&J+ ( (;;&L+NMJ!+((+ L   L   J  ( OJM&O);;K& K& &N ()NLM'+L   J  (==P==P =$;

(OLM)OJ!+( (&;OL+);J'!(;;K& K&+;O)+M&+ OJ!+  O;O)Y]W#!

U!%44:%&D"'&Q&$!%")&M"':U:'&+%'(!:):%+

()NLM'MLM)OJ!+( ()NLNM;L))&J+ ( (;;&L+NMJ!+((+ L   L   J  ( OJM&O);;K& K& &N ()NLM'+L   J  (==P==P =$;

(OLM)OJ!+( (&;OL+);J'!(;;K& K&+;O)+M&' OJ!+  O;O)Y]W#!

U!%44:%&D"'&Q&$!%")&M"':U:'&+%'(!:):%+

()NLM'MLM)OJ!+( ()NLNM;L))&J+ ( (;;&L+NMJ!+((+ L   L   J  ( OJM&O);;K& K& &N ()NLM'+L   J  (==P==P =$;

U!%44:%&D"'&Q&$!%")&M"':U:'&+%'(!:):%+

Page 26 of 61



 !"#$%"& &'( )*  *+ (,-./%(0$12*

3425* 678%9

 !"#$%"& &',5:%1(0$12* ,$92(;&(8<(& 

 !"#$%"& &'
"/&01 23,456,7879

=4($1(>$12*

:;<5/=>5;=&:;<5;=0?@&AB=C&DE?F5=&GEHI5&J@&%;=B=@&K&:;/=?I>5;=&

?(-$5@21(A$B/24(C58A:>2>(DE(7851F25%(G5/41($%>(2HIB/>2($II5/2>(:%125241 !"!#$

'0IL0;
MI?6CE/5&

*B5HN

DE=I?B=@

&4E=5

+5==H5

4E=5 '(+:M
DE?F5=

GEHI5&O

(;?5EHBP5N&

$EB;QR.0//S

'ELB=EH&

"66?IEH
'ELB=EH

:;=5?5/=&

"66?IEH T00F&GEHI5

UE65&

GEHI5

://I5?&Q&T?0F5?

45EH&

#0V
UB=6CD00N@/+KM

(#:)%4&+)")%+&4 .."!

 ?E;W5&'0I;=@&)?5E/I?@&M00H

$ G%!#D%#)&"$%#'*

$ Gd)&"$*&,&'".."T.%

(OLM)OJ!+( (&;OL+);J'!(;;K& K&+;O)+M&! OJ!+  O;O)Y]W#! ()NLM'MLM)OJ!+( ()NLNM;L))&J+ ( (;;&L+NMJ!+((+ L   L   J  ( OJM&O);;K& K& &N ()NLM'+L   J  (==P==P =$;

()L;&MJ)!( (&;OL+);J'!(;;K& K&+;O)+MO! OJ!+  O;O)Y]W,O

U!%44:%&D"'&Q&!T'

()NLM+NL;&MJ)!( ()NLNM;L))&J+ ( (;&&LO;)J O((+ L   L   J  ( OJM&MN;;K& K& &N ()NLM++L   J  (==P==P =$;

()L;&MJ)!( (&;OL+);J'!(;;K& K&+;O)+MOM OJ!+  O;O)Y]W,O

U!%44:%&D"'&Q&!T'

()NLM+NL;&MJ)!( ()NLNM;L))&J+ ( (;&&LO;)J O((+ L   L   J  ( OJM&MN;;K& K& &N ()NLM++L   J  (==P==P =$;

()L;&MJ)!( (&;OL+);J'!(;;K& K&+;O)+MON OJ!+  O;O)Y]W,O

U!%44:%&D"'&Q&!T'

()NLM+NL;&MJ)!( ()NLNM;L))&J+ ( (;&&LO;)J O((+ L   L   J  ( OJM&MN;;K& K& &N ()NLM++L   J  (==P==P =$;

()L;&MJ)!( (&;OL+);J'!(;;K& K&+;O)+M) OJ!+  O;O)Y]W,O

U!%44:%&D"'&Q&!T'

()NLM+NL;&MJ)!( ()NLNM;L))&J+ ( (;&&LO;)J O((+ L   L   J  ( OJM&MN;;K& K& &N ()NLM++L   J  (==P==P =$;

(OLO&&JN&( (;'!L&N;J'!(;;K&MK&+;O)'M ' OJ'+  O;O)Y]]V 

U!%44:%&D"'&Q&4":Y"&'"M:)".&D"!a%)+

()NLM+MLO&&JN&( ()NL!!MLO!'J+ ( Q!NLN)'J)&R(+ L   L   J  ( OJ!&M!;;K&MK& &N ()NLM++L   J  (==P==P =$;

(OLO&&JN&( (;'!L&N;J'!(;;K&MK&+;O)'M ! OJ'+  O;O)Y]]V 

U!%44:%&D"'&Q&4":Y"&'"M:)".&D"!a%)+

()NLM+MLO&&JN&( ()NL!!MLO!'J+ ( Q!NLN)'J)&R(+ L   L   J  ( OJ!&M!;;K&MK& &N ()NLM++L   J  (==P==P =$;

(OLO&&JN&( (;'!L&N;J'!(;;K&MK&+;O)'M M OJ'+  O;O)Y]]V 

U!%44:%&D"'&Q&4":Y"&'"M:)".&D"!a%)+

()NLM+MLO&&JN&( ()NL!!MLO!'J+ ( Q!NLN)'J)&R(+ L   L   J  ( OJ!&M!;;K&MK& &N ()NLM++L   J  (==P==P =$;

(OLO&&JN&( (;'!L&N;J'!(;;K&MK&+;O)'M N OJ'+  O;O)Y]]V 

U!%44:%&D"'&Q&4":Y"&'"M:)".&D"!a%)+

()NLM+MLO&&JN&( ()NL!!MLO!'J+ ( Q!NLN)'J)&R(+ L   L   J  ( OJ!&M!;;K&MK& &N ()NLM++L   J  (==P==P =$;

(OLO&&JN&( (;'!L&N;J'!(;;K&MK&+;O)'M; OJ'+  O;O)Y]],&

U!%44:%&D"'&Q&$!%")&M"':U:'&+%'(!:):%+

()NLM+MLO&&JN&( ()NL'&+L)+'J  ( Q&O&LM''JN&R(+ L   L   J  ( OJ!&M!;;K&MK& &N ()NLM++L   J  (==P==P =$;

(OLO&&JN&( (;'!L&N;J'!(;;K&MK&+;O)'M;; OJ'+  O;O)Y]],&

U!%44:%&D"'&Q&$!%")&M"':U:'&+%'(!:):%+

()NLM+MLO&&JN&( ()NL'&+L)+'J  ( Q&O&LM''JN&R(+ L   L   J  ( OJ!&M!;;K&MK& &N ()NLM++L   J  (==P==P =$;

(OLO&&JN&( (;'!L&N;J'!(;;K&MK&+;O)'M;& OJ'+  O;O)Y]],&

U!%44:%&D"'&Q&$!%")&M"':U:'&+%'(!:):%+

()NLM+MLO&&JN&( ()NL'&+L)+'J  ( Q&O&LM''JN&R(+ L   L   J  ( OJ!&M!;;K&MK& &N ()NLM++L   J  (==P==P =$;

(OLO&&JN&( (;'!L&N;J'!(;;K&MK&+;O)'M;O OJ'+  O;O)Y]],&

U!%44:%&D"'&Q&$!%")&M"':U:'&+%'(!:):%+

()NLM+MLO&&JN&( ()NL'&+L)+'J  ( Q&O&LM''JN&R(+ L   L   J  ( OJ!&M!;;K&MK& &N ()NLM++L   J  (==P==P =$;

(&LN;MJ;;( (;)NL &!J!M(;&K&K&+;O)!&+N OJ!   O;O)Y]]_ 

U!%44:%&D"'&Q&!T'

()NLM+!LN;MJ;;( ()NLM'OL;! J  ( (+L&+;JMN((+ L   L   J  ( OJ!!M!;&K OK& &N ()NLM++L   J  (==P==P =$;

(&LN;MJ;;( (;)NL &!J!M(;&K&K&+;O)!&' OJ!   O;O)Y]]_ 

U!%44:%&D"'&Q&!T'

()NLM+!LN;MJ;;( ()NLM'OL;! J  ( (+L&+;JMN((+ L   L   J  ( OJ!!M!;&K OK& &N ()NLM++L   J  (==P==P =$;

(&LN;MJ;;( (;)NL &!J!M(;&K&K&+;O)!&'; OJ!   O;O)Y]]_ 

U!%44:%&D"'&Q&!T'

()NLM+!LN;MJ;;( ()NLM'OL;! J  ( (+L&+;JMN((+ L   L   J  ( OJ!!M!;&K OK& &N ()NLM++L   J  (==P==P =$;

(&LN;MJ;;( (;)NL &!J!M(;&K&K&+;O)!&'& OJ!   O;O)Y]]_ 

U!%44:%&D"'&Q&!T'

()NLM+!LN;MJ;;( ()NLM'OL;! J  ( (+L&+;JMN((+ L   L   J  ( OJ!!M!;&K OK& &N ()NLM++L   J  (==P==P =$;

Page 27 of 61



 !"#$%"& &'( )*  *+ (,-./%(0$12*

3425* 678%9

 !"#$%"& &',5:%1(0$12* ,$92(;O(8<(& 

 !"#$%"& &'
"/&01 23,456,7879

=4($1(>$12*

:;<5/=>5;=&:;<5;=0?@&AB=C&DE?F5=&GEHI5&J@&%;=B=@&K&:;/=?I>5;=&

?(-$5@21(A$B/24(C58A:>2>(DE(7851F25%(G5/41($%>(2HIB/>2($II5/2>(:%125241 !"!#$

'0IL0;
MI?6CE/5&

*B5HN

DE=I?B=@

&4E=5

+5==H5

4E=5 '(+:M
DE?F5=

GEHI5&O

(;?5EHBP5N&

$EB;QR.0//S

'ELB=EH&

"66?IEH
'ELB=EH

:;=5?5/=&

"66?IEH T00F&GEHI5

UE65&

GEHI5

://I5?&Q&T?0F5?

45EH&

#0V
UB=6CD00N@/+KM

(#:)%4&+)")%+&4 .."!

 ?E;W5&'0I;=@&)?5E/I?@&M00H

$ G%!#D%#)&"$%#'*

$ Gd)&"$*&,&'".."T.%

(OLN&;J O( (NMLN+MJOO(;;K;OK&+;O))MOM OJ!+  O;O)YW+3;

U!%44:%&D"'&Q&$!%")&M"':U:'&+%'(!:):%+

()NLMMOLN&;J O( ()NLNOML;;)J+ ( (+)L;NOJ)!((+ L   L   J  ( OJM;)!;&K;&K& &N ()NLMM L   J  (==P==P =$;

(OLN&;J O( (NMLN+MJOO(;;K;OK&+;O))MON OJ!+  O;O)YW+3;

U!%44:%&D"'&Q&$!%")&M"':U:'&+%'(!:):%+

()NLMMOLN&;J O( ()NLNOML;;)J+ ( (+)L;NOJ)!((+ L   L   J  ( OJM;)!;&K;&K& &N ()NLMM L   J  (==P==P =$;

(OLN&;J O( (NMLN+MJOO(;;K;OK&+;O))M) OJ!+  O;O)YW+3;

U!%44:%&D"'&Q&$!%")&M"':U:'&+%'(!:):%+

()NLMMOLN&;J O( ()NLNOML;;)J+ ( (+)L;NOJ)!((+ L   L   J  ( OJM;)!;&K;&K& &N ()NLMM L   J  (==P==P =$;

(OLN&;J O( (NMLN+MJOO(;;K;OK&+;O))M)O OJ!+  O;O)YW+3;

U!%44:%&D"'&Q&$!%")&M"':U:'&+%'(!:):%+

()NLMMOLN&;J O( ()NLNOML;;)J+ ( (+)L;NOJ)!((+ L   L   J  ( OJM;)!;&K;&K& &N ()NLMM L   J  (==P==P =$;

(&L+MNJ) ( (;)+LMOOJOO(;&KOK&+;O)!)' OJ!+  O;O)Y]00M

U!%44:%&D"'&Q&(T+&U:#"#':".&+%!G:'%+

()NLM+&L+MNJ) ( ()NLM; LO&+J  ( Q)&L&')J) R(+ L   L   J  ( OJM&O; 'K +K& O ()NLM+ L   J  (==P==P =$;

(&L+MNJ) ( (;)+LMOOJOO(;&KOK&+;O)!)'; OJ!+  O;O)Y]00M

U!%44:%&D"'&Q&(T+&U:#"#':".&+%!G:'%+

()NLM+&L+MNJ) ( ()NLM; LO&+J  ( Q)&L&')J) R(+ L   L   J  ( OJM&O; 'K +K& O ()NLM+ L   J  (==P==P =$;

(&L+MNJ) ( (;)+LMOOJOO(;&KOK&+;O)!)'& OJ!+  O;O)Y]00M

U!%44:%&D"'&Q&(T+&U:#"#':".&+%!G:'%+

()NLM+&L+MNJ) ( ()NLM; LO&+J  ( Q)&L&')J) R(+ L   L   J  ( OJM&O; 'K +K& O ()NLM+ L   J  (==P==P =$;

(&L+MNJ) ( (;)+LMOOJOO(;&KOK&+;O)!)'O OJ!+  O;O)Y]00M

U!%44:%&D"'&Q&(T+&U:#"#':".&+%!G:'%+

()NLM+&L+MNJ) ( ()NLM; LO&+J  ( Q)&L&')J) R(+ L   L   J  ( OJM&O; 'K +K& O ()NLM+ L   J  (==P==P =$;

(&LO&!J;'( (;O+L);'J'!(;&K+K&+;O)!M + OJ!+  O;O)Y]03 

U!%44:%&D"'&Q&U)#&U:#"#':".

()NLM+!LO&!J;'( ()NLM NL;O'J+ ( Q)ML;N J''R(+ L   L   J  ( OJM& M 'K +K& O ()NLM++L   J  (==P==P =$;

(&LO&!J;'( (;O+L);'J'!(;&K+K&+;O)!M ' OJ!+  O;O)Y]03 

U!%44:%&D"'&Q&U)#&U:#"#':".

()NLM+!LO&!J;'( ()NLM NL;O'J+ ( Q)ML;N J''R(+ L   L   J  ( OJM& M 'K +K& O ()NLM++L   J  (==P==P =$;

(&LO&!J;'( (;O+L);'J'!(;&K+K&+;O)!M ! OJ!+  O;O)Y]03 

U!%44:%&D"'&Q&U)#&U:#"#':".

()NLM+!LO&!J;'( ()NLM NL;O'J+ ( Q)ML;N J''R(+ L   L   J  ( OJM& M 'K +K& O ()NLM++L   J  (==P==P =$;

(&LO&!J;'( (;O+L);'J'!(;&K+K&+;O)!M M OJ!+  O;O)Y]03 

U!%44:%&D"'&Q&U)#&U:#"#':".

()NLM+!LO&!J;'( ()NLM NL;O'J+ ( Q)ML;N J''R(+ L   L   J  ( OJM& M 'K +K& O ()NLM++L   J  (==P==P =$;

(;L)+!JN+( (;&;LOMMJMN(;&KMK&+;O)M '; OJM   O;O)Y]SW 

U!%44:%&D"'&Q&(T+&U:#"#':".&+%!G:'%+

()NLMNMLN+!JN+( ()NLN)OL'M'J+ ( ())L!&MJ++((+ L   L   J  ( OJM+ & 'K +K& O ()NLMN!L+  J  (==P==P =$;

(;L)+!JN+( (;&;LOMMJMN(;&KMK&+;O)M '& OJM   O;O)Y]SW 

U!%44:%&D"'&Q&(T+&U:#"#':".&+%!G:'%+

()NLMNMLN+!JN+( ()NLN)OL'M'J+ ( ())L!&MJ++((+ L   L   J  ( OJM+ & 'K +K& O ()NLMN!L+  J  (==P==P =$;

(;L)+!JN+( (;&;LOMMJMN(;&KMK&+;O)M 'O OJM   O;O)Y]SW 

U!%44:%&D"'&Q&(T+&U:#"#':".&+%!G:'%+

()NLMNMLN+!JN+( ()NLN)OL'M'J+ ( ())L!&MJ++((+ L   L   J  ( OJM+ & 'K +K& O ()NLMN!L+  J  (==P==P =$;

(;L)+!JN+( (;&;LOMMJMN(;&KMK&+;O)M ') OJM   O;O)Y]SW 

U!%44:%&D"'&Q&(T+&U:#"#':".&+%!G:'%+

()NLMNMLN+!JN+( ()NLN)OL'M'J+ ( ())L!&MJ++((+ L   L   J  ( OJM+ & 'K +K& O ()NLMN!L+  J  (==P==P =$;

U!%44:%&D"'&Q&U)#&U:#"#':".

Page 28 of 61



 !"#$%"& &'( )*  *+ (,-./%(0$12*

3425* 678%9

 !"#$%"& &',5:%1(0$12* ,$92(;)(8<(& 

 !"#$%"& &'
"/&01 23,456,7879

=4($1(>$12*

:;<5/=>5;=&:;<5;=0?@&AB=C&DE?F5=&GEHI5&J@&%;=B=@&K&:;/=?I>5;=&

?(-$5@21(A$B/24(C58A:>2>(DE(7851F25%(G5/41($%>(2HIB/>2($II5/2>(:%125241 !"!#$

'0IL0;
MI?6CE/5&

*B5HN

DE=I?B=@

&4E=5

+5==H5

4E=5 '(+:M
DE?F5=

GEHI5&O

(;?5EHBP5N&

$EB;QR.0//S

'ELB=EH&

"66?IEH
'ELB=EH

:;=5?5/=&

"66?IEH T00F&GEHI5

UE65&

GEHI5

://I5?&Q&T?0F5?

45EH&

#0V
UB=6CD00N@/+KM

(#:)%4&+)")%+&4 .."!

 ?E;W5&'0I;=@&)?5E/I?@&M00H

$ G%!#D%#)&"$%#'*

$ Gd)&"$*&,&'".."T.%

(;L)+!J +( (;&;LOMMJMN(;&KMK&+;O)M +! OJM   O;O)Y]S=& ()NLMNMLN+!J +( ()NLN+ LM))J+ ( (+;LMM!J)+((+ L   L   J  ( OJM+ & 'K 'K& O ()NLMN!L+  J  (==P==P =$;

(;L)+!J +( (;&;LOMMJMN(;&KMK&+;O)M +M OJM   O;O)Y]S=&

U!%44:%&D"'&Q&U)#&U:#"#':".

()NLMNMLN+!J +( ()NLN+ LM))J+ ( (+;LMM!J)+((+ L   L   J  ( OJM+ & 'K 'K& O ()NLMN!L+  J  (==P==P =$;

(;L)+!J +( (;&;LOMMJMN(;&KMK&+;O)M +N OJM   O;O)Y]S=&

U!%44:%&D"'&Q&U)#&U:#"#':".

()NLMNMLN+!J +( ()NLN+ LM))J+ ( (+;LMM!J)+((+ L   L   J  ( OJM+ & 'K 'K& O ()NLMN!L+  J  (==P==P =$;

(;L)+!J +( (;&;LOMMJMN(;&KMK&+;O)M ' OJM   O;O)Y]S=&

U!%44:%&D"'&Q&U)#&U:#"#':".

()NLMNMLN+!J +( ()NLN+ LM))J+ ( (+;LMM!J)+((+ L   L   J  ( OJM+ & 'K 'K& O ()NLMN!L+  J  (==P==P =$;

(&L);OJ!N( (;)+LMOOJOO(;&KOK&+;O)!)+' OJ!+  O;O)Y]0`;

U!%44:%&D"'&Q&$!%")&M"':U:'&+%'(!:):%+

()NLM'&L);OJ!N( ()NLM;!L+!'J+ ( Q))LMO!J&NR(+ L   L   J  ( OJM;M; 'K !K& O ()NLM' L   J  (==P==P =$;

(&L);OJ!N( (;)+LMOOJOO(;&KOK&+;O)!)+! OJ!+  O;O)Y]0`;

U!%44:%&D"'&Q&$!%")&M"':U:'&+%'(!:):%+

()NLM'&L);OJ!N( ()NLM;!L+!'J+ ( Q))LMO!J&NR(+ L   L   J  ( OJM;M; 'K !K& O ()NLM' L   J  (==P==P =$;

(&L);OJ!N( (;)+LMOOJOO(;&KOK&+;O)!)+M OJ!+  O;O)Y]0`;

U!%44:%&D"'&Q&$!%")&M"':U:'&+%'(!:):%+

()NLM'&L);OJ!N( ()NLM;!L+!'J+ ( Q))LMO!J&NR(+ L   L   J  ( OJM;M; 'K !K& O ()NLM' L   J  (==P==P =$;

(&L);OJ!N( (;)+LMOOJOO(;&KOK&+;O)!)+N OJ!+  O;O)Y]0`;

U!%44:%&D"'&Q&$!%")&M"':U:'&+%'(!:):%+

()NLM'&L);OJ!N( ()NLM;!L+!'J+ ( Q))LMO!J&NR(+ L   L   J  ( OJM;M; 'K !K& O ()NLM' L   J  (==P==P =$;

(&LO&NJ &( (;) L'&+J  (;&K)K&+;O)!+N+ OJ!+  O;O)Y]0ZM

U!%44:%&D"'&Q&4":Y"&'"M:)".&D"!a%)+

()NLM'&LO&NJ &( ()NLM )L;M;J  ( Q+ML;)MJ &R(+ L   L   J  ( OJM;M; 'K !K& O ()NLM' L   J  (==P==P =$;

(&LO&NJ &( (;) L'&+J  (;&K)K&+;O)!+N' OJ!+  O;O)Y]0ZM

U!%44:%&D"'&Q&4":Y"&'"M:)".&D"!a%)+

()NLM'&LO&NJ &( ()NLM )L;M;J  ( Q+ML;)MJ &R(+ L   L   J  ( OJM;M; 'K !K& O ()NLM' L   J  (==P==P =$;

(&LO&NJ &( (;) L'&+J  (;&K)K&+;O)!+N! OJ!+  O;O)Y]0ZM

U!%44:%&D"'&Q&4":Y"&'"M:)".&D"!a%)+

()NLM'&LO&NJ &( ()NLM )L;M;J  ( Q+ML;)MJ &R(+ L   L   J  ( OJM;M; 'K !K& O ()NLM' L   J  (==P==P =$;

(&LO&NJ &( (;) L'&+J  (;&K)K&+;O)!+NM OJ!+  O;O)Y]0ZM

U!%44:%&D"'&Q&4":Y"&'"M:)".&D"!a%)+

()NLM'&LO&NJ &( ()NLM )L;M;J  ( Q+ML;)MJ &R(+ L   L   J  ( OJM;M; 'K !K& O ()NLM' L   J  (==P==P =$;

(;LN'OJ);( (;;NL!N;J'!(;&KMK&+;O)M +; OJ!+  O;O)Y]X=O

U!%44:%&D"'&Q&'"+).%& "a&+%'(!:):%+

()NLM';LN'OJ);( ()NLN OL;''J+ ( ();L& OJ N((+ L   L   J  ( OJM;N) 'K&MK& O ()NLM' L   J  (==P==P =$;

(;LN'OJ);( (;;NL!N;J'!(;&KMK&+;O)M +& OJ!+  O;O)Y]X=O

U!%44:%&D"'&Q&'"+).%& "a&+%'(!:):%+

()NLM';LN'OJ);( ()NLN OL;''J+ ( ();L& OJ N((+ L   L   J  ( OJM;N) 'K&MK& O ()NLM' L   J  (==P==P =$;

(;LN'OJ);( (;;NL!N;J'!(;&KMK&+;O)M +O OJ!+  O;O)Y]X=O

U!%44:%&D"'&Q&'"+).%& "a&+%'(!:):%+

()NLM';LN'OJ);( ()NLN OL;''J+ ( ();L& OJ N((+ L   L   J  ( OJM;N) 'K&MK& O ()NLM' L   J  (==P==P =$;

(;LN'OJ);( (;;NL!N;J'!(;&KMK&+;O)M +) OJ!+  O;O)Y]X=O

U!%44:%&D"'&Q&'"+).%& "a&+%'(!:):%+

()NLM';LN'OJ);( ()NLN OL;''J+ ( ();L& OJ N((+ L   L   J  ( OJM;N) 'K&MK& O ()NLM' L   J  (==P==P =$;

(;L; OJ O( (;ONL &!J!M(;&K+K&+;O)!M;O OJM+  O;O)Y]XG&

U!%44:%&D"'&Q&+:%T%!)&Y:..:"D+&+X"#a&K&' V

()NLNO;L; OJ O( ()NLNOMLN&)J+ ( (!LM&;J)!((+ L   L   J  ( OJMM&M !K +K& O ()NLNO L   J  (==P==P =$;

Page 29 of 61



 !"#$%"& &'( )*  *+ (,-./%(0$12*

3425* 678%9

 !"#$%"& &',5:%1(0$12* ,$92(;+(8<(& 

 !"#$%"& &'
"/&01 23,456,7879

=4($1(>$12*

:;<5/=>5;=&:;<5;=0?@&AB=C&DE?F5=&GEHI5&J@&%;=B=@&K&:;/=?I>5;=&

?(-$5@21(A$B/24(C58A:>2>(DE(7851F25%(G5/41($%>(2HIB/>2($II5/2>(:%125241 !"!#$

'0IL0;
MI?6CE/5&

*B5HN

DE=I?B=@

&4E=5

+5==H5

4E=5 '(+:M
DE?F5=

GEHI5&O

(;?5EHBP5N&

$EB;QR.0//S

'ELB=EH&

"66?IEH
'ELB=EH

:;=5?5/=&

"66?IEH T00F&GEHI5

UE65&

GEHI5

://I5?&Q&T?0F5?

45EH&

#0V
UB=6CD00N@/+KM

(#:)%4&+)")%+&4 .."!

 ?E;W5&'0I;=@&)?5E/I?@&M00H

$ G%!#D%#)&"$%#'*

$ Gd)&"$*&,&'".."T.%

(;L+)MJ+N( (;&;LOMMJMN(;&KMK&+;O)M '+ OJM   O;O'`]!TO

U"##:%&D"%&Q&$!%")&M"':U:'&+%'(!:):%+

()NLMM'L+)MJ+N( ()NLM!'L; 'J  ( Q; L))&J+NR(+ L   L   J  ( OJM+)' NK 'K& O ()NLMM+L   J  (==P==P =$;

(;L+)MJ+N( (;&;LOMMJMN(;&KMK&+;O)M '' OJM   O;O'`]!TO

U"##:%&D"%&Q&$!%")&M"':U:'&+%'(!:):%+

()NLMM'L+)MJ+N( ()NLM!'L; 'J  ( Q; L))&J+NR(+ L   L   J  ( OJM+)' NK 'K& O ()NLMM+L   J  (==P==P =$;

(;L+)MJ+N( (;&;LOMMJMN(;&KMK&+;O)M '! OJM   O;O'`]!TO

U"##:%&D"%&Q&$!%")&M"':U:'&+%'(!:):%+

()NLMM'L+)MJ+N( ()NLM!'L; 'J  ( Q; L))&J+NR(+ L   L   J  ( OJM+)' NK 'K& O ()NLMM+L   J  (==P==P =$;

(;L+)MJ+N( (;&;LOMMJMN(;&KMK&+;O)M 'M OJM   O;O'`]!TO

U"##:%&D"%&Q&$!%")&M"':U:'&+%'(!:):%+

()NLMM'L+)MJ+N( ()NLM!'L; 'J  ( Q; L))&J+NR(+ L   L   J  ( OJM+)' NK 'K& O ()NLMM+L   J  (==P==P =$;

(&LNO'J;N( ()OMLMMMJMN(;&K;;K&+;O)M! + OJN+  O;O)Y]`V'

U!%44:%&D"'&Q&$!%")&M"':U:'&+%'(!:):%+

(;NNL!)&LNO'J;N( (;NNL)++LN+ J  ( Q&M'LNM'J;NR(&  L   L   J  ( OJN!NN;;K;&K& O (;NNL!) L   J  (==P==P =$;

&2^`88^888^888V88& &2^9]3^2]c^3_cV98&&7c_^c`2Vc9& &32^___^72`V3\& &2^9]8^]]]^c`2Vc9& &2]c^7c_V`9&2V\`33 2Vc7]]+IJ=0=EH&10?&$ Gd)&"$*&,&'".."T.%[&&&&&&& &2^9]8^\39^888V88&

+IJ=0=EH&10?&$ G%!#D%#)&"$%#'*[&&&&& &`\^]]]^7_cV93& &`3^8_`^`7\V\c&7V_\\3 _V8283 &33^_33^2`\^828V7_& &33^__3^]3_^`22V99& &28^9_\^`82V23&&33^_\2^888^888V88& &33^2_2^2`\^\c3V\2&

(V&+V&)!%"+(!:%+

)!%"+(!*&T #4

('))LO;MJ;M( (MN+L ) J!'(;&K!K&O;&)N& ' OJM!+ N;&M&]`X+

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&b%UU%!:%+&K&' DM"#*

()NLNMML 'MJ;M( (+ L  ;LN))J+ ( (;OLM!'JO&((+ L   L   J  ( )J+OO! ;K;+K& &' ()NLO)OL!+ J  (==P==P =$;

(;!+LN&;J;M( (MN+L ) J!'(&K;)K&+;O !! M OJM!+ N;&M&]`X+

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&D !$"#&+)"#.%*

()NLNN&LO&!J)O( (+ L  ;LN))J+ ( (NL';!J !((+ L   L   J  ( )J&M)) ;K;+K& &' ()NLM;'L) 'J&+(==P==P =$;

(!MLOOMJ+&( (MN+L ) J!'(OK; K&+;O; ')) OJM!+ N;&M&]`X+

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&!T'

()NLNN'LO !J&!( (+ L  ;LN))J+ ( (+L'O!J&O((+ L   L   J  ( )J 'M& ;K;+K& &' ()NLN;!LN'MJ!+(==P==P =$;

(&L)!)LM!NJ+!( (O 'LMN+JOM(;K;MK&);&+)) O ;J'&+ N;&M&M,)'

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&D !$"#&+)"#.%*

()NLM))L & J& ( ()NLM!+L M)J  ( (O;L 'OJM ((+ L   L   J  ( )JO  M &K;+K& &' ()!LO'NL;) J'O(==P==P =$;

(N'!L;;!J+)( (O 'LMN+JOM(OK;!K&+;O;;!!' ;J'&+ N;&M&M,)'

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&!T'

()NLM)NLNO J )( ()NLM!+L M)J  ( (&+L;+OJN'((+ L   L   J  ( )J;O;+ &K;+K& &' ()MLMM&LM;&J+ (==P==P =$;

('''L 'OJO!( () ;L!M+J!;(;&KMK&O;&)N&'O OJ!+  N;&M&]`Z!

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&':):$! (M&$. T".&D"!a%)+

()NLN ML&+ JM!( (+ L &OL!O J+ ( (;;+L)!NJ'O((+ L   L   J  ( )J)OO' )K;+K& &' ()NL&)&L;M!J+ (==P==P =$;

(!'LN'!J+N( () ;L!M+J!;()K&NK&+;O;!N!) OJ!+  N;&M&]`Z!

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&b%UU%!:%+&K&' DM"#*

()NLN'!L+N&J+N( (+ L &OL!O J+ ( (+'L;O!JN;((+ L   L   J  ( OJNM&! )K;+K& &' ()NLMN L'&+J  (==P==P =$;

(&L!NOL&!!JO!( (; +L)N JOO(;&K;;K&O;&)N)+ ;J'&+ N;&M&M.O'

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&D !$"#&+)"#.%*

()NL+ &L&';J!+( ()NL')ML&M;J+ ( (;)'L ;NJ!+((+ L   L   J  ( )J+;'' +K;+K& &' ()'L! MLNM)JOM(==P==P =$;

(&L); LM&MJ!N( (; +L)N JOO(;K;MK&);&+)) + ;J'&+ N;&M&M.O'

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&D !$"#&+)"#.%*

()NL+)!L+)!J+)( ()NL')ML&M;J+ ( (;  L!OOJN'((+ L   L   J  ( )J&O!O +K;+K& &' ()!L;O'L!;MJ!+(==P==P =$;

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&!T'
Page 30 of 61



 !"#$%"& &'( )*  *+ (,-./%(0$12*

3425* 678%9

 !"#$%"& &',5:%1(0$12* ,$92(;'(8<(& 

 !"#$%"& &'
"/&01 23,456,7879

=4($1(>$12*

:;<5/=>5;=&:;<5;=0?@&AB=C&DE?F5=&GEHI5&J@&%;=B=@&K&:;/=?I>5;=&

?(-$5@21(A$B/24(C58A:>2>(DE(7851F25%(G5/41($%>(2HIB/>2($II5/2>(:%125241 !"!#$

'0IL0;
MI?6CE/5&

*B5HN

DE=I?B=@

&4E=5

+5==H5

4E=5 '(+:M
DE?F5=

GEHI5&O

(;?5EHBP5N&

$EB;QR.0//S

'ELB=EH&

"66?IEH
'ELB=EH

:;=5?5/=&

"66?IEH T00F&GEHI5

UE65&

GEHI5

://I5?&Q&T?0F5?

45EH&

#0V
UB=6CD00N@/+KM

(#:)%4&+)")%+&4 .."!

 ?E;W5&'0I;=@&)?5E/I?@&M00H

(V&+V&)!%"+(!:%+

)!%"+(!*&T #4

(;) L)O;J) ( (&O+LO&)J+N('K'K&+;O&O)&) OJ'&+ N;&M&]YW ()NLN NLN'&J'+( (+ L ;OL+N)J  ( (; OL'O;JO+((+ L   L   J  ( )J;&!! +K;+K& &' ()NL!'NL+O;J&+(==P==P =$;

(O';LNM&J ;( (N'LO&+J++(;&K;;K&O;&)N)+; )J;&+ N;&M&]YY!

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&)4&+%'(!:):%+

()NLN& L+!+J!'( (+ L;ONL '&J+ ( (&;ML)M'J!)((+ L   L   J  ( )J+  ' 'K;+K& &' ()NL++ML+NOJ!+(==P==P =$;

(O;)L! ;J! ( (;L ONL) &J;!()K;;K&);&'+M + )J+   N;&M&]Y-'

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&D !$"#&+)"#.%*

()NLN &L+N&JOO( (+ L&+'L))+J+ ( (O+OLM+OJ;!((+ L   L   J  ( )JMM'O !K;+K& &' ()NL+M!LMN J'O(==P==P =$;

(&L)NOL)&'JNM( (&MOL&MMJ )(;K&&K&);&+)M + ;J+   N;&M&M&=!

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&bM&D !$"#&'X"+%&K&' 

()NL& 'LO;!J';( ()NLO'ML)+!J  ( (;'&L;ONJON((+ L   L   J  ( )J&O;  MK;+K& &' ()'L!;&LMN J'O(==P==P =$;

(+MML )MJ +( (&MOL&MMJ )(!K;)K&+;O&MOO) ;J+   N;&M&M&=!

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&# D(!"&+%'(!:):%+&:#).V

()NL&&&LM;OJ'M( ()NLO'ML)+!J  ( (;)+L')OJO&((+ L   L   J  ( )J MN+ MK;+K& &' ()ML'O)L!'+J'O(==P==P =$;

(;!MLN+&J +( ('MNLN;!J;O()K;;K&);&'+M ) )J'&+ N;&M&]Y[ 

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&DBPIC0&+56I?B=B5/&(+"&:;6

()NLN&'LNNMJNO( (+ LO'+L&O)J+ ( ()OML&O+J+!((+ L   L   J  ( )JM)'; NK;+K& &' ()NL!)ML )'JMM(==P==P =$;

Q&ML)N;JM&R (;) L+OMJ'!(;&K; K&+;O)M+;N )J'&+ N;&M&]Y[ 

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&D !$"#&+)"#.%*

(+ LOO&LMO'JO;( (+ LO'+L&O)J+ ( (O&LONMJ;N((+ L   L   J  ( OJ')MO NK;+K& &' (+ LO';LO&MJ;O(==P==P =$;

(&L;+;L) +J'&( (;&NLMO)J&+(&K&MK&);&+NN)) &J    N;&M&M3&)

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&D !$"#&+)"#.%*

()MLNMOL)O'JM!( ()NLOONLM))J  ( (O+'L) !J;O((+ L   L   J  ( )J+ !+;;K;+K& &' ()'LMO&L O;J&+(==P==P =$;

(O'OL+ 'J)!( (N&OLN;OJ )(&K&&K&);&+N; ' )J    N;&M&]#GN

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&b%UU%!:%+&K&' DM"#*

()NL!N!L;  J&&( (+ L&) LN&'J+ ( ())OLM&'J&M((+ L   L   J  ( )J);N! ;K;+K& &! ()NL)OOL+NOJ!+(==P==P =$;

(;LM+!L;&!J!)( ()&)LNO&J !(&K&&K&);&+N; ! &J&+  N;&M&MZNM

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&D !$"#&+)"#.%*

()MLM!ML';&J;&( ()NLO; L+)!J  ( ()O;LNO)JMM((+ L   L   J  ( )J) )O &K;+K& &! ()!L &;L)M)JOM(==P==P =$;

(;L'OOL)+MJ '( (+;NLO';J);(;;K&&K&O;&)!&N) &J!+  N;&M&MO\M

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&4":Y"&'"M:)".&D"!a%)+

()MLO+ML '!J))( ()NL&+OLN 'J  ( (MN+LMOMJ+'((+ L   L   J  ( )J)'+O &K;+K& &M ()'L!&)L' NJOM(==P==P =$;

(;L)NNL);'J&;( (;M'L'O'J!)(;;K&&K&O;&)!O  &JM!+ N;&M&M)7!

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&D !$"#&+)"#.%*

()MLO;!L!!+J+N( ()NL&NMLM&MJ  ( (NM;L +&J);((+ L   L   J  ( )J)+!& +K;+K& &M ()'LM;MLO+NJOM(==P==P =$;

(;L& OL&N!JO!( (& &LM''J &(;;K&NK&O;&)!N ! OJ;&+ N;&M&M+-M

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&DBPIC0&+56I?B=B5/&(+"&:;6

()MLO)!LM&MJ'&( ()NL)+MLNM)J+ ( (;L;;;L;++JMM((+ L   L   J  ( )J);N&;;K;+K& &M ()!L;))L+O;J&+(==P==P =$;

&3^388^888^888V88& &3^8]9^c\]^9_`V98&&72^8__^]\2V]9& &]^_`]^8]7Vc_& &3^8c]^\83^77_V88& &`^3\c^277V98&2V8933 _V2_89+IJ=0=EH&10?&)!%"+(!*&T #4[&&&&&&& &3^8``^`9`^798V89&

)!%"+(!*&T #4&,&D%

('MML!'NJ !( (!ML)')J'!('K; K&;;;;M ;!  JO!+ N;&M&]WYO

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&':):$! (M&$. T".&D"!a%)+

()NLNM!L+N!J& ( ()NLM! L ;MJ  ( Q;;!L+!NJ& R(+ L   L   J  (  J'M&+ ;KO;K& &' ()NL&NMLM&MJ;O(==P==P =$;

(N++L&)+JN)( (!ML)')J'!('KO K&;;;& !MN  JO!+ N;&M&]WYO

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&4%()+'X%

()NLNM&L+MNJ'N( ()NLM! L ;MJ  ( Q;;&L+!;J'NR(+ L   L   J  (  JM M  ;KO;K& &' ()NL &!LO)OJ!+(==P==P =$;

()L&)NL! )J;)( (+!)LM'&J')(;&K!K&O;&)N& N &J&+  N;&M&M'TN

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&DBPIC0&+56I?B=B5/&(+"&:;6

(NNL)NNL! )J;)( (NNL'!;L N)J  ( (;!;LOMNJM'((;  L   L   J  ( )J)O N OKO;K& &' (N+L&+ L   J  (==P==P =$;

Page 31 of 61



 !"#$%"& &'( )*  *+ (,-./%(0$12*

3425* 678%9

 !"#$%"& &',5:%1(0$12* ,$92(;!(8<(& 

 !"#$%"& &'
"/&01 23,456,7879

=4($1(>$12*

:;<5/=>5;=&:;<5;=0?@&AB=C&DE?F5=&GEHI5&J@&%;=B=@&K&:;/=?I>5;=&

?(-$5@21(A$B/24(C58A:>2>(DE(7851F25%(G5/41($%>(2HIB/>2($II5/2>(:%125241 !"!#$

'0IL0;
MI?6CE/5&

*B5HN

DE=I?B=@

&4E=5

+5==H5

4E=5 '(+:M
DE?F5=

GEHI5&O

(;?5EHBP5N&

$EB;QR.0//S

'ELB=EH&

"66?IEH
'ELB=EH

:;=5?5/=&

"66?IEH T00F&GEHI5

UE65&

GEHI5

://I5?&Q&T?0F5?

45EH&

#0V
UB=6CD00N@/+KM

(#:)%4&+)")%+&4 .."!

 ?E;W5&'0I;=@&)?5E/I?@&M00H

(V&+V&)!%"+(!:%+

)!%"+(!*&T #4&,&D%

(+ !LNMNJ)O( (&M!L)O;JO&('K;!K&+;O&)!MM &J&+  N;&M&M'TN

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&D !$"#&+)"#.%*

()NL!!;L'';JO;( ()NLMO+L+)!J  ( ('OLMM+J'N((+ L   L   J  ( )J;'M; OKO;K& &' ()NL&'OL'!;JMM(==P==P =$;

(OLNM;L!M&J!+( () 'L!'!JN'(;&KMK&O;&)N&'' &JO!+ N;&M&M'6)

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&D !$"#&+)"#.%*

(NNLO!&L) !J!+( (NNL'&'L+'OJ  ( (&+)L;++J&+((;  L   L   J  ( )J)&O; )KO K& &' (N+LON L'&+J  (==P==P =$;

(;L&N;L'))J+N( (')L&&'J+&(OK;OK&+;O;;O'!  J!+  N;&M&]W\ 

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&!T'

()NL)!!L;N;J)!( ()NL+);L!N!J  ( (')L' +J+O((+ L   L   J  ( )J '   )KO K& &' ()ML;M+L+)'JMM(==P==P =$;

('';L;';J&'( (& OLOMOJNM(OK;)K&+;O;;);! &JO!+ N;&M&M'6)

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&!T'

()NL!O;L)!OJ!'( ()NLM;OL&M;J+ ( (M;LM !J!)((+ L   L   J  ( )J !O+ )KO K& &' ()NL ! LO;&J+ (==P==P =$;

(;L&NOL'!+JN;( (')L&&'J+&(OK& K&+;O;&)   J!+  N;&M&]W\ 

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&4":Y"&'"M:)".&D"!a%)+

()NL)'OL+N!J!N( ()NL+);L!N!J  ( (!ML;NNJ&;((+ L   L   J  ( )J;)!' )KO K& &' ()ML;'NLN&;JMM(==P==P =$;

(&L)'NL;& J &( (&L+MNJ!M(;&K;)K&O;&+ ;M! ;JM!+ N;&M&M!W 

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&D !$"#&+)"#.%*

()NL) 'L'& J &( ()NL' +L !MJ  ( (;NML)+!JNM((+ L   L   J  ( )J))++ 'KO K& &' ()'LNO!L+  J  (==P==P =$;

(OL NML;+OJ''( (;L& MJ+'(;K+K&);&+&'MM  JM!+ N;&M&]]#M

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&b%UU%!:%+&K&' DM"#*

()NL&O&LN;NJO;( ()NLO)NL&;MJ+ ( (;;'L&NNJ;N((+ L   L   J  ( )J;M;  'KO K& &' ()'L;O)L!'+J'+(==P==P =$;

(M)OL;+'J'+( (&L+MNJ!M(OK;OK&+;O;;O'M ;JM!+ N;&M&M!W 

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&'"+).%& "a&+%'(!:):%+

()NL)MOL!M;J'+( ()NL' +L !MJ  ( (;&;L&N'JO+((+ L   L   J  ( )J ON& 'KO K& &' ()ML') L'&+J  (==P==P =$;

(M+;L!))J;N( (&L+MNJ!M(OK;)K&+;O;;);M ;JM!+ N;&M&M!W 

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&T"!'."*+&'"M:)".

()NL)!'L!))J;N( ()NL' +L !MJ  ( (;&MLOOOJM;((+ L   L   J  ( )J 'N& 'KO K& &' ()ML'&+L   J  (==P==P =$;

(M+ML&&)JM!( (&L+MNJ!M(OK& K&+;O;&ONN ;JM!+ N;&M&M!W 

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&'"+).%& "a&+%'(!:):%+

()NL)';L!) J+ ( ()NL' +L !MJ  ( (;)OLOO!J+ ((+ L   L   J  ( )J;O&! 'KO K& &' ()ML' OL+;+J'O(==P==P =$;

Q;++LN' J'+R (;&L!!'J&)(; KO K&+;O)O;O )J'&+ N;&M&]^['

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&# D(!"&+%'(!:):%+&:#).V

(;  L))+L' ;JM+( (;  L+;ML!+ J  ( (!OL;)MJ;+((;  L   L   J  ( OJ'NM) 'KO K& &' (;  L' ;L+'&J+ (==P==P =$;

(&L++ML+ MJ)M( (ON&LO&OJO!(;&K;&K&O;&)N'+& ;JM!+ N;&M&M[N+

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&D !$"#&+)"#.%*

()NL&M;L;')J!O( ()NL+&&L; NJ+ ( (&) LN))J!!((+ L   L   J  ( )J+) M !KO;K& &' ()'L!&&L'+'J&+(==P==P =$;

(&L)!'L&)!J;+( (ON&LO&OJO!(;&K;)K&O;&+ ;MM ;JM!+ N;&M&M[N+

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&bM&D !$"#&'X"+%&K&' 

()NLO &L);NJ O( ()NL+&&L; NJ+ ( (&;NL'N J)!((+ L   L   J  ( )J)+M) !KO;K& &' ()'LM&'L;!;JMM(==P==P =$;

(;LO;!L N&JO!( (;O L!!)J)'(OK;!K&+;O;;!!!  J'&+ N;&M&]],)

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&4":Y"&'"M:)".&D"!a%)+

()NL );L! ;J!+( ()NL;';L&+ J  ( (;;NL+)MJ&+((+ L   L   J  ( )J +N& !KO;K& &' ()!L!&)L' NJOM(==P==P =$;

(!)+L)  J )( (ON&LO&OJO!()K;)K&+;O;+M+; ;JM!+ N;&M&M[N+

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&!T'

()NLONNL'N'JN&( ()NL+&&L; NJ+ ( (;&&L);&J+M((+ L   L   J  ( )J &;+ !KO;K& &' ()ML'+)L&N'JMM(==P==P =$;

(N')LM+OJ;&( (;O L!!)J)'('KNK&+;O&O'&O  J'&+ N;&M&]],)

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&!T'

()NL ;;L!&MJ;&( ()NL;';L&+ J  ( (;)NL+&;JMM((+ L   L   J  ( )J;+!& !KO;K& &' ()ML )'LM!+J  (==P==P =$;

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&# D(!"&+%'(!:):%+&:#).V

Page 32 of 61



 !"#$%"& &'( )*  *+ (,-./%(0$12*

3425* 678%9

 !"#$%"& &',5:%1(0$12* ,$92(;M(8<(& 

 !"#$%"& &'
"/&01 23,456,7879

=4($1(>$12*

:;<5/=>5;=&:;<5;=0?@&AB=C&DE?F5=&GEHI5&J@&%;=B=@&K&:;/=?I>5;=&

?(-$5@21(A$B/24(C58A:>2>(DE(7851F25%(G5/41($%>(2HIB/>2($II5/2>(:%125241 !"!#$

'0IL0;
MI?6CE/5&

*B5HN

DE=I?B=@

&4E=5

+5==H5

4E=5 '(+:M
DE?F5=

GEHI5&O

(;?5EHBP5N&

$EB;QR.0//S

'ELB=EH&

"66?IEH
'ELB=EH

:;=5?5/=&

"66?IEH T00F&GEHI5

UE65&

GEHI5

://I5?&Q&T?0F5?

45EH&

#0V
UB=6CD00N@/+KM

(#:)%4&+)")%+&4 .."!

 ?E;W5&'0I;=@&)?5E/I?@&M00H

(V&+V&)!%"+(!:%+

)!%"+(!*&T #4&,&D%

Q);;LM &JN;R (&L'&;L)OOJ)&(; KO K&+;O)O;&N )JO!+ N;&M&]TW+ (O+;LO!NL&;&JN;( (O+;L'O&L)&;J  ( (&+OL& MJ N((O+ L   L   J  ( OJ'!&! !KO;K& &' (O+;L!N;L ;+JM&(==P==P =$;

(&LN&&LM&MJN ( (&OOL+NMJ !(;&K;)K&O;&+ ;MN ;JO!+ N;&M&M[0'

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&b%UU%!:%+&K&' DM"#*

()NL ++L');J) ( ()NL&N)LN&&J  ( (&ONL&M J' ((+ L   L   J  ( )J)OO  MKO;K& &' ()'L;O&LM;&J+ (==P==P =$;

(OL;N+LN&OJ&O( (;&!L);!J;O(;K+K&);&+&'MN  J!+  N;&M&]]\N

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&':):$! (M&$. T".&D"!a%)+

()MLNO'L;+!J';( ()NL M+LO+;J+ ( (;)NL;NOJMN((+ L   L   J  ( )J;!!N MKO;K& &' ()+L!) L&O)JOM(==P==P =$;

(; )LNM!J!'( ('O!L M+J')(OK;OK&+;O;;O'N OJ!+  N;&M&]TY&

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&bM&D !$"#&'X"+%&K&' 

()NLN;OL+M;J+;( (+ L +OLN 'J  ( (;) LO&)J)N((+ L   L   J  ( )J & N MKO;K& &' ()NLM ML+NOJ!+(==P==P =$;

(;& LM!;J +( ('O!L M+J')(OK;)K&+;O;;);N OJ!+  N;&M&]TY&

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&D !$"#&+)"#.%*

()NLN  L;'!JNO( (+ L +OLN 'J  ( (;+OL!OMJ !((+ L   L   J  ( )J 'O; MKO;K& &' ()NL!!NL&N'JMM(==P==P =$;

(; !L!! J'+( ('O!L M+J')('KNK&+;O&O'&) OJ!+  N;&M&]TY&

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&)4&+%'(!:):%+

()NLM!OLON+J'+( (+ L +OLN 'J  ( (;M L+; JO+((+ L   L   J  ( )J;)&& MKO;K& &' ()NL!'+L'&+J  (==P==P =$;

(&LNNNLO!NJ)'( (;;;L!!MJM+(;K&&K&);&+)M '  JM!+ N;&M&]]_&

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&D !$"#&+)"#.%*

()MLM+ LN);JN'( ()NL ;OL'!&J  ( (;'&L!O J )((+ L   L   J  ( )J;'MM NKO K& &' ()+LM+;L+'&J+ (==P==P =$;

(;!;L+O;J;N( ())!L;;+JOM()K;)K&+;O;+M+ OJ+   N;&M&]T,)

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&)4&+%'(!:):%+

()NLM&;LN&;JM&( ()NLN'OL'!&J  ( (;);L!+ J;M((+ L   L   J  ( OJNN'O NKO K& &' ()NL'+ LON J'O(==P==P =$;

(;O;LN!+J)+( ())!L;;+JOM(!KNK&+;O&!!M! OJ+   N;&M&]T,)

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&4":Y"&'"M:)".&D"!a%)+

()NL!N'L O!JN+( ()NLN'OL'!&J  ( (;'!L'O)J +((+ L   L   J  ( )J 'OO NKO K& &' ()NL'')L '&J+ (==P==P =$;

(;&;L+&!J!M( ())!L;;+JOM(!K&+K&+;OO  &) OJ+   N;&M&]T,)

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&!T'

()NL!NOL) &J!M( ()NLN'OL'!&J  ( (;! L&'NJ&&((+ L   L   J  ( )J ! & NKO K& &' ()NL'!;LM!+J  (==P==P =$;

(;&;L+;&J' ( ())!L;;+JOM(!K&MK&+;OO &; OJ+   N;&M&]T,)

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&!T'

()NL!MNL)M;JO+( ()NLN'OL'!&J  ( (;!)L;N J'+((+ L   L   J  ( )J M;; NKO K& &' ()NL''!LN'MJ!+(==P==P =$;

(&L!N'L&;NJ)O( (+)LN)+J +(&K&!K&);&+N') ;J&+  N;&M&]0^)

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&'"+).%& "a&+%'(!:):%+

()ML';ML)M+J '( ()MLN!'LN+OJ  ( (O+ML)'!JN)((+ L   L   J  ( )J+ 'O;;KO K& &' ()+LM&&L&'+J'O(==P==P =$;

(OL+!)L&OMJ+)( (& NL&ONJ;O(NK& K&O;&OM'ON ;J    N;&M&]]. 

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&4":Y"&'"M:)".&D"!a%)+

()+LN'&LN; J)&( ()'LN&!L!O)J+ ( (N')LM&)J M((+ L   L   J  ( )J+&O; !KO;K& &M ()&LOMML'!;JMM(==P==P =$;

(OL));L! 'J!O( (;N;L;&+J'N(NK& K&O;&OM')) ;J;&+ N;&M&]]Z;

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&b%UU%!:%+&K&' DM"#*

()+LNM)L'!+J)M( ()'LNM)LO!+J  ( (NNNL'NNJ+&((+ L   L   J  ( )J+&)' MKO;K& &M ()&L+)&LN'MJ!+(==P==P =$;

(&LMO!L)M J ;( (;;!L!)MJ'&(;;K&NK&O;&)!N ' ;JO!+ N;&M&]0S+

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&D !$"#&+)"#.%*

()'L;+NL!)+J')( ()!L;&;L N)J  ( (N';LO)MJO'((+ L   L   J  ( )J)&+;; KO;K& &M ()OLO&&L&'+J'O(==P==P =$;

&7^398^888^888V88& &7^327^888^392V98&&93^c]7^``7Vc`& &38^9c\^`]9V`2& &7^37_^```^388V`9& &\^22_^897Vc9&7V_7__ 2V]9_\+IJ=0=EH&10?&)!%"+(!*&T #4&,&D%[&&&&&&& &7^8\7^\\2^_2\V\]&

(+&)!%"+(!*&T:..

(&N!LO +J++( ( J  (;;K'K&+;O)) '+ N;&!N!.=!

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&(T+

()NLNN)L'N JN!( (+ L   L   J  ( (+LO NJ O((+ L   L   J  ( OJM)+M ;K &K& &' ()NL'N!LOM+J)&(S;P=";P 7.

Page 33 of 61



 !"#$%"& &'( )*  *+ (,-./%(0$12*

3425* 678%9

 !"#$%"& &',5:%1(0$12* ,$92(;N(8<(& 

 !"#$%"& &'
"/&01 23,456,7879

=4($1(>$12*

:;<5/=>5;=&:;<5;=0?@&AB=C&DE?F5=&GEHI5&J@&%;=B=@&K&:;/=?I>5;=&

?(-$5@21(A$B/24(C58A:>2>(DE(7851F25%(G5/41($%>(2HIB/>2($II5/2>(:%125241 !"!#$

'0IL0;
MI?6CE/5&

*B5HN

DE=I?B=@

&4E=5

+5==H5

4E=5 '(+:M
DE?F5=

GEHI5&O

(;?5EHBP5N&

$EB;QR.0//S

'ELB=EH&

"66?IEH
'ELB=EH

:;=5?5/=&

"66?IEH T00F&GEHI5

UE65&

GEHI5

://I5?&Q&T?0F5?

45EH&

#0V
UB=6CD00N@/+KM

(#:)%4&+)")%+&4 .."!

 ?E;W5&'0I;=@&)?5E/I?@&M00H

(V&+V&)!%"+(!:%+

(+&)!%"+(!*&T:..

(&N LO+)J;'( ( J  (;;K!K&+;O))&'O N;&!N!.=!

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&# D(!"&+%'(!:):%+&:#).V

()NLNN)L!& JMO( (+ L   L   J  ( (+L&!NJ;!((+ L   L   J  ( OJM&O' ;K &K& &' ()NL! )LO''J'!(S;P=";P 7.

(MNOL!+ J  ( ( J  (!K&NK&+;OO O!+ N;&!N!.Y&

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&T"!'."*+&'"M:)".

()NLN+NLMN+JMO( ()NLN!;L ;)J  ( (;;L;;MJ;!((+ L   L   J  ( )J& O+ ;K MK& &' ()NL ''L;)+JMO(S;P=";P 7.

(;L+M!L MOJOO( ( J  (OK;)K&+;O;;);' N;&!N!,-O

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&U)#&U:#"#':".

()NL!O)L+MOJOO( ()NL!'&LO;'J+ ( (&!L!OOJ;!((+ L   L   J  ( )J + ; &K;NK& &' ()ML;)!L+  J  (S;P=";P 7.

(++NLN+ J  ( ( J  (NK;+K&+;OO'M) N;&!N!6W)

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&b%UU%!:%+&K&' DM"#*

()NL'O!L 'NJ)+( ()NL'' L;NNJ  ( (&OL;&NJ++((+ L   L   J  ( OJM O& OK;&K& &' ()NL !!L;;NJ)+(S;P=";P 7.

(;L)' L+!&J&&( ( J  ()K&K&+;O;)&)M N;&!N!,ZO

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&b%UU%!:%+&K&' DM"#*

()NL+MNL+)!J&&( ()NL'&!LM;;J  ( (OML&'OJ!M((+ L   L   J  ( OJNM!& OK;NK& &' ()ML;&MLN!+J  (S;P=";P 7.

(N!)LO!'JN)( ( J  (!K!K&+;O&!)'O N;&!N!V0&

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&DBPIC0&+56I?B=B5/&(+"&:;6

()NL)&+L&&!J M( ()NL)N;L;&&J  ( ('+LMN)JN&((+ L   L   J  ( )J '!O )K;'K& &' ()ML)+ LM+ J;)(S;P=";P 7.

(N!;LN+)J;M( ( J  (!K!K&+;O&!)+' N;&!N!V7 

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&b%UU%!:%+&K&' DM"#*

()NL&!OL!')J+M( ()NLO+NL&+ J  ( (M+L)M+J)&((+ L   L   J  ( )J 'N! +K;)K& &' ()MLO ;LM; J) (S;P=";P 7.

(N'ML;&&J&&( ( J  (!K!K&+;O&!)') N;&!N!VUM

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&T#*&D5HH0;&'ELB=EH&DE?F5=

()NL;&)LOOMJMN( ()NL&&'L)!&J  ( (; &L;OOJ;;((+ L   L   J  ( )J '+N 'K;;K& &' ()ML;+'L&;'J'!(S;P=";P 7.

(N&MLO&'JON( ( J  (!K;'K&+;O&M''+ N;&!N!VUM

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&T#*&D5HH0;&'ELB=EH&DE?F5=

()NL;;+L';MJ '( ()NL&&'L)!&J  ( (;; LM+OJN)((+ L   L   J  ( )J; OM 'K;;K& &' ()ML;M!L&N;J'!(S;P=";P 7.

(N)ML!)OJ '( ( J  (!K; K&+;O&M  O N;&!N!.S'

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&DBPIC0&+56I?B=B5/&(+"&:;6

()MLN!+LO+!J+ ( ()NL;;&L&&&J  ( (;O'LM')J+ ((+ L   L   J  ( )J 'OM !K NK& &' ()ML &'L';)J))(S;P=";P 7.

(N&)L&;MJ!+( ( J  (!K;'K&+;O&M''' N;&!N!.S'

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&"'"4%D*&+%'(!:):%+

()MLN''L) 'J&+( ()NL;;&L&&&J  ( (;)+LM;+J!+((+ L   L   J  ( )J NM  !K NK& &' ()ML )&L;M!J+ (S;P=";P 7.

(;ONL! OJ)!( ( J  (;&KOK&+;O)!)++ N;&!N!6^)

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&# D(!"&+%'(!:):%+&:#).V

()ML+)NLN!)JO ( ()ML+N+L   J  ( ()+L &+J! ((+ L   L   J  ( OJ+M&); K&NK& &' ()ML); L&! JMO(S;P=";P 7.

(;&NL!+OJ!+( ( J  (;&K+K&+;O)!M N N;&!N!6^)

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&bM&D !$"#&'X"+%&K&' 

()ML++OL)M+JN!( ()ML+N+L   J  ( ();L+;)J O((+ L   L   J  ( OJ+!&!; K&NK& &' ()ML)&OL!O&J&&(S;P=";P 7.

(;O L O;J&+( ( J  (;&K+K&+;O)!M; N;&!N!6^)

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&D !$"#&+)"#.%*

()ML++ LON&JO'( ()ML+N+L   J  ( ())L' !J')((+ L   L   J  ( OJ+M '; K&NK& &' ()ML)& LO';J;;(S;P=";P 7.

(; 'L!! J&M( ( J  (;&K; K&+;O)M+;M N;&!N!6^)

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&bM&D !$"#&'X"+%&K&' 

()ML+ONL;MMJ)M( ()ML+N+L   J  ( (++LM;;J+&((+ L   L   J  ( OJ' !); K&NK& &' ()ML)O&L);MJ& (S;P=";P 7.

&c88^888^888V88& &\cc^]7]^388V98&&33^233^839V99& &8V88& &\c\^]c_^7`3V38& &]__^c2]V_8&8V8888 2V]8\c+IJ=0=EH&10?&(+&)!%"+(!*&T:..[&&&&&&& &\\`^`\2^7_9V99&

+IJ=0=EH&10?&(V&+V&)!%"+(!:%+[&&&&& &c`^7_c^`97V2`& &78^89`^\ccV_\&7V339\ _V8982 &_^887^293^9c9V\9& &_^83`^c8c^c88V98& &3_^_9\^73_V\9&&_^898^888^888V88& &2^]3`^387^]22V2]&

Page 34 of 61



 !"#$%"& &'( )*  *+ (,-./%(0$12*

3425* 678%9

 !"#$%"& &',5:%1(0$12* ,$92(& (8<(& 

 !"#$%"& &'
"/&01 23,456,7879

=4($1(>$12*

:;<5/=>5;=&:;<5;=0?@&AB=C&DE?F5=&GEHI5&J@&%;=B=@&K&:;/=?I>5;=&

?(-$5@21(A$B/24(C58A:>2>(DE(7851F25%(G5/41($%>(2HIB/>2($II5/2>(:%125241 !"!#$

'0IL0;
MI?6CE/5&

*B5HN

DE=I?B=@

&4E=5

+5==H5

4E=5 '(+:M
DE?F5=

GEHI5&O

(;?5EHBP5N&

$EB;QR.0//S

'ELB=EH&

"66?IEH
'ELB=EH

:;=5?5/=&

"66?IEH T00F&GEHI5

UE65&

GEHI5

://I5?&Q&T?0F5?

45EH&

#0V
UB=6CD00N@/+KM

(#:)%4&+)")%+&4 .."!

&39_^7_\^]88Vc\& &c3^382^_3`V79&)0=EH& ?E;W5&'0I;=@&)?5E/I?@&M00H&[ 7V2c7c 2V]]`` &3\^98c^\`c^7_`V7]& &3\^992^\\2^8`_V29& &_9^88_^c3cV8`&&3\^`3c^8_]^`28V28& &3\^29_^978^2_9V_7&

#5=&"//5=&GEHI5&R#"GS[ &3V8879\8

2V]]``7V2c7c &c3^382^_3`V79&&39_^7_\^]88Vc\&)0=EH&:;<5/=>5;=/[ &3\^98c^\`c^7_`V7]& &3\^992^\\2^8`_V29& &_9^88_^c3cV8`&&3\^`3c^8_]^`28V28& &3\^29_^978^2_9V_7&

V/25E*(0$:BE(a%A2%185E(b]G,

6211B2c2%1(0$12*(%81(952$125(1F$%(O;(02I(& &+

X%1:1E(7$c2*(8%2(8<(b5$%92(]8/%1E(G52$4/5E(,88B

=II8/%1(7$c2*(8%2(8<(T=aS("(XUGX70X0(S370L(b](G52$4/525(XH12%>2>(S/%>L(b](G52$4/525(U(S370(--SL(7b.GYX.7(G.36G(b]G,

6\XX,L(`6("(b](G52$4/5E(,88B

=II8/%1(7/cD25*(%81(8%2(8<(=a-d(+;;&)L(\SW"T=\(TaW.=.[L(GX-,S370&MOL(`6&MOL(=a-d+;; )"#\=L(-b.`=7(&MOL(=a-d(+;;&'L(=a-d

+;;&OL(=a-d(+;;&;L(=a-d(+;;& L(=a-d(+;;&NL(=a-d(+;;&!L(=a-d(+;;&ML(`6(Sa7(G=U(S.XX"T=0 )L(`6((Sa7(6V(GU(S.XX"T=0  L

&!N;OML();'!!) '';L(&'"N++NML()    ;!MO L(&!'O)OL(&'"N++N!L(&'"N+++ L(&!'O) 

!5L0?=&ME?E>5=5?/

Page 35 of 61



 !"#$%"& &'( )* +*,-(./01%(2$34*

5647* 89:%;

 !"#$%"& &'.7<%3(2$34* .$;4(+(:=(2

 !"#$%"& &'
"/&01 23,456,7879

>6($3(?$34*

:;<5/=>5;=&:;<5;=0?@&AB=C&DE?F5=&GEHI5&J@&%;=B=@&K&:;/=?I>5;=&

#0;,L00H5M&:;<5/=>5;=/

@(/$7A43(B$C146(D7:B<?4?(EF(9:73G47%(H7163($%?(4IJC1?4($JJ714?(<%347463 !"!#$

'0IN0;
LI?6CE/5&

*B5HM

DE=I?B=@

&4E=5

+5==H5

4E=5 '(+:L
DE?F5=

GEHI5&O

(;?5EHBP5M&

$EB;QR.0//S

'ENB=EH&

"66?IEH
'ENB=EH

:;=5?5/=&

"66?IEH T00F&GEHI5

UE65&

GEHI5

://I5?&Q&T?0F5?

45EH&

#0V
UB=6CD00M@/+KL

(#:)%4&+)")%+&4 .."!

W98,'''4&+%!:%+&783X%

U(#4+

# !)Y%!#&:#+)&(V+V&)!%"+(!*&L !)U .: 

(+K!LMKM&&N)&( (+K!LMKM&&N)&( ( N  ((+K!LMKM&&N)&( ,N'L& 1/1/26 (+K!LMKM&&N)&(90>>>P 90

+IJ=0=EH&10?&U(#4+Z&&&&& 2VW978 &3[X9\[\77V]7& &3[X9\[\77V]7& &8V88&&3[X9\[\77V]7& &3[X9\[\77V]7&

$ G%!#D%#)&"$%#'*

$ G)&"$%#'*,U:-,28Q2W8

(+K)-'N!+( (''-N) (!O+-O+-M'!!!' ,N+&L ,+, >QRS 

U%4&YD&.#&T^&T4&Q&4%()+'Y%

(,-)K!++N-'( (,-&K-,LN+L( T+K-!'N!+U(,-LK   N  ( ,N+-)''O++O&! (,-,K&&LN+L(90>>V >$+

T&K&M&N!!U (,+&NL (&O& O+M+  +,!& ,N+&L ,+,,QQW-M

U%4&U"!D&'!&T^&Q&U)#&U:#"#':".

(&&LK)-'N&+( (&&,K! LN+'( T+K!-+N LU(&&LK   N  ( &NML'+'O+LO&! (&&!K!!-NM-(>>V>>V >$+

T-+&N-)U (,L-N&)(LO+'O+M+ +L&)+ &N-   ,+,,QX'/ 

U%4&U"!D&'!&T^&Q&D !$"#&+)"#.%*&_3

(M)K&&-N'-( (M&K!L+N'M( T+K)!'NMMU(M)K   N  ( &N'L,,++O+&O&! (MLK )+NL&(>>V>>V >$+

(!KM&'N!'( (&--N!L(+ O+&O+-M-+L-! &N!L  ,+, >2!Y 

U%4&YD&.#&T^&T4&Q&':):$! (L&$. T".&D"!^%)+

(+!!K-'-N+ ( (+!!K )!N+!( T-& NM,U(+- K   N  ( ,N)''M+&O+ O&! (+'MKM)+N,)(90>>V >$+

T,K! ,N--U (++)N&-(!O, O+M+ &'')- &N!,  ,+,,QX,8 

U%4&U"!D&'!&T^&Q&U)#&U:#"#':".

(+,-K+,'N,,( (+,)K'!'N- ( T,K)LMNL,U(+,!K   N  ( &N&'L +&O& O&! (+)+K-) N&+(>>V>>V >$+

T'K,&+N,!U (+MN'M(,O+MO+M+  L'!' LN&L  ,+,,+Z[\)

U%4&U"!D&'!&T^&Q&D !$"#&+)"#.%*&_3

()'K-L'N ,( ()'K,-MN +( T)'!N &U()LK   N  ( &N-M  +&O&-O&! (L,K+!!N) (>>V>>V >$+

(+KM&)NL!( (&'K ,)N!&(+O+-O+-M,-'L &N-!L ,+,,QX!X 

U%4&U"!D&'!&T^&Q&4%()+'Y%

(+KMMMKL )NL!( (+KM! K')-N)&( T&-K-L'N+LU(&K   K   N  ( &N--M +O+-O&- (+KMM!KL- N  (>>V>>V >$+

(' &N' ( (,)LN,+(++O+'O+-M-!+L+ ,N&L  ,+, >RR] 

U%4&YD&.#&T^&T4&Q&'"+).%& "^&+%'(!:):%+

(-)K!L'N-L( (-)KL,'NM'( T&+MN-MU(-LK   N  ( ,N,'- ++O+'O&- (-)K+L)N&L(90>>V >$+

T,L,K'M+N&!U (++KM!MN+!(+&O&MO+!M,L-!+ 'N&L  ,+,LM/Q5,

U"##:%&D"%&Q&)4&+%'(!:):%+

(+K')-KM-!N&,( (+K'&'K',LN+-( T&&K,L&N 'U(+KL  K   N  ( &N!M+)LO+LO&M (&K  &K'!-NL (>>V>>V >$+

(&K&!-N)&( (&MK)'-N-M(+O,O+-M,'&'M &NM-  ,+,,QXL^+

U%4&U"!D&'!&T^&Q&T"#^& U&"D%!:'"

(+KMM-K-L-N)&( (+KM),K,&,N)-( TLLKL,)NM)U(&K   K   N  ( &NMM!++O,O, (+KMM'KL- N  (>>V>>V >$+

T,L)K!M N -U (&MK-+&NL (&O&O+-M)++'' 'N!L  ,+,)>)>>&

U!%44:%&D"'&Q&T"!'."*+&'"L:)".

(+K!,,K,!+NM&( (+K!+ K-,'N+L( T&&KL,LN!-U(+KL  K   N  ( ,N M+&,O+LO,+ (&K --K+'&N  (>>V>>V >$+

T,!MKML,N, U (L!K',-N-M(,O+O+-M)L,+M 'N&L  ,+,)>)_]+

U!%44:%&D"'&Q&DBPIC0&+56I?B=B5/&(+"&:;6

(&K,+!K+''N! ( (&K&')K !)N, ( TL,K M&N) U(&K   K   N  ( ,N& )&!O+LO,& (&K'M!K+& N  (>>V>>V >$+

()K'!MN)+( (,K)MMN--(,O&&O+-M)--L- ,N L  ,+,,Q>L.M

U%4&U"!D&'!&T^&Q&D !$"#&+)"#.%*&3

(&L+K L!N-'( (&) K+-+N-,( T+ K-!'N ,U(&LLK   N  ( ,N,)--!O+MO,& (&)'K,!-N)L(>>V>>V >$+

(+KML)N+,( ('!LN&&(,O&&O+-M)--L! ,N+&  ,+,,Q>!S!

U%4&U"!D&'!&T^&Q&D !$"#&+)"#.%*&3

(+)LK&!!N''( (+,-K-M'N''( T'K,-+N  U(+)!K   N  ( ,N,,!,++O-O,& (+),K,&,NL,(>>V>>V >$+

U%4&U"!D&'!&T^&Q&D !$"#&+)"#.%*&3

Page 36 of 61



 !"#$%"& &'( )* +*,-(./01%(2$34*

5647* 89:%;

 !"#$%"& &'.7<%3(2$34* .$;4(&(:=(2

 !"#$%"& &'
"/&01 23,456,7879

>6($3(?$34*

:;<5/=>5;=&:;<5;=0?@&AB=C&DE?F5=&GEHI5&J@&%;=B=@&K&:;/=?I>5;=&

#0;,L00H5M&:;<5/=>5;=/

@(/$7A43(B$C146(D7:B<?4?(EF(9:73G47%(H7163($%?(4IJC1?4($JJ714?(<%347463 !"!#$

'0IN0;
LI?6CE/5&

*B5HM

DE=I?B=@

&4E=5

+5==H5

4E=5 '(+:L
DE?F5=

GEHI5&O

(;?5EHBP5M&

$EB;QR.0//S

'ENB=EH&

"66?IEH
'ENB=EH

:;=5?5/=&

"66?IEH T00F&GEHI5

UE65&

GEHI5

://I5?&Q&T?0F5?

45EH&

#0V
UB=6CD00M@/+KL

(#:)%4&+)")%+&4 .."!

W98,'''4&+%!:%+&783X%

$ G%!#D%#)&"$%#'*

$ G)&"$%#'*,U:-,28Q2W8

T+&N, U ()KLLMN!&(,O&&O+-M)--LL ,N,L  ,+,,QQ5S, (L  K ++N))( ()!)K +,N'L( T&LKMM!N- U(L  K   N  ( ,N,)M',O&,O,, (L  K &,N!)(>>V>>V >$+

T+!K ,'N-!U (+&MN!L(,O&&O+-M)--L' )N))  ,+,,Q2Y]-

U%4&U"!D&'!&T^&Q&D !$"#&+)"#.%*&3

(&- KL LNLL( (&'LKM!&N),( T+)KL,,N+&U(&',K   N  ( ,N,LM'+&O&!O,, (&M!KL)&N)&(>>V>>V >$+

(+!KM)&N&&( (&LKL, N  (,O&O+-M)LL L ,N,,  ,+,,Q#Y.&

U%4&U"!D&'!&T^&Q&U)#&U:#"#':".

(+KM-+K) &N&&( (+K-'-K)  N& ( T++,K  &N &U(&K   K   N  ( ,N)- +&O+,O,) (+KM',K)' N  (>>V>>V >$+

T'LK&'&N' U (+&K-+'N++(,O+LO+-M)!'M+ ,NM+  ,+,,+_9-M

U%4&U"!D&'!&T^&Q&':):$! (L&$. T".&D"!^%)+

(&K -&K,L!N) ( (+KM+ K++MN&)( T+!&K&,-N+'U(&K   K   N  ( ,N,L+M++O&O,L (&K+)!K'& N  (>>V>>V >$+

&39[23W[888V88& &39[999[8]2V]W&R3[3]9[8`7V]WS &78][797V87& &3W[8\8[9]9V82& R929[983V9XS]V7\X9 2V32`3+IJ=0=EH&10?&$ G)&"$%#'*,U:-,28Q2W8Z&&&&&&& &3X[729[W7XV]\&

+IJ=0=EH&10?&$ G%!#D%#)&"$%#'*Z&&&&& R3[3]9[8`7V]WS &78][797V87&]V7\X9 2V32`3 &3W[8\8[9]9V82& &39[999[8]2V]W& R929[983V9XS&39[23W[888V88& &3X[729[W7XV]\&

(V&+V&)!%"+(!:%+

)!%"+(!*&T #4

(&MKMM+NM,( ()K&)MN,&(MOLO&)+&-' )& +N+&L M+&-&Y\[)

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&':):$! (L&$. T".&D"!^%)+

(--,K-& N '( (--+K,'!N+M( T&K)L&N-!U(+K   K   N  ( ,N'ML&&O+LO,+ (-L,K-&-N+,(>>V>>V >$+

('K&!)N!M( (&,K!M'N& (MOLO&)+&-' ), ,NL   M+&-&YS/!

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&aL&D !$"#&'Y"+%&K&' 

(+K!''K+M'N'!( (+K!L&K++!N+M( T+)K !MN)-U(+K-  K   N  ( ,N-+ !&O+LO,, (+K!LMKM&+N--(>>V>>V >$+

T+))K,M,N&-U (&LK)MLNM&(,O+)O+-M)!) L )NL   M+&-+ RH 

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&':):$! (L&$. T".&D"!^%)+

(+K'-!K, LNM)( (+KLL+K'!MN'-( T+,LK'&'N&'U(+KL  K   N  ( &NM -+&O+LO,' (+K-,+K'MMN&&(>>V>>V >$+

&][288[888V88& &][3`9[3W]V8W&R38`[37WV9WS &92[9]3V]]& &][22X[277VWX& R397[39`VW3S2V7\W9 2V]W\8+IJ=0=EH&10?&)!%"+(!*&T #4Z&&&&&&& &][]]9[]]\V72&

)!%"+(!*&T #4&,&D%

(- K),MN))( (+'KMM!N&-(&O-O+-M)& M) &N&L  M+&-&-^M-

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&D !$"#&+)"#.%*&3

(+KM--KL')N))( (+KM!&K)&+N--( T+'K+)&NL'U(&K   K   N  ( &N-, !&O+LO&! (+KM -K+&LN  (>>V>>V >$+

(&,K,++N,L( (!K,&,N,!(MOLO&)+&-' )+ +N!L  M+&-&Y2W-

(+&)!%"+(!*&#QT&Q&D !$"#&+)"#.%*

(M)LK'LLN+ ( (M)!K-M N'&( (&K&,LNL&((+K   K   N  ( ,N'!'L+O,+O&M (M&&K,),N!L(>>V>>V >$+

&2[888[888V88& &7[\78[237V98&&382[X98VX\& &7][278VW9& &7[\2][73\V9]& R32[\8XV8]S7V8`22 2V337W+IJ=0=EH&10?&)!%"+(!*&T #4&,&D%Z&&&&&&& &7[`28[]W`VX9&

+IJ=0=EH&10?&(V&+V&)!%"+(!:%+Z&&&&& R][2X9VXXS &XX[`W7V8\&7VX\X\ 2V2779 &X[7X3[9]7V73& &X[389[]XWV9W& R3WW[8W9VW9S&X[288[888V88& &X[7X9[\3XV\`&

R3[3]\[]9`V72S &7`7[33]V33&)0=EH&W98,'''4&+%!:%+&783X%&Z 2V`329 2V728] &79[377[88\VWW& &7][]78[]]7V]]& RX83[9WXV77S&7][2X9[\77V]7& &7W[7X3[]WXV`\&

#5=&"//5=&GEHI5&R#"GSZ &8V\X78X]

2V728]2V`329 &7`7[33]V33&R3[3]\[]9`V72S)0=EH&:;<5/=>5;=/Z &79[377[88\VWW& &7][]78[]]7V]]& RX83[9WXV77S&7][2X9[\77V]7& &7W[7X3[]WXV`\&

Page 37 of 61



      !"#$%&%'$(

)*+&$ , !)--&%$(

   !./0#( , 1+''

"#'$

234%

5+'$6/& 7/89%5+94+#,

:0%8;!<(

2&/#'

234%

=/$9&0$3

>/$%

?&+@%&"''9%&>%/8

 !"#$%&'( )*+,%"+-.-/#.0(12(13#45

678"&#$%&'( )9)*9-.-/

5+9#$3 +A B&/#C%

>%$/08 2&/#'/-$0+# G%4+&$

   2&/#'/-$0+# >/$% H&+*  IJDB-$DKIKL  2+  MJD>%-DKIKL

&:;!<='7(

6%>'#)#?@#-.

2&/#'

>/$%

69&-N/'%;

"#$%&%'$

O%$$8%*%#$

H9#;P B&/#C% 5+9#$3 2&%/'9&3 6++8

)-/*)0ABC$#D5#EF#GH#G$ 9I C4J#64KLBLK#

MCK< LJLCM

4IFB) #1N***. #1N**A-#9#

LFJ).9*9-.-* #.N..# O)P)30PA*.N..Q#.N..# #.N..# #)P)30PA*.N..#)9))9-.-A

)-22-2)BDEG#$LMK#KR 6 9KLJLI R<6#

IERG4E#

54 HCJM

4I$FM #1N)3A. #1N)3A.#9#

54J).9/9-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q O)P/**P***N*/QO10P311P111N11Q #.N..# #*.P...P...N..#).9/9-.-*

)-/-.0/BC$#B4 5#K #GH 9KLJLI R<6#

IERG4E#

54 HCJM

4IFB) #1N1/.. #1N1/))#9#

LFJ).9A9-.-* #.N..# O)P))*P...N..Q#.N..# #.N..# #)P))*P...N..#).9A9-.-/

)-//A11BC$#B4 5#K #GH 9BJF#BLF4FKL4E 4IFB) #1N03.. #1N03.*#9#

LFJ).9A9-.-* #.N..# O)P-.AP*..N..Q#.N..# #.N..# #)P-.AP*..N..#19A9-.-A

)-//A1/BC$#B4 5#K #GH 9BJF#BLF4FKL4E 4IFB) #1N0-.. #1N0-.*#9#

LFJ).9A9-.-* #.N..# O)P-.*P...N..Q#.N..# #.N..# #)P-.*P...N..#19A9-.-A

)-22-02BDEG#$LMK#KR 6 9GFS#5'TT?"#

K%U8&%T#5%7V'&

4I$FM #1N)3A* #1N)3A*#9#

54J).9A9-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q O)P//)P)))N))QO10P330P000N02Q #.N..# #*.P...P...N..#).9A9-.-*

)-22/0/BC$#B4 5#K #GH 9$C<JMKDC 4I$FM #1N)A03 #1N)A03#9#

54J).9A9-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q O)P/**P-AANA0QO10P311PA--N--Q #.N..# #*.P...P...N..#).9A9-.-*

)-/-.0*BC$#B4 5#K #GH 9KLJLI R<6#

IERG4E#

54 HCJM

4IFB) #1N1/.. #1N1/)-#9#

LFJ).929-.-* #.N..# O)P))*P...N..Q#.N..# #.N..# #)P))*P...N..#).929-.-/

)-//A1*BC$#B4 5#K #GH 9G4FH#RB#

45C LK4

4IFB) #1N03.. #1N03.1#9#

LFJ).929-.-* #.N..# O)P-.AP*..N..Q#.N..# #.N..# #)P-.AP*..N..#1929-.-A

)-1)--0BC$#B4 5#K #GH 9KLJLI R<6#

IERG4E#

54 HCJM

4IFB) #*N)-*. #*N)-*.#9#

LFJ).9).9-.-* #.N..# O)P-0)P-*.N..Q#.N..# #.N..# #)P-0)P-*.N..#).9).9-.-*

54J).9).9-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q #.N..#O*.P...P...N..Q #.N..# #*.P...P...N..#).9).9-.-*

)-22-2.BDEG#$LMK#KR 6 9G4FH#RB#

45C LK4

4I$FM #1N)302 #1N)302#9#

54J).9).9-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q O)P/AAPAAAN0.QO10P3--P---N-.Q #.N..# #*.P...P...N..#).9).9-.-*

)-22/03BDEG#$LMK#KR 6 9G4 KE4SM#

K46LJ4E

4I$FM #1N)A11 #1N)A11#9#

54J).9).9-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q O)P/A.P.1)N//QO10P3-2P2*0N31Q #.N..# #*.P...P...N..#).9).9-.-*

W!'7X(#$%8TX#J7%"=%:&8?"# 'U?7&
Page 38 of 61



      !"#$%&%'$(

)*+&$ , !)--&%$(

   !./0#( , 1+''

"#'$

234%

5+'$6/& 7/89%5+94+#,

:0%8;!<(

2&/#'

234%

=/$9&0$3

>/$%

?&+@%&"''9%&>%/8

 !"#$%&'( )*+,%"+-.-/#.0(12(13#45

678"&#$%&'( )9)*9-.-/

5+9#$3 +A B&/#C%

>%$/08 2&/#'/-$0+# G%4+&$

  2&/#'/-$0+# >/$% H&+*  IJDB-$DKIKL  2+  MJD>%-DKIKL

&:;!<='7(

6%>'#-#?@#-.

2&/#'

>/$%

69&-N/'%;

"#$%&%'$

O%$$8%*%#$

H9#;P B&/#C% 5+9#$3 2&%/'9&3 6++8

)-22/01BDEG#$LMK#KR 6 9G4 KE4SM#

K46LJ4E

4I$FM #1N)A11 #1N)A11#9#

54J).9).9-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q O)P/A.P.1)N/AQO10P3-2P2*0N33Q #.N..# #*.P...P...N..#).9).9-.-*

)-22/0*BC$#B4 5#K #GH 9G4FH#RB#

45C LK4

4I$FM #1N)A). #1N)A).#9#

54J).9)19-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q O)P/2.P3/)N)*QO10P3.2P/30N0*Q #.N..# #*.P...P...N..#).9)19-.-*

)3-)A22B C$$LC#54K 9I C4J#64KLBLK#

MCK< LJLCM

K4EEIRY4IS #1N)*.. #1N-.**#9#

K4EE#LFJC CMJ).9)19-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q #.N..#O12P23.P...N..Q #.N..# #12P23.P...N..#)9)19-.-0

K4EE# C64S#6 LFKL64E).9)19-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q #.N..#O12P23.P...N..Q #.N..# #12P23.P...N..#)9)19-.-0

)-12-.*<M#J C4M< S#F9G 95R I4F#

MJ4FECS

J G$L #1N-*.. #1N/3/.#9#

LFJ).9)*9-.-* #.N..# O)P./-P*..N..Q#.N..# #.N..# #)P./-P*..N..#).9)*9-.-*

54J).9)*9-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q O31)PA2/N0*QO12P/*0P-.3N)*Q #.N..# #*.P...P...N..#).9)*9-.-*

)-12-/3<M#J C4M< S#F9G 9KLJLI R<6#

IERG4E#

54 HCJM

J G$L #3NA*.. #1N133/#9#

LFJ).9)*9-.-* #.N..# O23AP*..N..Q#.N..# #.N..# #23AP*..N..#19)*9-.-/

)-/-//ABC$#B4 5#K #GH 958Z!;?#M':!78&8'=#

<M4#L":

4IFB) #1N/... #1N/.)3#9#

LFJ).9)*9-.-* #.N..# O)P)*.P...N..Q#.N..# #.N..# #)P)*.P...N..#).9)*9-.-/

)-/A.2*BC$#B4 5#K #GH 9,6#5R I4F#

KD4MC#[#KR

4IFB) #1N03.. #1N03.-#9#

LFJ).9)*9-.-* #.N..# O)P-.AP*..N..Q#.N..# #.N..# #)P-.AP*..N..#19)*9-.-A

)3)A2A1<M#J C4M< S#F9G 9,CBBC LCM#[#

KR564FS

J G$L #3NA*.. #3N20-A#9#

LFJ).9)*9-.-* #.N..# O23AP*..N..Q#.N..# #.N..# #23AP*..N..#19)*9-.-/

)-2203*BDEG#$LMK#KR 6 9$C<JMKDC 4I$FM #1N)A31 #1N)A31#9#

54J).9-.9-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q O)PA)0P31AN--QO10P-0)P/*-NA0Q #.N..# #*.P...P...N..#).9-.9-.-*

)3-)A2-B C$$LC#54K 9I C4J#64KLBLK#

MCK< LJLCM

K4EEIRY4IS #1N-*.. #1N-2.*#9#

K4EE# C64S#6 LFKL64E).9-)9-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q #.N..#O12P2*-P*..N..Q #.N..# #12P2*-P*..N..#).9-)9-.-A

LFJ).9-)9-.-* #.N..# O)P./-P*..N..Q#.N..# #.N..# #)P./-P*..N..#).9-)9-.-A

)3-)A2/B C$$LC#54K 9$4L\4#

K46LJ4E#

54 HCJM

K4EEIRY4IS #1N.... #1N))20#9#

K4EE# C64S#6 LFKL64E).9--9-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q #.N..#O12P0/-P*..N..Q #.N..# #12P0/-P*..N..#).9--9-.-A

LFJ).9--9-.-* #.N..# O2.*P***N*/Q#.N..# #.N..# #2.*P***N*/#).9--9-.-A

W!'7X(#$%8TX#J7%"=%:&8?"# 'U?7&
Page 39 of 61



      !"#$%&%'$(

)*+&$ , !)--&%$(

   !./0#( , 1+''

"#'$

234%

5+'$6/& 7/89%5+94+#,

:0%8;!<(

2&/#'

234%

=/$9&0$3

>/$%

?&+@%&"''9%&>%/8

 !"#$%&'( )*+,%"+-.-/#.0(12(13#45

678"&#$%&'( )9)*9-.-/

5+9#$3 +A B&/#C%

>%$/08 2&/#'/-$0+# G%4+&$

  2&/#'/-$0+# >/$% H&+*  IJDB-$DKIKL  2+  MJD>%-DKIKL

&:;!<='7(

6%>'#3#?@#-.

2&/#'

>/$%

69&-N/'%;

"#$%&%'$

O%$$8%*%#$

H9#;P B&/#C% 5+9#$3 2&%/'9&3 6++8

)-/A/*ABC$#D5#EF#GH#G$ 9I C4J#64KLBLK#

MCK< LJLCM

4IFB) #1N0/.. #1N0/.A#9#

LFJ).9-19-.-* #.N..# O)P-)*P...N..Q#.N..# #.N..# #)P-)*P...N..#))9/9-.-/

)-2203-BDEG#$LMK#KR 6 9G4 KE4SM#

K46LJ4E

4I$FM #1N)A*1 #1N)A*1#9#

54J).9-19-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q O)PA1.PA3/N))QO10P-*2P-/3N02Q #.N..# #*.P...P...N..#).9-19-.-*

)3.*1*-BDEG#$LMK#KR 6 9BJF#BLF4FKL4E 4I$FM #1N)/.. #1N)/..#9#

54J).9-19-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q O)P*.)P2)/N//QO10P120P.03N31Q #.N..# #*.P...P...N..#).9-19-.-*

)3-)0.-B4FFLC#54C 9I C4J#64KLBLK#

MCK< LJLCM

K4EEIRY4IS #3N2*.. #1N.-A)#9#

K4EE#LFJC CMJ).9-A9-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q #.N..#O12P2)AP*..N..Q #.N..# #12P2)AP*..N..#09-A9-.-A

K4EE# C64S#6 LFKL64E).9-A9-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q #.N..#O12P2)AP*..N..Q #.N..# #12P2)AP*..N..#09-A9-.-A

))31.2)BC$#D5#EF#GH#G$ 9I C4J#64KLBLK#

MCK< LJLCM

4IFB) #.N0... #.N0...#9#

LFJ).9-09-.-* #.N..# O1.P...N..Q#.N..# #.N..# #1.P...N..#).9-09-.-*

54J).9-09-.-* O-.P...P...N..Q #.N..#O-.P...P...N..Q #.N..# #-.P...P...N..#).9-09-.-*

)31-/02BDEG#$LMK#KR 6 9FR5< 4#

MCK< LJLCM#

LFJEN

4I$FM #3N/-3. #3N/-3.#9#

6< K).9-09-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##10P0*1P1)/N/*# #.N..# O10P0*1P1)/N/AQ/9)09-.-/

)31-/2.BDEG#$LMK#KR 6 9DLIILFM#

K46LJ4E#

54F4IC5CFJ

4I$FM #3N/-3. #3N/-3.#9#

6< K).9-09-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##10P0*1P1)/N/*# #.N..# O10P0*1P1)/N/AQ/9)09-.-/

)31-/2)BDEG#$LMK#KR 6 9,6#5R I4F#

KD4MC#[#KR

4I$FM #3N/-3. #3N/-3.#9#

6< K).9-09-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##10P0*1P1)/N/*# #.N..# O10P0*1P1)/N/AQ/9)09-.-/

)31-/2-BDEG#$LMK#KR 6 9KLJLI R<6#

IERG4E#

54 HCJM

4I$FM #3N/332 #3N/332#9#

6< K).9-09-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##10P2)3PA*.N..# #.N..# O10P2)3PA*.N..Q/9*9-.-/

)31-/23BDEG#$LMK#KR 6 9MLCGC J#

\LEEL45M#

MD4FH#[#KRN

4I$FM #3N/11* #3N/11*#9#

6< K).9-09-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##10P2A0P*03N3*# #.N..# O10P2A0P*03N33Q*9--9-.-/

)31-/21BDEG#$LMK#KR 6 9J$#MCK< LJLCM 4I$FM #3N//.) #3N//.)#9#

6< K).9-09-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P.1-P///N/*# #.N..# O12P.1-P///N/AQ*909-.-/

)3-)0.3B C$$LC#54K 9K4MJEC#R4H#

MCK< LJLCM

K4EEIRY4IS #3N0A*. #1N...-#9#

W!'7X(#$%8TX#J7%"=%:&8?"# 'U?7&
Page 40 of 61



      !"#$%&%'$(

)*+&$ , !)--&%$(

   !./0#( , 1+''

"#'$

234%

5+'$6/& 7/89%5+94+#,

:0%8;!<(

2&/#'

234%

=/$9&0$3

>/$%

?&+@%&"''9%&>%/8

 !"#$%&'( )*+,%"+-.-/#.0(12(13#45

678"&#$%&'( )9)*9-.-/

5+9#$3 +A B&/#C%

>%$/08 2&/#'/-$0+# G%4+&$

  2&/#'/-$0+# >/$% H&+*  IJDB-$DKIKL  2+  MJD>%-DKIKL

&:;!<='7(

6%>'#1#?@#-.

2&/#'

>/$%

69&-N/'%;

"#$%&%'$

O%$$8%*%#$

H9#;P B&/#C% 5+9#$3 2&%/'9&3 6++8

K4EE# C64S#6 LFKL64E).9-29-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q #.N..#O12P0*-P*..N..Q #.N..# #12P0*-P*..N..#).9-29-.-A

LFJ).9-29-.-* #.N..# O2/0PA*.N..Q#.N..# #.N..# #2/0PA*.N..#).9-29-.-A

)31-2-2BDEG#$LMK#KR 6 9K4MJEC#R4H#

MCK< LJLCM

4I$FM #3N/123 #3N/123#9#

6< K).9-29-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##10P2)1P)-*N..# #.N..# O10P2)1P)-*N..Q/9*9-.-/

)31-23.BDEG#$LMK#KR 6 9GFS#5'TT?"#

K%U8&%T#5%7V'&

4I$FM #3N*AA* #3N*AA*#9#

6< K).9-29-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##10P/3AP...N..# #.N..# O10P/3AP...N..Q09A9-.-/

)31-23)BDEG#$LMK#KR 6 9G4 KE4SM#

K46LJ4E

4I$FM #3N/*)* #3N/*)*#9#

6< K).9-29-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##10P2*-P3-/N1.# #.N..# O10P2*-P3-/N32Q*9-09-.-/

)31-23-BDEG#$LMK#KR 6 96FK#K46LJ4E#

54 HCJM

4I$FM #3N/.02 #3N/.02#9#

6< K).9-29-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##10PA/0P...N..# #.N..# O10PA/0P...N..QA909-.-/

)31-233BDEG#$LMK#KR 6 96FK#K46LJ4E#

54 HCJM

4I$FM #3N/.02 #3N/.02#9#

6< K).9-29-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##10PA/0P...N..# #.N..# O10PA/0P...N..QA909-.-/

)3)/1.3BC$#B4 5#K #GH 9<GM#BLF4FKL4E#

MC YLKCM

4IFB) #3N2... #3N2..2#9#

LFJ).93.9-.-* #.N..# O2A*P...N..Q#.N..# #.N..# #2A*P...N..#).93.9-.-/

)313)-3BC$#B4 5#K #GH 95R I4F#

MJ4FECS

4I$FM #3N/1.3 #3N/1.3#9#

6< K).93.9-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##10P02AP300N2.# #.N..# O10P02AP300N02Q/9).9-.-/

)313)-1BDEG#$LMK#KR 6 9 GK 4I$FM #3N/-*- #3N/-*-#9#

6< K).93.9-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##10P0-1P2)/N/*# #.N..# O10P0-1P2)/N/AQ/9-/9-.-/

)313)-*BDEG#$LMK#KR 6 9 4S5RF$#

,45CM

4I$FM #3N/322 #3N/322#9#

6< K).93.9-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##10P2.-P333N3*# #.N..# O10P2.-P333N33Q/929-.-/

)313)-/BDEG#$LMK#KR 6 9KLJLI R<6#

IERG4E#

54 HCJM

4I$FM #3N/*)) #3N/*))#9#

6< K).93.9-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##10P2*AP-2)N/*# #.N..# O10P2*AP-2)N/AQ*9-09-.-/

)313)-2<M#J C4M< S#F9G 9FR5< 4#

MCK< LJLCM#

LFJEN

J G$5C #1N3A*. #3N/A-A#9#

6< K).93.9-.-* #3*.P...P...N..# #.N..##3*)PA2)P.)*N0.# #3PA0/P*)1N2A# O3**P*AAP*3.NAAQA93)9-.-/

)313)3.<M#J C4M< S#F9G 9FR5< 4#

MCK< LJLCM#

LFJEN

J G$5C #1N/-*. #3N/201#9#

W!'7X(#$%8TX#J7%"=%:&8?"# 'U?7&
Page 41 of 61



      !"#$%&%'$(

)*+&$ , !)--&%$(

   !./0#( , 1+''

"#'$

234%

5+'$6/& 7/89%5+94+#,

:0%8;!<(

2&/#'

234%

=/$9&0$3

>/$%

?&+@%&"''9%&>%/8

 !"#$%&'( )*+,%"+-.-/#.0(12(13#45

678"&#$%&'( )9)*9-.-/

5+9#$3 +A B&/#C%

>%$/08 2&/#'/-$0+# G%4+&$

  2&/#'/-$0+# >/$% H&+*  IJDB-$DKIKL  2+  MJD>%-DKIKL

&:;!<='7(

6%>'#*#?@#-.

2&/#'

>/$%

69&-N/'%;

"#$%&%'$

O%$$8%*%#$

H9#;P B&/#C% 5+9#$3 2&%/'9&3 6++8

6< K).93.9-.-* #)..P...P...N..# #.N..##)..P/.)P*/-N*.# #)P*33P-00N.1# O).-P)31P0*.N*1Q/93.9-.-/

)313)3)BDEG#$LMK#KR 6 94K4$C5S#

MCK< LJLCM

4I$FM #3N/.23 #3N/.23#9#

6< K).93.9-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##10PA/3P)))N).# #.N..# O10PA/3P)))N))QA9).9-.-/

)313)3-BDEG#$LMK#KR 6 958Z!;?#M':!78&8'=#

<M4#L":

4I$FM #3N/.23 #3N/.23#9#

6< K).93.9-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##10PA/3P)))N).# #.N..# O10PA/3P)))N))QA9).9-.-/

)))/.*3<M#J C4M< S#F9G 9$C<JMKDC J G$5C #.N-*.. #.N//.*#9#

LFJ).93)9-.-* #.N..# O/-P*..N..Q#.N..# #.N..# #/-P*..N..#).93)9-.-*

54J).93)9-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q O021P*3)N-*QO12P).*P1/0NA*Q #.N..# #*.P...P...N..#).93)9-.-*

)))/.*1<M#J C4M< S#F9G 9$C<JMKDC J G$5C #.N-*.. #.N//.*#9#

LFJ).93)9-.-* #.N..# O/-P*..N..Q#.N..# #.N..# #/-P*..N..#).93)9-.-*

54J).93)9-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q O021P*3)N-*QO12P).*P1/0NA*Q #.N..# #*.P...P...N..#).93)9-.-*

)-1A2./<M#J C4M< S#F9G 95R I4F#

MJ4FECS

J G$5C #)N3A*. #1N1-*)#9#

LFJ).93)9-.-* #.N..# O313PA*.N..Q#.N..# #.N..# #313PA*.N..#).93)9-.-0

)-12-//<M#J C4M< S#F9G 95R I4F#

MJ4FECS

J G$5C #-N3A*. #1N1-3)#9#

LFJ).93)9-.-* #.N..# O)P)0AP*..N..Q#.N..# #.N..# #)P)0AP*..N..#193.9-.-/

)-20--0<M#J C4M< S#F9G 9$4L\4#

K46LJ4E#

54 HCJM

J G$5C #.N-*.. #1N3.0A#9#

LFJ).93)9-.-* #.N..# O/-P*..N..Q#.N..# #.N..# #/-P*..N..#).93)9-.-*

54J).93)9-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q O)PAA2P-2/N0*QO10P--.PA.3N)*Q #.N..# #*.P...P...N..#).93)9-.-*

)-201A-<M#J C4M< S#F9G 9J$#MCK< LJLCM J G$5C #.N-*.. #1N3.-2#9#

LFJ).93)9-.-* #.N..# O/-P*..N..Q#.N..# #.N..# #/-P*..N..#).93)9-.-*

54J).93)9-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q O)PAA)P101N..QO10P--0P*)/N..Q #.N..# #*.P...P...N..#).93)9-.-*

)-20*2/<M#J C4M< S#F9G 95R I4F#

MJ4FECS

J G$5C #.N-*.. #1N-*-A#9#

LFJ).93)9-.-* #.N..# O/-P*..N..Q#.N..# #.N..# #/-P*..N..#).93)9-.-*

54J).93)9-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q O)PA31P3A*N..QO10P-/*P/-*N..Q #.N..# #*.P...P...N..#).93)9-.-*

)3))3/A<M#J C4M< S#F9G 9 GK J G$5C #.NA*.. #1N./..#9#

LFJ).93)9-.-* #.N..# O)0AP*..N..Q#.N..# #.N..# #)0AP*..N..#193.9-.-/

)3))1)A<M#J C4M< S#F9G 9 GK J G$5C #-N3A*. #1N.A3*#9#

LFJ).93)9-.-* #.N..# O*23PA*.N..Q#.N..# #.N..# #*23PA*.N..#193.9-.-/

)3)-1..<M#J C4M< S#F9G 9$4L\4#

K46LJ4E#

54 HCJM

J G$5C #.NA*.. #1N)1A/#9#

W!'7X(#$%8TX#J7%"=%:&8?"# 'U?7&
Page 42 of 61



      !"#$%&%'$(

)*+&$ , !)--&%$(

   !./0#( , 1+''

"#'$

234%

5+'$6/& 7/89%5+94+#,

:0%8;!<(

2&/#'

234%

=/$9&0$3

>/$%

?&+@%&"''9%&>%/8

 !"#$%&'( )*+,%"+-.-/#.0(12(13#45

678"&#$%&'( )9)*9-.-/

5+9#$3 +A B&/#C%

>%$/08 2&/#'/-$0+# G%4+&$

  2&/#'/-$0+# >/$% H&+*  IJDB-$DKIKL  2+  MJD>%-DKIKL

&:;!<='7(

6%>'#/#?@#-.

2&/#'

>/$%

69&-N/'%;

"#$%&%'$

O%$$8%*%#$

H9#;P B&/#C% 5+9#$3 2&%/'9&3 6++8

LFJ).93)9-.-* #.N..# O)0AP*..N..Q#.N..# #.N..# #)0AP*..N..#193.9-.-/

)31331ABDEG#$LMK#KR 6 9BJF#BLF4FKL4E 4I$FM #3N/0-* #3N/0-*#9#

6< K).93)9-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##10P/.APAAAN0.# #.N..# O10P/.APAAANA0Q09A9-.-/

)313310BDEG#$LMK#KR 6 9BJF#BLF4FKL4E 4I$FM #3N/03A #3N/03A#9#

6< K).93)9-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##10P*2-P0/)N).# #.N..# O10P*2-P0/)N))Q09).9-.-/

)313312BDEG#$LMK#KR 6 9BJF#BLF4FKL4E 4I$FM #3N/03A #3N/03A#9#

6< K).93)9-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##10P*2-P0/)N).# #.N..# O10P*2-P0/)N))Q09).9-.-/

)3133*.BDEG#$LMK#KR 6 9I C4J#64KLBLK#

MCK< LJLCM

4I$FM #3NA*-* #3NA*-*#9#

6< K).93)9-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P.31P...N..# #.N..# O12P.31P...N..Q*909-.-/

)3133*)BDEG#$LMK#KR 6 9I C4J#64KLBLK#

MCK< LJLCM

4I$FM #3NA*-* #3NA*-*#9#

6< K).93)9-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P.31P...N..# #.N..# O12P.31P...N..Q*909-.-/

)3-)A20B C$$LC#54K 9I C4J#64KLBLK#

MCK< LJLCM

K4EEIRY4IS #1N)-*. #1N-3*.#9#

K4EE# C64S#6 LFKL64E))939-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q #.N..#O12P0A.P...N..Q #.N..# #12P0A.P...N..#)-939-.-A

LFJ))939-.-* #.N..# O2A3P2*0N33Q#.N..# #.N..# #2A3P2*0N33#)-939-.-A

)3))AA1BDEG#$LMK#KR 6 9J$#MCK< LJLCM 4I$FM #1N.010 #1N.010#9#

54J))919-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q O)P-0-P111N11QO10PA)AP***N*/Q #.N..# #*.P...P...N..#))919-.-*

)33./))<M#J C4M< S#F9G 9FR5< 4#

MCK< LJLCM#

LFJEN

<MJGLEE #1N-A00 #1N-A00#9#

54J))919-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q O*/2P0A*N..QO12P13.P)-*N..Q #.N..# #*.P...P...N..#))919-.-*

)33./)-<M#J C4M< S#F9G 94K4$C5S#

MCK< LJLCM

<MJGLEE #1N-A23 #1N-A23#9#

54J))919-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q O*/2P21-N3/QO12P13.P.*AN/1Q #.N..# #*.P...P...N..#))919-.-*

)313/2/BDEG#$LMK#KR 6 95R I4F#

MJ4FECS

4I$FM #3N/03A #3N/03A#9#

6< K))919-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##10P*2-P0/)N).# #.N..# O10P*2-P0/)N))Q09)19-.-/

)313/2ABDEG#$LMK#KR 6 958Z!;?#M':!78&8'=#

<M4#L":

4I$FM #3N/03A #3N/03A#9#

6< K))919-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##10P*2-P0/)N).# #.N..# O10P*2-P0/)N))Q09)19-.-/

)313/20BDEG#$LMK#KR 6 9,6#5R I4F#

KD4MC#[#KR

4I$FM #3N/03A #3N/03A#9#

6< K))919-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##10P*2-P0/)N).# #.N..# O10P*2-P0/)N))Q09)19-.-/

)3-)A2*B C$$LC#54K 9BJF#BLF4FKL4E K4EEIRY4IS #3N2... #1N.).3#9#

K4EE# C64S#6 LFKL64E))9*9-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q #.N..#O12P0A.P...N..Q #.N..# #12P0A.P...N..#))9*9-.-A

LFJ))9*9-.-* #.N..# O2A*P...N..Q#.N..# #.N..# #2A*P...N..#))9*9-.-A

W!'7X(#$%8TX#J7%"=%:&8?"# 'U?7&
Page 43 of 61



      !"#$%&%'$(

)*+&$ , !)--&%$(

   !./0#( , 1+''

"#'$

234%

5+'$6/& 7/89%5+94+#,

:0%8;!<(

2&/#'

234%

=/$9&0$3

>/$%

?&+@%&"''9%&>%/8

 !"#$%&'( )*+,%"+-.-/#.0(12(13#45

678"&#$%&'( )9)*9-.-/

5+9#$3 +A B&/#C%

>%$/08 2&/#'/-$0+# G%4+&$

  2&/#'/-$0+# >/$% H&+*  IJDB-$DKIKL  2+  MJD>%-DKIKL

&:;!<='7(

6%>'#A#?@#-.

2&/#'

>/$%

69&-N/'%;

"#$%&%'$

O%$$8%*%#$

H9#;P B&/#C% 5+9#$3 2&%/'9&3 6++8

)3-)A2AB C$$LC#54K 9BJF#BLF4FKL4E K4EEIRY4IS #3N2... #1N.121#9#

K4EE# C64S#6 LFKL64E))9*9-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q #.N..#O12P0-*P...N..Q #.N..# #12P0-*P...N..#))9*9-.-A

LFJ))9*9-.-* #.N..# O2*3P333N33Q#.N..# #.N..# #2*3P333N33#))9*9-.-A

)3132.1BDEG#$LMK#KR 6 9J$#MCK< LJLCM 4I$FM #3N/10A #3N/10A#9#

6< K))9*9-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##10P*).P-*.N..# #.N..# O10P*).P-*.N..Q2919-.-/

)3132.*BDEG#$LMK#KR 6 9 4S5RF$#

,45CM

4I$FM #3N/*/A #3N/*/A#9#

6< K))9*9-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##10P*1.P***N**# #.N..# O10P*1.P***N*/Q09-09-.-/

)3132./BDEG#$LMK#KR 6 9GFS#5'TT?"#

K%U8&%T#5%7V'&

4I$FM #3N/*/A #3N/*/A#9#

6< K))9*9-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##10P*1.P***N**# #.N..# O10P*1.P***N*/Q09-09-.-/

)-/A0))BC$#B4 5#K #GH 9$C<JMKDC 4IFB) #1N00.. #1N00.A#9#

LFJ))9/9-.-* #.N..# O)P--.P...N..Q#.N..# #.N..# #)P--.P...N..#))9/9-.-/

)33.3A/BDEG#$LMK#KR 6 9FR5< 4#

MCK< LJLCM#

LFJEN

4I$FM #1N-0*1 #1N-0*1#9#

54J))9/9-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q O*00P)21N11QO12P1))P0.*N*/Q #.N..# #*.P...P...N..#))9/9-.-*

)333-10B4FFLC#54C 9I C4J#64KLBLK#

MCK< LJLCM

4IFB) #3NA*.. #3N0-.1#9#

M4EC))9/9-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q O**0P*1)N/AQO12P2.*P...N..Q #.N..# #*.P1/3P*1)N/A#A9/9-.-0

)333-12B4FFLC#54C 9I C4J#64KLBLK#

MCK< LJLCM

4IFB) #3NA*.. #3N0-.1#9#

M4EC))9/9-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q O**0P*1)N//QO12P2.*P...N..Q #.N..# #*.P1/3P*1)N//#A9/9-.-0

)311./.B4FFLC#54C 9I C4J#64KLBLK#

MCK< LJLCM

K4EEIRY4IS #3NA*.. #3N0)32#9#

6< K))9/9-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P00-P*..N..# #.N..# O12P00-P*..N..Q))9/9-.-2

)311./)B4FFLC#54C 9I C4J#64KLBLK#

MCK< LJLCM

K4EEIRY4IS #3NA*.. #3N0)32#9#

6< K))9/9-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P00-P*..N..# #.N..# O12P00-P*..N..Q))9/9-.-2

)311./-B4FFLC#54C 9I C4J#64KLBLK#

MCK< LJLCM

K4EEIRY4IS #3NA*.. #3N0)32#9#

6< K))9/9-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P00-P*..N..# #.N..# O12P00-P*..N..Q))9/9-.-2

)311./3B4FFLC#54C 9I C4J#64KLBLK#

MCK< LJLCM

K4EEIRY4IS #3NA*.. #3N0)32#9#

6< K))9/9-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P00-P*..N..# #.N..# O12P00-P*..N..Q))9/9-.-2

)311./1BDEG#$LMK#KR 6 9MLCGC J#

\LEEL45M#

MD4FH#[#KRN

4I$FM #3N//)- #3N//)-#9#

6< K))9/9-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##10P10)P300N2.# #.N..# O10P10)P300N02Q29).9-.-/

W!'7X(#$%8TX#J7%"=%:&8?"# 'U?7&
Page 44 of 61



      !"#$%&%'$(

)*+&$ , !)--&%$(

   !./0#( , 1+''

"#'$

234%

5+'$6/& 7/89%5+94+#,

:0%8;!<(

2&/#'

234%

=/$9&0$3

>/$%

?&+@%&"''9%&>%/8

 !"#$%&'( )*+,%"+-.-/#.0(12(13#45

678"&#$%&'( )9)*9-.-/

5+9#$3 +A B&/#C%

>%$/08 2&/#'/-$0+# G%4+&$

  2&/#'/-$0+# >/$% H&+*  IJDB-$DKIKL  2+  MJD>%-DKIKL

&:;!<='7(

6%>'#0#?@#-.

2&/#'

>/$%

69&-N/'%;

"#$%&%'$

O%$$8%*%#$

H9#;P B&/#C% 5+9#$3 2&%/'9&3 6++8

)311./*<M#J C4M< S#F9G 9<GM <MJGLEE #3N01*0 #3N01*0#9#

6< K))9/9-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P/2AP30*N1.# #.N..# O12P/2AP30*N1-Q)9-9-.-/

)).1*0/B4FFLC#54C 95R I4F#

MJ4FECS#])

4IFB) #.N*... #.NA)-2#9#

LFJ))9A9-.-* #.N..# O)-*P...N..Q#.N..# #.N..# #)-*P...N..#))9A9-.-*

54J))9A9-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q O102P...N..QO12P*))P...N..Q #.N..# #*.P...P...N..#))9A9-.-*

)-/3*03BC$#D5#EF#GH#G$ 9 GK 4IFB) #1N/).. #1N/)-3#9#

LFJ))9A9-.-* #.N..# O)P)*-P*..N..Q#.N..# #.N..# #)P)*-P*..N..#*9A9-.-/

)3....0BC$#B4 5#K #GH 9G4 KE4SM#

K46LJ4E

4I$FM #1N)2-1 #1N)2-1#9#

54J))9A9-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q O)P0)0P...N..QO10P)0-P...N..Q #.N..# #*.P...P...N..#))9A9-.-*

)3.0-A.BC$#B4 5#K #GH 9G4 KE4SM#

K46LJ4E

4I$FM #1N-1/1 #1N-1/1#9#

54J))9A9-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q O)P10APAAANA0QO10P*)-P---N--Q #.N..# #*.P...P...N..#))9A9-.-*

)3.0A12BC$#B4 5#K #GH 9$4L\4#

K46LJ4E#

54 HCJM

4I$FM #1N-33A #1N-33A#9#

54J))9A9-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q O)P1/)P333N33QO10P*30P///N/AQ #.N..# #*.P...P...N..#))9A9-.-*

)311-/3<M#J C4M< S#F9G 9FR5< 4#

MCK< LJLCM#

LFJEN

<MJGLEE #3N0-3/ #3N0-3/#9#

6< K))9A9-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12PA.1P3//N/*# #.N..# O12PA.1P3//N/AQ)9-9-.-/

)330A.2B C$$LC#54K 9I C4J#64KLBLK#

MCK< LJLCM

K4EEIRY4IS #3N0*.. #3N00-)#9#

LFJ))909-.-* #.N..# O-.0P*1)N/AQ#.N..# #.N..# #-.0P*1)N/A#))909-.-0

)330A)-B C$$LC#54K 9I C4J#64KLBLK#

MCK< LJLCM

K4EEIRY4IS #3N0*.. #3N00-)#9#

LFJ))909-.-* #.N..# O-.0P*1)N/AQ#.N..# #.N..# #-.0P*1)N/A#))909-.-0

)330A)3B C$$LC#54K 9I C4J#64KLBLK#

MCK< LJLCM

K4EEIRY4IS #3N0*.. #3N00-)#9#

LFJ))909-.-* #.N..# O-.0P*1)N/AQ#.N..# #.N..# #-.0P*1)N/A#))909-.-0

)-/A-12BC$#B4 5#K #GH 9,6#5R I4F#

KD4MC#[#KR

4IFB) #1N2... #1N2.))#9#

LFJ))9).9-.-* #.N..# O)P--*P...N..Q#.N..# #.N..# #)P--*P...N..#))9).9-.-/

)3.AA.ABDEG#$LMK#KR 6 9KLJLI R<6#

IERG4E#

54 HCJM

4I$FM #1N-*/- #1N-*/-#9#

54J))9).9-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q O)P*1)P)1*N03QO10P1*0P0*1N)AQ #.N..# #*.P...P...N..#))9).9-.-*

W!'7X(#$%8TX#J7%"=%:&8?"# 'U?7&
Page 45 of 61



      !"#$%&%'$(

)*+&$ , !)--&%$(

   !./0#( , 1+''

"#'$

234%

5+'$6/& 7/89%5+94+#,

:0%8;!<(

2&/#'

234%

=/$9&0$3

>/$%

?&+@%&"''9%&>%/8

 !"#$%&'( )*+,%"+-.-/#.0(12(13#45

678"&#$%&'( )9)*9-.-/

5+9#$3 +A B&/#C%

>%$/08 2&/#'/-$0+# G%4+&$

  2&/#'/-$0+# >/$% H&+*  IJDB-$DKIKL  2+  MJD>%-DKIKL

&:;!<='7(

6%>'#2#?@#-.

2&/#'

>/$%

69&-N/'%;

"#$%&%'$

O%$$8%*%#$

H9#;P B&/#C% 5+9#$3 2&%/'9&3 6++8

)3.0A10BC$#B4 5#K #GH 9<GM#BLF4FKL4E#

MC YLKCM

4I$FM #1N-3*- #1N-3*-#9#

54J))9).9-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q O)P1A0P1*0N33QO10P*-)P*1)N/AQ #.N..# #*.P...P...N..#))9).9-.-*

)3))AA*BDEG#$LMK#KR 6 9G4FH#RB#

45C LK4

4I$FM #1N.0A/ #1N.0A/#9#

54J))9).9-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q O)P3)*P/))N)*QO10P/01P300N0*Q #.N..# #*.P...P...N..#))9).9-.-*

)3-)A2.B C$$LC#54K 9I C4J#64KLBLK#

MCK< LJLCM

K4EEIRY4IS #3N2*.. #1N.1A.#9#

K4EE# C64S#6 LFKL64E))9)-9-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q #.N..#O12P003P2*.N..Q #.N..# #12P003P2*.N..#))9)-9-.-A

LFJ))9)-9-.-* #.N..# O)P.1-P3/)N))Q#.N..# #.N..# #)P.1-P3/)N))#))9)-9-.-A

)-/A.21BC$#B4 5#K #GH 9J$#MCK< LJLCM 4IFB) #1N02.. #1N02)1#9#

LFJ))9)39-.-* #.N..# O)P---P*..N..Q#.N..# #.N..# #)P---P*..N..#))9)39-.-/

)311030B C$$LC#54K 9I C4J#64KLBLK#

MCK< LJLCM

K4EEIRY4IS #3NA*.. #3N0)1A#9#

6< K))9)39-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P00.P...N..# #.N..# O12P00.P...N..Q)-9)-9-.-2

)311032B C$$LC#54K 9I C4J#64KLBLK#

MCK< LJLCM

K4EEIRY4IS #3NA*.. #3N0)1A#9#

6< K))9)39-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P00.P...N..# #.N..# O12P00.P...N..Q)-9)-9-.-2

)31101.B C$$LC#54K 9I C4J#64KLBLK#

MCK< LJLCM

K4EEIRY4IS #3NA*.. #3N0)1A#9#

6< K))9)39-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P00.P...N..# #.N..# O12P00.P...N..Q)-9)-9-.-2

)311013B C$$LC#54K 9I C4J#64KLBLK#

MCK< LJLCM

K4EEIRY4IS #3NA*.. #3N0)1A#9#

6< K))9)39-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P00.P...N..# #.N..# O12P00.P...N..Q)-9)-9-.-2

)3..../BC$#B4 5#K #GH 9$C<JMKDC 4I$FM #1N)2*2 #1N)2*2#9#

54J))9)19-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q O)P0*AP-AANA0QO10P)1-PA--N--Q #.N..# #*.P...P...N..#))9)19-.-*

)-1A3..<M#J C4M< S#F9G 95R I4F#

MJ4FECS

J G$L #-N0A*. #1N1*A-#9#

LFJ))9)*9-.-* #.N..# OA)0PA*.N..Q#.N..# #.N..# #A)0PA*.N..#*9)*9-.-0

)-1A2.A<M#J C4M< S#F9G 958Z!;?#M':!78&8'=#

<M4#L":

J G$L #3N)-*. #1N1)2-#9#

LFJ))9)*9-.-* #.N..# OA0)P-*.N..Q#.N..# #.N..# #A0)P-*.N..#))9)*9-.-0

)-121*.<M#J C4M< S#F9G 95R I4F#

MJ4FECS

J G$L #)N/-*. #1N*)//#9#

LFJ))9)*9-.-* #.N..# O1./P-*.N..Q#.N..# #.N..# #1./P-*.N..#*9)*9-.-/

)-*11.*<M#J C4M< S#F9G 95R I4F#

MJ4FECS

J G$L #)N/-*. #1N-3A3#9#

LFJ))9)*9-.-* #.N..# O1./P-*.N..Q#.N..# #.N..# #1./P-*.N..#*9)*9-.-/

W!'7X(#$%8TX#J7%"=%:&8?"# 'U?7&
Page 46 of 61



      !"#$%&%'$(

)*+&$ , !)--&%$(

   !./0#( , 1+''

"#'$

234%

5+'$6/& 7/89%5+94+#,

:0%8;!<(

2&/#'

234%

=/$9&0$3

>/$%

?&+@%&"''9%&>%/8

 !"#$%&'( )*+,%"+-.-/#.0(12(13#45

678"&#$%&'( )9)*9-.-/

5+9#$3 +A B&/#C%

>%$/08 2&/#'/-$0+# G%4+&$

  2&/#'/-$0+# >/$% H&+*  IJDB-$DKIKL  2+  MJD>%-DKIKL

&:;!<='7(

6%>'#).#?@#-.

2&/#'

>/$%

69&-N/'%;

"#$%&%'$

O%$$8%*%#$

H9#;P B&/#C% 5+9#$3 2&%/'9&3 6++8

)-*2211<M#J C4M< S#F9G 95R I4F#

MJ4FECS

J G$L #-N.... #1N*.A*#9#

LFJ))9)*9-.-* #.N..# O*..P...N..Q#.N..# #.N..# #*..P...N..#))9)*9-.-/

)3)./1*<M#J C4M< S#F9G 9 GK J G$L #-N-*.. #1N)31*#9#

LFJ))9)*9-.-* #.N..# O*/-P*..N..Q#.N..# #.N..# #*/-P*..N..#))9)*9-.-*

54J))9)*9-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q O/-0P2./N-*QO12P3A)P.23NA*Q #.N..# #*.P...P...N..#))9)*9-.-*

)3-31-1<M#J C4M< S#F9G 9 GK J G$L #3N/-*. #1N)-AA#9#

LFJ))9)*9-.-* #.N..# O2./P-*.N..Q#.N..# #.N..# #2./P-*.N..#*9)*9-.-/

))102)0BC$#B4 5#K #GH 9BJF#BLF4FKL4E 4IFB) #)N.*.. #)N.2..#9#

LFJ))9)A9-.-* #.N..# O)3)P-*.N..Q#.N..# #.N..# #)3)P-*.N..#))9)A9-.-*

54J))9)A9-.-* O-*P...P...N..Q O32P.3/N**QO-1P2/.P2/3N1*Q #.N..# #-*P...P...N..#))9)A9-.-*

))102)2BC$#B4 5#K #GH 9I C4J#64KLBLK#

MCK< LJLCM

4IFB) #)N.*.. #)N.2.-#9#

LFJ))9)A9-.-* #.N..# O)3)P-*.N..Q#.N..# #.N..# #)3)P-*.N..#))9)A9-.-*

54J))9)A9-.-* O-*P...P...N..Q O32P-*.N..QO-1P2/.PA*.N..Q #.N..# #-*P...P...N..#))9)A9-.-*

)-/A1/3BC$#B4 5#K #GH 9,CBBC LCM#[#

KR564FS

4IFB) #1N2... #1N2.)1#9#

LFJ))9)A9-.-* #.N..# O)P--*P...N..Q#.N..# #.N..# #)P--*P...N..#))9)A9-.-/

)3-)A21B C$$LC#54K 9$4L\4#

K46LJ4E#

54 HCJM

K4EEIRY4IS #3N2... #1N.*..#9#

K4EE# C64S#6 LFKL64E))9)29-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q #.N..#O12P0-.P...N..Q #.N..# #12P0-.P...N..#))9)29-.-A

LFJ))9)29-.-* #.N..# O)P.*.P033N33Q#.N..# #.N..# #)P.*.P033N33#))9)29-.-A

)-/1122BC$#B4 5#K #GH 9K4MJEC#R4H#

MCK< LJLCM

4IFB) #1N*2.. #1N*2-)#9#

LFJ))9-.9-.-* #.N..# O)P)1AP*..N..Q#.N..# #.N..# #)P)1AP*..N..#))9-.9-.-/

)31*0-1B C$$LC#54K 9I C4J#64KLBLK#

MCK< LJLCM

K4EEIRY4IS #3NA*.. #3N0-31#9#

6< K))9-.9-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P0/*P...N..# #.N..# O12P0/*P...N..Q))9-.9-.-2

)31*0-*B C$$LC#54K 9I C4J#64KLBLK#

MCK< LJLCM

K4EEIRY4IS #3NA*.. #3N0-31#9#

6< K))9-.9-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P0/*P...N..# #.N..# O12P0/*P...N..Q))9-.9-.-2

)31*0-/B C$$LC#54K 9I C4J#64KLBLK#

MCK< LJLCM

K4EEIRY4IS #3NA*.. #3N0-31#9#

6< K))9-.9-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P0/*P...N..# #.N..# O12P0/*P...N..Q))9-.9-.-2

)31*0-AB C$$LC#54K 9I C4J#64KLBLK#

MCK< LJLCM

K4EEIRY4IS #3NA*.. #3N0-31#9#

6< K))9-.9-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P0/*P...N..# #.N..# O12P0/*P...N..Q))9-.9-.-2

W!'7X(#$%8TX#J7%"=%:&8?"# 'U?7&
Page 47 of 61



      !"#$%&%'$(

)*+&$ , !)--&%$(

   !./0#( , 1+''

"#'$

234%

5+'$6/& 7/89%5+94+#,

:0%8;!<(

2&/#'

234%

=/$9&0$3

>/$%

?&+@%&"''9%&>%/8

 !"#$%&'( )*+,%"+-.-/#.0(12(13#45

678"&#$%&'( )9)*9-.-/

5+9#$3 +A B&/#C%

>%$/08 2&/#'/-$0+# G%4+&$

  2&/#'/-$0+# >/$% H&+*  IJDB-$DKIKL  2+  MJD>%-DKIKL

&:;!<='7(

6%>'#))#?@#-.

2&/#'

>/$%

69&-N/'%;

"#$%&%'$

O%$$8%*%#$

H9#;P B&/#C% 5+9#$3 2&%/'9&3 6++8

)31*0-0BC$#B4 5#K #GH 9$4L\4#

K46LJ4E#

54 HCJM

4I$FM #3N0-)1 #3N0-)1#9#

6< K))9-.9-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P*02P1)/N/*# #.N..# O12P*02P1)/N/AQ-9/9-.-/

)31*0-2BC$#B4 5#K #GH 9$4L\4#

K46LJ4E#

54 HCJM

4I$FM #3N0-)1 #3N0-)1#9#

6< K))9-.9-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P*02P1)/N/*# #.N..# O12P*02P1)/N/AQ-9/9-.-/

)31*03.BC$#B4 5#K #GH 9$4L\4#

K46LJ4E#

54 HCJM

4I$FM #3N0-)1 #3N0-)1#9#

6< K))9-.9-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P*02P1)/N/*# #.N..# O12P*02P1)/N/AQ-9/9-.-/

)31*03-BC$#B4 5#K #GH 9$4L\4#

K46LJ4E#

54 HCJM

4I$FM #3N0-)1 #3N0-)1#9#

6< K))9-.9-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P*02P1)/N/*# #.N..# O12P*02P1)/N/AQ-9/9-.-/

)31*03AB C$$LC#54K 9 GK K4EEIRY4IS #3NA*.. #3N0-02#9#

6< K))9-.9-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P0**P...N..# #.N..# O12P0**P...N..Q))9-.9-.-2

)31*030B C$$LC#54K 9 GK K4EEIRY4IS #3NA*.. #3N0-02#9#

6< K))9-.9-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P0**P...N..# #.N..# O12P0**P...N..Q))9-.9-.-2

)31*032B C$$LC#54K 9 GK K4EEIRY4IS #3NA*.. #3N0-02#9#

6< K))9-.9-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P0**P...N..# #.N..# O12P0**P...N..Q))9-.9-.-2

)31*01.B C$$LC#54K 9 GK K4EEIRY4IS #3NA*.. #3N0-02#9#

6< K))9-.9-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P0**P...N..# #.N..# O12P0**P...N..Q))9-.9-.-2

)3.0-A)BC$#B4 5#K #GH 9,CBBC LCM#[#

KR564FS

4I$FM #1N-1-A #1N-1-A#9#

54J))9-)9-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q O)P*/1P.03N3*QO10P13*P2)/N/*Q #.N..# #*.P...P...N..#))9-)9-.-*

)3.21-*BC$#B4 5#K #GH 958Z!;?#M':!78&8'=#

<M4#L":

4I$FM #1N)A*1 #1N)A*1#9#

54J))9-)9-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q O)P*.)P0A*N..QO10P120P)-*N..Q #.N..# #*.P...P...N..#))9-)9-.-*

)3)31)3BC$#B4 5#K #GH 9BJF#BLF4FKL4E 4IFB) #1N)... #1N).32#9#

LFJ))9--9-.-* #.N..# O)P.-*P...N..Q#.N..# #.N..# #)P.-*P...N..#*9--9-.-/

)))*/23BC$#D5#EF#GH#G$ 9I C4J#64KLBLK#

MCK< LJLCM

K4EEIRY4IS #.NA/.. #.NA/..#9#

LFJ))9-19-.-* #.N..# O*AP...N..Q#.N..# #.N..# #*AP...N..#))9-19-.-*

54J))9-19-.-* O)*P...P...N..Q #.N..#O)*P...P...N..Q #.N..# #)*P...P...N..#))9-19-.-*

W!'7X(#$%8TX#J7%"=%:&8?"# 'U?7&
Page 48 of 61



      !"#$%&%'$(

)*+&$ , !)--&%$(

   !./0#( , 1+''

"#'$

234%

5+'$6/& 7/89%5+94+#,

:0%8;!<(

2&/#'

234%

=/$9&0$3

>/$%

?&+@%&"''9%&>%/8

 !"#$%&'( )*+,%"+-.-/#.0(12(13#45

678"&#$%&'( )9)*9-.-/

5+9#$3 +A B&/#C%

>%$/08 2&/#'/-$0+# G%4+&$

  2&/#'/-$0+# >/$% H&+*  IJDB-$DKIKL  2+  MJD>%-DKIKL

&:;!<='7(

6%>'#)-#?@#-.

2&/#'

>/$%

69&-N/'%;

"#$%&%'$

O%$$8%*%#$

H9#;P B&/#C% 5+9#$3 2&%/'9&3 6++8

)331*1ABDEG#$LMK#KR 6 9KLJLI R<6#

IERG4E#

54 HCJM

4I$FM #1N)3/1 #1N)3/1#9#

54J))9-19-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q O*..P*..N..QO12P122P*..N..Q #.N..# #*.P...P...N..#))9-19-.-*

)331*10BDEG#$LMK#KR 6 9FR5< 4#

MCK< LJLCM#

LFJEN

4I$FM #1N)3/1 #1N)3/1#9#

54J))9-19-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q O*..P*..N..QO12P122P*..N..Q #.N..# #*.P...P...N..#))9-19-.-*

)331*12B C$$LC#

$LMKR<FJ

9J$#MCK< LJLCM 4I$FM #1N)3)3 #1N)3)3#9#

54J))9-19-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q O122P000N02QO12P*..P)))N))Q #.N..# #*.P...P...N..#))9-19-.-*

)331A/1B C$$LC#

$LMKR<FJ

9,6#5R I4F#

KD4MC#[#KR

4I$FM #1N)-*A #1N)-*A#9#

54J))9-19-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q O123P/.1N)/QO12P*./P32*N01Q #.N..# #*.P...P...N..#))9-19-.-*

)331A/*BF54#$LMKR<FJ 9G4 KE4SM#

K46LJ4E

4I$FM #1N)-./ #1N)-./#9#

54J))9-19-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q O123P...N..QO12P*.AP...N..Q #.N..# #*.P...P...N..#))9-19-.-*

)331A//BF54#$LMKR<FJ 9BJF#BLF4FKL4E 4I$FM #1N)-./ #1N)-./#9#

54J))9-19-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q O123P...N..QO12P*.AP...N..Q #.N..# #*.P...P...N..#))9-19-.-*

)3.21-/BDEG#$LMK#KR 6 9I C4J#64KLBLK#

MCK< LJLCM

4I$FM #1N)AA0 #1N)AA0#9#

54J))9-/9-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q O)P*3.P...N..QO10P1A.P...N..Q #.N..# #*.P...P...N..#))9-/9-.-*

)3.21-ABDEG#$LMK#KR 6 9I C4J#64KLBLK#

MCK< LJLCM

4I$FM #1N)AA0 #1N)AA0#9#

54J))9-/9-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q O)P*3.P...N..QO10P1A.P...N..Q #.N..# #*.P...P...N..#))9-/9-.-*

)3-)0.1B C$$LC#54K 9I C4J#64KLBLK#

MCK< LJLCM

K4EEIRY4IS #3N2*.. #1N.3A)#9#

K4EE#LFJC CMJ))9-/9-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q #.N..#O12P2).P...N..Q #.N..# #12P2).P...N..#A9-/9-.-A

K4EE# C64S#6 LFKL64E))9-/9-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q #.N..#O12P2).P...N..Q #.N..# #12P2).P...N..#A9-/9-.-A

)))/*)-BC$#D5#EF#GH#G$ 9I C4J#64KLBLK#

MCK< LJLCM

K4EEIRY4IS #.NA2.. #.NA2..#9#

LFJ))9-09-.-* #.N..# O20PA*.N..Q#.N..# #.N..# #20PA*.N..#))9-09-.-*

54J))9-09-.-* O-*P...P...N..Q #.N..#O-*P...P...N..Q #.N..# #-*P...P...N..#))9-09-.-*

)31/0./B C$$LC#54K 9$4L\4#

K46LJ4E#

54 HCJM

K4EEIRY4IS #3N/*.. #3NA-0A#9#

6< K))9-09-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P0**P...N..# #.N..# O12P0**P...N..Q))9-09-.-2

W!'7X(#$%8TX#J7%"=%:&8?"# 'U?7&
Page 49 of 61



      !"#$%&%'$(

)*+&$ , !)--&%$(

   !./0#( , 1+''

"#'$

234%

5+'$6/& 7/89%5+94+#,

:0%8;!<(

2&/#'

234%

=/$9&0$3

>/$%

?&+@%&"''9%&>%/8

 !"#$%&'( )*+,%"+-.-/#.0(12(13#45

678"&#$%&'( )9)*9-.-/

5+9#$3 +A B&/#C%

>%$/08 2&/#'/-$0+# G%4+&$

  2&/#'/-$0+# >/$% H&+*  IJDB-$DKIKL  2+  MJD>%-DKIKL

&:;!<='7(

6%>'#)3#?@#-.

2&/#'

>/$%

69&-N/'%;

"#$%&%'$

O%$$8%*%#$

H9#;P B&/#C% 5+9#$3 2&%/'9&3 6++8

)31/0.AB C$$LC#54K 9$4L\4#

K46LJ4E#

54 HCJM

K4EEIRY4IS #3N/*.. #3NA-0A#9#

6< K))9-09-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P0**P...N..# #.N..# O12P0**P...N..Q))9-09-.-2

)31/0.0B C$$LC#54K 9$4L\4#

K46LJ4E#

54 HCJM

K4EEIRY4IS #3N/*.. #3NA-0A#9#

6< K))9-09-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P0**P...N..# #.N..# O12P0**P...N..Q))9-09-.-2

)31/0.2B C$$LC#54K 9$4L\4#

K46LJ4E#

54 HCJM

K4EEIRY4IS #3N/*.. #3NA-0A#9#

6< K))9-09-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P0**P...N..# #.N..# O12P0**P...N..Q))9-09-.-2

)31/0).B C$$LC#54K 9I C4J#64KLBLK#

MCK< LJLCM

K4EEIRY4IS #3N/*.. #3NA-0A#9#

6< K))9-09-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P0**P...N..# #.N..# O12P0**P...N..Q))9-09-.-2

)31/0))B C$$LC#54K 9I C4J#64KLBLK#

MCK< LJLCM

K4EEIRY4IS #3N/*.. #3NA-0A#9#

6< K))9-09-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P0**P...N..# #.N..# O12P0**P...N..Q))9-09-.-2

)31/0)-B C$$LC#54K 9I C4J#64KLBLK#

MCK< LJLCM

K4EEIRY4IS #3N/*.. #3NA-0A#9#

6< K))9-09-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P0**P...N..# #.N..# O12P0**P...N..Q))9-09-.-2

)31/0)3B C$$LC#54K 9I C4J#64KLBLK#

MCK< LJLCM

K4EEIRY4IS #3N/*.. #3NA-0A#9#

6< K))9-09-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P0**P...N..# #.N..# O12P0**P...N..Q))9-09-.-2

)-*2/1.<M#J C4M< S#F9G 9K4MJEC#R4H#

MCK< LJLCM

J G$5C #)N-*.. #1N*./3#9#

LFJ))93.9-.-* #.N..# O3)-P*..N..Q#.N..# #.N..# #3)-P*..N..#))93.9-.-/

)31A-*0BDEG#$LMK#KR 6 9G4 KE4SM#

K46LJ4E

4I$FM #3N/.3A #3N/.3A#9#

6< K)-9-9-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##10P*/)P)))N).# #.N..# O10P*/)P)))N))Q29-19-.-/

)31A-*2B C$$LC#54K 9 GK K4EEIRY4IS #3NA... #3NAA0A#9#

6< K)-9-9-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P0**P...N..# #.N..# O12P0**P...N..Q)-939-.-2

)31A-/.B C$$LC#54K 9 GK K4EEIRY4IS #3NA... #3NAA0A#9#

6< K)-9-9-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P0**P...N..# #.N..# O12P0**P...N..Q)-939-.-2

)31A-/)B C$$LC#54K 9 GK K4EEIRY4IS #3NA... #3NAA0A#9#

6< K)-9-9-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P0**P...N..# #.N..# O12P0**P...N..Q)-939-.-2

)31A-/-B C$$LC#54K 9 GK K4EEIRY4IS #3NA... #3NAA0A#9#

6< K)-9-9-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P0**P...N..# #.N..# O12P0**P...N..Q)-939-.-2

W!'7X(#$%8TX#J7%"=%:&8?"# 'U?7&
Page 50 of 61



      !"#$%&%'$(

)*+&$ , !)--&%$(

   !./0#( , 1+''

"#'$

234%

5+'$6/& 7/89%5+94+#,

:0%8;!<(

2&/#'

234%

=/$9&0$3

>/$%

?&+@%&"''9%&>%/8

 !"#$%&'( )*+,%"+-.-/#.0(12(13#45

678"&#$%&'( )9)*9-.-/

5+9#$3 +A B&/#C%

>%$/08 2&/#'/-$0+# G%4+&$

  2&/#'/-$0+# >/$% H&+*  IJDB-$DKIKL  2+  MJD>%-DKIKL

&:;!<='7(

6%>'#)1#?@#-.

2&/#'

>/$%

69&-N/'%;

"#$%&%'$

O%$$8%*%#$

H9#;P B&/#C% 5+9#$3 2&%/'9&3 6++8

)3-)A23B C$$LC#54K 9BJF#BLF4FKL4E K4EEIRY4IS #3N2*.. #1N./-*#9#

K4EE# C64S#6 LFKL64E)-939-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q #.N..#O12P0/*P...N..Q #.N..# #12P0/*P...N..#)-939-.-A

LFJ)-939-.-* #.N..# O20AP*..N..Q#.N..# #.N..# #20AP*..N..#)-939-.-A

)31A1**<M#J C4M< S#F9G 9FR5< 4#

MCK< LJLCM#

LFJEN

<MJGLEE #3N*0-1 #3N*0-1#9#

6< K)-939-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##10P1).P-A.N0*# #.N..# O10P1).P-A.N03Q).9-29-.-/

)31A1*/B C$$LC#54K 9I C4J#64KLBLK#

MCK< LJLCM

K4EEIRY4IS #3NA*.. #3N0)0)#9#

6< K)-939-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P0/.P...N..# #.N..# O12P0/.P...N..Q/9A9-.3.

)31A1*AB C$$LC#54K 9I C4J#64KLBLK#

MCK< LJLCM

K4EEIRY4IS #3NA*.. #3N0)0)#9#

6< K)-939-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P0/.P...N..# #.N..# O12P0/.P...N..Q/9A9-.3.

)31A1*0B C$$LC#54K 9I C4J#64KLBLK#

MCK< LJLCM

K4EEIRY4IS #3NA*.. #3N0)0)#9#

6< K)-939-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P0/.P...N..# #.N..# O12P0/.P...N..Q/9A9-.3.

)31A1*2B C$$LC#54K 9I C4J#64KLBLK#

MCK< LJLCM

K4EEIRY4IS #3NA*.. #3N0)0)#9#

6< K)-939-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P0/.P...N..# #.N..# O12P0/.P...N..Q/9A9-.3.

)31A1/.B C$$LC#54K 9<GM#BLF4FKL4E#

MC YLKCM

K4EEIRY4IS #3NA*.. #3N0-3)#9#

6< K)-939-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P0*.P...N..# #.N..# O12P0*.P...N..Q/9*9-.3.

)31A1/)B C$$LC#54K 9<GM#BLF4FKL4E#

MC YLKCM

K4EEIRY4IS #3NA*.. #3N0-3)#9#

6< K)-939-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P0*.P...N..# #.N..# O12P0*.P...N..Q/9*9-.3.

)31A1/-B C$$LC#54K 9<GM#BLF4FKL4E#

MC YLKCM

K4EEIRY4IS #3NA*.. #3N0-3)#9#

6< K)-939-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P0*.P...N..# #.N..# O12P0*.P...N..Q/9*9-.3.

)31A1/3B C$$LC#54K 9<GM#BLF4FKL4E#

MC YLKCM

K4EEIRY4IS #3NA*.. #3N0-3)#9#

6< K)-939-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P0*.P...N..# #.N..# O12P0*.P...N..Q/9*9-.3.

)-/A.23BC$#B4 5#K #GH 9G4 KE4S#

K46LJ4E

4IFB) #1N00.. #1N00--#9#

LFJ)-919-.-* #.N..# O)P--.P...N..Q#.N..# #.N..# #)P--.P...N..#)-919-.-/

)31A*2*B C$$LC#54K 9$4L\4#

K46LJ4E#

54 HCJM

K4EEIRY4IS #3NA*.. #3N0)0)#9#

6< K)-919-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P0/.P...N..# #.N..# O12P0/.P...N..Q/9A9-.3.

W!'7X(#$%8TX#J7%"=%:&8?"# 'U?7&
Page 51 of 61



      !"#$%&%'$(

)*+&$ , !)--&%$(

   !./0#( , 1+''

"#'$

234%

5+'$6/& 7/89%5+94+#,

:0%8;!<(

2&/#'

234%

=/$9&0$3

>/$%

?&+@%&"''9%&>%/8

 !"#$%&'( )*+,%"+-.-/#.0(12(13#45

678"&#$%&'( )9)*9-.-/

5+9#$3 +A B&/#C%

>%$/08 2&/#'/-$0+# G%4+&$

  2&/#'/-$0+# >/$% H&+*  IJDB-$DKIKL  2+  MJD>%-DKIKL

&:;!<='7(

6%>'#)*#?@#-.

2&/#'

>/$%

69&-N/'%;

"#$%&%'$

O%$$8%*%#$

H9#;P B&/#C% 5+9#$3 2&%/'9&3 6++8

)31A*2/B C$$LC#54K 9$4L\4#

K46LJ4E#

54 HCJM

K4EEIRY4IS #3NA*.. #3N0)0)#9#

6< K)-919-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P0/.P...N..# #.N..# O12P0/.P...N..Q/9A9-.3.

)31A*2AB C$$LC#54K 9$4L\4#

K46LJ4E#

54 HCJM

K4EEIRY4IS #3NA*.. #3N0)0)#9#

6< K)-919-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P0/.P...N..# #.N..# O12P0/.P...N..Q/9A9-.3.

)31A*20B C$$LC#54K 9$4L\4#

K46LJ4E#

54 HCJM

K4EEIRY4IS #3NA*.. #3N0)0)#9#

6< K)-919-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P0/.P...N..# #.N..# O12P0/.P...N..Q/9A9-.3.

)31A0.*B C$$LC#54K 9BJF#BLF4FKL4E K4EEIRY4IS #3NA*.. #3N0-.0#9#

6< K)-9*9-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P0**P...N..# #.N..# O12P0**P...N..Q/9*9-.3.

)31A0./B C$$LC#54K 9BJF#BLF4FKL4E K4EEIRY4IS #3NA*.. #3N0-.0#9#

6< K)-9*9-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P0**P...N..# #.N..# O12P0**P...N..Q/9*9-.3.

)31A0.AB C$$LC#54K 9BJF#BLF4FKL4E K4EEIRY4IS #3NA*.. #3N0-.0#9#

6< K)-9*9-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P0**P...N..# #.N..# O12P0**P...N..Q/9*9-.3.

)31A0.0B C$$LC#54K 9BJF#BLF4FKL4E K4EEIRY4IS #3NA*.. #3N0-.0#9#

6< K)-9*9-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P0**P...N..# #.N..# O12P0**P...N..Q/9*9-.3.

)31A0.2<M#J C4M< S#F9G 9,6#5R I4F#

KD4MC#[#KR

<MJGLEE #3N*A-A #3N*A-A#9#

6< K)-9*9-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##10P1-3PA3-N-.# #.N..# O10P1-3PA3-N--Q).9-29-.-/

)31A0).<M#J C4M< S#F9G 95R I4F#

MJ4FECS

<MJGLEE #3N*0./ #3N*0./#9#

6< K)-9*9-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##10P1-.P3/)N).# #.N..# O10P1-.P3/)N))Q).9-29-.-/

)31A0)3B C$$LC#54K 9MLCGC J#

\LEEL45M#

MD4FH#[#KRN

K4EEIRY4IS #3N0*.. #3N00-0#9#

6< K)-9*9-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P23.P...N..# #.N..# O12P23.P...N..QA9*9-.3.

)310.*)B C$$LC#54K 9K4MJEC#R4H#

MCK< LJLCM

K4EEIRY4IS #3NA*.. #3N0)21#9#

6< K)-909-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P0/.P...N..# #.N..# O12P0/.P...N..Q/9-09-.3.

)310.*-B C$$LC#54K 9K4MJEC#R4H#

MCK< LJLCM

K4EEIRY4IS #3NA*.. #3N0)21#9#

6< K)-909-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P0/.P...N..# #.N..# O12P0/.P...N..Q/9-09-.3.

)310.*3B C$$LC#54K 9K4MJEC#R4H#

MCK< LJLCM

K4EEIRY4IS #3NA*.. #3N0)21#9#

6< K)-909-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P0/.P...N..# #.N..# O12P0/.P...N..Q/9-09-.3.

W!'7X(#$%8TX#J7%"=%:&8?"# 'U?7&
Page 52 of 61



      !"#$%&%'$(

)*+&$ , !)--&%$(

   !./0#( , 1+''

"#'$

234%

5+'$6/& 7/89%5+94+#,

:0%8;!<(

2&/#'

234%

=/$9&0$3

>/$%

?&+@%&"''9%&>%/8

 !"#$%&'( )*+,%"+-.-/#.0(12(13#45

678"&#$%&'( )9)*9-.-/

5+9#$3 +A B&/#C%

>%$/08 2&/#'/-$0+# G%4+&$

  2&/#'/-$0+# >/$% H&+*  IJDB-$DKIKL  2+  MJD>%-DKIKL

&:;!<='7(

6%>'#)/#?@#-.

2&/#'

>/$%

69&-N/'%;

"#$%&%'$

O%$$8%*%#$

H9#;P B&/#C% 5+9#$3 2&%/'9&3 6++8

)310.*1B C$$LC#54K 9K4MJEC#R4H#

MCK< LJLCM

K4EEIRY4IS #3NA*.. #3N0)21#9#

6< K)-909-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P0/.P...N..# #.N..# O12P0/.P...N..Q/9-09-.3.

)310.*AB C$$LC#54K 9BJF#BLF4FKL4E K4EEIRY4IS #3N0... #3N0*.-#9#

6< K)-909-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P02AP*..N..# #.N..# O12P02AP*..N..Q/9/9-.3.

)310.*0B C$$LC#54K 9BJF#BLF4FKL4E K4EEIRY4IS #3N0... #3N0*.-#9#

6< K)-909-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P02AP*..N..# #.N..# O12P02AP*..N..Q/9/9-.3.

)310.*2B C$$LC#54K 9BJF#BLF4FKL4E K4EEIRY4IS #3N0... #3N0*.-#9#

6< K)-909-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P02AP*..N..# #.N..# O12P02AP*..N..Q/9/9-.3.

)310./.B C$$LC#54K 9BJF#BLF4FKL4E K4EEIRY4IS #3N0... #3N0*.-#9#

6< K)-909-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P02AP*..N..# #.N..# O12P02AP*..N..Q/9/9-.3.

)310./)B C$$LC#54K 9<GM#BLF4FKL4E#

MC YLKCM

K4EEIRY4IS #3N0... #3N0*.-#9#

6< K)-909-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P02AP*..N..# #.N..# O12P02AP*..N..Q/9*9-.3.

)310./-B C$$LC#54K 9<GM#BLF4FKL4E#

MC YLKCM

K4EEIRY4IS #3N0... #3N0*.-#9#

6< K)-909-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P02AP*..N..# #.N..# O12P02AP*..N..Q/9*9-.3.

)310./3B C$$LC#54K 9<GM#BLF4FKL4E#

MC YLKCM

K4EEIRY4IS #3N0... #3N0*.-#9#

6< K)-909-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P02AP*..N..# #.N..# O12P02AP*..N..Q/9*9-.3.

)310./1B C$$LC#54K 9<GM#BLF4FKL4E#

MC YLKCM

K4EEIRY4IS #3N0... #3N0*.-#9#

6< K)-909-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P02AP*..N..# #.N..# O12P02AP*..N..Q/9*9-.3.

)310./*B4FFLC#54C 9I C4J#64KLBLK#

MCK< LJLCM

K4EEIRY4IS #3N0... #3N0*1/#9#

6< K)-909-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P00*P...N..# #.N..# O12P00*P...N..Q29/9-.3.

)310.//B4FFLC#54C 9I C4J#64KLBLK#

MCK< LJLCM

K4EEIRY4IS #3N0... #3N0*1/#9#

6< K)-909-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P00*P...N..# #.N..# O12P00*P...N..Q29/9-.3.

)310./AB4FFLC#54C 9I C4J#64KLBLK#

MCK< LJLCM

K4EEIRY4IS #3N0... #3N0*1/#9#

6< K)-909-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P00*P...N..# #.N..# O12P00*P...N..Q29/9-.3.

)310./0B4FFLC#54C 9I C4J#64KLBLK#

MCK< LJLCM

K4EEIRY4IS #3N0... #3N0*1/#9#

6< K)-909-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##12P00*P...N..# #.N..# O12P00*P...N..Q29/9-.3.

)310*)0<M#J C4M< S#F9G 9,6#5R I4F#

KD4MC#[#KR

<MJGLEE #3N/.A1 #3N/.A1#9#

6< K)-9).9-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##10P13-P1)0N-.# #.N..# O10P13-P1)0N-.Q).9-29-.-/

W!'7X(#$%8TX#J7%"=%:&8?"# 'U?7&
Page 53 of 61



      !"#$%&%'$(

)*+&$ , !)--&%$(

   !./0#( , 1+''

"#'$

234%

5+'$6/& 7/89%5+94+#,

:0%8;!<(

2&/#'

234%

=/$9&0$3

>/$%

?&+@%&"''9%&>%/8

 !"#$%&'( )*+,%"+-.-/#.0(12(13#45

678"&#$%&'( )9)*9-.-/

5+9#$3 +A B&/#C%

>%$/08 2&/#'/-$0+# G%4+&$

  2&/#'/-$0+# >/$% H&+*  IJDB-$DKIKL  2+  MJD>%-DKIKL

&:;!<='7(

6%>'#)A#?@#-.

2&/#'

>/$%

69&-N/'%;

"#$%&%'$

O%$$8%*%#$

H9#;P B&/#C% 5+9#$3 2&%/'9&3 6++8

)310*)2<M#J C4M< S#F9G 95R I4F#

MJ4FECS

J G$L #1N/-*. #3N/103#9#

6< K)-9).9-.-* #*.P...P...N..# #.N..##*.P3/)P3-0N)*# #*12P3A0N13# O*.P2).PA./N*0Q29)*9-.-/

)310A.*B C$$LC#54K 9I C4J#64KLBLK#

MCK< LJLCM

K4EEIRY4IS #3N2*.. #3N2A22#9#

6< K)-9))9-.-* #-..P...P...N..# #.N..##)22PA1.P...N..# #.N..# O)22PA1.P...N..Q))9)-9-.3.

)311030B C$$LC#54K 9I C4J#64KLBLK#

MCK< LJLCM

K4EEIRY4IS #3NA*.. #3N0)1A#9#

LFJ)-9)-9-.-* #.N..# O)*)P.1)N/AQ#.N..# #.N..# #)*)P.1)N/A#)-9)-9-.-2

)311032B C$$LC#54K 9I C4J#64KLBLK#

MCK< LJLCM

K4EEIRY4IS #3NA*.. #3N0)1A#9#

LFJ)-9)-9-.-* #.N..# O)*)P.1)N/AQ#.N..# #.N..# #)*)P.1)N/A#)-9)-9-.-2

)31101.B C$$LC#54K 9I C4J#64KLBLK#

MCK< LJLCM

K4EEIRY4IS #3NA*.. #3N0)1A#9#

LFJ)-9)-9-.-* #.N..# O)*)P.1)N/AQ#.N..# #.N..# #)*)P.1)N/A#)-9)-9-.-2

)311013B C$$LC#54K 9I C4J#64KLBLK#

MCK< LJLCM

K4EEIRY4IS #3NA*.. #3N0)1A#9#

LFJ)-9)-9-.-* #.N..# O)*)P.1)N/AQ#.N..# #.N..# #)*)P.1)N/A#)-9)-9-.-2

)-121*)<M#J C4M< S#F9G 9J$#MCK< LJLCM J G$L #1N)-*. #1N*../#9#

LFJ)-9)*9-.-* #.N..# O)P.3)P-*.N..Q#.N..# #.N..# #)P.3)P-*.N..#/9)*9-.-/

)3)./13<M#J C4M< S#F9G 9 GK J G$L #1N.... #1N.2-/#9#

LFJ)-9)*9-.-* #.N..# O)P...P...N..Q#.N..# #.N..# #)P...P...N..#)-9)*9-.-*

54J)-9)*9-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q O3AP).2N3*QO12P2/-P02.N/*Q #.N..# #*.P...P...N..#)-9)*9-.-*

)3-)A2)B C$$LC#54K 9I C4J#64KLBLK#

MCK< LJLCM

K4EEIRY4IS #1N.... #1N.223#9#

K4EE# C64S#6 LFKL64E)-9)*9-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q #.N..#O12P00.P...N..Q #.N..# #12P00.P...N..#)-9)*9-.-A

LFJ)-9)*9-.-* #.N..# O)P...P...N..Q#.N..# #.N..# #)P...P...N..#)-9)*9-.-A

)3-)0.)B C$$LC#54K 9I C4J#64KLBLK#

MCK< LJLCM

K4EEIRY4IS #1N.... #1N).-3#9#

K4EE#LFJC CMJ)-9)*9-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q #.N..#O12P0/.P...N..Q #.N..# #12P0/.P...N..#39)*9-.-0

K4EE# C64S#6 LFKL64E)-9)*9-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q #.N..#O12P0/.P...N..Q #.N..# #12P0/.P...N..#39)*9-.-0

)3)-32ABDEG#$LMK#KR 6 9KLJLI R<6#

IERG4E#

54 HCJM

4I$FM #1N))20 #1N))20#9#

54J)-9)09-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q O)P*)1PAA.N03QO10P10*P--2N)AQ #.N..# #*.P...P...N..#)-9)09-.-*

)3)-213BC$#B4 5#K #GH 9,CBBC LCM#[#

KR564FS

4I$FM #1N.0.3 #1N.0.3#9#

54J)-9)09-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q O)P1A1P...N..QO10P*-/P...N..Q #.N..# #*.P...P...N..#)-9)09-.-*

W!'7X(#$%8TX#J7%"=%:&8?"# 'U?7&
Page 54 of 61



      !"#$%&%'$(

)*+&$ , !)--&%$(

   !./0#( , 1+''

"#'$

234%

5+'$6/& 7/89%5+94+#,

:0%8;!<(

2&/#'

234%

=/$9&0$3

>/$%

?&+@%&"''9%&>%/8

 !"#$%&'( )*+,%"+-.-/#.0(12(13#45

678"&#$%&'( )9)*9-.-/

5+9#$3 +A B&/#C%

>%$/08 2&/#'/-$0+# G%4+&$

  2&/#'/-$0+# >/$% H&+*  IJDB-$DKIKL  2+  MJD>%-DKIKL

&:;!<='7(

6%>'#)0#?@#-.

2&/#'

>/$%

69&-N/'%;

"#$%&%'$

O%$$8%*%#$

H9#;P B&/#C% 5+9#$3 2&%/'9&3 6++8

)3)3)A*BDEG#$LMK#KR 6 9<GM#BLF4FKL4E#

MC YLKCM

4I$FM #1N))A. #1N))A.#9#

54J)-9)09-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q O)P10)P1A2N)/QO10P*)0P*-.N01Q #.N..# #*.P...P...N..#)-9)09-.-*

)3)3)A/BDEG#$LMK#KR 6 9<GM#BLF4FKL4E#

MC YLKCM

4I$FM #1N))A. #1N))A.#9#

54J)-9)09-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q O)P10)P1A2N)/QO10P*)0P*-.N01Q #.N..# #*.P...P...N..#)-9)09-.-*

)3)31)/BDEG#$LMK#KR 6 9$C<JMKDC 4I$FM #1N)../ #1N)../#9#

54J)-9)09-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q O)P1A.P300N02QO10P*-2P/))N))Q #.N..# #*.P...P...N..#)-9)09-.-*

)3)31/3BDEG#$LMK#KR 6 9J$#MCK< LJLCM 4I$FM #1N)..) #1N)..)#9#

54J)-9)09-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q O)P1/1P0/)N))QO10P*3*P)30N02Q #.N..# #*.P...P...N..#)-9)09-.-*

)3)1-1/BDEG#$LMK#KR 6 9KLJLI R<6#

IERG4E#

54 HCJM

4I$FM #1N.110 #1N.110#9#

54J)-9)09-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q O)P1)2P)//N/AQO10P*0.P033N33Q #.N..# #*.P...P...N..#)-9)09-.-*

)3)113.BDEG#$LMK#KR 6 9GFS#5'TT?"#

K%U8&%T#5%7V'&

4I$FM #1N.111 #1N.111#9#

54J)-9)09-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q O)P1)3PA.0N33QO10P*0/P-2)N/AQ #.N..# #*.P...P...N..#)-9)09-.-*

)3)113)BDEG#$LMK#KR 6 9,6#5R I4F#

KD4MC#[#KR

4I$FM #1N.111 #1N.111#9#

54J)-9)09-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q O)P1)3PA.0N33QO10P*0/P-2)N/AQ #.N..# #*.P...P...N..#)-9)09-.-*

)3)10*1BDEG#$LMK#KR 6 9I C4J#64KLBLK#

MCK< LJLCM

4I$FM #3N0A3. #3N0A3.#9#

54J)-9)09-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q O)P3-2P2A-N--QO10P/A.P.-ANA0Q #.N..# #*.P...P...N..#)-9)09-.-*

)3)*--1BDEG#$LMK#KR 6 9KLJLI R<6#

IERG4E#

54 HCJM

4I$FM #3N2*A) #3N2*A)#9#

54J)-9)09-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q O)P3*-P01AN--QO10P/1AP)*-NA0Q #.N..# #*.P...P...N..#)-9)09-.-*

)3)*1A-BDEG#$LMK#KR 6 9I C4J#64KLBLK#

MCK< LJLCM

4I$FM #3N0*)) #3N0*))#9#

54J)-9)09-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q O)P3)-P*..N..QO10P/0AP*..N..Q #.N..# #*.P...P...N..#)-9)09-.-*

)3)/.32BDEG#$LMK#KR 6 9GFS#5'TT?"#

K%U8&%T#5%7V'&

4I$FM #1N.302 #1N.302#9#

54J)-9)09-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q O)P310P-.0N33QO10P/*)PA2)N/AQ #.N..# #*.P...P...N..#)-9)09-.-*

)3)A1.*BC$#D5#EF#GH#G$ 9I C4J#64KLBLK#

MCK< LJLCM

4IFB) #1N./.. #1N.//A#9#

LFJ)-9)09-.-* #.N..# O)P.)*P...N..Q#.N..# #.N..# #)P.)*P...N..#)-9)09-.-*

54J)-9)09-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q #.N..#O*.P...P...N..Q #.N..# #*.P...P...N..#)-9)09-.-*

)3)-320BDEG#$LMK#KR 6 9GFS#5'TT?"#

K%U8&%T#5%7V'&

4I$FM #1N)-.3 #1N)-.3#9#

W!'7X(#$%8TX#J7%"=%:&8?"# 'U?7&
Page 55 of 61



      !"#$%&%'$(

)*+&$ , !)--&%$(

   !./0#( , 1+''

"#'$

234%

5+'$6/& 7/89%5+94+#,

:0%8;!<(

2&/#'

234%

=/$9&0$3

>/$%

?&+@%&"''9%&>%/8

 !"#$%&'( )*+,%"+-.-/#.0(12(13#45

678"&#$%&'( )9)*9-.-/

5+9#$3 +A B&/#C%

>%$/08 2&/#'/-$0+# G%4+&$

  2&/#'/-$0+# >/$% H&+*  IJDB-$DKIKL  2+  MJD>%-DKIKL

&:;!<='7(

6%>'#)2#?@#-.

2&/#'

>/$%

69&-N/'%;

"#$%&%'$

O%$$8%*%#$

H9#;P B&/#C% 5+9#$3 2&%/'9&3 6++8

54J)-9)29-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q O)P*-.P3)2N11QO10P1A2P/0.N*/Q #.N..# #*.P...P...N..#)-9)29-.-*

)3)-/)-BC$#D5#EF#GH#G$ 9K4MJEC#R4H#

MCK< LJLCM

4IFB) #1N)2.. #1N)2A1#9#

LFJ)-9)29-.-* #.N..# O)P.1AP*..N..Q#.N..# #.N..# #)P.1AP*..N..#)-9)29-.-*

54J)-9)29-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q #.N..#O*.P...P...N..Q #.N..# #*.P...P...N..#)-9)29-.-*

)))/-0*<M#J C4M< S#F9G 95R I4F#

MJ4FECS#])

J G$5C #.N3A*. #.NA-//#9#

LFJ)-93)9-.-* #.N..# O23PA*.N..Q#.N..# #.N..# #23PA*.N..#)-93)9-.-*

54J)-93)9-.-* O*.P...P...N..Q OA2-P2/0NA*QO12P-.AP.3)N-*Q #.N..# #*.P...P...N..#)-93)9-.-*

)-*.)0A<M#J C4M< S#F9G 95R I4F#

MJ4FECS

J G$5C #)N0A*. #1N11**#9#

LFJ)-93)9-.-* #.N..# O1/0PA*.N..Q#.N..# #.N..# #1/0PA*.N..#/93.9-.-/

)-*-/00<M#J C4M< S#F9G 9,CBBC LCM#[#

KR564FS

J G$5C #.N0A*. #1N)0).#9#

LFJ)-93)9-.-* #.N..# O-)0PA*.N..Q#.N..# #.N..# #-)0PA*.N..#/93.9-.-/

)3))3/0<M#J C4M< S#F9G 9K4MJEC#R4H#

MCK< LJLCM

J G$5C #)N0A*. #1N.32-#9#

LFJ)-93)9-.-* #.N..# O1/0PA*.N..Q#.N..# #.N..# #1/0PA*.N..#/93.9-.-/

)3))1)0<M#J C4M< S#F9G 9G4 KE4SM#

K46LJ4E

J G$5C #)N0A*. #1N./2-#9#

LFJ)-93)9-.-* #.N..# O1/0PA*.N..Q#.N..# #.N..# #1/0PA*.N..#/93.9-.-/

)3)-322<M#J C4M< S#F9G 9K4MJEC#R4H#

MCK< LJLCM

J G$5C #)N0A*. #1N)3-A#9#

LFJ)-93)9-.-* #.N..# O1/0PA*.N..Q#.N..# #.N..# #1/0PA*.N..#/93.9-.-/

)313)3.<M#J C4M< S#F9G 9FR5< 4#

MCK< LJLCM#

LFJEN

J G$5C #1N/-*. #3N/201#9#

LFJ)-93)9-.-* #.N..# O-P3)-P*..N..Q#.N..# #.N..# #-P3)-P*..N..#/93.9-.-/

!JQRSKQTSIQKKIUTV(!JKMQJTTQVTJUIM( JQVRIQKVIQWMIUMI  JQVSIQIIIQIIIUII  O9X 2+$/8P  LQWRTQJWJUSS 

H9#;P RLID555> OYG"YO KIJVY

21A/2)BC$#B4 5#K #GH 9KLJLI R<6#

IERG4E#

54 HCJM

4IFB) #3N2).. #3N3*)2#9#

LFJ))9-9-.-* #.N..# O32P)..N..Q#.N..# #.N..# #32P)..N..#))9-9-.3*

2100*ABC$#B4 5#K #GH 95R I4F#

MJ4FECS#)

4IFB) #3N)-.. #3N33A3#9#

LFJ))909-.-* #.N..# O-P-23N-.Q#.N..# #.N..# #-P-23N-.#))909-.3-

W!'7X(#$%8TX#J7%"=%:&8?"# 'U?7&
Page 56 of 61



      !"#$%&%'$(

)*+&$ , !)--&%$(

   !./0#( , 1+''

"#'$

234%

5+'$6/& 7/89%5+94+#,

:0%8;!<(

2&/#'

234%

=/$9&0$3

>/$%

?&+@%&"''9%&>%/8

 !"#$%&'( )*+,%"+-.-/#.0(12(13#45

678"&#$%&'( )9)*9-.-/

5+9#$3 +A B&/#C%

>%$/08 2&/#'/-$0+# G%4+&$

  2&/#'/-$0+# >/$% H&+*  IJDB-$DKIKL  2+  MJD>%-DKIKL

&:;!<='7(

6%>'#-.#?@#-.

2&/#'

>/$%

69&-N/'%;

"#$%&%'$

O%$$8%*%#$

H9#;P RLID555> OYG"YO KIJVY

).)*-1)BC$#B4 5#K #GH 95R I4F#

MJ4FECS#])

4IFB) #-N0... #-N/*33#9#

LFJ))9)-9-.-* #.N..# O)P3)/N..Q#.N..# #.N..# #)P3)/N..#))9)-9-.-A

23*0A)B4FFLC#54C 9J$#MCK< LJLCM 4IFB) #/N-*.. #-NA2)1#9#

LFJ))9)*9-.-* #.N..# O1/P0A*N..Q#.N..# #.N..# #1/P0A*N..#*9)*9-.-2

20A)*)BC$#D5#EF#GH#G$ 9K4MJEC#R4H#

MCK< LJLCM

4IFB) #3N-*.. #3N3/0.#9#

LFJ))9)/9-.-* #.N..# O)P30)N-*Q#.N..# #.N..# #)P30)N-*#))9)/9-.-0

20)*0ABC$#D5#EF#GH#G$ 9KLJLI R<6#

IERG4E#

54 HCJM

4IFB) #-NA*.. #3N1//2#9#

LFJ)-9).9-.-* #.N..# O-P1A*N..Q#.N..# #.N..# #-P1A*N..#)-9).9-.-A

2/AAA/BC$#D5#EF#GH#G$ 9$C<JMKDC 4IFB) #3N)-*. #3N)01/#9#

LFJ)-9))9-.-* #.N..# O/P.)*N/3Q#.N..# #.N..# #/P.)*N/3#/9))9-.-A

)..)3A-BC$#B4 5#K #GH 9BJF#BLF4FKL4E 4IFB) #3N)-*. #-N2*/)#9#

LFJ)-9)*9-.-* #.N..# O3P*)*N/3Q#.N..# #.N..# #3P*)*N/3#/9)*9-.-A

).-//10BC$#B4 5#K #GH 9BJF#BLF4FKL4E 4IFB) #-NA3.. #-N-/*.#9#

LFJ)-9-.9-.-* #.N..# O)P0A.N.*Q#.N..# #.N..# #)P0A.N.*#)-9-.9-.-A

2100*/BC$#B4 5#K #GH 95R I4F#

MJ4FECS#)

4IFB) #1N11.. #3N3*2/#9#

LFJ)-9-A9-.-* #.N..# O*P030N/.Q#.N..# #.N..# #*P030N/.#)-9-A9-.33

)..*/A/BC$#B4 5#K #GH 95R I4F#

MJ4FECS#])

4IFB) #*N-*.. #-N02..#9#

LFJ)-9-09-.-* #.N..# O)P)0)N-*Q#.N..# #.N..# #)P)0)N-*#)-9-09-.-A

 JJJQWRJURJ !JJJQWRJURJ( IUII  IUII  O9X 2+$/8P  IUII 

.&/#; 2+$/8P  JQVSIQIIIQIIIUII  JQVRIQKVIQWMIUMI !JKMQMJJQRLKURS( !JQRSKQWKWQMLTUMR( LQWRTQJWJUSS 

W!'7X(#$%8TX#J7%"=%:&8?"# 'U?7&
Page 57 of 61



 ! "!#$#%

&'("#()*+,

 !"#$%&!'&()*#+,

 !"#$% &'(#)% *)*&+%,*"-.%)'&".&/)0!".%'#1!')

 *.5'1!6

7*$,

-./&$ 01230#$#"&3.&* 04520#$#"

7,*1

8!-)*#.*2$4!#&7,.2)49$4!# :;!"#$7<(<&8!< =#.$)";,#$
7,9!.4$&>149

 !?,
 !"#$,)9*)$%&

@>&/&( &-),*.")%&A!!1@>/BCCDEFFGHF

6174,+8&9+:;9&-<87&9=&61>? & *)$@ %+:?A+7&:+9;-71B $! "!#$#" ,.C5D&,E/F53&,G3GEH&-GCI & %)J ''J%"$K""& )$@ L

6174,+8&9+:;9&-<87&9=&61>? & *)  %L+:?A+7&:+9;-71B $! %!#$#" ,.C5D&,E/F53&,G3GEH&-GCI &LLJ"' J%L)K@ & )  %'

6174,+8&9+:;9&-<87&9=&61>? & *) ")*+:?A+7&:+9;-71B $!#$!#$#" ,.C5D&,E/F53&,G3GEH&-GCI &)"J* %J*@)K$#& ) "))

6174,+8&9+:;9&-<87&9=&61>? & *) L L+:?A+7&:+9;-71B $!# !#$#" ,.C5D&,E/F53&,G3GEH&-GCI &%LJ%%@JL"#K'%& ) L '

6174,+8&9+:;9&-<87&9=&61>? & *) @)%+:?A+7&:+9;-71B $!##!#$#" ,.C5D&,E/F53&,G3GEH&-GCI &')J*%@J@'$K$)& ) @)L

6174,+8&9+:;9&-<87&9=&61>? & *)# ) +:?A+7&:+9;-71B $!#*!#$#" ,.C5D&,E/F53&,G3GEH&-GCI &#%J" LJ@'%KL)& )# )#

6174,+8&9+:;9&-<87&9=&61>? & *)#* )+:?A+7&:+9;-71B $!#)!#$#" ,.C5D&,E/F53&,G3GEH&-GCI & ''J" )J **K '& )#* "

6174,+8&9+:;9&-<87&9=&61>? & *)#"$%+:?A+7&:+9;-71B $!#L!#$#" ,.C5D&,E/F53&,G3GEH&-GCI & *"J $"J%%@KL$& )#"$L

6174,+8&9+:;9&-<87&9=&61>? & *)#%'L+:?A+7&:+9;-71B $!#'!#$#" ,.C5D&,E/F53&,G3GEH&-GCI M# $J*$@J@"#K#$N )#%''

6174,+8&9+:;9&-<87&9=&61>? & *)#@*L+:?A+7&:+9;-71B $!#@!#$#" ,.C5D&,E/F53&,G3GEH&-GCI & $ J$L*J)% K*@& )#@*'

6174,+8&9+:;9&-<87&9=&61>? & *)*"" +:?A+7&:+9;-71B  !)!#$#" ,.C5D&,E/F53&,G3GEH&-GCI & * J%'@J%@'K$L& )*""#

6174,+8&9+:;9&-<87&9=&61>? & *))'#L+:?A+7&:+9;-71B  ! *!#$#" ,.C5D&,E/F53&,G3GEH&-GCI M *$J))@J*$*K*%N ))'#'

6174,+8&9+:;9&-<87&9=&61>? & *)"  @+:?A+7&:+9;-71B  ! L!#$#" ,.C5D&,E/F53&,G3GEH&-GCI & *%J##LJ %%K)L& )" #$

6174,+8&9+:;9&-<87&9=&61>? & *)"%"@+:?A+7&:+9;-71B  ! @!#$#" ,.C5D&,E/F53&,G3GEH&-GCI &   J"L*J%$)KL*& )"%%$

6174,+8&9+:;9&-<87&9=&61>? & *)"%@@+:?A+7&:+9;-71B  !#$!#$#" ,.C5D&,E/F53&,G3GEH&-GCI M"LLJ"$'J'$@KL"N )"L$$

6174,+8&9+:;9&-<87&9=&61>? & *)L'  +:?A+7&:+9;-71B #!"!#$#" ,.C5D&,E/F53&,G3GEH&-GCI M*"#J$'*J*$*K*LN )L' #

6174,+8&9+:;9&-<87&9=&61>? & *"$* L+:?A+7&:+9;-71B #!#)!#$#" ,.C5D&,E/F53&,G3GEH&-GCI &@@J @%J#)@K""& "$* '

6174,+8&9+:;9&-<87&9=&61>? & *"$)@"+:?A+7&:+9;-71B #!#%!#$#" ,.C5D&,E/F53&,G3GEH&-GCI M "J%%*J'%#K%)N "$)@%

&CFIEEJIBJE<CJ&>"K&-!$*1&:;!"#$&A,)&:22!"#$L

( &-),*."),)&M&NO87&PPN=#Q,.2!&:22$R&DBBED

<8>O9:1&9?<:&61>?&P&+6Q&R1S?-17<1 & **@*$#+:?A+7&:+9;-71B $!#!#$#" ,.C5D&,E/F53&,G3GEH&-GCI &)J @'J L%K)L& *@*$*

<8>O9:1&9?<:&61>?&P&+6Q&R1S?-17<1 & **@% %+:?A+7&:+9;-71B $!%!#$#" ,.C5D&,E/F53&,G3GEH&-GCI &  @J)''JL) K"*& *@% L

<8>O9:1&9?<:&61>?&P&+6Q&R1S?-17<1 & **@L")+:?A+7&:+9;-71B $!L!#$#" ,.C5D&,E/F53&,G3GEH&-GCI & # J$'@J" )KL#& *@L""

<8>O9:1&9?<:&61>?&P&+6Q&R1S?-17<1 & **@'$"+:?A+7&:+9;-71B $!'!#$#" ,.C5D&,E/F53&,G3GEH&-GCI &* J*'#J %@K#$& *@'$%

<8>O9:1&9?<:&61>?&P&+6Q&R1S?-17<1 & *)$$$#+:?A+7&:+9;-71B $!@!#$#" ,.C5D&,E/F53&,G3GEH&-GCI & %J"'$J$ %K'@& )$$$*

<8>O9:1&9?<:&61>?&P&+6Q&R1S?-17<1 & *)$L)L+:?A+7&:+9;-71B $! )!#$#" ,.C5D&,E/F53&,G3GEH&-GCI & $)J"#$J*''KLL& )$L)'

<8>O9:1&9?<:&61>?&P&+6Q&R1S?-17<1 & *)* #L+:?A+7&:+9;-71B $!*$!#$#" ,.C5D&,E/F53&,G3GEH&-GCI ML$#J" #J#*%K)'N )* #'

<8>O9:1&9?<:&61>?&P&+6Q&R1S?-17<1 & *)**)"+:?A+7&:+9;-71B $!* !#$#" ,.C5D&,E/F53&,G3GEH&-GCI M#%%J##'J"#"K'@N )**)%

<8>O9:1&9?<:&61>?&P&+6Q&R1S?-17<1 & *)**@'+:?A+7&:+9;-71B  !*!#$#" ,.C5D&,E/F53&,G3GEH&-GCI &L$J@)"J$)#K #& )**@@

<8>O9:1&9?<:&61>?&P&+6Q&R1S?-17<1 & *)*@$ +:?A+7&:+9;-71B  !"!#$#" ,.C5D&,E/F53&,G3GEH&-GCI M #J)#'J#''K$'N )*@$#

<8>O9:1&9?<:&61>?&P&+6Q&R1S?-17<1 & *))$"'+:?A+7&:+9;-71B  !%!#$#" ,.C5D&,E/F53&,G3GEH&-GCI M*$)J' #J#) K$*N ))$"@

<8>O9:1&9?<:&61>?&P&+6Q&R1S?-17<1 & *)"$LL+:?A+7&:+9;-71B  ! )!#$#" ,.C5D&,E/F53&,G3GEH&-GCI &'LJ)))J@)$K""& )"$L'

<8>O9:1&9?<:&61>?&P&+6Q&R1S?-17<1 & *)%L'$+:?A+7&:+9;-71B  !#%!#$#" ,.C5D&,E/F53&,G3GEH&-GCI M%"J")'J'%)K#LN )%L' 

<8>O9:1&9?<:&61>?&P&+6Q&R1S?-17<1 & *)%'%L+:?A+7&:+9;-71B #! !#$#" ,.C5D&,E/F53&,G3GEH&-GCI &@LJ""'J#% K%)& )%'%'

<8>O9:1&9?<:&61>?&P&+6Q&R1S?-17<1 & *)L"@*+:?A+7&:+9;-71B #!)!#$#" ,.C5D&,E/F53&,G3GEH&-GCI M*#JL%%J@"'K$LN )L"@)

<8>O9:1&9?<:&61>?&P&+6Q&R1S?-17<1 & *)'L$*+:?A+7&:+9;-71B #!  !#$#" ,.C5D&,E/F53&,G3GEH&-GCI M $J ) JL"'K@@N )'L$)

<8>O9:1&9?<:&61>?&P&+6Q&R1S?-17<1 & *)@%  +:?A+7&:+9;-71B #! '!#$#" ,.C5D&,E/F53&,G3GEH&-GCI M $"J)")JL %K""N )@% #

Page 58 of 61



 ! "!#$#%

&'("#()*+,

 !"#$%&!'&()*#+,

 !"#$% &'(#)% *)*&+%,*"-.%)'&".&/)0!".%'#1!')

 *.5'1!6

7*$,

-./&$ 01230#$#"&3.&* 04520#$#"

7,*1

8!-)*#.*2$4!#&7,.2)49$4!# :;!"#$7<(<&8!< =#.$)";,#$
7,9!.4$&>149

 !?,
 !"#$,)9*)$%&

<8>O9:1&9?<:&61>?&P&+6Q&R1S?-17<1 & *)@@'*+:?A+7&:+9;-71B #!##!#$#" ,.C5D&,E/F53&,G3GEH&-GCI M*$J%)LJ%%@K) N )@@')

<8>O9:1&9?<:&61>?&P&+6Q&R1S?-17<1 & *"$%)#+:?A+7&:+9;-71B #!#@!#$#" ,.C5D&,E/F53&,G3GEH&-GCI &* "J@")J#)*K $& "$%)*

<8>O9:1&9?<:&61>?&P&+6Q&R1S?-17<1 & *"$%L'+:?A+7&:+9;-71B #!*$!#$#" ,.C5D&,E/F53&,G3GEH&-GCI &@ J##%J'L K#)& "$%L@

SGTEIBDHICJH<DGU>"K&-!$*1&:;!"#$&A,)&:22!"#$L

( &-),*."),)&V0$,#?,?&N"#?P>&TGEWEEXBC

,1S6+8&9?+87OQ&<89?&7<=A<4<?Q&-A84 & **@ "'+:?A+7&:+9;-71B $! !#$#" ,.C5D&,E/F53&,G3GEH&-GCI M 'J''%J#@'K @N *@ "@

,1S6+8&9?+87OQ&<89?&7<=A<4<?Q&-A84 & **@**@+:?A+7&:+9;-71B $!*!#$#" ,.C5D&,E/F53&,G3GEH&-GCI M#"J#L#J*L K"*N *@*)$

,1S6+8&9?+87OQ&<89?&7<=A<4<?Q&-A84 & *)$)*L+:?A+7&:+9;-71B $! $!#$#" ,.C5D&,E/F53&,G3GEH&-GCI &"LJ)$ J "@K%%& )$)*'

,1S6+8&9?+87OQ&<89?&7<=A<4<?Q&-A84 & *) *')+:?A+7&:+9;-71B $! L!#$#" ,.C5D&,E/F53&,G3GEH&-GCI MLJ*"#J@##K"'N ) *'"

,1S6+8&9?+87OQ&<89?&7<=A<4<?Q&-A84 & *)) $)+:?A+7&:+9;-71B  !L!#$#" ,.C5D&,E/F53&,G3GEH&-GCI & %J*"@J#$'K%%& )) $"

,1S6+8&9?+87OQ&<89?&7<=A<4<?Q&-A84 & *)))")+:?A+7&:+9;-71B  ! $!#$#" ,.C5D&,E/F53&,G3GEH&-GCI &) J*@"J ##K)L& )))""

,1S6+8&9?+87OQ&<89?&7<=A<4<?Q&-A84 & *))% $+:?A+7&:+9;-71B  ! #!#$#" ,.C5D&,E/F53&,G3GEH&-GCI &@ J%%$J"' K')& ))%  

,1S6+8&9?+87OQ&<89?&7<=A<4<?Q&-A84 & *)")* +:?A+7&:+9;-71B  ! '!#$#" ,.C5D&,E/F53&,G3GEH&-GCI &L#J L"J" $K)%& )")*#

,1S6+8&9?+87OQ&<89?&7<=A<4<?Q&-A84 & *)% #$+:?A+7&:+9;-71B  !# !#$#" ,.C5D&,E/F53&,G3GEH&-GCI &L J %$J$))K*@& )% # 

,1S6+8&9?+87OQ&<89?&7<=A<4<?Q&-A84 & *)%*#$+:?A+7&:+9;-71B  !#)!#$#" ,.C5D&,E/F53&,G3GEH&-GCI &% "JL$"J#"#K@'& )%*# 

,1S6+8&9?+87OQ&<89?&7<=A<4<?Q&-A84 & *)%")"+:?A+7&:+9;-71B  !#"!#$#" ,.C5D&,E/F53&,G3GEH&-GCI &%$J*#$JL LK)$& )%")%

,1S6+8&9?+87OQ&<89?&7<=A<4<?Q&-A84 & *)%' %+:?A+7&:+9;-71B  !#'!#$#" ,.C5D&,E/F53&,G3GEH&-GCI M)$@J*) J##)K'#N )%' L

,1S6+8&9?+87OQ&<89?&7<=A<4<?Q&-A84 & *)L $'+:?A+7&:+9;-71B #!#!#$#" ,.C5D&,E/F53&,G3GEH&-GCI M #*JLLLJ )'K'$N )L $@

,1S6+8&9?+87OQ&<89?&7<=A<4<?Q&-A84 & *)L)"*+:?A+7&:+9;-71B #!*!#$#" ,.C5D&,E/F53&,G3GEH&-GCI M#*$JL''J$"$K"'N )L)")

,1S6+8&9?+87OQ&<89?&7<=A<4<?Q&-A84 & *)'$)%+:?A+7&:+9;-71B #!'!#$#" ,.C5D&,E/F53&,G3GEH&-GCI &#%$J@'@J#'"K$'& )'$)L

,1S6+8&9?+87OQ&<89?&7<=A<4<?Q&-A84 & *)' $L+:?A+7&:+9;-71B #!@!#$#" ,.C5D&,E/F53&,G3GEH&-GCI &#'*J"%"J"@)K@'& )' $'

,1S6+8&9?+87OQ&<89?&7<=A<4<?Q&-A84 & *)'* @+:?A+7&:+9;-71B #! $!#$#" ,.C5D&,E/F53&,G3GEH&-GCI &# $J)% J@'%K**& )'*#$

,1S6+8&9?+87OQ&<89?&7<=A<4<?Q&-A84 & *)'''*+:?A+7&:+9;-71B #! #!#$#" ,.C5D&,E/F53&,G3GEH&-GCI &')J @LJ#'LK#"& )''')

,1S6+8&9?+87OQ&<89?&7<=A<4<?Q&-A84 & *)@$)'+:?A+7&:+9;-71B #! "!#$#" ,.C5D&,E/F53&,G3GEH&-GCI &# "J*)@J@")K%#& )@$)@

,1S6+8&9?+87OQ&<89?&7<=A<4<?Q&-A84 & *)@#%"+:?A+7&:+9;-71B #! %!#$#" ,.C5D&,E/F53&,G3GEH&-GCI &*$J@%'J""'K" & )@#%%

,1S6+8&9?+87OQ&<89?&7<=A<4<?Q&-A84 & *)@)#*+:?A+7&:+9;-71B #! L!#$#" ,.C5D&,E/F53&,G3GEH&-GCI & #JL$LJ$$%K#"& )@)#)

,1S6+8&9?+87OQ&<89?&7<=A<4<?Q&-A84 & *)@'$%+:?A+7&:+9;-71B #! @!#$#" ,.C5D&,E/F53&,G3GEH&-GCI &L#J@*LJ#%*K**& )@'$L

,1S6+8&9?+87OQ&<89?&7<=A<4<?Q&-A84 & *"$ )'+:?A+7&:+9;-71B #!#*!#$#" ,.C5D&,E/F53&,G3GEH&-GCI &"J)%@J%*#K#$& "$ )@

,1S6+8&9?+87OQ&<89?&7<=A<4<?Q&-A84 & *"$')#+:?A+7&:+9;-71B #!* !#$#" ,.C5D&,E/F53&,G3GEH&-GCI &)'J%L"J*'$K"$& "$')*

&BIGFXIECBIDFE<GB&>"K&-!$*1&:;!"#$&A,)&:22!"#$L

8(Y-ZVY8&=8>-&O<><&-YV:>OY[&A(Y-N(\=(8(Y-ZVY8&=8>-&O<><&-YV:&A(Y-N(

818O & **@'$#V+8W&?S+89-OS $!'!#$#" ,18OQ&,+SWO? M'"'K%#N

818O & *)*)$*V+8W&?S+89-OS  !*!#$#" ,18OQ&,+SWO? &*@J $$K$$&

818O & *)))"LV+8W&?S+89-OS  ! $!#$#" ,18OQ&,+SWO? &#J#@*K#$&

818O & *))% #V+8W&?S+89-OS  ! #!#$#" ,18OQ&,+SWO? & J* %K$$&

818O & *)"#)'V+8W&?S+89-OS  ! L!#$#" ,18OQ&,+SWO? &)%J'L"K$$&

818O & *)"#)@V+8W&?S+89-OS  ! L!#$#" ,18OQ&,+SWO? & J*' K#"&

818O & *)"#'*V+8W&?S+89-OS  ! '!#$#" ,18OQ&,+SWO? MLLLK*"N

Page 59 of 61



 ! "!#$#%

&'("#()*+,

 !"#$%&!'&()*#+,

 !"#$% &'(#)% *)*&+%,*"-.%)'&".&/)0!".%'#1!')

 *.5'1!6

7*$,

-./&$ 01230#$#"&3.&* 04520#$#"

7,*1

8!-)*#.*2$4!#&7,.2)49$4!# :;!"#$7<(<&8!< =#.$)";,#$
7,9!.4$&>149

 !?,
 !"#$,)9*)$%&

818O & *)' $#V+8W&?S+89-OS #!@!#$#" ,18OQ&,+SWO? ML")K LN

818O & *)'"#$V+8W&?S+89-OS #! $!#$#" ,18OQ&,+SWO? &#J)L"K$$&

818O & *)'L$%V+8W&?S+89-OS #!  !#$#" ,18OQ&,+SWO? &%J$ "K%*&

818O & *)@$"#V+8W&?S+89-OS #! "!#$#" ,18OQ&,+SWO? &*J" "K%*&

818O & *)@@@%V+8W&?S+89-OS #!##!#$#" ,18OQ&,+SWO? & J'L$K$"&

818O & *"$%)'V+8W&?S+89-OS #!#@!#$#" ,18OQ&,+SWO? &"J'*'K%$&

818O & *"$%)@V+8W&?S+89-OS #!#@!#$#" ,18OQ&,+SWO? & J ' K#"&

&BEJIGTB<GT&>"K&-!$*1&:;!"#$&A,)&:22!"#$L

-!$*1&:;!"#$&L %23456345738449:8%

Page 60 of 61



MONTHLY INVESTMENT REPORT 
Distribution List 

County of Orange Board of Supervisors 
Chair Doug Chaffee, District 4
Vice-Chair Katrina Foley, District 5 
Supervisor Janet Nguyen, District 1 
Supervisor Vincente Sarmiento, Disttrict 2 
Supervisor Donald P. Wagner, District 3 

County of Orange Departments 
Assessor 
Auditor-Controller 
Campaign Finance and Ethics Commission 
Child Support Services 
Clerk of the Board 
Clerk-Recorder 
County Counsel 
County Executive Office 
District Attorney-Public Administrator 
Health Care Agency 
Human Resources Services 
Independent Review 
Internal Audit 
John Wayne Airport 
OC Community Resources 
OC Public Works 
OC Waste & Recycling 
Probation 
Public Defender 
Registrar of Voters 
Sheriff-Coroner 
Social Services Agency
Treasurer-Tax Collector 

County Special Districts
Civic Center Commission 
First 5 Orange County  
In-Home Supportive Services  
Orange County Public Law Library 
Orange County Employees Retirement System 
Orange County Cemetery District 
Orange County Housing Finance Trust Orange 
County Fire Authority 
Orange County Transportation Authority 
Santa Ana River Flood Protection Agency 
Transportation Corridor Agencies 

Investment Oversight Committee

State of California 
Superior Court

Orange County School Districts 
Orange County Board of Education
Orange County Department of Education
Anaheim Elementary School District
Anaheim Union High School District 
Brea-Olinda Unified School District  
Buena Park School District  
Capistrano Unified School District  
Centralia School District 
Cypress School District  
Fountain Valley School District 
Fullerton School District 
Fullerton Joint Union High School District  
Garden Grove Unified School District  
Huntington Beach City School District  
Huntington Beach Union High School District 
Irvine Unified School District 
Laguna Beach Unified School District 
La Habra City School District 
Los Alamitos Unified School District 
Lowell Joint School District  
Magnolia School District 
Newport-Mesa Unified School District 
Ocean View School District 
Orange Unified School District  
Placentia-Yorba Linda Unified School District  Saddleback 
Valley Unified School District 
Santa Ana Unified School District  
Savanna School District 
Tustin Unified School District 
Westminster School District

Orange County Community College Districts (CCD) 
Coast CCD 
North Orange County CCD 
Rancho-Santiago CCD 
South Orange County CCD 

Orange County Regional Occupational Programs (ROP) 
Capistrano-Laguna Beach ROP 
Coastline ROP 
North Orange County ROP 

Page 61 of 61



Agenda Item 4















Agenda Item 5



County of Orange   
Audit and Investment Oversight Committee 

Date: February 5, 2026 
  Re: External Audit Update – for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2025 

1) Audit Plan – Refer to Attachment A:

• Outline of projects and timelines and status

2) Attest and Audit Engagements Completed

• Annual Comprehensive Financial Report, John Wayne Airport (JWA), including Passenger Facility Charge 
(PFC ), Orange County Waste and Recycling – June 30, 2025

o Issued – December 18, 2025

3) Required Communications:

Communication letters –

Refer to Attachment B 



Attachment A

Eide Bailly
Projects and Timelines County of Orange - Audit Oversight Committee

February 5, 2026

Department / Agency / 

Division

Audit/Project Audit/Project Date Audit Scope Planning Fieldwork Reporting Status

All Financial Statement Audit - 

Annual Comprehensive 

Financial Report

6/30/2025 Financial Statements of the County, 

including audit of investment trust funds, 

and pension/OPEB trust funds

April 2025 May 2025 through 

November 2025

December 2025 Reports issued December 18, 2025

All Agreed Upon Procedures 

(AUP) over GANN Limit 

calculations

6/30/2025 GANN Limit Calculation -for County and 

OC Flood Control District

April 2025 May 2025 September 

2025

Reports issued September 19, 2025

All Single Audit and HUD REAC 6/30/2025 Audit over compliance in accordance with 

Uniform Guidance of the County, including 

components of JWA, OCWR and Housing 

Authority

September 

2025

December 2025 through 

February 2026

March 2026 Fieldwork in progress. 

John Wayne Airport 

(JWA) 

Financial Statement Audit 6/30/2025 John Wayne Airport (JWA), including 

Passenger Facility Charge

July 2025 August 2025 through 

November 2025

December 2025 Reports issued December 18, 2025

Orange County Waste 

& Recycling

Financial Statement Audit 6/30/2025 Orange County Waste & Recycling July 2025 August 2025 through 

November 2025

December 2025 Reports issued December 18, 2025

TTC Schedule of Assets 6/30/2025 Report on the Schedule of Assets November 

2025

November 2025 through 

January 2026

January 2026 Fieldwork in progress.

District Attorney Grant Audits 6/30/2025 District Attorney Grant Audits August 2025 September 2025 October 2025 Reports issued October 23, 2025

CEO; HCA and 

Sheriff's Department

Tobacco Settlement Funds 

Agreed Upon Procedures

6/30/2025 HCA and Sheriff Tobacco Settlement Funds 

disbursements

December 

2025

January 2026 through 

February 2026

March 2026 Planning procedures in progress.

Sheriff's Department James Musick Expansion 

Phase II (AB 900) Audit

N/A Compliance with California Board of State 

and Community Corrections (BSCC) 

construction-financing program through 

Assembly Bill (AB) 900 and Senate Bill 

(SB) 1022.

April 2024 May 2024 through June 

2024

August 2024 Fieldwork in progress. 

Anticipated Dates

1 of 1



eidebailly.com
25231 Paseo De Alicia, Ste. 100  |  Laguna Hills, CA 92653-4615  |  T 949.768.0833  |  F 949.768.8408  |  EOE

1 

December 18, 2025 

To the Board of Supervisors,  
Audit Oversight Committee, and 
Auditor-Controller 
County of Orange, California 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the 
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information of the County of Orange, California (County), and the financial statements of the OC Waste & 
Recycling and John Wayne Airport as of and for the year ended June 30, 2025, and have issued our reports 
thereon dated as indicated below:  

Report Audit Report Date 
County of Orange December 18, 2025 
OC Waste & Recycling December 18, 2025 
John Wayne Airport December 18, 2025 

We are currently performing the audit of the County’s federal award programs (Single Audit) and anticipate 
issuing our reports thereon prior to March 31, 2026. 

We did not audit the financial statements of the Orange County Health Authority, a Public Agency dba Orange 
Prevention and Treatment Integrated Medical Assistance dba CalOptima Health (CalOptima Health) and the 
Orange County Employees Retirement System (OCERS), which are included as a discretely presented component 
unit and a fiduciary component unit, respectively, in the County’s basic financial statements. Those statements 
were audited by other auditors as stated in our report on the County’s basic financial statements. This 
communication does not include the results of the audits of CalOptima Health and OCERS.  

We did audit the Children and Families Commission of Orange County (First 5), which is included as a discretely 
presented component unit in the County’s basic financial statements. Separately issued audit reports and 
communication were issued directly to the First 5. Accordingly, this communication does not include the results 
of the audit of First 5.  

Professional standards require that we advise you of the following matters relating to our audit. 

Attachment B



2 

Our Responsibility in Relation to the Financial Statement Audit under Generally Accepted Auditing Standards 
and Government Auditing Standards 

As communicated in our letter dated April 11, 2025, our responsibility, as described by professional standards, is 
to form and express an opinion about whether the financial statements that have been prepared by 
management with your oversight are presented fairly, in all material respects, in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our audit of the financial statements does not 
relieve you or management of your respective responsibilities. 

Our responsibility, as prescribed by professional standards, is to plan and perform our audit to obtain 
reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting 
as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, 
as part of our audit, we considered the internal control of the County solely for the purpose of determining our 
audit procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such internal control. 

We are also responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our professional 
judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process. However, we are not 
required to design procedures for the purpose of identifying other matters to communicate to you.  

We have provided our comments regarding internal controls during our audit in our Independent Auditor’s 
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of 
Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards dated December 18, 2025. 

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit  

We conducted our audit consistent with the planned scope and timing we previously communicated to you. 

Compliance with All Ethics Requirements Regarding Independence 

The engagement team, others in our firm, as appropriate, our firm, and other firms utilized in the engagement, 
if applicable, have complied with all relevant ethical requirements regarding independence.  

Qualitative Aspects of the Entity’s Significant Accounting Practices 

Significant Accounting Policies 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. A summary of the 
significant accounting policies adopted by the County are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. As 
described in Note 2, the County changed accounting policies related to  accounting for compensated absences 
to adopt the provisions of GASB Statement No. 101, Compensated Absences. Accordingly, the accounting change 
has been retrospectively applied to the financial statements beginning July 1, 2024. No matters have come to 
our attention that would require us, under professional standards, to inform you about (1) the methods used to 
account for significant unusual transactions and (2) the effect of significant accounting policies in controversial 
or emerging areas for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. 



3 

Accounting Estimates and Related Disclosures 

Accounting estimates and related disclosures are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by 
management and are based on management’s current judgments. Those judgments are normally based on 
knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain 
accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and 
because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ markedly from management’s current 
judgments.  

The most sensitive accounting estimates affecting the financial statements are: 

 Landfill closure and postclosure care liabilities are based on management’s analysis of landfill capacity
used and total closure and postclosure costs, as well as the landfill maximum capacity;

 Pollution remediation obligations are based on management’s analysis of remediation time periods,
type of remediation needed and historical trend data;

 Net pension and net other postemployment benefits (OPEB) liabilities, disclosures, related deferred
inflows/outflows of resources, and expenses are based on actuarial valuations which include
assumptions adopted by the Orange County Employees Retirement System (OCERS) and the County; and

 Self-insurance claims liabilities are based on actuarial studies performed by the County’s independent
actuaries.

We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop these estimates and determined that they were 
reasonable in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

Financial Statement Disclosures 

Certain financial statement disclosures involve significant judgment and are particularly sensitive because of 
their significance to financial statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting the County’s financial 
statements relate to:  

 Pension and OPEB liabilities in Notes 18 and 19, respectively, are sensitive to the underlying actuarial
assumptions used including, but not limited to, the investment rate of return and discount rate. As
disclosed in Notes 18 and 19, a 1% increase or decrease in the discount rate has a material effect on the
Pension and OPEB liabilities.

 Estimated liabilities for self-insurance claims in Note 16 are based on actuarial valuations.

 Landfill closure and postclosure, and pollution remediation in Notes 14 and 17, respectively, are based
on management’s analysis.

Significant Difficulties Encountered during the Audit 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management relating to the performance of the audit. 



4 

Uncorrected and Corrected Misstatements 

For purposes of this communication, professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely 
misstatements identified during the audit, other than those that we believe are trivial, and communicate them 
to the appropriate level of management. Further, professional standards require us to also communicate the 
effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods on the relevant classes of transactions, account 
balances or disclosures, and the financial statements as a whole. Uncorrected misstatements or matters 
underlying those uncorrected misstatements could potentially cause future-period financial statements to be 
materially misstated, even though the uncorrected misstatements are immaterial to the financial statements 
currently under audit. There were no uncorrected or corrected misstatements identified as a result of our audit 
procedures.  

Disagreements with Management 

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a matter, 
whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, 
which could be significant to the County’s financial statements or the auditor’s report. No such disagreements 
arose during the course of the audit. 

Circumstances that Affect the Form and Content of the Auditor’s Report 

For purposes of this letter, professional standards require that we communicate any circumstances that affect 
the form and content of our auditor’s report. As described in Note 2 to the financial statements, due to the 
adoption of GASB Statement No. 101, Compensated Absences, the County restated opening balances as of July 
1, 2024. The purpose of the paragraph is to draw attention to the disclosures for the adoption of the standard 
update. We have included an emphasis of matter in our report regarding this restatement. We did not modify 
our opinions related to this matter.  

Representations Requested from Management 

We have requested certain written representations from management which are included in the management 
representation letter dated as follow: 

County of Orange December 18, 2025 
OC Waste & Recycling December 18, 2025 
John Wayne Airport December 18, 2025 

Management’s Consultations with Other Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 
matters. Management informed us that, and to our knowledge, there were no consultations with other 
accountants regarding auditing and accounting matters. 

Other Significant Matters, Findings, or Issues 

In the normal course of our professional association with the County, we generally discuss a variety of matters, 
including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, operating conditions affecting the 
entity, and operating plans and strategies that may affect the risks of material misstatement. None of the 
matters discussed resulted in a condition to our retention as the County’s auditors. 



5 

Other Information Included in Annual Reports 

Pursuant to professional standards, our responsibility as auditors for other information, whether financial or 
nonfinancial, included in County’s annual reports does not extend beyond the financial information identified in 
the audit report, and we are not required to perform any procedures to corroborate such other information. 
However, in accordance with such standards, we have read the other information and considered whether such 
information, or the manner of its presentation, was materially inconsistent with its presentation in the financial 
statements.  

Our responsibility also includes communicating to you any information which we believe is a material 
misstatement of fact. Nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that such information, or its 
manner of presentation, is materially inconsistent with the information, or manner of its presentation, 
appearing in the financial statements. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Audit Oversight Committee, Board of 
Supervisors, and management of the County and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other 
than these specified parties. 

Laguna Hills, California 



Agenda Item 6 



Memorandum 

February 5, 2026 

AOC Agenda Item No. 6 

TO: Audit Oversight Committee Members 

Recommended Action:  
Approve Internal Audit Department’s Quarterly Status Report and Approve Executive Summary 
of Internal Audit Reports for Quarter Ended December 31, 2025 

Approve Internal Audit Department’s Quarterly Status Report and Approve Executive Summary 
of Internal Audit Reports for Quarter Ended December 31, 2025, as stated in recommended 
action. 

ATTACHMENT(S): 
Attachment A – Internal Audit Department Status Report Memo 
Attachment B – Executive Summary of Internal Audit Reports 
Attachment C – Quarterly Status Report 



INTERNAL AUDIT DEPARTMENT 

January 29, 2026 

To: Audit Oversight Committee Members 

From: Aggie Alonso, CPA, CIA, CRMA 
Internal Audit Department Director 

Subject: Internal Audit Department Status Report for the Fiscal Year 2025-26 Quarter 
Ended December 31, 2025 

Attached for your review and approval is Internal Audit Department’s status report on audit activity 
for the quarter ended December 31, 2025. Specifically, Attachment B is our “Executive Summary 
of Internal Audit Reports,” which provides a summary of audits and follow-up audits conducted 
during the reporting period with a breakdown of the finding category (i.e., critical, significant, 
control). Attachment C is our “Quarterly Status Report,” which is a listing of all audits scheduled 
for the year, along with budgeted hours, actual hours, variance between budget and actual, and 
milestone comments for each audit. 

For the quarter ended December 31, 2025, Internal Audit issued four final follow-up reports and 
two draft reports.  

If you have any questions, please contact me at (714) 834-5442 or Deputy Director Jose Olivo at 
(714) 834-5509.

Digitally signed by 
Agripino Alonso 
Date: 2026.01.29 11:06:12 
-08'00'



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF INTERNAL AUDIT REPORTS 
FOR THE QUARTER ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2025 

PAGE 1 OF 4 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
FINDINGS BY CLASSIFICATION CATEGORY 

FOR THE QUARTER ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2025 

CATEGORY 
ISSUED THIS 

PERIOD 
TOTAL ISSUED 
FY 2025-26 

Critical Control Weaknesses 
These are audit findings or a combination of audit findings that represent 
critical exceptions to the audit objective(s) and/or business goals. Such 
conditions may involve either actual or potential large dollar errors or be of 
such a nature as to compromise the department’s or County’s reputation 
for integrity. Management is expected to address Critical Control 
Weaknesses brought to its attention immediately. 

0 0

Significant Control Weaknesses 
These are audit findings or a combination of audit findings that represent a 
significant deficiency in the design or operation of internal controls. 
Significant Control Weaknesses require prompt corrective actions. 

0 5

Control Findings 
These are audit findings concerning internal controls, compliance issues, 
or efficiency/effectiveness issues that require management’s corrective 
action to implement or enhance processes and internal controls. Control 
Findings are expected to be addressed within our follow-up process of six 
months, but no later than twelve months. 

0 7

TOTAL 0 12 



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF INTERNAL AUDIT REPORTS 
FOR THE QUARTER ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2025 

PAGE 2 OF 4 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
FINAL REPORTS ISSUED 

FOR THE QUARTER ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2025 

OC PUBLIC WORKS 
1. First & Final Close-Out Follow-Up Information Technology Audit: OC Public Works Selected

Cybersecurity Controls
Audit No. 2414-F1 dated October 27, 2025 as of June 30, 2025; original audit dated March 31, 2025

ORIGINAL AUDIT – 4 FINDINGS FOLLOW-UP STATUS 

PLANNED ACTION FOR 
RECOMMENDATIONS NOT 

IMPLEMENTED/IN PROCESS 

CRITICAL CONTROL 
WEAKNESS/ 

SIGNIFICANT CONTROL 
WEAKNESS 

CONTROL 
FINDINGS 

IMPLEMENTED/ 
CLOSED 

NOT 
IMPLEMENTED/ 
IN PROCESS 

0 4 4 0 N/A

HEALTH CARE AGENCY 
2. First Follow-Up Internal Control Audit: Health Care Agency Environmental Health Division Cash

Receipts
Audit No. 2214-F1 dated November 12, 2025 as of June 16, 2025; original audit dated April 18, 2024

ORIGINAL AUDIT – 10 FINDINGS FOLLOW-UP STATUS 

PLANNED ACTION FOR 
RECOMMENDATIONS NOT 

IMPLEMENTED/IN PROCESS 

CRITICAL CONTROL 
WEAKNESS/ 

SIGNIFICANT CONTROL 
WEAKNESS 

CONTROL 
FINDINGS 

IMPLEMENTED/ 
CLOSED 

NOT 
IMPLEMENTED/ 
IN PROCESS 

3 

Three Significant Control 
Weaknesses 

Finding No. 1 
Due to the sensitive nature 
of the finding, details have 
been redacted from this 
report.  

Finding No. 2 
HCA/EH lacked formal 
procedures for cashier 
submissions to the 
accounting department. 

Finding No. 3 
HCA/EH staff and 
supervisors did not follow 
the required procedures to 
adequately support cash 
receipt amounts.  

7 8 2 Recommendation No. 1 
Due to the sensitive nature of the 
finding, details have been 
redacted from this report. 

Recommendation No. 3 
Subsequent to our original audit 
and recommendation, HCA/EH 
revised its procedures to allow 
clerical staff instead of supervisors 
to perform secondary reviews. 
However, this level of review is not 
sufficient, and HCA/EH should 
require supervisors to review and 
ensure there is adequate support 
for cash receipt amounts. HCA/EH 
agreed and will update procedures 
to require supervisors or 
managers to perform these 
reviews. 



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF INTERNAL AUDIT REPORTS 
FOR THE QUARTER ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2025 

PAGE 3 OF 4 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
FINAL REPORTS ISSUED (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE QUARTER ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2025 

OC INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 
3. Second & Final Close-Out Follow-Up Information Technology Audit: OCIT Enterprise IT Governance

Audit No. 2242-F2 dated December 17, 2025 as of August 30, 2025; original audit dated March 28, 2024
ORIGINAL AUDIT – 4 FINDINGS FOLLOW-UP STATUS 

PLANNED ACTION FOR 
RECOMMENDATIONS NOT 

IMPLEMENTED/IN PROCESS 

CRITICAL CONTROL 
WEAKNESS/ 

SIGNIFICANT CONTROL 
WEAKNESS 

CONTROL 
FINDINGS 

IMPLEMENTED/ 
CLOSED 

NOT 
IMPLEMENTED/ 
IN PROCESS 

0 4 4 0 N/A

OC INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 
4. First & Final Close-Out Follow-Up Information Technology Audit: OCIT Selected Internet of Things (IoT)

Device Security Controls
Audit No. 2314-F1 dated December 18, 2025 as of June 30, 2025; original audit dated December 17, 2024

ORIGINAL AUDIT – 2 FINDINGS FOLLOW-UP STATUS 

PLANNED ACTION FOR 
RECOMMENDATIONS NOT 

IMPLEMENTED/IN PROCESS 

CRITICAL CONTROL 
WEAKNESS/ 

SIGNIFICANT CONTROL 
WEAKNESS 

CONTROL 
FINDING 

IMPLEMENTED/ 
CLOSED 

NOT 
IMPLEMENTED/ 
IN PROCESS 

1 

One Significant Control 
Weakness 

Finding No. 1 
The badge reader device 
management system and 
surveillance camera system 
contained generic and 
default administrative 
accounts and lacked role-
based access controls. 

1 2 0 N/A



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF INTERNAL AUDIT REPORTS 
FOR THE QUARTER ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2025 

PAGE 4 OF 4 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
DRAFT REPORTS ISSUED 

FOR THE QUARTER ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2025 

The following draft reports were issued during the reporting period: 

1. Information Technology Audit: District Attorney-Public Administrator Selected Cybersecurity
Controls, Audit No. 2412

2. First Follow-Up Internal Control Audit: Treasurer-Tax Collector Cash Receipts, Audit No. 2301-F1



Audit Category and Name 1,2,3
Audit 

Number Start Date
End
Date

Total
Budget

Actuals
To Date Budget Changes

Revised
Budget

Est 
Remain

Budget
Variance

FU
Due

FU
Number Status 4

#1 #2 #3 #4 Total
Internal Control Audits (ICA)
HCA Claim Reimbursements 2501 11/6/25 700 700 0 83 83 617 0 In process.
T-TC Wire Transfers 2502 700 700 0 0 0 700 0
OCSD Contracts Purchasing & Contracts 2503 7/28/25 775 775 211 351 562 213 0 In process.
SSA Contracts Purchasing & Contracts 2504 7/28/25 775 775 359 297 656 119 0 In process.
OCPW Contracts Purchasing & Contracts 2505 7/28/25 775 775 197 413 610 165 0 In process.
OCWR Contracts Purchasing & Contracts 2506 7/28/25 775 775 377 359 736 39 0 In process.
Board-Directed Forensic Audit of County Contracts 2508 7/18/25 150 200 350 79 179 258 92 0 In process. Contracted out to Weave & Tidwell.
ROV Limited Validation of Citizen Concerns Regarding 
Election 2509 360 360 0 0 0 360 0

SSA Cash Receipts & Receivables 2524 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Time-permitting audit.
Countywide HR Hiring & Personnel Practices 2525 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Time-permitting audit.
County Budget Practices 2526 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Time-permitting audit.
A-C Central Payroll 2527 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Time-permitting audit.

FY 24-25 Carryovers
HCA Purchasing & Contracts (2215) 2326 2/08/23 7/28/25 1,340  1,324  0 0 0 0 0 1/31/26 2326-F1 Completed. Final report issued 7/28/25.
OCCR Purchasing & Contracts (2304) 2409 4/24/24 1,040  1,069  0 200 200 64 1 65 135 0 In process.
A-C Disbursements and Claims (2410) 2507 4/23/25 760 922 380 300 680 413 72 485 195 0 In process.

Follow-Up Audits 600 600 79 92 0 0 171 429 0
HCA/PG Cash Receipts 2214-F1 3/04/25 11/12/25 57 15 72 Completed. Final report issued 11/12/25.
HCA/PG Purchasing & Contracts 2215-F1 0 0 0
T-TC Cash Receipts 2301-F1 8/06/25 21 31 52 Draft report issued 12/17/25.
OCWR Credit Cards 2321-F2 0 0 0
OCDA Fiduciary Funds 2405-F1 11/18/25 1 11 12 In process.
OCWR Cash Disbursements 2406-F1 12/30/25 0 4 4 In process.
CPO Procurement Governance 2407-F1 12/10/25 0 31 31 In process.

Total Internal Control Audits 5,990 700 6,690 1,779 1,847 0 0 3,626 3,064 0

Contract Compliance Audits (CCA)
OCWR/Waste Management Review (Board request) 2420 -- -- 0 0 0 0 0 0 Completed. Final report issued 8/27/25.

Follow-Up Audits 500 500 4 43 0 0 47 453 0
Ocean Institute (2171/2289-A) 2171-F3 4 0 4 In process (AOC request).
OCCR/OC Dana Point Harbor P3 2408-F1 12/2/25 0 43 43
OCWR/Waste Management Review (Board request) 2420-F1 0 0 0

Total Contract Compliance Audits 500 0 500 4 43 0 0 47 453 0

Internal Audit Department
Quarterly Status Report for the Audit Oversight Committee

For the Quarter Ended 12/31/2025

Multi-Yr Projects Current Audit Plan

Actuals to Date Per Quarter            

Page 1 of 3

Attachment C



Audit Category and Name 1,2,3
Audit 

Number Start Date
End
Date

Total
Budget

Actuals
To Date Budget Changes

Revised
Budget

Est 
Remain

Budget
Variance

FU
Due

FU
Number Status 4

#1 #2 #3 #4 Total

Internal Audit Department
Quarterly Status Report for the Audit Oversight Committee

For the Quarter Ended 12/31/2025

Multi-Yr Projects Current Audit Plan

Actuals to Date Per Quarter            

Mandated & Financial Audits (MFA)
FY 24-25 Carryovers
T-TC Tax Redemption Officer (2322) 2421 8/01/24 0 0 0 0 0 In process. Contracted out to MGO.

Total Mandated & Financial Audits 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Performance Audits
County Treasury Performance Audit 2516 100 100 0 0 0 100 0
Mental Health Services Act (MHSA) Contractor Oversight 
and Performance Audit 2517 150 150 12 4 16 134 0 Scope of work in process.

Mental Health Services Act (MHSA) Contractor Oversight 
and Performance Audit 2518 150 150 11 4 15 135 0 Scope of work in process.

SAIC Contract Compliance and Performance Audit 2519 100 100 0 0 0 100 0
County Ethics Program 2520 100 100 7 3 10 90 0 Scope of work in process.

Total Performance Audits 600 0 600 30 11 0 0 41 559 0

Information Technology Audits (ITA)
OCIT Remote Access Security 2511 650 650 0 36 36 614 0 In process.
OCIT Third-Party IT Security 2512 650 650 0 0 0 650 0
OCSD Cybersecurity 2513 11/07/25 650 650 0 188 188 462 0 In process.
T-TC Cybersecurity 2514 650 650 0 94 94 556 0 In process.
OCIT Adoption and Use of Artificial Intelligence 2515 650 650 0 0 0 650 0
A-C ERP Governance and Risk Management Advisory 2521 7/08/25 250 250 53 46 99 151 0 In process.
Assessor Cybersecurity 2522 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Time-permitting audit. 
COB Cybersecurity 2523 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Time-permitting audit. 

FY 24-25 Carryovers
OCIT Data Governance (2411) 2510 4/08/25 700    938     380 200 580 274 174 448 132 0 In process.
OCDA Cybersecurity 2412 4/10/25 525 403 0 525 525 366 138 504 21 0 Draft report issued 12/17/25.
OCWR Cybersecurity 2413 10/10/24 9/03/25 525 750 0 80 80 82 0 82 0 2 3/31/2026 2413-F1 Completed. Final report issued 9/3/25.

Follow-Up Audits 415 415 151 191 0 0 342 73 0
Probation Cybersecurity (2043) 2043-F2 4/08/25 9/30/25 38 0 38 N/A N/A Completed. Final close-out report issued 9/30/25.
OCIT Internet of Things (2243) 2314-F1 9/09/25 12/18/25 11 64 75 N/A N/A Completed. Final close-out report issued 12/18/25.
OCIT Enterprise Governance (2242) 2315-F2 10/08/25 12/17/25 6 57 63 N/A N/A Completed. Final close-out report issued 12/17/25.
OCWR Cybersecurity 2413-F1 0
OCPW Cybersecurity 2414-F1 6/26/25 10/27/25 78 4 82 N/A N/A Completed. Final close-out report issued 10/27/25.
HCA Cybersecurity 2419-F1 9/17/25 18 66 84 In process.

Total Information Technology Audits 4,295 805 5,100 926 867 0 0 1,793 3,309 2

Total Audits Before Other Activities & Administration 11,385 1,505 12,890 2,739 2,768 0 0 5,507 7,385 2

Page 2 of 3

Attachment C



Audit Category and Name 1,2,3
Audit 

Number Start Date
End
Date

Total
Budget

Actuals
To Date Budget Changes

Revised
Budget

Est 
Remain

Budget
Variance

FU
Due

FU
Number Status 4

#1 #2 #3 #4 Total

Internal Audit Department
Quarterly Status Report for the Audit Oversight Committee

For the Quarter Ended 12/31/2025

Multi-Yr Projects Current Audit Plan

Actuals to Date Per Quarter            

Other Activities & Administration
IAD Strategic Plan 2581 200 200 0 0 0 200 0
IAD Charter Update 2582 50 (30) 20 0 8 8 12 0 In process.
Cybersecurity Trends and Awareness 2583 200 200 36 30 66 134 0 Ongoing.
Policies and Procedures Update 2584 200 (200) 0 0 0 0 0 0 Deferred due to higher priority audits.
Special Projects 2585 400 400 207 13 220 180 0 Audit Services Contracts in process.
Annual Risk Assessment & Audit Plan for FY 2026-27
(Co-sourced) 2591 400 400 14 26 40 360 0

In process.

Cash Loss Investigations 2592 40 40 0 0 0 40 0
TeamMate+ Administration 2593 60 60 12 5 17 43 0 Ongoing.
External Audit Reporting 2594 160 90 250 76 45 121 129 0 Ongoing.
On-Demand Department Advisory Services 2595 80 80 0 1 1 79 0 Ongoing.
Quality Assessment 2596 100 130 230 47 177 224 6 0 In process.
Board of Supervisors & AOC Support 2597 200 200 59 45 104 96 0 In process.
Countywide Cost Allocation Plan (CWCAP) -- 60 (60) 0 0 0 0 0 0 Project completed by Admin.

Total Other Activities & Administration 2,150 (70) 2,080 451 350 0 0 801 1,279 0

Reserve for Board Directives/Contingencies 2,393 (1,435) 958 0 0 958 0
Completed. ARPA Funds Risk Assessment (2425) 
Phase 2 final report issued 7/3/25;
ARPA Follow-Up Audit (2425-F1) is not started.

Total Budget 15,928 0 15,928 3,190 3,118 0 0 6,308 9,622 2
Footnote 5

Footnotes
1. The mission of the Internal Audit Department (IA) is to provide highly reliable, independent, objective evaluations and business and financial consulting services to the Board of Supervisors (Board) and County management to assist them with their important business and financial 
decisions. The director of Internal Audit shall report directly to the Board and be advised by the Audit Oversight Committee (AOC) designated by the Board. The director of Internal Audit and staff shall have complete and unrestricted access to all of the County’s financial records, files, 
information systems, personnel, and properties, except where prohibited by law. The AOC is an advisory committee to the Board and provides oversight of IA and other County audit functions. The scope of IA shall include reviews of the reliability and integrity of financial, compliance, 
property, and business systems, and may include appraising the efficiency of operations and the achievement of business and program goals and objectives.

2. IA generates several different types of reports including audit reports, summary reports, and status reports. In addition, IA undertakes several different projects including audits of internal controls, audits of lessee compliance with County contracts, and audits of IT controls. IA also 
serves the AOC by providing clerk services (meeting agenda preparation, minutes, etc.) and by preparing summary reports.

3. The annual Audit Plan is subject to change for such events where the director of Internal Audit or Board majority assesses it is warranted, to substitute, postpone, or cancel a scheduled audit due to timing, priority, resource, or risk considerations.  Such modifications will be noted in 
the Status column of this Quarterly Status Report for review by the AOC. The acceptance of the Quarterly Status Report by the AOC authorizes both the content herein and any changes noted. During the course of the year, the director of Internal Audit has discretion to research
issues of interest to members of the Board, AOC, or County management and provide them with Technical Assistance. When charged, these projects will be directed either to advisory services or to a separate project. Assistance of this nature generally invloves between 10 and 80 
hours and results are generally communicated through discussions, memos, or written report for public distribution.

4. For purposes regarding fiscal year-end reporting, we consider assignments completed (Completed) as of the official release of an audit report to the department head, and are shown as such in our Status column of this Quarterly Status Report.

5. The initial FY 2025-26 Annual Audit Plan of 15,928 hours is based on 11,385 direct hours to be provided by eight Senior Auditors and Audit Managers, two Senior Audit Managers, and an Assistant Deputy Director, plus 2,150 hours for other activities and administration/special 
projects and 2,393 hours reserved for Board directives/contingencies. These hours exclude time for vacation, sick leave, holidays, training, administrative time, and other time not directly related to an engagement.

Page 3 of 3

Attachment C



Agenda Item 7 



Memorandum 

February 5, 2026 

AOC Agenda Item No.  

TO: Audit Oversight Committee Members 

Recommended Action:  
Approve External Audit Activity Status Report for Quarter Ended December 31, 2025, and 
Receive Report on Status of External Audit Recommendations Implementation   

Approve External Audit Activity Status Report for Quarter Ended December 31, 2025, and 
Receive Report on Status of External Audit Recommendations Implementation, as stated in 
recommended action. 

ATTACHMENT(S): 
Attachment A – External Audit Activity Status Report Memo 
Attachment B – Executive Summary External Audit Activity   
Attachment C – External Audit Activity Quarterly Status Report 
Attachment D – External Audit Report Implementation Status of Prior Quarter Significant & 

  Material Issues 



INTERNAL AUDIT DEPARTMENT

January , 2026 

To: Audit Oversight Committee Members

From: Aggie Alonso, CPA, CIA, CRMA
Internal Audit Department Director

Subject: External Audit Activity Status Report for the Quarter Ended December 31, 2025

Attached for your review and approval is our External Audit Activity Status Report for the Quarter 
ended December 31, 2025. Pursuant to Audit Oversight Committee (AOC) Administrative 
Procedure Number 2, Reporting on External Audits, County departments are required to 
communicate the status of all third-party audits, including any significant audit findings identified, 
to Internal Audit on a quarterly basis. The procedure was established to keep the AOC informed 
of all third-party audits being performed and any significant findings identified. In addition, as 
requested by the AOC at its May 9, 2019 meeting, we have included County department reported 
corrective action taken to implement recommendations related to significant audit findings 
identified. 

To facilitate the AOC’s review, we are pleased to include an Executive Summary (Attachment B) 
that presents the total audit additions and deletions from the prior quarter, and the total current 
audits in progress. In addition, the Executive Summary references any new significant findings 
and provides a summary of any material issues reported for the quarter. For individual report 
details, see Attachment C. Finally, for corrective action taken to implement recommendations, 
see Attachment D.  

For the quarter ended December 31, 2025, departments reported three new material issues. See 
Attachment B for additional information.

If you have any questions, please contact me at (714) 834-5442 or Deputy Director Jose Olivo at 
(714) 834-5509.

Attachment A

Digitally signed by Aggie 
Alonso 
Date: 2026.01.28 
15:48:15 -08'00'



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF EXTERNAL AUDIT ACTIVITY 
For the Quarter Ended 12/31/25 

SUMMARY ACTIVITY 

Total Audits Prior Quarter (9/30/25) 51 
Additions: In Progress 6 

Planned 2 
Started and Completed 1 

Deletions  
(Completed, Canceled, and Removed in Prior Quarter) 

  8 

Total Audits Current Quarter (12/31/25) 52 
(In Progress, Planned, and/or Completed this Quarter) 

Results for the Quarter: 
Completed 
Canceled  
Removed for Other Reasons 

17 
0 
0 

New Significant Findings/Issues Reported by the Departments 7

Material Issues: (Includes Disallowances over $100K) 3 

1. The California State Controller’s Office (SCO) conducted an audit of
the Health Care Agency’s (HCA) Proposition 47 Safe Neighborhoods
and Schools Fund grant expenditures for the period of August 15, 2019,
through May 15, 2023. The audit disallowed $650,628 in provider and
related indirect costs as HCA did not adequately account for
Community-Based Organization subcontractor expenses associated
with Charitable Ventures of OC and lacked sufficient financial records
to support them.

2. The California Department of Health Care Services reviewed HCA’s
Short-Doyle/Medi-Cal Cost Report for the fiscal period ended June 30,
2016. The audit identified a net adjustment of $7,498,752 as part of the
true-up process, which reconciles interim payments with actual costs
through a retrospective review. The State Department of Health Care
Services Approved Claims Detail Report, dated June 15, 2021, reflects
validated claims after all adjustments, disallowances, and appeals.
Based on this finalized report, the State settled HCA’s reported units of

Attachment B



Material Issues (Cont’d.):  

service, resulting in the net adjustment of $7,498,752 payable to the 
Department of Health Care Services. 

3. The California SCO audited the costs claimed by the Sheriff’s
Department for the legislatively mandated Racial and Identity Profiling
Program for the period of July 1, 2018, through June 30, 2023. The audit
disallowed $449,836 in costs as OCSD claimed unsupported and
ineligible costs.

Attachment B



Department / 
Agency

Division Name of Third 
Party Auditor

Program, Process, or Area Audit Period & 
Frequency

Date Last 
Audited

Audit Scope Status as of 
12/31/2025

Significant Findings

Assessor State Board of 
Equalization (BOE)

All Property Assessment and 
Valuation Practices

 2024-25 
Assessment Roll;

Every 5 years

2020 The BOE's survey program is conducted on a five-
year cycle. During a survey, BOE staff conducts an 
audit of the Assessor's procedures and practices. In 
addition, BOE staff will perform an appraisal 
sample from the 2024-25 assessment roll of values. 
BOE staff audits and appraises each property in the 
sample and compares the results to the Assessor's 
values. Staff then expands the results to determine 
whether the total assessment roll complies with 
statutory standards. Staff then publishes an 
assessment practices survey report that summarizes 
the findings and includes recommendations for 
improvement. 

In progress.

Auditor-Controller Financial Reporting Eide Bailly Single Audit FY 2024
Annual

6/30/2023 Uniform Guidance Expenditures of Federal 
Assistance

Completed.
(Reported 3/31/25)

See Attachment D for corrective actions 
taken related to the findings from this 
audit. 

Eide Bailly Annual Comprehensive Financial 
Report (ACFR)

Annual 6/30/2024 Annual Financial GAAP Audit Completed. None.

Eide Bailly Single Audit Annual 6/30/2024 Uniform Guidance Expenditures of Federal 
Assistance

In progress.

Cost, Revenue & 
Budget

No audits in 
progress.

Property Tax No audits in 
progress.

General Accounting No audits in 
progress.

Child Support 
Services

Program Support 
Services

California 
Department of 
Child Support 
Services (CA 
DCSS), 
Information 
Security Office 
(ISO)

An information security hybrid 
audit.

April 8, 2025 
through June 23, 

2025. Every 3 
years.

Unknown The audit objective is to verify that OC CSS, its 
agents, and contractors, effectively safeguard 
personal and confidential child support 
information, including Federal Tax Information 
(FTI), and comply with Internal Revenue Service 
(IRS) Publication 1075, the DCSS Information 
Security Manual (ISM), and relevant state and 
federal laws and IT best practices.

Completed. Two (2) New Findings:
There were findings in the area of 
cybersecurity that identified numerous 
critical and significant IT vulnerabilities. 
Due to the sensitive nature of this 
information, details have been restricted 
from disclosure.

In addition, one significant finding in the 
are of secure storage. Minimum 
Protection Standards were not met. The 
network room on the 10th floor did not 
meet the two barrier requirement. CSS 
corrected by adding an additional barrier 
requirement on 08/29/2025.

Department of 
Child Support 
Services (DCSS), 
Program 
Monitoring and 
Compliance Unit 
(PMCU)

Policy and Process Management 10/01/24 - 
09/30/25
Annually

07/01/25 - 
09/30/25
Quarterly

December 
2024

September 
2025

Assess the accuracy and reliability of data reported 
used in calculating performance indicators.

Completed. None.

EXTERNAL AUDIT ACTIVITY
Quarterly Status Report

2nd Quarter FY 2025-26 (12/31/25)

1 of 9

Attachment C



Department / 
Agency

Division Name of Third 
Party Auditor

Program, Process, or Area Audit Period & 
Frequency

Date Last 
Audited

Audit Scope Status as of 
12/31/2025

Significant Findings

Clerk of the Board No audits in 
progress.

Clerk-Recorder Information Systems Larry Halme ERDS Program July to August 
weekly

6/24/2025 ERDS Modified System Audit Completed.
(Reported 09/30/25)

See Attachment D for corrective actions 
taken related to the findings from this 
audit. 

County Counsel No audits in 
progress.

County Executive 
Office

Finance No audits in 
progress.

Risk Management No audits in 
progress.

Information 
Technology

No audits in 
progress.

Corporate Real Estate No audits in 
progress.

Human Resource 
Services   

No audits in 
progress.

Office of Care 
Coordination

No audits in 
progress.

District Attorney- 
Public 
Administrator

Eide Bailly, LLP Insurance Fraud Programs for 
Workers' Compensation, 
Automobile, and Disability & 
Healthcare

07/01/2024 - 
06/30/2025 

Annual

6/30/2024 Grant Program Audit   Completed. None.

Eide Bailly, LLP Workers' Rights Enforcement 
Grant

08/01/2024-
07/31/2025 

Annual

N/A (New 
grant)

Financial Schedule Audit   Completed. One (1) New Finding:
There was an error in the expense report 
due to a formula oversight, which failed 
to properly account for full-time 
equivalent (FTE) allocations against total 
salaries.  This resulted in a correction of 
$48,500 to the report.

2 of 9

Attachment C



Department / 
Agency

Division Name of Third 
Party Auditor

Program, Process, or Area Audit Period & 
Frequency

Date Last 
Audited

Audit Scope Status as of 
12/31/2025

Significant Findings

Health Care 
Agency 

Administration Eide Bailly LLP Tobacco Settlement Revenue 
(TSR)

FY 24/25 
Annual

FY 23/24 Fiscal compliance review. In progress.

Behavioral Health 
Services

Department of 
Health and Human 
Services

Projects for Assistance in 
Transition from Homeless (PATH) 
Program

FY 20/21
One-time

N/A Fiscal and program compliance review. In progress.

California State 
Controller's Office 
(SCO)

Prop 47 Comprehensive 
Monitoring Visit - Cohort 2

Aug 15, 2019 - 
May 15, 2023

January 2022 Fiscal and program compliance review Completed. One (1) New Material Issue:
The California State Controller’s Office 
(SCO) conducted an audit of the Health 
Care Agency’s (HCA) Proposition 47 
Safe Neighborhoods and Schools Fund 
grant expenditures for the period of 
August 15, 2019, through May 15, 2023. 
The audit disallowed $650,628 in 
provider and related indirect costs as 
HCA did not adequately account for 
Community-Based Organization 
subcontractor expenses associated with 
Charitable Ventures of OC and lacked 
sufficient financial records to support 
them.

Department of 
Health Care 
Services

Mental Health Block Grant 
(MHBG) Programs Desk Review / 
Substance Abuse and Mental 
Health Services Administration 
(SAMHSA)

FY 23/24 N/A Program compliance review. In progress.

CA Department of 
Health Care 
Services

Specialty Mental Health (Short-
Doyle/Medi-Cal) Cost Report 
Audit

FY 15/16 Annual FY 14/15 Fiscal compliance review. Completed. One (1) New Material Issue:
The California Department of Health 
Care Services reviewed HCA’s Short-
Doyle/Medi-Cal Cost Report for the 
fiscal period ended June 30, 2016. The 
audit identified a net adjustment of 
$7,498,752 as part of the true-up process, 
which reconciles interim payments with 
actual costs through a retrospective 
review. The State Department of Health 
Care Services Approved Claims Detail 
Report, dated June 15, 2021, reflects 
validated claims after all adjustments, 
disallowances, and appeals. Based on this 
finalized report, the State settled HCA’s 
reported units of service, resulting in the 
net adjustment of $7,498,752 payable to 
the Department of Health Care Services.

CA Department of 
Health Care 
Services

Specialty Mental Health (Short-
Doyle/Medi-Cal) Cost Report 
Audit

FY 16/17 Annual FY 14/15 Fiscal compliance review. Completed.
(Reported 6/30/25)

See Attachment D for corrective actions 
taken related to the finding from this 
audit. 

Department of 
Health Care 
Services

Mental Health Plan and Drug Medi-
Cal Outpatient Delivery Service 
(DMC-ODS)

CY 2024
Annual

CY 2023 External Quality Review (EQR) In progress.

State Department of 
Health Care 
Services

Substance Abuse Block 
Grant/Drug Medi-Cal Organized 
Delivery System (SABG/DMC-
ODS) Service Review

FY24/25
Annual

FY 23/24 Program compliance review. In progress.

Department of 
Health Care 
Services

Substance Abuse Block Grant 
(SABG) Audit and Drug Medi-Cal 
(DMC) Audit

FY 19/20 
Biennial

FY 17/18 Fiscal and program compliance review. In progress.

3 of 9

Attachment C



Department / 
Agency

Division Name of Third 
Party Auditor

Program, Process, or Area Audit Period & 
Frequency

Date Last 
Audited

Audit Scope Status as of 
12/31/2025

Significant Findings

Health Care 
Agency (Cont.)

Correctional Health 
Services

No audits in 
progress.

Public Health Services CalEPA Environmental Health - CUPA 
Program

FY 21/22 -      
FY 22/23 
Triennial

FY 18//19 Review of inspections, enforcement and 
compliance activities of electronic records in 
CERS; field audit of staff.

In progress.

California 
Department of 
Public Health 
(CDPH)

Epidemiology & Laboratory 
Capacity Enhancement (ELC1) 
and Epidemiology & Laboratory 
Capacity Expansion (ELC2)

1/15/21 - 
10/31/21

N/A Fiscal Compliance Review - 25% Advance 
Payment

In progress.

MGO CPA 
(Contracted 
through DOF and 
Ca State Auditors)

Epidemiology & Laboratory 
Capacity Enhancement (ELC1) 
and Epidemiology & Laboratory 
Capacity Expansion (ELC2)

FY 22/23 N/A Fiscal Compliance Review In progress.

California State 
Controller's Office 
(SCO)

Women, Infant, and Children 
(WIC) Financial Management 
Review

FFY 22/23 
Biennial

FFY 20/21 Fiscal compliance review. In progress.

United States 
Environmental 
Protection Agency 
(USEPA)

State Review Framework (SRF) 
for California and OC 
Environmental Health RCRA 
Hazardous Waste Program

FY 2024 N/A Program compliance review. In progress.

California 
Department of 
Public Health 
(CDPH)

Refugee Health Assessment 
Program (RHAP)

FY 24/25 N/A Fiscal and program compliance review. Completed. None.

Department of 
Health Care 
Services

Medi-Cal Administrative Activities 
(MAA) Desk Review

FY 22/23 FY 12/13 Q1 Fiscal and program compliance review. In progress.

Specialized Medical 
Services

No audits in 
progress.

John Wayne 
Airport 

Finance & 
Administration

Eide Bailly Financial Statements, including 
Passenger Facility Charge Revenue 
and Expenditures

2025
Annual

2024 Audit of Financial Statements Completed. None.

Innovation and 
Technology

Tevora Business 
Solutions

Common Use Passenger 
Processing System

2025 Annual 2024 Compliance with Payment Card Industry Data 
Security Standard

Completed. One (1) New Finding:
JWA's third-party vendor, SITA, was 
unable to provide evidence to validate a 
secure Software Development Life Cycle 
(SDLC) for the Common Use Passenger 
Processing System (CUPPS) required for 
PCI compliance.  JWA has issued a 
request for proposal to replace CUPPS 
with a system that meets Payment Card 
Industry Data Security Standard 
requirements.

4 of 9

Attachment C



Department / 
Agency

Division Name of Third 
Party Auditor

Program, Process, or Area Audit Period & 
Frequency

Date Last 
Audited

Audit Scope Status as of 
12/31/2025

Significant Findings

OC Community 
Resources 

Office on Aging (OoA) California 
Department of 
Aging

Office on Aging FY 22-23 & 
23-24

FY 20-21 & 
21-22

Fiscal policies and procedures, accounting system, 
program income, expenditures, internal control, 
procurement policies and procedures, property 
management, etc.

In progress.

Crowe Senior Non-Emergency Medical 
Transportation M2 & TSR 
(SNEMT)

FY 24-25 FY 15-16 Fiscal policies and procedures, accounting system, 
program income, interest, expenditures, internal 
control, procurement policies and procedures,  etc.

In progress.

Workforce & 
Economic Development 
Division

Employment 
Development 
Department (EDD)

Workforce Innovation & 
Opportunity Act (WIOA) 

FY 24-25 FY 23-24 Fiscal policies and procedures, accounting system, 
program income, expenditures, internal control, 
procurement policies and procedures, property 
management, etc.

Planned.

OC Parks No audits in 
progress.

OC Libraries No audits in 
progress.

OC Animal Care MGO City Billing FY 23/24 
Triennial

FY 20/21 To Be Determined Planned.

Redevelopment 
Successor Agency

No audits in 
progress.

Orange County 
Housing Authority 
(OCHA)

Office of Inspector 
General (OIG) US 
Dept of HUD 

HUD's Tenant-Based Rental 
Assistance (TBRA) Program 

March 2025 To determine HAP in the PIH-TBRA program are 
correctly calculated by OCHA and supported by all 
necessary documentation.

In progress.

California Joint 
Legislative Audit 
Committee

Section 8 Housing Vouchers FY 22-24 N/A Allocation and distribution of vouchers, application 
process, and associated timelines.  

In progress.

Eide Bailly OC Housing Authority - Financial 
Data Schedules

FY 24-25  FY 23-24 Agreed-Upon Procedures for Attestation of Section 
8 Cluster to the US Department of Housing & 
Urban Development

In progress.

OC Housing Finance 
Trust (OCHFT)

TBD Annual Financial Statement  Audit FY 24-25 FY 23-24 Financial Statement Compilation and Audit Planned.

5 of 9

Attachment C



Department / 
Agency

Division Name of Third 
Party Auditor

Program, Process, or Area Audit Period & 
Frequency

Date Last 
Audited

Audit Scope Status as of 
12/31/2025

Significant Findings

OC Public Works Accounting, OC 
Infrastructure 
Programs, OC 
Construction, & CEO

No audits in 
progress.

Accounting & OC 
Fleet Services

Simpson & 
Simpson LLP

South Coast Air Quality 
Management District AB-2766 
Fund (Fund 140)

FY 2021-2022 
and FY 2022-

2023,
bi-annual

04/2024 A Financial and Compliance Audit to determine if 
recipient is in compliance with provisions of 
Assembly Bill 2766 Chapter 1705 [44220 through 
44247]. 

Completed. None.

Simpson & 
Simpson LLP

South Coast Air Quality 
Management District AB-2766 
Fund (Fund 140)

FY 2023-2024 
and FY 2024-

2025,
bi-annual

09/2025 A Financial and Compliance Audit to determine if 
recipient is in compliance with provisions of 
Assembly Bill 2766 Chapter 1705 [44220 through 
44247]. 

Planned.

Accounting Eide Bailly, LLP Santa Ana River Flood Protection 
Agency (SARFPA)

FY 2023-2024 
and FY 2024-

2025, every two 
years

09/2024 Bi-Annual Audits of the Santa Ana River Flood 
Protection Agency's Financials Statements

In progress.

Accounting & 
Infrastructure 
Programs

Eide Bailly, LLP OC Loop Carbon Canyon Segment 
D - ATPCML 5955(092)

FY 2024-25 N/A This is an external audit of the Schedule of 
Expenditure of Federal Awards (SEFA) and 
includes an audit of the OC Loop Carbon Channel 
(Segment D) program based on OMB circulars and 
compliance supplement requirements.

In progress.

Administrative 
Services / Revenue 
Streams

No audits in 
progress.

6 of 9

Attachment C



Department / 
Agency

Division Name of Third 
Party Auditor

Program, Process, or Area Audit Period & 
Frequency

Date Last 
Audited

Audit Scope Status as of 
12/31/2025

Significant Findings

OC Waste & 
Recycling

Accounting Eide Bailly Financial Statement Audit FY 24/25
Annual

6/30/2024 Audit of Financial Statements Completed. None.

Probation Administrative and 
Fiscal

No audits in 
progress.

Public Defender No audits in 
progress.

Registrar of Voters No audits in 
progress.

Sheriff-Coroner Custody Operations Disability Rights 
California (DRC)

Theo Lacy, Central Men's Jail, 
Central Women's Jail, Intake 
Release Center, James A Musick 
Facility

Current N/A Disability Rights In progress.

Technology No audits in 
progress.

Research &
Development /
Financial

Eide Bailly LLP James Musick Expansion Phase II 
(AB 900) Agreed Upon Procedures

Jan 2013 -
Dec 2023
One-Time

N/A Compliance with California Board of State and 
Community Corrections (BSCC) construction-
financing program through Assembly Bill (AB) 900 
and Senate Bill (SB) 1022.

In progress.

S.A.F.E. / Financial California State 
Controller’s Office 
(SCO)

Mandated Cost Claims for the 
Racial and Identity Profiling 
(RIPA) Program

July 2018 - 
June 2023

N/A Compliance Completed. One (1) New Material Issue:
The California SCO audited the costs 
claimed by the Sheriff’s Department for 
the legislatively mandated Racial and 
Identity Profiling Program for the period 
of July 1, 2018, through June 30, 2023. 
The audit disallowed $449,836 in costs as 
OCSD claimed unsupported and 
ineligible costs. 

Investigations / 
Financial

No audits in 
progress.

Records No audits in 
progress.

7 of 9

Attachment C



Department / 
Agency

Division Name of Third 
Party Auditor

Program, Process, or Area Audit Period & 
Frequency

Date Last 
Audited

Audit Scope Status as of 
12/31/2025

Significant Findings

Social Services 
Agency

Administrative 
Services

California
Department of 
Social
Services (CDSS)

Social Services and
CalWORKs
Assistance Claims

7/1/22 –
6/30/23
UNK

10/16 Review County’s compliance with federal 
requirements to provide more oversight of federal 
program expenditures.

Completed. None.

Office of Payee 
Review and 
Beneficiary 
Assistance

Social Security Administration, 
Representative Payee Review

07/01/23-
06/30/24

Occurs every 3 
years

11/21 The purpose of the audit is the Social Security 
Administration’s (SSA) responsibility to ensure 
that beneficiaries who have a representative payee 
are receiving adequate services and supports.

In progress.

Children & Family 
Services

No audits in 
progress.

Assistance Programs California 
Department of 
Social Services 
(CDSS)

CalFresh Employment & Training 
(CF E&T)

03/22
Annual

05/22 Management Evaluation (ME) of OC’s CF E&T 
program to determine the compliance of the 
program rules and regulations, and the county’s 
approved CF E&T plan.

Completed. None.

California 
Department of 
Social Services 
(CDSS)

CalFresh Annual 08/25 As mandated by the United States Department of 
Agriculture (USDA) Food and Nutrition Service 
(FNS), CDSS conducts an evaluation of CalFresh 
Program access with an emphasis on the 
recertification process and timeliness of application 
processing, payment accuracy, and assessment of 
corrective action.

In progress.

Family Self-Sufficiency 
& Adult Services

California 
Department of 
Social Services 
(CDSS), Children 
& Family Services 
Division, Adoption 
Services Bureau

Adoption Assistance Program 10/13/21 - 
7/20/23 Annual

10/23 Monitoring to ensure the AAP program 
administration from eligibility determination to 
benefit issuance is in compliance with federal and 
state regulations, which includes the review of 
AAP eligibility and AAP service files to verify 
appropriateness and accuracy of forms being used.

Completed. None.

California 
Department of 
Social Services 
(CDSS)- Gregory 
Knox

In-Home Supportive Services Annual 08/24 Audit of County social services activities with a 
focus on a review of 30 cases, which include five 
denied cases, 14 randomly selected cases chosen 
by state QA, and 11 County QA reviewed cases, 5 
of which included a home visit. The period under 
review is 07/01/2025 through 09/30/2025.

In progress.

Christy White & 
Associates

California State Preschool Program 
(CSPP) Grant

Yearly 11/24 The purpose of the audit is to ensure that SSA’s 
financial statements are presented with generally 
accepted accounting principles, maintains effective 
internal controls to discharge management 
responsibilities, that state and federal funds are 
expended in accordance with applicable 
agreements, and that direct an  indirect costs 
incurred and claimed for reimbursement under the 
contracts are reasonable.

In progress.

CDSS Refugee: Housing Assistance for 
Ukrainians (HAU) Program

Varies N/A, first 
monitoring 

visit

Refugee Programs Bureau (RPB) seeks to provide 
statewide monitoring to ensure counties’ 
compliance with the Refugee Resettlement 
Program’s rules and regulations. RPB also provides 
technical assistance, resources, and guidance 
needed to achieve this goal. RPB randomly 
selected 16 of 113 HAU cases for review that were 
either active, denied, or discontinued between June 
1, 2024 – May 31, 2025, and conducted program 
staff and clients’ interviews

Completed. None.

8 of 9

Attachment C



Department / 
Agency

Division Name of Third 
Party Auditor

Program, Process, or Area Audit Period & 
Frequency

Date Last 
Audited

Audit Scope Status as of 
12/31/2025

Significant Findings

Social Services 
Agency (Cont.)

Family Self-Sufficiency 
& Adult Services 
(Cont.)

Administration for 
Children and 
Families (ACF)

Title IV-E Foster Care Every 3 years 2018 The regulatory reviews of the title IV-E Foster 
Care program determine whether children in foster 
care meet the federal eligibility requirements for 
foster care maintenance payments claimed on their 
behalf. During these reviews, the Children’s 
Bureau examines child and provider case records, 
as well as payment documentation, to validate the 
accuracy of a Title IV-E agency’s reimbursement 
claims of foster care payments.

In progress.

Treasurer-Tax 
Collector

Treasury Brown Armstrong 
Accountancy 
Corporation

County Treasury Public Funds FY 2023-24 
Annual

FY 2022-23 Annual Audit, required by Government Code 
Section 27134, of County Treasurer's compliance 
with Article 6.

In progress.

Brown Armstrong 
Accountancy 
Corporation

County Treasury Public Funds September 30, 
2024 Quarterly 

9/30/2024 TOC directed quarterly compliance reviews In progress.

Brown Armstrong 
Accountancy 
Corporation

County Treasury Public Funds December 31, 
2024 Quarterly 

12/31/2024 TOC directed quarterly compliance reviews In progress.

9 of 9

Attachment C



No. Department Audit Name Finding Recommendation
Material or 
Significant Implementation Status* & Actions Taken or Planned

1 OCSD Single Audit YE 06/30/24 #2024-005 Equitable Sharing 
Program: Did not perform suspension 
or debarment verification of vendor 
prior to entering transactions.

We recommend that the Sheriff’s Department adhere 
to their procurement procedures requiring the 
suspension or debarment verification is performed 
prior to entering into a covered transaction.  

Significant Implemented. OCSD worked with the DOJ Money Laundering and Asset Recovery Section (MLARS) on the 
Single Audit remediation and internal policies have been updated and approved.  

2 OCSD Single Audit YE 06/30/24 #2024-006 Equitable Sharing 
Program: Miscalculated overtime 
costs resulting in $23,409 in 
questioned costs.

We recommend the Sheriff’s Department establish 
and maintain internal controls to ensure the overtime 
calculations are being accurately allocated to the 
program.  

Significant Implemented. OCSD worked with the DOJ Money Laundering and Asset Recovery Section (MLARS) on the 
Single Audit remediation and internal policies have been updated and approved.  

3 SSA Single Audit YE 06/30/24 #2024-014 Refugee and Entrant 
Assistance State/Replacement 
Designee Administered Programs: 
Provided benefits to ineligible 
participants and did not retain required 
documentation, resulting in $7,578 in 
questioned costs.

We recommend that the SSA department strengthen 
its internal controls to ensure that program eligibility 
criteria are properly supported and retained in case 
files.  

Material In Progress.
1) Policy and Procedure Review & Update: Review and update existing policies and procedures to ensure
clarity of eligibility criteria, including country of origin, eligibility period, and documentation retention 
requirements. These actions will provide clearer guidelines to prevent future eligibility issues and ensure 
proper documentation retention.
Implemented 06/2025, policy was updated and distributed to eligibility workers.
2) Ongoing Monitoring & Compliance Review: Establish a dedicated team to perform monthly reviews of all 
approved cases, ensuring compliance with eligibility requirements. A monthly report will detail trends, non-
compliance issues, and corrective actions results. With these actions, we will have continuous oversight and
prompt corrective actions to maintain program integrity. 
Implemented 06/2025, included updates to case review system and training to all supervisors.
3) Mandatory Eligibility Checklist: Implement a mandatory eligibility checklist for all staff to confirm the 
required eligibility documents, system entries, and action notices at initial application and semi-annual 
reporting. These actions ensure staff consistently follow eligibility requirements and semi-annual reporting 
processes.
In Progress. Checklist is going through internal final review, once complete will be reviewed  by leadership
and union. 

4 HCA Short-Doyle/Medi-Cal 
Cost Report for Fiscal 
Period Ended June 30, 
2017

The California Department of Health 
Care Services reviewed HCA’s Short-
Doyle/Medi-Cal Cost Report for the 
fiscal period ended June 30, 2017. 
The audit identified a net adjustment 
of $11,583,790 as part of the true-up 
process, which reconciles interim 
payments with actual costs through a 
retrospective review. The State 
Department of Health Care Services 
Approved Claims Detail Report, dated 
May 26, 2024, reflects validated 
claims after all adjustments, 
disallowances, and appeals. Based on 
this finalized report, the State settled 
HCA’s reported units of service, 
resulting in the net adjustment of 
$11,583,790 payable to the 
Department of Health Care Services.

The audit report did not contain a recommendation; 
however, the net adjustment is funds payable to the 
Department of Health Care Services.

Material In Progress. Waiting for DHCS to send invoice for repayment.

5 Clerk-Recorder ERDS Program Content has been removed due to the 
sensitive nature of the finding.

Content has been removed due to the sensitive 
nature of the finding.

Significant In Progress. 
Content has been removed due to the sensitive nature of the finding.

6 Clerk-Recorder ERDS Program Content has been removed due to the 
sensitive nature of the finding.

Content has been removed due to the sensitive 
nature of the finding.

Significant In Progress. 
Content has been removed due to the sensitive nature of the finding.

* Implementation status reported as (1) implemented, (2) in progress, or (3) not yet implemented.

EXTERNAL AUDIT REPORT
Implementation Status of Prior Quarter Significant & Material Issues

Quarter Ended December 31, 2025

Page 1 of 1

Attachment D



Agenda Item 8 



Memorandum 

February 5, 2026 

AOC Agenda Item No. 8 

TO: Audit Oversight Committee Members 

Recommended Action:  
Approve Independent Risk Assessment and Recommendations for FY 2025-26 and FY 2026-27 
Audit Plans 

Approve Independent Risk Assessment and Recommendations for FY 2025-26 and FY 2026-27 
Audit Plans, as stated in recommended action. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Attachment A – Independent Risk Assessment and Recommendations for Fiscal Years 2025-26 

and 2026-27 Audit Plans – Summary of Results Memo 
Attachment B – Macias, Gini & O'Connell Independent Risk Assessment and Recommendations 

for Audit Plans for FY 2025-26 and FY 2026-27 



INTERNAL AUDIT DEPARTMENT

Audit No. 2591

February 2, 2026

To: Chair Doug Chaffee, Supervisor, 4th District
Vice Chair Katrina Foley, Supervisor, 5th District
Supervisor Janet Nguyen, 1st District
Supervisor Vicente Sarmiento, 2nd District
Supervisor Donald P. Wagner, 3rd District

From: Aggie Alonso, CPA, CIA, CRMA
Internal Audit Department Director

Subject: Macias, Gini & O’Connell Independent Risk Assessment and Recommendations for 
Fiscal Years 2025-26 and 2026-27 Audit Plans

On June 24, 2025, the Board of Supervisors (Board) directed the Internal Audit Department (IAD) to 
contract with a reputable Certified Public Accounting firm to conduct an independent risk assessment 
for use in addressing high-risk areas across the County by incorporating related audits in the Fiscal 
Year (FY) 2025-26 and 2026-27 Audit Plans. We contracted with Macias, Gini & O’Connell (MGO) 
LLP to conduct the risk assessment. 

We agree with MGO’s risk assessment results and recommendations, and will be requesting 
approval of MGO’s risk assessment and recommendations for the FY 2025-26 and 2026-27 Audit 
Plans at the February 5, 2026 Audit Oversight Committee (AOC) meeting, and the March 24, 2026
Board meeting. The following is a summary of MGO’s results. 

Risk Assessment and Recommendations

MGO’s risk assessment included interviews with Board members, AOC members, County executive 
management, and elected officials; a survey of 349 County managers; a review of County operations 
and finances; a review of key County documents (e.g., the County budgets and the Annual 
Comprehensive Financial Reports); and an assessment of other similar local government internal 
audit plans. MGO’s risk assessment results identified Financial Risk, Human Capital Risk, 
Technology Risk, and Compliance Risk as the four highest risk areas, and generally agreed with all 
of the high-risk audits we identified in our current FY 2025-26 Audit Plan. MGO also recommended 
approximately 40 high-risk audits for the FY 2026-27 Audit Plan and beyond (Audit Horizon), as audit 
resource capacity allows. 

FY 2025-26 Audit Plan

MGO indicated our FY 2025-26 Audit Plan covers many of the critical risk areas from their risk 
assessment, including purchasing and contracts, human resources management, data governance, 
artificial intelligence, and Information Technology (IT) security. As a result, the FY 2025-26 Audit 
Plan largely remains unchanged. MGO’s recommendations include:

Attachment A



Board of Supervisors
February 2, 2026 

Deferring two audits (Clerk of the Board Cybersecurity and Registrar of Voter Limited 
Validation of Concerns Regarding Elections) to future years. 

Expanding the scope of the existing Orange County Information Technology (OCIT) Adoption 
and Use of Artificial Intelligence (AI) Audit to include a more comprehensive review of 
unmanaged assets, including shadow IT systems. 

Including a comprehensive IT Governance and Compliance Validation Audit to identify 
OCIT’s service coverage across departments, evaluate gaps/duplication, and review the 
effectiveness of policy adherence, alignment, and monitoring across the County. IAD is aware 
of the gaps in OCIT’s service coverage across County departments and will expand 
cybersecurity audits to review governance at these departments. 

FY 2026-27 Audit Plan 

MGO recommended approximately 17 audits for our FY 2026-27 Audit Plan that are specifically 
designed to address the high-risk areas identified in their risk assessment (see Table 1). This 
includes four audits we included in the FY 2025-26 Audit Plan that were classified as Time-Permitting 
audits, which we would conduct if resources became available. While MGO identified many other 
high-risk audits, as discussed further in the Additional High-Risk Audits section below, the audits 
MGO recommended for the FY 2026-27 Audit Plan are based on our current staffing and funding.  

Attachment A



Board of Supervisors
February 2, 2026 

Table 1 - FY 2026-27 Recommended Audits 

Department Audit Scope

Various Cycle Audits

This topic is to ensure coverage of regular audits of core business cycles including 
finance, accounting, human resources, and information technology on a periodic 
basis.with internal procedures, fraud risks, and opportunities for improved effectiveness.

Objectives will be to conduct audits of up to three regular financial cycles to determine 
compliance with internal procedures, fraud risks, and opportunities for improved 
effectiveness. Examples include:
• Revenue & Accounts Receivable
• Procurement to Pay
• Hire to Retire
• Financial Reporting
• Cash & Treasury Management
• Inventory & Asset Management
• Budgeting & Forecasting
• Information Technology General Controls

Various Performance Audits

Conduct performance audits to support the transition of a new executive leader or 
elected official focused on evaluating whether programs are operating efficiently, 
effectively, and in alignment with stated goals, while identifying performance gaps, 
outdated processes, and opportunities for improvement. By concentrating on high-
impact areas performance audits equip new leaders with clear, evidence-based insights 
that inform early decision-making

A-C Central Payroll (IAD Planned Audit)
To assess the accuracy and completeness of payroll records and the required 
compliance with employment and tax law. (Listed in the 2025-2026 Audit Plan to be 
done if capacity allows.)

CEO County Budget Practices (IAD Planned Audit)
To evaluate County budget practices to ensure financial accuracy, compliance, and 
efficiency. (Listed in the 2025-2026 Audit Plan to be done if capacity allows.)

Countywide
Human Resources and Personnel Practices 
(IAD Planned Audit)

To assess whether hiring and personnel practices ensure effectiveness, compliance, 
fairness, and alignment with organizational goals. (Listed in the 2025-2026 Audit Plan to 
be done if capacity allows.)

Countywide  Fiscal Sustainability
Evaluate County policymakers and executives’ processes and mechanisms, such as 
benchmarking against other governments, for ensuring the County’s fiscal health and 
identifying areas for improvement.

CEO  Risk Management

To assess the adequacy of processes to reduce liability for the County and to determine 
whether the Office could provide additional value through a broader risk management 
role. Specific areas could include the opportunities to reduce exposure to natural 
disaster liabilities.

Sheriff Overtime
Evaluate the use of overtime in the Sheriff’s office. Potential areas of assessment 
include adherence to existing overtime policy, adequacy of existing overtime policy; 
equity is allocation of overtime; and use of overtime compared to staffing increases.

SSA Program Eligibility
Evaluate the internal controls over ensuring eligibility for services provided by the Social 
Services Agency.

OCIT
Cloud and Third-Party Vendor Risks (IAD 
Planned Audit)

Evaluate cloud governance and security baselines as OCIT migrates towards more 
cloud adoption; Review resilience, continuity, and dependency risks in the supply chain 
and validate compensating controls for vendor-constrained systems.

Assessor Cybersecurity (IAD Planned Audit)
To assess cybersecurity controls to ensure sensitive data is restricted, vulnerabilities 
and system changes are managed, and compliance with best practices. (Listed in the 
2025-2026 Audit Plan to be done if capacity allows.)

HCA Cybersecurity
To assess cybersecurity controls to ensure sensitive data is restricted, vulnerabilities 
and system changes are managed, and compliance with best practices.

Countywide
Data Governance and Information 
Management

Review maturity of OC’s data governance framework and readiness for agencies 
outside of coverage by OCIT; Assess risks arising from data silos and decentralized 
security; Evaluate data protection controls and information lifecycle management 
practices.

A-C ERP System Advisory
Serve on the project steering committee in an advisory capacity. Assist in identifying 
and tracking project related risks and considerations from the perspective of IAD.

CEO Construction Audit

Identification of capital costs or construction projects to test. Audit objectives and testing 
may include:
• Project risk assessment
• Capital program oversight and controls
• Project Management effectiveness and efficiencies
• Invoice cost testing for accuracy and allowability
• Compliance with Contract Terms and State and Federal Laws (e.g., Procurement,
Prevailing Wages, BABA, Suspension and Debarment).

Attachment A



Board of Supervisors
February 2, 2026 

Additional High-Risk Audits (Audit Horizon) 

As previously mentioned, not all high-risk audits that MGO identified could be incorporated into the 
FY 2026-27 Audit Plan due to our current staffing and funding. This includes 24 audits, including five 
separate cybersecurity audits, in the highest risk areas of their risk assessment (see Table 2). MGO 
recommends for us to consider these audits for future years, or sooner if capacity becomes available. 

Table 2 – Additional High-Risk Audits

Department Audit Topic Preliminary Objective

JWA Airport Fees
To assess the processes and controls County management has in place to regularly 
evaluate the adequacy of fees generated by Jon Wayne Airport to the long-term 
health of the Airport enterprise fund.

Various Asset Management
Assess and test inventory management practices, particularly in areas where other 
audit work has not focused on a specific asset class, department, or function, etc.

OCPW Building and Safety
Evaluate the efficiency and effectiveness of Orange County’s building and safety 
inspections and code enforcement.

CEO Capital Projects Oversight
Evaluate County management’s monitoring of high-risk capital programs and 
projects and communicating concerns.

Various Cash Handling
Evaluate the effectiveness of internal controls over cash handling. Area of focus 
would include but not be limited to SSA and airport parking lots. (SSA cash 
handling is a current time-permitting audit)

JWA, A-C, COB, 
SSA, Probation

Cybersecurity
To assess cybersecurity controls to ensure sensitive data is restricted, 
vulnerabilities and system changes are managed, and compliance with best 
practices.

CEO
Economic Development & Public Private 
Partnerships

To assess the performance of economic development initiatives potentially 
including recent developments and public private partnership to determine if the 
programs are meeting the intended purpose.

Various Grants Management
To assess the effectiveness of grants management County-wide, including internal 
controls over grant managers, training for grant managers, and an assessment of 
the process for identifying additional grant funds for County use.

HCA Claim Reimbursement
To assess whether internal controls ensure accuracy, compliance, and integrity in 
the Health Care Agency claims process.

CEO Human Capital Strategic Planning
To assess the County’s planning process for recruitment, retention, success 
planning, performance management, collective bargaining, and other human 
capital risks.

A-C Inventory Management
To assess internal controls over inventory, especially capital inventory, identify 
opportunities for costs savings, and determine whether the inventory management 
system is adequate.

CEO Investment Management
To assess the County’s investment management for compliance with state laws, 
County policies, and industry best practices.

OCSD Jail Operations
Evaluate the Sheriff’s jail operations including compliance with internal policies, 
staffing, use of recognized best practices, and inmate and staff safety.

OCSD OC Crime Lab
Determine whether Orange County Crime Lab is effective and efficient in providing 
public agencies in Orange County with services for the recognition, collection, 
preservation, and evaluation of physical evidence from crime scenes. 

OCPW Permitting Services 
Evaluate the efficiency, effectiveness, and equity of Orange County’s permitting 
processes and systems.

Probation Juvenile Operations
To assess the internal controls over Juvenile Operations and the effectiveness of 
recruitment and retention programs for County staff.

ROV
Limited Validation of Citizen's Concerns 
Regarding Elections

To perform a limited validation of the accuracy of the Registrar of Voters’ elections 
data, based on County citizen’s concerns.

Countywide Regulatory Impacts
Evaluate whether County processes and controls are in place to regularly assess 
the impacts of regulatory changes at the state and federal level on staffing, costs, 
and work culture.

SSA Abuse Reporting
To assess the internal controls over Abuse Reporting and the effectiveness of 
recruitment and retention programs for County staff.

OCWR Waste and Recycling Fees
To assess the processes and controls County management has in place to regularly 
evaluate the adequacy of fees generated by Waste and Recycling to the long-term 
health of the Waste and Recycling enterprise fund.

Attachment A



Board of Supervisors
February 2, 2026 

In closing, we appreciate MGO’s detailed risk assessment evaluation and recommendations. If you 
have any questions regarding the risk assessment, please contact me at (714) 834-5442 or Deputy 
Director Jose Olivo at (714) 834-5509. 

Attachment 

Attachment A



Independent Risk Assessment and 
Recommendations for Audit Plans 
for FY 2025-2026 and 2026-2027.

FOR THE

County of Orange

January 30, 2026

Attachment B



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

2

Table of Contents 

INDEPENDENT RISK ASSESSMENT ................................................................. 3

INTRODUCTION ............................................................................................... 4 

RISK ASSESSMENT SURVEY RESULTS ............................................................ 8 

RISK ASSESSMENT INTERVIEWS & CONCLUSIONS ...................................... 13 

AUDIT PLAN RECOMMENDATIONS ............................................................... 19 

ADDITIONAL AREAS OF HIGH RISK: THE AUDIT HORIZON ........................... 35 

APPENDIX ...................................................................................................... 39 

Attachment B



© Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP | 3

INDEPENDENT RISK 

ASSESSMENT

Attachment B



INDEPENDENT RISK ASSESSMENT

© Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP | 4

INTRODUCTION

The County of Orange (County) engaged with Macias Gini & O’Connell (MGO) LLP to conduct an 
independent risk assessment of County operations. The purpose of conducting an independent risk 
assessment is to modify the County of Orange Internal Audit Department’s (IAD’s) Fiscal Year (FY) 
2025-2026 Audit Plan to incorporate audits of high-risk areas identified in the independent risk 
assessment, and to develop IAD’s FY 2026-2027 Audit Plan.

Risk assessment is one of the five foundational components of the Committee of Sponsoring 
Organization’s (COSO’s) framework to establish internal controls.1 While an organization’s 
management is responsible for developing and implementing an organization’s system of internal 
controls, the organization’s audit function supports internal controls by conducting independent 
assessments of risk and independent testing of internal controls. Conducting independent risk 
assessments and internal controls testing are key features of audit standards contained in both the 
Government Auditing Standards (GAS) and the International Professional Practices Framework (IPPF).2

In California, local government audit organizations are required by Section 1236 of the California 
Government Code to conduct audits in compliance with either the GAS or the IPPF. The Internal Audit 
Department (IAD) for the County follows the IPPF.3

Risk Assessment Overview

MGO conducted its independent risk assessment during the period October-December 2025. The risk 
assessment included interviews with senior County management, elected officials, and Audit Oversight 
Committee members; a survey of 349 members of County management; a review of County operations 
and finances; a review of key County documents (e.g., the County budgets and the Annual 
Comprehensive Financial Reports); and an assessment of other similar local government internal audit 
plans.4

The result of the risk assessment validated numerous audits listed in the 2025-2026 Audit Plan and 
identified some audit topics that MGO recommends adding to the 2025-2026 Audit Plan. In addition, 
we recommend several audits for IAD’s 2026-2027 Audit Plan that are specifically designed to address 
the key risk areas that we identified during the risk assessment. MGO has also included in this report 
an Audit Horizon. An Audit Horizon is used by other government audit organizations to identify 

1 See www.coso.org for more information about the Internal Control – Integrated Framework. 
2 The Government Accountability Office, led by the United States Comptroller General, issues the GAS and the Institute 
for Internal Auditors issues the IPPF.
3 See https://iad.oc.gov/about-us/mandates-and-standards.
4 MGO used its experience with local government audit shops to identify seven local government audit organizations that 
represent leading practices in local government auditing. MGO focused on organizations in California and the western 
United States, and emphasized the inclusion of County governments. These seven are: 1) Los Angeles County; 2) the City 
and County of San Francisco; 3) the City of San Diego; 4) the City of Portland (OR); 5) Multnomah County (OR); 6) King 
County (WA), and 7) the City and County of Denver (CO).

Attachment B



INDEPENDENT RISK ASSESSMENT

© Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP | 5

additional high-risk areas for audit in future years or sooner, if capacity becomes available during the 
2026-2027 Audit Plan period. 

Risk Framework

Each of the interviews and surveys were framed to discuss eight broad categories of risks common to 
local governments, as shown in Table 1 below. These risk categories are common areas of general 
concern within local government organizations, based on the experience and analysis of the MGO risk 
assessment team. 

The purpose of using the broad risk categories is to recognize that each department and function exists
within many, if not all, of these categories. For example, the County’s Human Resources (HR) 
Department must use a human resources information system to manage the various aspects of human 
resources. Whether this system is operating effectively and safely is a Technology Risk. In addition, the 
HR Department must comply with various local, state, and federal requirements (Compliance Risk), and 
employee salaries are a constant pressure on the County’s finance (Financial Risk).

Table 1: Broad Risk Categories and Examples of Risks Within Each

Risk Category Example Risk Considerations
Financial Risks Accounting

Asset management
Budgeting
Capital program and projects
Changes in state and federal funding levels
Contracting (Purchasing)
Contracting (Oversight and monitoring)
Economic development
Employee costs (salaries, benefits, and pensions) 
Federal and State grant compliance
Financial reporting
Fiscal sustainability
Fleet management
Legal liabilities and claims
Payroll
Revenue

Human Capital Risks Benefits administration
Compensation
Employee safety
HR Compliance
Leadership development
Management training
Organizational culture

Attachment B



INDEPENDENT RISK ASSESSMENT

© Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP | 6

Risk Category Example Risk Considerations
Performance management
Recruitment
Retention
Retirement obligations
Staffing and workforce planning
Succession planning

Information Technology (IT) Risks Application controls
Back-up and recovery
Change management
Cybersecurity
Data privacy
IT governance
IT project management
Social media account management
System access
Technology effectiveness
Third party risk management

Resident Service Risks Connection of public need to services and 
investment
Customer service orientation
Effective and efficient delivery of services
Law Enforcement
Building Safety regulation
Public Communications
Service delivery models 
Transparency

Emergency Management Risks Business continuity
Effective disaster response Emergency 
preparedness and planning
Leadership and governance
Communication and coordination
Infrastructure (facilities, technology, etc.) 
Long term recovery
Proactive disaster avoidance planning

Compliance Risks Changes and additions to state laws affecting 
counties
Compliance with internal processes
Compliance with federal and state health care 
regulations
Compliance with federal and state regulations 
regarding social services

Attachment B



INDEPENDENT RISK ASSESSMENT

© Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP | 7

Risk Category Example Risk Considerations
Compliance with accounting standards
Changes in state and federal funding requirements
Equal employment opportunity compliance
Federal and state grant compliance
Procurement compliance  
Wage and labor law compliance

Strategic Risks Adequacy of risk management
Aging populations increasing demand for health 
and human services 
Aging infrastructure and deferred maintenance 
Affordability of basic necessities, including housing
Effectiveness of the strategic plan
Inadequate measurement of outcomes and results
Impacts of automation and remote work on the 
citizenry and tax base
Potential for increases in the 

Fraud Risks Asset misuse
Ethical tone for the organization  
Hotline reporting and management
Internal control effectiveness  
Purchase card misuse
Procurement and contracting
Timekeeping
Violations of ethics laws or disclosure 
requirements
Waste and abuse

Overview of the Report

This report is divided into four sections. The first section is the risk assessment survey results, which 
discusses the risk assessment survey process and findings. The second section is the risk assessment 
interview results. The third section reviews the impact of the risk assessment on the 2025-2026 Audit 
Plan, including MGO’s recommendations for changes to the Plan, as well as MGO’s recommendations 
for the full 2026-2027 Audit Plan. The fourth section presents MGO’s recommended Audit Horizon, 
containing a list of value-added audit topics to inform discussions about the FY 2026-2027 Audit Plan or 
future Audit Plans. Finally, we have appendices to share information about the survey questions and a 
reconciliation of the changes we recommend to the 2025-2026 Audit Plan.

Attachment B



© Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP | 8

RISK ASSESSMENT SURVEY 

RESULTS

Attachment B



RISK ASSESSMENT SURVEY RESULTS

© Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP | 9

RISK ASSESSMENT SURVEY RESULTS

Risk Assessment Survey

In November 2025, MGO contacted 1,418 County staff members to participate in a risk assessment 
survey that complemented the risk interviews. In addition to all the individuals interviewed, MGO 
surveyed County management and staff who are at the “Manager” level or above in the County Human 
Resources system. Of the survey recipients, 349 responded to the survey for a response rate of 24.6%. 
The survey used a Survey Monkey platform specific to MGO, to allow for responses to be received and 
analyzed outside the County IT system. MGO provided survey recipients with anonymity to encourage 
unfiltered feedback. The questions asked within the survey are included within Appendix A. 

Of the 349 participants, nearly half (49%) had been employed with the County for more than 16 years. 
The chart below summarizes tenure of survey participants with the County. 

Chart 1: Tenure of Survey Respondents

The survey asked recipients to provide feedback in the following areas:

1. Ratings of risk areas specific to their departments, and examples of high-risk areas
2. Ratings of risk areas for the County overall
3. Suggestion of areas for auditing

Attachment B



RISK ASSESSMENT SURVEY RESULTS

© Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP | 10

Overview of Survey Results

Risk Ratings within Respondents’ Departments 

MGO combined the ratings for representatives of each of the departments to preserve anonymity. 
Survey respondents self-reported their departments, which combined into thirty-three (33) distinct 
departments. The respondents ranked financial risks as the highest risk for their departments. Other 
risk areas identified as high-risk were human capital risk, compliance risk, and technology risk.

The following table summarizes ranking of risk category in consideration of conditions within 
respondents’ departments.

Table 2: Rating of Risk by Respondents’ within their Department

Risk Ranking Risk Category Risk Level Average Rank 
Across All 
Departments

1 Financial Risk High 2.24
2 Human Capital Risk High 2.27
3 Compliance Risk High 3.36
4 Technology Risk High 3.91
5 Strategic Risk Medium 5.64
6 Resident Service Risk Medium 5.82
7 Emergency Management Risk Low 6.06
8 Fraud Risk Low 6.70

Common reasons cited for the four risks identified as high-risk were:

Financial Risk—Funding risk and budget constraints disrupt operations and staffing, and effect
programs’ capability to deliver critical services.
Human Capital Risk—Competitiveness of compensation, workforce shortages, difficulty in 
recruitment and retention. Many employees are ready for retirement, creating a risk of 
knowledge loss. A hiring freeze is also not allowing the County to replace those employees.
Compliance Risk—Compliance with federal, state, and local laws and complexity of changing 
regulations. Noncompliance creates the possibility of legal liability and financial penalties.
Technology Risk—There has been a limitation on technology applications and the County needs 
modernization to decrease vulnerability to cyberattacks.

Based on the risk ranking and the feedback, MGO saw a clear gap between the Technology Risk area 
(ranked 4th) and Strategic Risk area (ranked 5th), which indicated that the consensus among the survey 
respondents was that this was the dividing line between high-risk areas and medium risk. MGO 
determined that the survey respondents viewed Emergency Management Risk and Fraud Risk as low 
risk based on the comments highlighting concern about these areas. Specifically, these two areas 
elicited few comments from respondents.

Attachment B



RISK ASSESSMENT SURVEY RESULTS

© Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP | 11

Risk Ratings for the County Overall

Survey respondents were asked which of the eight risk areas they considered to be high risk to the 
County overall, not just specific to their department. The following table summarizes responses with 
regards to risk to the County overall. 

Table 3: Respondent’s Rating of Risk within County Overall

Risk Ranking
for County
Overall

Risk Category Considered Risk 
Category as “High 
Risk to the County
Overall"

Risk Ranking
for the 
Department

1 Financial Risk 266/349 (76.2%) 1
2 Human Capital Risk 201/349 (57.6%) 2
3 Technology Risk 159/349 (42.7%) 4
4 Compliance Risk 115/349 (33.0%) 3
5 Fraud Risk 104/349 (29.8%) 8
6 Strategic Risk 74/349 (21.2%) 5
7 Emergency Management Risk 71/349 (20.3%) 7
8 Resident Service Risk 58/349 (16.6%) 6

This table shows both similarities and differences in how the survey respondents viewed the risk areas 
in their department versus the risk areas for the County overall.

Similarities – Survey respondents viewed the Financial Risk area and the Human Capital Risk as 
the highest and second-highest risk areas for both their departments (on average) and for the 
County as a whole. There was a clear gap between the Human Capital Risk area for the County
as a whole and the third-highest risk area in both the department-specific results and the 
overall results.
Differences – The biggest difference in the department-specific results and the overall results 
was the respondents’ view that Fraud Risk was the fifth-highest risk area for the County overall 
but the lowest risk area on average for the departments. A more moderate difference was fact 
that the respondents viewed are Technology Risk area as clearly third highest for the County
overall, where they saw the Technology Risk area as clearly behind Compliance Risk as the 
fourth-highest department specific area. 

Attachment B



RISK ASSESSMENT SURVEY RESULTS

© Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP | 12

Survey Respondent Suggestions for Internal Audit Engagements

MGO also asked for respondents to provide suggestions for areas to audit, as an alternative way to 
elicit areas of concern from survey respondents. The areas that were most often mentioned are shown 
in the following table. MGO has included risk areas that these concerns appear best to fit.

Table 4: Summary of Respondents’ Suggested Audit Areas

Potentially Auditable Area Risk Areas
Procurement and Contracting Financial, Compliance, Fraud
Restricted Funds Financial
Cancelled Encumbrances Financial
Treasurer Function Financial, Human Capital
Health Care Agency Financial, Human Capital
Special Events (Board) Compliance, Fraud
Fairness in Hiring and Promotions (e.g., Nepotism) Human Capital, Compliance, Fraud

Attachment B



© Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP | 13

RISK ASSESSMENT 

INTERVIEWS & CONCLUSIONS

Attachment B



RISK ASSESSMENT INTERVIEWS & CONCLUSIONS

© Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP | 14

RISK ASSESSMENT INTERVIEWS & CONCLUSIONS

Risk Assessment Interviews

MGO conducted 36 interviews with senior leaders in the County, including County Board members, 
other County elected officials, members of the County Executive’s Office, department directors, and 
members of the Audit Oversight Committee. For each of the interviews, MGO used the broad risk 
categories provided above in Table 1 to review the potential risks.

MGO divided interviews into two categories, IT related and non-IT related risks. The purpose of this 
approach was to allow MGO’s IT and cybersecurity experts to conduct in-depth technical discussions 
with senior members of the County’s Information Technology Department (OCIT). MGO simultaneously 
conducted discussions with the County leaders outside OCIT to address their perspectives on the eight 
risk areas discussed in the survey section above.  

These interviews occurred over a six-week period ranging from October to December 2025. In most 
cases, the interviews took place prior to the interviewee responding to the survey. MGO did not 
specifically ask interviewees how they responded to the survey, but in the few cases an interviewee 
proactively referenced their survey response.

Non-IT Risk Considerations

The following table provides common non-IT risk observations from the interviewees. Not all the 
responses are included here, but the areas that interviewees: 1) identified as important, and 2) 
recurred across interviews are shown in the table below.

Table 5: Summary of Key and Recurring Risks Identified through Interviews

Risk Area Example Observations
Financial Fiscal sustainability 

Long-term fiscal pressures (e.g., rising employee costs),
Limited ability to raise taxes
Unfunded mandates
Unexpected liabilities (e.g., Airport Fire)

Regulatory 
Compliance

State and federal regulations are creating unfunded 
mandates 
Additional costs for staffing to implement the mandates 
and can impact the cost of services. 

Human Capital Effectiveness in recruiting and retention 
Succession planning for future retirements
Next generation leadership development 
The need for a human capital strategic plan

Ethical Culture Numerous interviewees and survey respondents identified 
the County’s ethical culture as a risk area. 

Attachment B



RISK ASSESSMENT INTERVIEWS & CONCLUSIONS

© Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP | 15

Risk Area Example Observations
The recent experience with a Board member indicted and 
convicted of accepting bribes to steer County contracts was 
cited across interviews.

Procurement and 
Contracting

The procurement process, including efficiency and 
effectiveness. 
The cost of procurements.  
The effectiveness of contract management. 

Strategic The lack of a formal enterprise-wide risk management 
process.  
The need to ensure solid plans are in place across 
departments for business continuity in case of a disaster. 

Technology and 
Cybersecurity

Numerous individuals across departments raised concerns 
about cybersecurity vulnerabilities. 
Concerns were raised about the antiquated nature of some 
financial technologies.

Information Technology Risk Considerations

MGO recognizes that information technology is a significant over-arching risk area in any modern 
organization and wanted to understand more detail about these risks. As a result, these interviews 
delved into the Technology Risk area in greater detail. 

MGO identified key risks within information technology with respect to data governance, existing IT 
systems, and the use of artificial intelligence (AI). The following table summarizes these key IT-specific 
risks. 

Table 6: Summary of Key IT Risks Identified through Interviews

Risks MGO Observations
Shadow IT and 
Unmanaged Endpoint 
Exposure

The County may be unable to adequately protect its technology 
environment due to “shadow IT” (IT systems that are being 
used outside the centralized IT oversight structure) and a large 
number of unmanaged endpoints outside the purview of the 
centralized OCIT function. 

Siloed Data Security 
and Complex Data 
Governance

The County’s overall data protection posture may be weakened 
by fragmented ownership of datasets, with security 
responsibilities distributed across multiple teams and agencies 
based on regulatory guidance. 

Legacy Systems and 
Upgrade Constraints

The County may face heightened security and operational risks 
due to legacy systems that cannot be upgraded or patched 
because of third-party constraints or technical limitations. 

Attachment B



RISK ASSESSMENT INTERVIEWS & CONCLUSIONS

© Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP | 16

Risks MGO Observations
Unmonitored AI 
Usage 

The County may be exposed to data leakage and compliance 
risks due to the absence of monitoring for AI tool usage, 
including Microsoft Copilot and other web-based AI tools. 

Inconsistent AI 
Adoption and Hidden 
AI Features in 
Software

The County agencies may face inconsistent risk management 
and potential exposure to AI-related threats due to differing 
opinions on AI usage across departments and limited awareness 
of AI components embedded within third-party tools. 

General Cybersecurity The County’s IT leadership shared the broader concern with 
monitoring and mitigating cybersecurity vulnerabilities.

Summary of Overall Risk Analysis

Based on the survey responses, both department-specific and Countywide, the in-depth risk 
interviews, and MGO’s professional assessment of the information developed, MGO developed a risk 
score for each of the eight categories. As shown below, we determined that four of the eight risk areas 
to be high risk, with the Financial Risk area as the highest risk across each of the measurement areas. 
Two areas, Strategic Risk and Fraud Risk, were in the lower portion of the medium risk range. The two 
remaining risk areas were in the low-risk range.

Table 7: Overall Risk Rating by Risk Category

Note: Overall scoring is as follows: (1-3.5 = High Risk; 3.5-6.5 = Medium Risk; 6.5-8 = Low Risk)

To determine the risk scoring, MGO assigned a weighting to each of the sets of feedback we received. 

We assigned the highest weighting, 50% of the overall risk score, to the survey average ranking 
for the respondents’ department. This is because of the number of survey respondents and 
because asking the survey respondents about their own departments has the highest degree of 
reliability. 

Risk Category Survey 
Average 
Ranking
Dept. 
Specific 

Survey
Average
Ranking 
County
Wide 

MGO 
Ranking 
of 
Interview 
Risk 

MGO’s 
Ranking 
of Risk  

Overall 
Risk 
Score 

Risk 
Level

Financial Risk 1 1 1 1 1 High
Human Capital Risk 2 2 4 3 2.35 High
Technology Risk 4 3 2 2 3.3 High
Compliance Risk 3 4 3 5 3.4 High
Strategic Risk 5 6 6 6 5.5 Medium
Fraud Risk 8 5 5 4 6.4 Medium
Resident Service Risk 6 8 8 7 6.95 Low
Emergency Mgmt. Risk 7 7 7 8 7.05 Low

Attachment B



RISK ASSESSMENT INTERVIEWS & CONCLUSIONS

© Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP | 17

We assigned the second highest weighting (25%) to the survey ranking for County overall, 
primarily because of the size of the survey and the fact that individuals at a managerial level 
with tenure at the County can reasonably be expected to have insight into risk across the 
County. 
We assigned the third highest weighting (15%) to the results of the individual interviews. This is 
because: 1) the interviewees represented only about 10% of survey respondents; 2) the ranking 
based on the interviewees was a qualitative effort by MGO, and; 3) the interviewees’ scores 
were also reflected in the survey responses. However, because of the seniority of the 
interviewees and their diverse perspectives, their feedback was valuable and the weighting 
needed to reflect this. 
We added an MGO assessment, weighted at 10%, to reflect our analysis of County’s current 
environment, our review of County documents, and our assessment of other similar local 
governments.

Risk Assessment Conclusions

Financial Risk is the top risk category and is a risk priority for the County. This indicates strong support 
for an Audit Plan to address audit topics that are central to the Financial Risk area, including long-term 
fiscal pressures (e.g., rising employee costs), unfunded mandates, and the ability to withstand 
unexpected liabilities, such as those created by the 2024 Airport Fire.

In addition, the risk assessment showed clearly that the Human Capital Risk area has high importance 
to the County leadership. Such human capital risks as recruiting new employees, retaining existing 
talent, planning for future losses through attrition and retirement, and effectively developing the next 
generation of County leaders are fundamental to the County’s short-term and long-term success as an 
organization. Moreover, the Technology and Compliance Risk areas are multi-faceted, but include 
potential audit topics that affect numerous departments, such as cybersecurity, data governance, and 
need to adapt County operations to a changing and highly complicated regulatory environment.

It is worth restating the fact that each of these eight risk areas may be of greater or lesser importance 
within a department or function. However, all County functions will operate to some extent in the four 
risk areas MGO identified as the highest risk. So, almost any department would benefit from an 
assessment by the Internal Audit Department, if the audit objectives are focused on one or more risk 
areas that are high risk to the County.

The FY 2025-2026 Audit Plan issued by IAD in May 2025 correctly addressed many of these risk areas in 
the Audit Plan, including purchasing and contracts (Financial and Compliance Risks), human resources 
management (Human Capital and Compliance Risks), data governance, IT security, artificial intelligence 
and IT security (Technology and Compliance Risks). However, MGO also found that some of the 
proposed audits on the FY 2025-2026 Audit Plan can take a lower priority, either by being moved to 
the FY 2026-2027 Audit Plan or being moved to the Audit Horizon. The impacts of this risk assessment 
on the Audit Plan for 2025-2026 and for 2026-2027 are discussed in the following section.

Attachment B



AUDIT PLAN RECOMMENDATIONS © Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP | 18

AUDIT PLAN RECOMMENDATIONS

Attachment B



RISK ASSESSMENT INTERVIEWS & CONCLUSIONS

© Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP | 19

AUDIT PLAN RECOMMENDATIONS

Considerations in Developing an Internal Audit Plan

Taking risk assessment results and transforming them into an actionable audit plan is both an art and a 
science. While quantitative results drive the plan, there are various qualitative management 
considerations critical to determining which audits are appropriate for a specific audit plan in a specific 
year. The following are examples of considerations when developing an Audit Plan. 

Coverage – Audit plans should cover as many of the high-risk areas identified in the risk 
assessment as possible. Moreover, audit plans should endeavor to spread audit resources 
across many departments, so as not to overburden operations in a few departments and 
undermine these departments’ effectiveness.

Available resources – The capacity of the audit department is a critical ingredient in developing 
the audit plan. An audit department with a dozen employees or fewer, like IAD, may be 
challenged to provide audit coverage across the enterprise as large as the County. In addition, 
staff need to have the right skills set to address the high-risk areas identified. Highly technical 
audit areas, such as IT audits or construction audits, need to have specially trained team 
members.

Ripeness – Not all high-risk audit topics are appropriate at any given time. As an example, it 
may be too early to audit a large-scale technology implementation while the implementation is 
still ongoing. 

Prior Audits – Related to the coverage issue above, conducting audits in a variety of areas 
within a 3–5-year period is important. If a department has not been audited in more than five 
years, that fact can serve to heighten the department’s risk profile for the purpose of 
developing the audit plan.

Changes in Critical Areas – One of the key considerations for any audit plan is ensuring 
consideration of areas where significant change is occurring. While change is a constant in an 
enterprise as large as the County, leadership changes often are a useful point to conduct as 
assessment of whether any course corrections in that department or function need to occur.

Based on information obtained through surveys and interviews, MGO has developed the Audit Plans in 
accordance with this risk-based methodology. The plan is designed to provide appropriate coverage of 
key risk areas, including, but not limited to, financial management, human capital, and information 
technology. Available IAD resources have been considered in developing the plan, and an estimated 
level of effort has been established for each proposed engagement. Audit engagements should be
prioritized based on the assessed maturity and exposure of identified risks, as determined by the 
County, as well as the extent and recency of prior audit coverage.

Attachment B



RISK ASSESSMENT INTERVIEWS & CONCLUSIONS

© Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP | 20

Capacity of the Audit Team

The IAD audit team is in a transition phase as it acclimates to the new roles that it has taken on in the past 
few years, including performance audits. According to IAD’s 2025-2026 Audit Plan, issued in May 2025, 
the plan was based on eight auditors, two senior audit managers, and one assistant deputy director. 
There are also an internal audit director and a deputy director whose time is not included in the 
proposed hours of the plan. 

As noted in the risk assessment section above, each of the County departments have functions that 
operate within the four high-risk areas (financial, technology, human capital, and compliance). To 
cover all these high-risk functions would require many more audits than the IAD currently has capacity 
to perform.

For the recommended 2025-2026 Plan, MGO used the current capacity to revise the original plan. 
However, as shown in the recommended 2026-2027 Audit Plan, MGO is recommending more hours 
than the current staff may have capacity to complete. This has important considerations for IAD 
leadership and the IAD oversight bodies, who will need to work closely with IAD to match the IAD’s 
capacity with the audits to be initiated. Hiring additional staff, contracting for some of audits, or
tightening the scope of engagements to help complete audits more quickly are all options to consider 
to address capacity. 

Overview of the Audit Plan Sections

On the following pages, MGO provides our recommended 2025-2026 Audit Plan. Then, MGO provides the 
recommended 2026-2027 Audit Plan.

Attachment B



Attachment B



Attachment B



Attachment B



Attachment B



Attachment B



Attachment B



Attachment B



Attachment B



Attachment B



Attachment B



Attachment B



Attachment B



Attachment B



© Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP | 34

ADDITIONAL AREAS OF HIGH RISK: 
THE AUDIT HORIZON

Attachment B



RISK ASSESSMENT INTERVIEWS & CONCLUSIONS

© Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP | 35

ADDITIONAL AREAS OF HIGH RISK: THE AUDIT HORIZON

MGO has identified the following twenty-two audits for the Audit Horizon, including five separate 
cybersecurity audits. The Audit Horizon should be seen as a bank of high-risk audits from which to 
draw for future years or as capacity allows.  

The Horizon also helps to illuminate the value that IAD can add within the County and should generate 
discussion among the oversight bodies about areas where additional audit work would add value. 
Because there are processes and functions within virtually all departments that are worth an audit, 
MGO also considered departments and functions that are not subject to the audits on the FY 2025-
2026 or FY 2026-2027 Audit Plans. As shown below, each of the audits on the Horizon intersect with at 
least one area MGO identified as high risk in the risk assessment.

MGO notes that audits within the area of public safety may cross over with the County’s Office of 
Independent Review (OIR). IAD would need to work with OIR to determine the extent to which the 
preliminary objective listed below would be duplicative of OIR’s work. 

Table 10: Areas of High Risk & Additional Considerations for the Audit Plan

Audit Topic Preliminary Objective Risk Area
Airport Fees To assess the processes and controls 

County management has in place to 
regularly evaluate the adequacy of fees 
generated by Jon Wayne Airport to the 
long-term health of the Airport enterprise 
fund.

Financial and 
Compliance Risks

Asset Management Assess and test inventory management 
practices, particularly in areas where other 
audit work has not focused on a specific 
asset class, department, or function, etc. 

Financial Risk

Building and Safety Evaluate the efficiency and effectiveness 
of Orange County’s building and safety 
inspections and code enforcement.

Compliance and 
Resident Service Risks

Capital Projects 
Oversight

Evaluate County management’s 
monitoring of high-risk capital programs 
and projects and communicating concerns. 

Financial and 
Compliance Risks

Cash Handling Evaluate the effectiveness of internal 
controls over cash handling. Area of focus 
would include but not be limited to SSA 
and airport parking lots. (SSA cash 

Financial, Compliance, 
and Fraud Risks

Attachment B



RISK ASSESSMENT INTERVIEWS & CONCLUSIONS

© Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP | 36

Audit Topic Preliminary Objective Risk Area
handling is a current time-permitting 
audit). 

Cybersecurity
- Airport
- Auditor-Controller 
- Clerk of the Board
- Social Services 

Agency
- Probation

To assess cybersecurity controls to ensure 
sensitive data is restricted, vulnerabilities 
and system changes are managed, and 
compliance with best practices.

Technology and 
Compliance Risk

Economic Development 
& Public Private 
Partnerships

To assess the performance of economic 
development initiatives potentially 
including recent developments and public 
private partnership to determine if the 
programs are meeting the intended 
purpose. 

Financial, Compliance 
Risks

Grants Management To assess the effectiveness of grants 
management County-wide, including 
internal controls over grant managers, 
training for grant managers, and an 
assessment of the process for identifying 
additional grant funds for County use.

Financial, Human 
Capital, and Compliance 
Risks

HCA Claim 
Reimbursement

To assess whether internal controls ensure 
accuracy, compliance, and integrity in the 
Health Care Agency claims process.

Financial and 
Compliance Risks

Human Capital Strategic 
Planning

To assess the County’s planning process 
for recruitment, retention, success 
planning, performance management, 
collective bargaining, and other human 
capital risks.

Human Capital, 
Financial, and Strategic 
Risks

Inventory Management To assess internal controls over inventory, 
especially capital inventory, identify 
opportunities for cost savings, and 
determine whether the inventory 
management system is adequate.

Financial, Technology, 
and Compliance Risks

Investment 
Management

To assess the County’s investment 
management for compliance with state 

Financial and 
Compliance Risks

Attachment B



RISK ASSESSMENT INTERVIEWS & CONCLUSIONS

© Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP | 37

Audit Topic Preliminary Objective Risk Area
laws, County policies, and industry best 
practices.

Jail Operations Evaluate the Sheriff’s jail operations 
including compliance with internal 
policies, staffing, use of recognized best 
practices, and inmate and staff safety.

Human Capital and 
Compliance Risks

OC Crime Lab Determine whether Orange County Crime 
Lab is effective and efficient in providing 
public agencies in Orange County with 
services for the recognition, collection, 
preservation, and evaluation of physical 
evidence from crime scenes. 

Compliance and 
Resident Service Risks

Permitting Services Evaluate the efficiency, effectiveness, and 
equity of Orange ’s permitting processes
and systems. 

Financial, Technology, 
and Compliance Risks

Probation – Juvenile 
Operations

To assess the internal controls over 
Juvenile Operations and the effectiveness 
of recruitment and retention programs for 
County staff.

Human Capital and 
Compliance Risks

Registrar of Voters 
Limited Validation of 
Citizen's Concerns 
Regarding Elections

To perform a limited validation of the 
accuracy of the Registrar of Voters’ 
elections data, based on County citizen’s 
concerns.

Compliance Risk

Regulatory Impacts Evaluate whether County processes and 
controls are in place to regularly assess 
the impacts of regulatory changes at the 
state and federal level on staffing, costs, 
and work culture.

Financial, Human 
Capital, and Compliance 
Risks

Social Services Agency –
Abuse Reporting

To assess the internal controls over Abuse 
Reporting and the effectiveness of 
recruitment and retention programs for 
County staff.

Human Capital and 
Compliance Risks

Waste and Recycling 
Fees

To assess the processes and controls 
County management has in place to 
regularly evaluate the adequacy of fees 

Financial Risks

Attachment B



RISK ASSESSMENT INTERVIEWS & CONCLUSIONS

© Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP | 38

Audit Topic Preliminary Objective Risk Area
generated by Waste and Recycling to the 
long-term health of the Waste and 
Recycling enterprise fund.

COMPLIANCE STATEMENT  

MGO conducted this consulting engagement in accordance with consulting standards promulgated by 
the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. This engagement does not constitute an 
examination made in accordance with attestation standards, the objective of which would be to 
express an opinion. 

Attachment B



© Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP | 39

APPENDIX 

Attachment B



APPENDIX A

© Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP | 40

Survey questions

1. Which Department do you represent? 

2. What is your current Job Title within your department?

3. How long have you been employed with the County?
a. Fewer than 5 years
b. 5 to 10 years
c. 11 to 16 years
d. More than 16 years

4. As it relates specifically to your department, please rank the following risk areas from most 
important (#1) to least important (#8). In considering "importance," please think about which of 
these risk areas most impede achieving your department's goals and purpose. Note: goals do 
not have to be formally adopted to be relevant to this question.

a. Financial Risk (Includes budgeting & financial sustainability 
b. Human Capital Risks (Includes recruitment, retention, & compensation) 
c. Technology Risks (Includes cybersecurity & effective technology for work needs)
d. Resident Service Risks (Includes transparency about County operations, effectiveness, 

and ease in interacting and communicating with residents or other service recipients)
e. Emergency Management Risks (Includes business continuity & effectiveness in 

responding to large disaster)
f. Compliance Risks (Includes legal and regulatory compliance and compliance with 

internal processes)
g. Strategic Risks (Includes risk that the strategic plan is flawed or ineffective & that there 

is inadequate risk management across the organization)
h. Fraud Risks (Includes system controls to prevent fraud & effectiveness in setting an 

ethical tone for the County)

5. Please provide additional information on why you identified the risk areas ranked from 1 to 3 in 
importance for your department. [open-ended question]

6. Now please think about risks related to the County overall, not just your department. Which of 
the risk areas below would you consider to be high risk to the County overall? (Multiple risks 
may be selected.)

a. Financial Risk (Includes budgeting & financial sustainability 
b. Human Capital Risks (Includes recruitment, retention, & compensation) 
c. Technology Risks (Includes cybersecurity & effective technology for work needs)
d. Resident Service Risks (Includes transparency about County operations, effectiveness, 

and ease in interacting and communicating with residents or other service recipients)
e. Emergency Management Risks (Includes business continuity & effectiveness in 

responding to large disaster)

Attachment B



APPENDIX A

© Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP | 41

f. Compliance Risks (Includes legal and regulatory compliance and compliance with 
internal processes)

g. Strategic Risks (Includes risk that the strategic plan is flawed or ineffective & that there 
is inadequate risk management across the organization)

h. Fraud Risks (Includes system controls to prevent fraud & effectiveness in setting an 
ethical tone for the County)

7. Please provide an explanation as to why you identified each area in the prior question as high 
risk for the County overall. (If you selected "None" above, please answer "None" here.)

8. Is there any other additional information you would like to provide us regarding risks that may 
impact the County and/or your department?

9. Is there anything that you think should be subject to an audit or review by the County's Internal 
Audit Department?

Attachment B



APPENDIX B

© Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP | 42

FY 2025-2026 AUDIT PLAN RECONCILIATION

The tables below provide additional information about what audits MGO recommends retaining from 
the original FY 2025-2026 Audit Plan, which audits should be added, and which should be removed. We 
recommend adding two IT audits and removing two audits of lower risk or lower priority areas.

Retained 
from Current 
Plan or 
To be Added

Audit Type Audit Topic Risk Areas

Retained Internal 
Controls

Sheriff’s Department 
Purchasing & 
Contracts 
Social Services 
Agency Purchasing & 
Contracts 
Public Works
Purchasing & 
Contracts
Waste and Recycling
Purchasing & 
Contracts

Audits of contract oversight address 
both Financial and Compliance Risk 
areas

Retained Information 
Technology 

OCIT Data 
Governance 
(completed)
OCIT Remote Access 
Security
OCIT Third Party IT 
Security
Cybersecurity - 
Sheriff’s Office
Cybersecurity - 
Treasurer-Tax 
Collector

Technology Risks

Retained Performance 
audits

Treasurer-Tax 
Collector 
Mental Health 
Services Act 
Contracting oversight
Homelessness 
Services Contractor 
Oversight

Treasurer-Tax Collector (Financial 
and Compliance Risk areas)
Contractor oversight (Financial 
and Compliance Risk areas), 
The County ethics program
(Compliance, Human Capital, and 
Fraud Risk Areas)

Attachment B



APPENDIX B

© Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP | 43

Retained 
from Current 
Plan or 
To be Added

Audit Type Audit Topic Risk Areas

SAIC Contract 
Compliance and 
Performance 
The County ethics 
program

Retained HCA Claim 
Reimbursement

To assess whether 
internal controls ensure 
accuracy, compliance, 
and integrity in the 
claims process.

The hours designated for this 
audit could be used to expand 
the scope of the IT audits.

Retained Treasurer-Tax 
Collector

To assess the adequacy 
and effectiveness of 
internal controls, 
regulatory compliance,
and security of wire 
transfer processes.

MGO sees this audit as a smaller 
objective within the overall 
County Treasurer performance 
audit.

Retained Follow-up 
audits

Implementation of past 
audits findings and 
recommendations

Risk areas vary by audit findings and 
recommendations

To be Added Technology 
Visibility and 
Emerging Risks 
(Shadow IT & 
AI)

An audit would help to 
determine the extent of 
unmanaged assets 
including shadow IT 
systems, applications, 
and services operating 
outside approved IT 
governance processes; 
identify risks related to 
data leakage, privacy, 
security, and compliance 
arising from shadow IT 
and unauthorized AI 
usage; and provide 
recommendations to 
strengthen governance, 
monitoring, and user 
awareness.

IAD already has an audit 
of OCIT Adoption and 

Technology, Human Capital, and 
Compliance Risk Areas

Attachment B



APPENDIX B

© Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP | 44

Retained 
from Current 
Plan or 
To be Added

Audit Type Audit Topic Risk Areas

Use of Artificial 
Intelligence on the 2025-
2026 Audit Plan. MGO 
recommends that this 
audit be broadened to 
include the scope and 
objectives shown above.

To be Added IT Governance 
and 
Compliance 
Validation

Identify OCIT’s service 
coverage across 
departments and 
evaluate 
gaps/duplication and 
review the effectiveness 
of policy adherence, 
alignment, and 
monitoring across the 
County.

Technology, Financial, and 
Compliance Risk Areas

Audits to Remove for FY 2025-2026

We also saw some audits on the FY 2025-2026 Audit Plan that did not match the risk assessment 
results or could be removed for higher-risk engagements. We recommend removing these from the 
Audit Plan, as shown in the following table. Because there was a process to identify these audits as 
areas of interest initially, we have moved these audits to the Audit Horizon.

Audit Preliminary Objectives MGO Observations
Registrar of 
Voters Limited 
Validation of 
Concerns 
Regarding 
Elections

To perform a limited 
validation of the accuracy 
of the Registrar of Voters’ 
elections data, based on 
County citizen’s concerns.

MGO recognizes that this topic is one that has 
social salience, but the Registrar of Voters 
processes did not surface as a risk in the 
independent risk assessment.

Cybersecurity –
Clerk of the 
Board

To assess cybersecurity 
controls in compliance with 
best practices.

MGO recommends focusing on agencies with 
the highest risk information, including 
financial management departments and 
agencies, law enforcement, and agencies 
providing health care or social services.

Attachment B



MGO

Kyle O’Rourke, MPA, CIA, CRMA, CGAP
Partner
+1 (818) 436-4196
KOrourke@mgocpa.com 
mgocpa.com

Attachment B



Agenda Item 9 



Memorandum 

February 5, 2026 

AOC Agenda Item No. 9 

TO: Audit Oversight Committee Members 

Recommended Action:  
Receive Update on Internal Audit Staffing and Resources 

Receive Update on Internal Audit Staffing and Resources, as stated in recommended action. 



Agenda Item 10 



Memorandum 

February 5, 2026 

AOC Agenda Item No. 10 

TO: Audit Oversight Committee Members 

Recommended Action:  
Receive and file Internal Audit Department’s Internal Quality Assessment for FY 2024-25 

Receive and file Internal Audit Department’s Internal Quality Assessment for FY 2024-25, as 
stated in recommended action. 

ATTACHMENT(S): 
Attachment A – Internal Quality Assessment Memo 
Attachment B – Internal Quality Assessment Results 
Attachment C – IIA 2024 Quality Assessment Manual Rating Scale 
Attachment D – Internal Quality Assessment Summary 



INTERNAL AUDIT DEPARTMENT

January 21, 2026 

To: Audit Oversight Committee Members 

From: Aggie Alonso, CPA, CIA, CRMA
Internal Audit Department Director 

Subject: Internal Audit Department – FY 2024-25 Internal Quality Assessment 

The Internal Audit Department (IAD) adheres to the Global Internal Audit Standards (Standards). 
The Standards require the Chief Audit Executive to communicate the results of the internal quality 
assessment to the Board of Supervisors (Board) and to senior management at least annually. 
Internal quality assessments are comprised of: 

Ongoing monitoring of the internal audit function’s conformance with the Standards and
progress toward performance objectives.
Periodic self-assessments or assessments by other staff within the organization with
sufficient knowledge of internal audit practices to evaluate conformance with the Standards.
Communication with the Board and senior management about the results of internal
assessments.

IAD has incorporated ongoing monitoring into each of its reviews by ensuring a standardized 
supervisory review of engagement planning, workpapers, and final communications. IAD assigns a 
Senior Audit Manager to every engagement to ensure conformance with the Standards. The Senior 
Audit Manager and Deputy Director approve each engagement’s objectives, scope, and work 
program before starting fieldwork. IAD utilizes quality assurance checklists that support workpaper 
reviews throughout each phase of every audit. 

In December 2025, IAD conducted a periodic self-assessment that validated its achievement of full 
conformance with all but one Standard. Specifically, we noted full conformance with 51 of 52 
standards (the highest possible rating), and general conformance with Standard 6.2 Internal Audit 
Charter. 

Although the IAD Internal Audit Charter accurately describes IAD’s purpose, scope, authority, 
reporting lines, commitment to the Standards, and was approved by the Board, IAD assigned a 
“general conformance” rating to Standard 6.2. This rating reflects the need to update IAD’s 
responsibilities, as the performance audit function was transferred to IAD in January 2025. The IAD 
Internal Audit Charter is currently being updated to explicitly outline IAD’s new responsibilities related 
to performance audits, and this update will bring IAD into full conformance. 

This Internal Quality Assessment will be presented to the Board at its March 24, 2026 meeting. If 
you have any questions, please contact me at (714) 834-5442 or Deputy Director Jose Olivo at (714) 
834-5509.

Attachments 

Attachment A



Attachment B



Attachment B



Attachment B



Attachment B



Attachment B



Attachment B



Attachment B



Attachment B



Attachment B



Attachment B



Attachment B



Attachment B



Attachment C



FY 24-25 INTERNAL 
QUALITY ASSESSMENT
MICHAEL STEINHAUS

INTERNAL AUDIT DEPARTMENT

Attachment D



PURPOSE OF THE MEMO

• Communicates results of Internal Audit Department’s
internal quality assessment for FY 2024-25. Required by
Global Internal Audit Standards to report annually to the
Board of Supervisors and senior management.

Attachment D



ASSESSMENT COMPONENTS

• Ongoing Monitoring: Standardized supervisory review of
engagement planning, workpapers, and final
communications.

• Periodic Self-Assessment: Conducted in December 2025.

• Communication: Results shared with the Board and senior
management.

Attachment D



KEY FINDINGS

• Full conformance (highest possible rating) with 51 of 52 
Standards.

• General conformance with Standard 6.2 – Internal Audit 
Charter.

• Charter update in progress to reflect performance audit 
responsibilities.

Attachment D



NEXT STEPS

• Update Internal Audit Charter to include performance 
audit responsibilities.

• Present assessment to the Board on March 24, 2026.

Attachment D



ANY QUESTIONS?

THANK YOU!

Attachment D



Agenda Item 11 



Memorandum 
 

 
 
February 5, 2026 
 

AOC Agenda Item No. 11 
 

TO: Audit Oversight Committee Members 
 
 
Recommended Action:  
Receive and File Internal Audit Department’s Charter 
 
 
Receive and File Internal Audit Department’s Charter, as stated in recommended action. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
Attachment A – Internal Audit Department Charter 
Attachment B – Internal Audit Department Charter - Redline 



COUNTY OF ORANGE 
INTERNAL AUDIT DEPARTMENT 

CHARTER 

PAGE 1 OF 4 

INTERNAL AUDIT DEPARTMENT MISSION 

The mission of the Internal Audit Department (IAD) is to provide highly reliable, independent, 
objective evaluations and business and financial consulting services to the Board of Supervisors 
(Board) and County management to assist them with their important business and financial 
decisions. 

The IAD supports and assists the Board and County management in the realization of their 
business goals and objectives. The IAD’s contribution to this effort is assessing and reporting on 
the effectiveness of internal control systems and processes, as well as on the quality of 
performance of County programs and operations in carrying out assigned responsibilities. County 
management relies on these systems, processes, programs, and operations, for safeguarding the 
County’s assets and resources, reasonable and prudent financial stewardship, accurate recording 
and reporting, and/or achieving the County’s goals and objectives. 

PROFESSIONALISM AND PURPOSE OF INTERNAL AUDITING 

The IAD will adhere to the mandatory guidance issued by the Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA), 
including the Global Internal Audit Standards (Standards). This mandatory guidance describes 
the fundamental requirements for the professional practice of internal auditing and for evaluating 
the effectiveness of the internal audit function’s performance. The IAD will also adhere to County 
policies and its operational procedures. 

The purpose of internal auditing is to strengthen the organization’s ability to create, protect, and 
sustain value by providing the Board and management with independent, risk-based, and 
objective assurance, advice, insight, and foresight.  

INDEPENDENCE AND OBJECTIVITY 

Independence is the fundamental principle that guides the reporting relationship of the internal 
auditor. Internal auditors will have no direct operational responsibility or authority over any of the 
activities audited. The IAD will not implement internal controls, develop procedures, install or 
modify systems or prepare records, or engage in any activity that will impair judgment. 

The IAD will remain free from interference including matters of audit selection, scope, procedures, 
frequency, timing, or report content to maintain independence and objectivity. 

The Internal Audit Director (Director) will confirm to the Audit Oversight Committee (AOC), at least 
annually, the organizational independence of the internal audit function. 

ORGANIZATIONAL REPORTING 

The Director shall report directly to the Board. In addition, the AOC designated by the Board will 
provide oversight over the IAD to ensure its independence, objectivity, and effectiveness.  

Attachment A



COUNTY OF ORANGE 
INTERNAL AUDIT DEPARTMENT 

CHARTER 

PAGE 2 OF 4 

AUDIT OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE 

The AOC is an advisory committee to the Board and provides oversight over the IAD, mandated 
audits, and external audit coverage. Specifically, the AOC assists the Board in ensuring the 
independence and objectivity of the internal audit function and that appropriate action is taken on 
audit findings. The AOC helps to promote and enhance effective internal controls for County 
operations and serves as an important communication link between external auditors, internal 
auditors, and operating management. 

The AOC will: 

 Approve the IAD Charter.

 Approve the Annual Risk Assessment and Audit Plan.

 Receive communications from the Director on the IAD activity’s performance relative to its
plan and other matters.

OBJECTIVE AND SCOPE 

The objective of internal auditing is to assist the Board, County Executive Officer, and County 
management in the effective discharge of their fiduciary responsibilities. To this end, internal 
auditing furnishes them with audits, analyses, evaluations, recommendations, counsel, and 
information concerning the activities reviewed. An audit objective includes promoting effective 
internal control at reasonable costs, and the economical and efficient use of resources. 

The scope of internal auditing encompasses the examination and evaluation of the adequacy of 
the County’s system of internal control and the quality of performance in County programs and 
operations in carrying out assigned responsibilities. 

The scope of internal auditing will include: 

 Reviewing the reliability and integrity of financial and business information systems and
the means used to identify, measure, classify, and report such information.

 Reviewing the systems and processes established to ensure compliance with those
policies, plans, procedures, laws, and regulations that are fundamental to the operation of
the County and could have a significant impact on operations and financial reports and
disclosures.

 Reviewing the means of safeguarding assets and, as appropriate, verifying the existence
of such assets.

 Evaluating the economy and efficiency with which resources are employed and reviewing
operations and programs to determine whether results are consistent with established
objectives and goals, and if operations or programs are being carried out as planned.

AUTHORITY AND RESPONSIBILITY 

The responsibility of the IAD is to serve the County in a manner that is consistent with the 
Standards and with professional standards of conduct as required by Government Code Section 
1236. 

Attachment A



COUNTY OF ORANGE 
INTERNAL AUDIT DEPARTMENT 

CHARTER 

PAGE 3 OF 4 

In addition, when appropriate and necessary, and depending on the type of audit being 
conducted, the IAD follows the ethical and professional standards promulgated by the American 
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA), by the Information Systems Audit and Control 
Association (ISACA), and by the Government Accounting Office (GAO). 

In this context, the IAD is responsible for: 

 Establishing policies for auditing and directing its technical and administrative functions.

 Developing and executing a comprehensive audit program for the evaluation of internal
controls established over County financial and business activities.

 Assisting management in their stewardship of County resources and their compliance with
established policies and procedures.

 Recommending improvements in internal control designed to safeguard County resources
and to help ensure compliance with government laws and regulations.

 Evaluating the adequacy and effectiveness of County cybersecurity frameworks in
protecting the confidentiality, integrity, and availability of critical information assets.

 Evaluating the quality of performance of County programs and operations in carrying out
assigned responsibilities.

 Reviewing procedures and accounting records for their completeness and accuracy to
accomplish and report on intended objectives.

 Publishing reports on the results of audit examinations including recommendations for
improvements in the internal control processes.

 Evaluating the adequacy of actions taken by operating management to correct reported
deficient conditions.

 Conducting special examinations and financial analyses.

INTERNAL AUDITOR ACCESS TO INFORMATION AND PERSONNEL 

Except where prohibited by law, the IAD shall have complete and unrestricted access to all County 
financial records, files, information systems, personnel, and properties. The Director shall 
promptly report in writing to the Chair of the AOC whenever significant barriers or resistance to 
access to information and personnel occur. To protect legally confidential information, no internal 
audit report shall directly reference or quote confidential information that is protected. 

Upon discovery of an audit involving potential or suspected financial fraud, the Director shall work 
with County Counsel, including the fraud hotline team, for legal advice and coordination of efforts. 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS ACCESS TO INTERNAL AUDIT 

The IAD reserves resources to accommodate Board requests. Individual Board members desiring 
specific audit projects shall place on the Board agenda their proposal for review and approval by 
Board majority. The Director reserves the right to determine how to best fit the directed review 
into the audit plan. 

Attachment A



COUNTY OF ORANGE 
INTERNAL AUDIT DEPARTMENT 

CHARTER 

PAGE 4 OF 4 

ANNUAL RISK ASSESSMENT & AUDIT PLAN 

The Director shall be responsible for preparing an annual audit plan identifying the most high-risk 
and essential audit projects. The internal audit plan will include budget and resource requirements 
for the next fiscal year. The Director will communicate the impact of resource limitations and 
significant interim changes to the AOC. Once the AOC approves the audit plan, it will be presented 
to the Board for approval. 

The internal audit plan will be developed based on a prioritization of audits using a risk-based 
methodology, including input from the Board, CEO, and County departments. The Director will 
review and adjust the plan in response to changes in the County’s business, risks, operations, 
programs, systems, and controls. All deviations from the approved internal audit plan will be 
communicated to the AOC at their quarterly meetings. 

AUDIT REPORTING AND FOLLOW-UP 

A written report will be prepared and issued by the Director, or designee, following the conclusion 
of each internal audit engagement and will be distributed as appropriate. Internal audit results will 
be communicated to the Board. 

In accordance with the Standards, the Director shall establish a system to follow up on reported 
audit findings. The system established should include updated comments and recommendations 
as appropriate. 

QUALITY ASSURANCE AND IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

The IAD will maintain a quality assurance program and improvement program that covers all 
aspects of the internal audit function. The program will include an evaluation of the IAD’s 
conformance with the Standards. 

The Director will report the results of the IAD’s quality assurance and improvement program, 
including external assessments, to the AOC and Board. 

EFFECTIVE DATE 

This charter and the policies therein become effective immediately upon adoption by the Board 
of Supervisors of the County of Orange. 

Date of Adoption: XX/XX/26. 

Attachment A



COUNTY OF ORANGE 
INTERNAL AUDIT DEPARTMENT 

CHARTER 

PAGE 1 OF 5 

INTERNAL AUDIT DEPARTMENT MISSION 

The mission of the Internal Audit Department (IAD) is to provide highly reliable, independent, 
objective evaluations and business and financial consulting services to the Board of Supervisors 
(Board) and County management to assist them with their important business and financial 
decisions. 

The IAD supports and assists the Board and County management in the realization of their 
business goals and objectives. The IAD’s contribution to this effort is testing assessing and 
reporting on the effectiveness of their internal control systems and processes, as well as on the 
quality of peofrmanceperformance of County programs and operations in carrying out assigned 
responsiblitiesresponsibilities. County management relies on these systems, and processes, 
programs, and operationsperformance reviews, for safeguarding the County’s assets and 
resources, reasonable and prudent financial stewardship, accurate recording and reporting, 
and/or achieving the County’s goals and objectives. 

PROFESSIONALISM AND DEFINITION PURPOSE OF INTERNAL AUDITING 

The IAD will adhere to the mandatory guidance issued by the Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA), 
including the Definition of Internal Auditing, the Code of Ethics, and the International Standards 
for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing Global Internal Audit Standards (Standards). This 
mandatory guidance describes the fundamental requirements for the professional practice of 
internal auditing and for evaluating the effectiveness of the internal audit function’s performance. 
The IAD will also adhere to County policies and the IAD’sits operational procedures. 

The IAD will adhere to County policies and the IAD’s operational procedures. The purpose of 
internal auditing is to strengthen the organization’s ability to create, protect, and sustain value by 
providing the Bboard and management with independent, risk-based, and objective assurance, 
advice, insight, and foresight. IIA defines internal auditing’s purpose  as follows: 

Internal auditing is an independent, objective assurance and consulting advisory 
activity service designed to add value and improve an organization’s operations. It 
helps an organization accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, 
disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk 
governancemanagement, risk managementcontrol, and governance control 
processes. 

INDEPENDENCE AND OBJECTIVITY 

Independence is the fundamental principle that guides the reporting relationship of the internal 
auditor. Internal auditors will have no direct operational responsibility or authority over any of the 
activities audited. The IAD will not implement internal controls, develop procedures, install or 
modify systems or prepare records, or engage in any activity that will impair judgment. 

Attachment B



COUNTY OF ORANGE 
INTERNAL AUDIT DEPARTMENT 

CHARTER 
 

 
 

PAGE 2 OF 5 

The IAD will remain free from interference including matters of audit selection, scope, procedures, 
frequency, timing, or report content to maintain independence and objectivity. 

The Internal Audit Director (Director) will confirm to the Audit Oversight Committee (AOC), at least 
annually, the organizational independence of the internal audit function. 

ORGANIZATIONAL REPORTING 

The Director shall report directly to the Board. In addition,  and be advised by the AOC designated 
by the Board, will provide oversight overofver the IAD to ensure its independence, objectivity, and 
effectivenessth e].  

AUDIT OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE 

The AOC is an advisory committee to the Board and provides oversight over the IAD, performance 
audit function, mandated audits, and external audit coverage. Specifically, tThe AOC assists the 
Board in ensuring the independence and objectivity of the internal audit function and that 
appropriate action is taken on audit findings. The AOC helps to promote and enhance effective 
internal controls for County operations, and serves as an important communication link between 
external auditors, internal auditors, and operating management. 

The AOC will: 

 Approve the IAD Charter. 

 Approve the Annual Risk Assessment and Audit Plan.  

 Receive communications from the Director on the IAD activity’s performance relative to its 
plan and other matters. 

OBJECTIVE AND SCOPE 

The objective of internal auditing is to assist the Board, County Executive Officer, and County 
management in the effective discharge of their fiduciary responsibilities. To this end, internal 
auditing furnishes them with audits, analyses, evaluations, recommendations, counsel, and 
information concerning the activities reviewed. TheAn audit objective includes promoting effective 
internal control at reasonable costs, andcosts, and ensuring performance qualitythe economical 
and efficient deploymentuse of resources. 

The scope of internal auditing encompasses the examination and evaluation of the adequacy of 
the County’s system of internal control and the quality of performance in County programs and 
operations in carrying out assigned responsibilities.  

The scope of internal auditing will include: 

 Reviewing the reliability and integrity of financial and business information systems and 
the means used to identify, measure, classify, and report such information. 

 Reviewing the systems and processes established to ensure compliance with those 
policies, plans, procedures, laws, and regulations that are fundamental to the operation of 
the County and could have a significant impact on operations and financial reports and 

Attachment B



COUNTY OF ORANGE 
INTERNAL AUDIT DEPARTMENT 

CHARTER 
 

 
 

PAGE 3 OF 5 

disclosures. 

 Reviewing the means of safeguarding assets and, as appropriate, verifying the existence 
of such assets. 

  
The scope of internal auditing may include: 

  

 Appraising Evaluating the economy and efficiency with which resources are employed and 
reviewing operations and programs to determine whether results are consistent with 
established objectives and goals, and if operations or programs are being carried out as 
planned. 

AUTHORITY AND RESPONSIBILITY 

The responsibility of the IAD is to serve the County in a manner that is consistent with the 
Standards and with professional standards of conduct in the Code of Ethics of the Institute of 
Internal Auditors, Inc.,IIA as required by Government Code Section 1236. 

In addition, when appropriate and necessary, and depending on the type of audit being 
conducted, the IAD follows the ethical and professional standards promulgated by the American 
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA), by the Information Systems Audit and Control 
Association (ISACA), and by the Government Accounting Office (GAO).  

In this context, the IAD is responsible for: 

 Establishing policies for auditing and directing its technical and administrative functions. 

 Developing and executing a comprehensive audit program for the evaluation of internal 
controls established over County financial and business activities. 

 Assisting management in their stewardship of County resources and their compliance with 
established policies and procedures. 

 Recommending improvements in internal control designed to safeguard County resources 
and to help ensure compliance with government laws and regulations. 

 Evaluating the adequacy and effectiveness of County cybersecurity frameworks in 
protecting the confidentiality, integrity, and availability of critical information assets. 

 Evaluating the quality of performance of County programs and operations in carrying out 
assigned responsibilities.department program performance. 

  Reviewing procedures and accounting records for their completeness and accuracy to 
accomplish and report on intended objectives. 

 Publishing reports on the results of audit examinations including recommendations for 
improvements in the internal control processes. 

 Appraising Evaluating the adequacy of actions taken by operating management to correct 
reported deficient conditions. 

 Conducting special examinations and financial analyses. 

Attachment B



COUNTY OF ORANGE 
INTERNAL AUDIT DEPARTMENT 

CHARTER 
 

 
 

PAGE 4 OF 5 

INTERNAL AUDITOR ACCESS TO INFORMATION AND PERSONNEL 

Except where prohibited by law, the Director and the IAD staff shall have complete and 
unrestricted access to all of the County’s financial records, files, information systems, personnel, 
and properties. The Director shall promptly report in writing to the Chair of the AOC whenever 
significant barriers or resistance to access to information and personnel occurs. To protect legally 
confidential information, no internal audit report shall directly reference or quote confidential 
information that is protected. 

Upon discovery of an audit involving potential or suspected financial fraud, the Director shall work 
with the County Counsel, including the fraud hotline team, and County Counsel for legal advice 
and coordination of efforts. 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS ACCESS TO INTERNAL AUDIT 

The IAD reserves resources to accommodate Board requests. Individual Board members desiring 
specific audit projects shall place on the Board agenda their proposal for review and approval by 
Board majority. The Director reserves the right to determine how to best fit the directed review 
into the audit plan. 

ANNUAL RISK ASSESSMENT & AUDIT PLAN 

The Director shall be responsible for preparing an annual audit plan identifying the most 
productive high-risk and essential audit projects. The internal audit plan will include budget and 
resource requirements for the next fiscal year. The Director will communicate the impact of 
resource limitations and significant interim changes to the AOC. Once the AOC approves the 
audit plan, it will be presented to the Board for approval. 

The internal audit plan will be developed based on a prioritization of audits using a risk-based 
methodology, including input from the Board, CEO, and County departments. The Director will 
review and adjust the plan in response to changes in the County’s business, risks, operations, 
programs, systems, and controls. All deviations from the approved internal audit plan will be 
communicated to the AOC at theirthrough quarterly status reportsmeetings. 

AUDIT REPORTING AND FOLLOW-UP 

A written report will be prepared and issued by the Director, or designee, following the conclusion 
of each internal audit engagement and will be distributed as appropriate. Internal audit results will 
be communicated to the Board. 

In accordance with the Standards, the Director shall establish a system to follow up on reported 
audit findings. The system established should include updated comments and recommendations 
as appropriate. 

Attachment B



COUNTY OF ORANGE 
INTERNAL AUDIT DEPARTMENT 

CHARTER 
 

 
 

PAGE 5 OF 5 

QUALITY ASSURANCE AND IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

The IAD will maintain a quality assurance program and improvement program that covers all 
aspects of the internal audit function. The program will include an evaluation of the IAD’s 
conformance with the Definition of Internal Auditing, Code of Ethics, and the Standards. 

The Director will report the results of the IAD’s quality assurance and improvement program, 
including external assessments, to the AOC and Board. 

EFFECTIVE DATE 

This charter and the policies therein become effective immediately upon adoption by the Board 
of Supervisors of the County of Orange. 

Date of Adoption: XX/XX/26. 

Attachment B



Agenda Item 12 



Auditor-Controller Internal Audit 
Status of Mandated Audits
As of December 31, 2025

AOC Meeting Date: February 5, 2026

Attachment A

Audit Name Audit No. Budget Hours Actual Hours Variance Draft Report Final Report Status

Cash Shortages FY 25-26 2502 120.0 40.0 80.0 N/A N/A
0 in process, 
6 completed

JPAs and Special Districts FY  
22-23* 2310 120.0 70.0 50.0 N/A N/A Completed
JPAs and Special Districts FY  
23-24* 2410 120.0 114.0 6.0 N/A N/A

Collection in 
process

Review of Schedule of Assets as 
of 9/30/24 2407 300.0 235.0 65.0 10/28/2025 11/14/2025 Completed
Review of Schedule of Assets as 
of 12/31/24

2408 300.0 282.0 18.0
10/28/2025 11/14/2025 Completed

Review of Schedule of Assets as 
of 3/31/25

2409 300.0 225.0 75.0
10/28/2025

Reporting in 
process

Review of Schedule of Assets as 
of 9/30/25

2507 300.0 3.0 297.0 Planning in
process

Review of Schedule of Assets as 
of 12/31/25

2508 300.0 2.0 298.0 Planning in
process

Probation Juvenile Books and
Accounts 2 year ending 6/30/25

2501 600.0 357.0 243.0 1/22/2026 Reporting in 
process

Total 2460.0 1328.0 1132.0

*We collect copies and post them online.
RSA = Review of Schedule of Assets



Auditor-Controller Internal Audit 
Status of Mandated Audits
As of December 31, 2025

AOC Meeting Date: February 5, 2026

Attachment A

Cash Shortages FY 25-26
Approved Total 
Cash Shortages

6

JPAs and Special Districts FY 23-24
Total Reports 

Reviewed
101

JPAs and Special Districts FY 24-25
Total Reports 

Reviewed
48

Objective Status/Results
Denied Total 

Cash Shortages 
To perform an investigation to determine whether to approve 
replenishment of cash shortages.

We have completed 6 out of 6 investigations. 0

Objective Status/Results
Modified Reports 

Received/Reviewed

To ensure all JPAs and Special District within the County file 
their annual audits within 12 months of their fiscal year end.

0/0We are collecting audited financial 
statements.

JPAs remaining: 25 of 68.
Special Districts remaining: 23 of 34.

Total reports received: 48 of 102.

To ensure all JPAs and Special District within the County file 
their annual audits within 12 months of their fiscal year end.

 **removed 4 JPA that are not part of the county for FY 23-24

We are collecting audited financial 
statements.

JPAs remaining: 1 of 68.**
Special Districts remaining: 0 of 34.
Total reports received: 101 of 102.

0/0

Objective Status/Results
Modified Reports 

Received/Reviewed



Auditor-Controller Internal Audit 
Status of Mandated Audits
As of December 31, 2025

AOC Meeting Date: February 5, 2026

Attachment A

Review of Schedule of Assets as of 9/30/24

Control 
Deficiencies

0

Review of Schedule of Assets as of 12/31/24

Control 
Deficiencies

0

Review of Schedule of Assets as of 3/31/25

Control 
Deficiencies

0

Material Weaknesses 
or Significant 
Deficiencies

To perform a quarterly review to express a conclusion on 
whether we are aware of any material modifications that should 
be made to the Schedule of Assets for it to be in accordance 
with the accrual basis of accounting.

We issued the report on November 14, 2025.
There were no findings.

0

Objective
We issued the report on November 14, 2025.

There were no findings.
0

Objective Status/Results
To perform a quarterly review to express a conclusion on 
whether we are aware of any material modifications that should 
be made to the Schedule of Assets for it to be in accordance 
with the accrual basis of accounting.

Reporting in process 0

Objective Status/Results

Material Weaknesses 
or Significant 
Deficiencies

Status/Results

Material Weaknesses 
or Significant 
Deficiencies

To perform a quarterly review to express a conclusion on 
whether we are aware of any material modifications that should 
be made to the Schedule of Assets for it to be in accordance 
with the accrual basis of accounting.



Auditor-Controller Internal Audit 
Status of Mandated Audits
As of December 31, 2025

AOC Meeting Date: February 5, 2026

Attachment A

Review of Schedule of Assets as of 9/30/25

Control 
Deficiencies

0

Review of Schedule of Assets as of 12/31/25
Control 

Deficiencies
0

Probation Juvenile Books and Accounts 2 year ending 6/30/25

Control 
Deficiencies

0

To perform a quarterly review to express a conclusion on 
whether we are aware of any material modifications that should 
be made to the Schedule of Assets for it to be in accordance 
with the accrual basis of accounting.

Planning in process. 0
Objective Status/Results

  
or Significant 
Deficiencies

Objective Status/Results

Material Weaknesses 
or Significant 
Deficiencies

To perform a biennial audit to express a conclusion on whether
Probation's internal control over its books and accounts relating
to receipts, disbursements, and case file management of
juvenile cases is adequate and effective to ensure compliance
with WIC Section 275.

Reporting in process 0
Objective Status/Results

Material Weaknesses 
or Significant 
Deficiencies

To perform a quarterly review to express a conclusion on 
whether we are aware of any material modifications that should 
be made to the Schedule of Assets for it to be in accordance 
with the accrual basis of accounting.

Planning in process. 0



Auditor-Controller Internal Audit 
Status of Mandated Audits
As of December 31, 2025

AOC Meeting Date: February 5, 2026

Attachment A

Entity Type Entity Name FYE Date Follow-up Date Rectified Date

JPA
Public Cable Television Authority 
(PCTA) 6/30/2024

1/23/2025, 4/24/25, 7/17/25, 
10/23/25, 12/20/25

Past-Due Submissions of Audited Financial Statements



Agenda Item 13 
No Attachments



Agenda Item 14 



County IT Projects
Quarterly Progress Report
1st Quarter, FY 25-26
Jul 1 – Sep 30, 2025

Attachment A

Page 1 of 8Quarterly IT Project Progress Report                                  FY 25-26 Q1 (Jul - Sep 2025)



Summary

Page 2 of 8

Attachment A

Key Accomplishments
Two projects were successfully completed in FY25-26 Q1: Access Control Conversion (OCIT) and Virtual 
Private Network (VPN) Solution Expansion (OCIT).

At a Glance
The number of projects in this reporting period is 10, five less than the number of projects reported in the 
previous quarter. Five projects were completed last quarter: Microsoft 365 Copilot Proof of Concept 
(OCIT); Privileged Access Management (PAM) Replacement (OCIT); CompassOC (Office of Care 
Coordination); Employee Information Tracking System (EITS) (Social Services Agency); and Mandated 
Reporter App (MRA) (Social Services Agency). No new projects were added this quarter. The total budget 
decreased from $88,576,018 to $85,766,538.

Quarterly IT Project Progress Report                                  FY 25-26 Q1 (Jul - Sep 2025)

The Quarterly OC Information Technology (OCIT) Project Progress Report provides the status of all County IT projects with a budget of 
$150,000 or more and/or that have been identified as meriting the Board of Supervisors’ attention. 

The IT projects included in this report reflect the County’s ongoing commitment to align IT with the County’s business values. Projects 
included in the portfolio cover the upgrade or replacement of aging infrastructure and end-of-life systems and investment in new, 
innovative, and reliable technology and platforms. These projects also enhance the County’s ability to maintain critical business 
operations, improve productivity, and deliver more and better services to constituents.

In addition to project status updates, this report also describes the County’s IT overall project performance trends over the last 12 
quarters.

Highlights



IT Portfolio Size and Budget

Page 3 of 8

Attachment A

Quarterly IT Project Progress Report                                  FY 25-26 Q1 (Jul - Sep 2025)

This chart depicts the County’s IT project portfolio size and budget trends over the last 12 quarters.

 The number of active projects is 10, 
five less projects than reported in the 
previous quarter. 

 Project data from the last 12 
quarters show an average of 17 and a 
median of 17 projects. 

 The total portfolio budget decreased 
by $2,809,480.

 $-

 $10,000,000

 $20,000,000

 $30,000,000

 $40,000,000

 $50,000,000

 $60,000,000

 $70,000,000

 $80,000,000

 $90,000,000

 $100,000,000

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

Bu
dg

et
 ($

)

N
um

b
er

 o
f P

ro
je

ct
s

Total Budget $ Number of Projects

The chart above reflects projects that were active or completed during each quarter.



Portfolio Performance

During this reporting period, six projects 
experienced schedule delays of more 
than 10%, and one project exceeded its 
original or rebaselined budget by more 
than 10%. Details concerning schedule 
delays are available in the IT Project 
Dashboard included with this report.

Scope changes and project dependencies 
are the primary contributors to project 
schedule delays and budget overages.

Page 4 of 8

Attachment A

Quarterly IT Project Progress Report                                  FY 25-26 Q1 (Jul - Sep 2025)

4

2

4

Schedule

On Schedule

At risk; 10% - 20% over schedule

Critical; >20% over schedule

The charts below depict the County’s IT project portfolio schedule and budget performance of the active and completed projects 
during the reporting period.

9

1

Budget

On Budget

At risk; 10% - 20% over budget

Critical; >20% over budget



Portfolio Performance Trend

Page 5 of 8

Attachment A

Quarterly IT Project Progress Report                                  FY 25-26 Q1 (Jul - Sep 2025)

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

FY22-23 Q2 FY22-23 Q3 FY22-23 Q4 FY23-24 Q1 FY23-24 Q2 FY23-24 Q3 FY23-24 Q4 FY24-25 Q1 FY24-25 Q2 FY24-25 Q3 FY24-25 Q4 FY25-26 Q1

N
um

be
r o

f P
ro

je
ct

s

Project Portfolio Schedule Performance Trend

Completed On Time Completed Late Completed On Time (Cumulative)

The chart below depicts the County’s IT project schedule performance trend for the projects that were completed over the last 12 quarters.

The bars reflect the total number of projects completed in each quarter and the number completed on schedule.

The line reflects the percentage of projects completed on schedule over four consecutive quarters.

This portfolio budget performance trend may reflect the County’s cost-schedule tradeoff decisions to stay within resource 
and budget constraints at the expense of schedule. 



Project Investment Trends

The chart above reflects projects that were active or completed during each quarter.

Page 6 of 8

Attachment A

Quarterly IT Project Progress Report                                  FY 25-26 Q1 (Jul - Sep 2025)

$0

$10,000,000

$20,000,000

$30,000,000

$40,000,000

$50,000,000

$60,000,000

$70,000,000

$80,000,000

$90,000,000

$100,000,000

FY22-23 Q22 FY22-23 Q3 FY22-23 Q4 FY23-24 Q1 FY23-24 Q2 FY23-24 Q3 FY23-24 Q4 FY24-25 Q1 FY24-25 Q2 FY24-25 Q3 FY24-25 Q4 FY25-26 Q41

Investment by Business Justification

Business Process Improvement / Automation Obsolescence Network Mandate

Projects intended to improve or automate business processes account for 87.96% of the County’s IT 
budget this quarter. Projects for replacing end-of-life or obsolete systems account for 2.80% of the 
budget. Network projects account for 6.16% of the budget. Mandated systems account for 3.08% of the 
budget.



Investment by Service Area

Countywide projects, which include ERP, account for the largest share of the County’s IT project investments this quarter. 
Enterprise Cybersecurity, Department Specific, and Public Protection projects show significantly less investment as compared 
with countywide projects.

The chart above reflects projects that were active or completed during this reporting period.

Page 7 of 8

Attachment A

$2,416,734 

$0 

$75,071,493 

$5,486,311 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$2,792,000

$0

$0

Department Specific

Care Coordination

Countywide

Enterprise Cybersecurity

Enterprise Infrastructure

Health Care Services

HR Services

John Wayne Airport

Multi-Department

Public Protection

Public Works

Other

Quarterly IT Project Progress Report                                  FY 25-26 Q1 (Jul - Sep 2025)



Project Landing Map
The map below depicts when project benefits have been or are expected to be realized. 

Page 8 of 8

Attachment A

Quarterly IT Project Progress Report                                  FY 25-26 Q1 (Jul - Sep 2025)

 On schedule
 10% - 20% over schedule
 >20% over schedule
 Project has been completed

Q1 FY24-25
Jul – Sep 2024

Q2 FY24-25
Oct – Dec 2024

Q3 FY24-25
Jan – Mar 2025

Q4 FY24-25
Apr – Jun 2025

 eDiscovery Tool
 Legacy Application Restoration
 Qualtrics Call Center Analytics
 Web Property Tax Inquiry & Payment 

System

 Endpoint Security Transition
 Identity & Badge Data Integration 

(Cancelled)

 iConnect Lab Portal
 OC Agenda (Cancelled)
 Multi-Drug Resistant Organism (MDRO) 

Data Exchange
 OC Recycling and Disposal System (RDS)

 CompassOC
 Employee Information Tracking System
 Mandated Reporter App
 Microsoft 365 Copilot Proof of Concept
 Privileged Access Management (PAM) 

Replacement

Q1 FY25-26
Jul – Sep 2025

Q2 FY25-26
Oct – Dec 2025

Q3 FY25-26
Jan – Mar 2026

Q4 FY25-26
Apr – Jun 2026

 Access Control Conversion
 VPN Solution Expansion

 Automated Jail System (AJS)
 County Enterprise Network 

Redundancy

 Juvenile Hall Switch Migration
 Multi-Factor Authentication (MFA) 

System
 Orangewood Children’s Information 

System 2.0

 OC Agenda Rewrite (May 2026)

Q1 FY26-27
Jul – Sep 2026

Q2 FY26-27
Oct – Dec 2026

Q3 FY26-27
Jan – Mar 2027

Q4 FY26-27
Apr – Jun 2027 

 ERP Transformation and Modernization 
(July 2028)

 OC.GOV Migration (Dec 2028)



 Attachment B 

Status Update of OCIT Projects Identified as At Risk or Critical  
in First Quarter FY 25-26 Quarterly IT Project Progress Report 

 Page 1 of 1   

 

 

Status Update of OCIT Projects Identified as At Risk or Critical in First 
Quarter FY 25-26 Quarterly IT Project Progress Report 
This update to the Q1 FY 2025-26 IT Projects Progress Report (Attachment A) provides status 
updates as of October 30, 2025, for OCIT-managed IT projects with budgets of $150,000+ that were 
flagged as at risk or critical as of September 30, 2025. It does not cover IT projects managed by other 
departments. 

Project Detail 

PROJECT: Access Control Conversion 

See Attachment A, p. 9 

☐ Budget: ☐ At Risk ☐ Critical  ☒ N/A 

☒ Schedule: ☐ At Risk ☒ Critical  ☐ N/A 

Project completed September 30, 2025. 

 

PROJECT: Multi-Factor Authentication 

See Attachment A, p. 10 

☒ Budget: ☐ At Risk ☐ Critical ☒ N/A 

☒ Schedule: ☐ At Risk ☒ Critical  ☐ N/A 

New estimated completion date of March 26, 2026. Project delayed due to hardware/software issues 
with vendor-provided card reader solution. Vendor has resolved issues and patches have been applied 
to hardware/software. Department rollouts proceeding. 

 

PROJECT: Virtual Private Network Solution Expansion 

See Attachment A, p. 11 

☒ Budget: ☒ At Risk ☐ Critical ☐ N/A 

☒ Schedule: ☐ At Risk ☒ Critical  ☐ N/A 

Project completed September 30, 2025. 

 


	Agenda
	Item 1
	Item 2
	Item 3
	Item 4
	Item 5
	Item 6
	Item 7
	Item 8
	Item 9
	Item 10
	Item 11
	Item 12
	Item 13
	Item 14



